Public Document Pack

Notice of meeting and agenda

Planning Local Review Body (Panel 1)
10.00 am Wednesday, 24th June, 2020
Meeting will be held by Teams

This is a public meeting and members of the public are welcome watch the live webcast
on the Council’s website.

Contacts
Email:

sarah.stirling@edinburgh.gov.uk

Tel:

0131 529 3009

1. Appointment of Convener
1.1

The Local Review Body is invited to appoint a Convener from its
membership.

2. Order of Business
2.1

Including any notices of motion and any other items of business
submitted as urgent for consideration at the meeting.

3. Declaration of Interests
3.1

Members should declare any financial and non-financial interests
they have in the items of business for consideration, identifying
the relevant agenda item and the nature of their interest.

4. Minutes
4.1

Minute of the Local Review Body (Panel 1) of 26 February 2020 –
submitted for approval as a correct record.

9 - 18

5. Local Review Body - Procedure
5.1

Note of the outline procedure for consideration of all Requests for
Review

Planning Local Review Body (Panel 1) - 24 June
2020

19 - 22

Page 2 of 8

6. Continued Request for Review
6.1

14 (Flat 6) York Place, Edinburgh – Replace existing kitchen roof
lights with catslip dormer with French windows and small
concealed terrace; alter attic store to living room gallery; replace
existing rear roof hatch and front facing roof light with new
conservation roof lights – application no 19/03581/FUL
(a)

Decision Notice and Report of Handling

(b)

Appeal Decision Notice for Listed Building Consent

(c)

Notice of Review and Supporting Documents

23 - 64

Note: This request for review was continued from the meeting of
the Planning Local Review Body (Panel 1) of 26 February 2020 to
permit the appeal decision from the Scottish Government, for the
Listed Building Consent, to be circulated to all interested parties.

7. Requests for Review
7.1

6 Castle Gogar Rigg (at Land 80 Metres South of), Edinburgh –
Proposed development of five new detached homes – application
no 19/04849/FUL
a)

Decision Notice and Report of Handling

(b)

Notice of Review and Supporting Documents

65 - 354

Note: The applicant has requested that the review proceed on the
basis of an assessment of the review documents and a hearing
session.

7.2

30 Greenbank Crescent, Edinburgh – Planning Permission in
Principle for construction of dwelling – application no
19/04982/PPP
(a)

Decision Notice and Report of Handling

(b)

Notice of Review and Supporting Documents

355 - 394

Note: The applicant has requested that the review proceed on the
basis of an assessment of the review documents only.

Planning Local Review Body (Panel 1) - 24 June
2020

Page 3 of 8

7.3

9 – 21 Salamander Place, Edinburgh – 5 new parking places in
lieu of parking and mews building structure (2 dwellings) forming
part of Planning Consent ref. 16/03356/PPP (as amended) –
application no 19/04487/PPP
(a)

Decision Notice and Report of Handling

(b)

Notice of Review and Supporting Documents

395 - 426

Note: The applicant has requested that the review proceed on the
basis of an assessment of the review documents only.

8. Extracts of Relevant Policies from the Edinburgh Local
Development Plan
8.1

Extracts of Relevant Policies from the Edinburgh Local
Development Plan for the above review cases
Local Development Plan Online
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy DEL 1 (Developer
Contributions and Infrastructure Delivery)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy DEL 3 (Edinburgh
Waterfront)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy DES 1 (Design Quality
and Context)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy DES 3 (Development
Design - Incorporating and Enhancing Existing and Potential
Features)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy DES 4 (Development
Design - Impact on Setting)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy DES 5 (Development
Design -Amenity)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy DES 7 (Layout Design)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy DES 8 (Public Realm
and Landscape Design)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy DES 12 (Alterations

Planning Local Review Body (Panel 1) - 24 June
2020

Page 4 of 8

and Extensions)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy EMP 6 (International
Business Gateway)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy ENV 3 (Listed
Buildings - Setting)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy ENV 4 (Listed
Buildings - Alterations and Extensions)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy ENV 6 (Conservation
Areas - Development)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy ENV 9 (Development
of Sites of Archaeological Significance)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy ENV 12 (Trees)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy ENV 16 (Species
Protection)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy ENV 18 (Open Space
Protection)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy ENV 21 (Flood
Protection)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy HOU 1 (Housing
Development)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy HOU 2 (Housing Mix)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy HOU 3 (Private Green
Space in Housing Development)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy HOU 4 (Housing
Density)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy RS 6 (Water and
Drainage)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy TRA 2 (Private Car
Parking)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy TRA 3 (Private Cycle
Parking)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy TRA 4 (Design of OffStreet Car and Cycle Parking)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy TRA 12 (Edinburgh

Planning Local Review Body (Panel 1) - 24 June
2020

Page 5 of 8

Airport Public Safety Zones)

9. Non-Statutory Guidance
9.1

9.1

Edinburgh Design Guidance

9.2

Guidance for Householders

9.3

The Leith Conservation Area Character Appraisal

9.4

Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas

9.5

Managing Change in the Historic Environment: Setting

9.6

The New Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal

Note: The above policy background papers are available to view on the Council’s
website www.edinburgh.gov.uk under Planning and Building Standards/local and
strategic development plans/planning guidelines/conservation areas, or follow the links
as above.

Laurence Rockey
Head of Strategy and Communications

Membership Panel
Councillor George Gordon, Councillor Joan Griffiths, Councillor Max Mitchell, Councillor
Joanna Mowat and Councillor Mary Campbell

Information about the Planning Local Review Body (Panel 1)
The City of Edinburgh Planning Local Review Body (LRB) has been established by the
Council in terms of the Town and Country Planning (Schemes of Delegation and Local
Review Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2008. The LRB’s remit is to determine any
request for a review of a decision on a planning application submitted in terms of the
Regulations.

Planning Local Review Body (Panel 1) - 24 June
2020

Page 6 of 8

The LRB comprises a panel of five Councillors drawn from the eleven members of the
Planning Committee. The LRB usually meets every two weeks, with the members
rotating in two panels of five Councillors.
It usually meets in the Dean of Guild Court Room in the City Chambers, High Street,
Edinburgh. Meetings are currently being held remotely in order to comply with the
Scottish Government’s recommendation to practice social distancing and the live
webcast can be viewed from the Council’s Webcast Library.

Further information
Members of the LRB may appoint a substitute from the pool of trained members of the
Planning Committee. No other member of the Council may substitute for a substantive
member. Members appointing a substitute are asked to notify Committee Services (as
detailed below) as soon as possible
If you have any questions about the agenda or meeting arrangements, please contact
Sarah Stirling, Committee Services, City of Edinburgh Council, Business Centre 2.1,
Waverley Court, 4 East Market Street, Edinburgh EH8 8BG, Tel 0131 529 3009, email
sarah.stirling@edinburgh.gov.uk.
A copy of the agenda and papers for this meeting will be available for inspection prior to
the meeting at the main reception office, City Chambers, High Street, Edinburgh.
The agenda, minutes and public reports for this meeting and all the main Council
committees can be viewed online by going to www.edinburgh.gov.uk/cpol.
Unless otherwise indicated on the agenda, no elected members of the Council,
applicant, agent or other member of the public may address the meeting.

Webcasting of Council Meetings
Please note this meeting may be filmed for live and subsequent broadcast via the
Council’s internet site – at the start of the meeting the Convener will confirm if all or part
of the meeting is being filmed.
The Council is a Data Controller under the General Data Protection Regulation and
Data Protection Act 2018.
We broadcast Council meetings to fulfil our public task obligation to enable members of
the public to observe the democratic process.
Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the Council’s
published policy including, but not limited to, for the purpose of keeping historical
records and making those records available via the Council’s internet site.

Planning Local Review Body (Panel 1) - 24 June
2020

Page 7 of 8

Any information presented by individuals to the Council at a meeting, in a deputation or
otherwise, in addition to forming part of a webcast that will be held as a historical
record, will also be held and used by the Council in connection with the relevant matter
until that matter is decided or otherwise resolved (including any potential appeals and
other connected processes). Thereafter, that information will continue to be held as part
of the historical record in accordance with the paragraphs above.
If you have any queries regarding this, and, in particular, if you believe that use and/or
storage of any particular information would cause, or be likely to cause, substantial
damage or distress to any individual, please contact Committee Services
(committee.services@edinburgh.gov.uk).

Planning Local Review Body (Panel 1) - 24 June
2020

Page 8 of 8

Agenda Item 4.1
Minutes
The City of Edinburgh Planning Local Review
Body (Panel 1)
10.00am, Wednesday 26 February 2020
Present: Councillors Booth, Gordon, Mitchell and Mowat.

1.

Appointment of Convener

Councillor Mitchell was appointed as Convener.

2.

Minutes

To approve the minute of the Local Review Body (LRB Panel 1) of 15 January 2020 as
a correct record.

3.

Planning Local Review Body Procedure

Decision
To note the outline procedure for consideration of reviews.
(Reference – Local Review Body Procedure, submitted)

4.

Request for Review – 10 Glenlockhart Bank, Edinburgh

Details were submitted of a request for a review for the refusal of planning permission
for the erection of a new private dwelling house at 10 Glenlockhart Bank, Edinburgh.
Application No. 19/02444/PPP
Assessment
At the meeting on 26 February 2020, the LRB had been provided with copies of the
notice of review submitted by you including a request that the review proceed on the
basis of an assessment of the review documents only and further written submission of
specific matters. The LRB had also been provided with copies of the decision notice
and the report of handling.
The LRB heard from the Planning Adviser who summarised the issues raised and
presented the drawings of the development and responded to further questions.
The plans used to determine the application were numbered 01-02, Scheme 1, being
the drawings shown under the application reference number 19/02444/PPP on the
Council’s Planning and Building Standards Online Services.
The LRB in their deliberations on the matter, considered the following:
1)

The development plan, including the relevant policies of the Edinburgh Local
Development Plan.

Page 9

Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy Des 12 (Alterations and Extensions)
LDP Policy Des 1 (Design Quality and Context)
LDP Policy Des 4 (Development Design - Impact on Setting)
LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design - Amenity)
LDP Policy Hou 1 (Housing Development)
LDP Policy Hou 4 (Housing Density)
LDP Policy Tra 2 (Private Car Parking)
LDP Policy Tra 4 (Design of Off-Street Car and Cycle Parking)
LDP Policy Del 1 (Developer Contributions and Infrastructure Delivery)
LDP Policy Env 12 (Trees)
LDP Policy Env 21 (Flood Protection)
2)

Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines.
‘Edinburgh Design Guidance’
‘Guidance for Householders’

3)

The procedure used to determine the application.

4)

The reasons for refusal and the arguments put forward in the request for a
review.

Conclusion
The LRB considered all the arguments put before it in respect of the proposed planning
application and discussion took place in relation to the following issues:
•

That the applicant had not supplied sufficient information regarding design and
positioning of the proposed house to make a proper judgement on the
acceptability of the proposals, and therefore the application should be refused.

•

The principle of development had been established, but the proposals should
conform to LDP Plan policies and be suitable for this area.

•

Whether this would be in keeping with the spatial pattern of the area and could
conditions be imposed.

•

The proposed location would be problematic, due to potential issues relating to
the proximity of the adjacent trees, and the distance between the development
and neighbouring houses.

Having taken all the above matters into consideration, and although one of the
members was in favour of the application, the LRB was of the opinion that no material
considerations had been presented in the request for a review which would lead it to
overturn the determination by the Chief Planning Officer.
Decision
To uphold the decision by the Chief Planning Officer to refuse planning permission.
City of Edinburgh Planning Local Review Body – 26.02.20

Page 10

Page 2 of 9

Reasons for Refusal:
1.

The proposal was contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy
Des 1 as it does not draw upon the positive characteristics of the area and would
be damaging to the character and appearance of the area around it.

2.

The proposal did not comply with Adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan
Policy Des 4 as it will not have a positive impact upon its surroundings in terms
of its positioning

3.

The proposal was contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy
Hou 1, as the proposal was not compatible with other policies in the plan.

4.

The proposal was contrary to the Edinburgh Design Guidance as it would be
backland development which would disrupt the spatial character of the area.

(References – Decision Notice, Report of Handling and Notice of Review, submitted)

5.

Request for Review – 12 Hutchison Crossway Edinburgh

Details were submitted of a request for a review for the refusal of planning permission
for the formation of new two vehicle driveway in part of front garden using slabs and
gravel with access via sliding metal gate formed within existing steel fence at 12
Hutchison Crossway Edinburgh. Application No. 19/04379/FUL.
Assessment
At the meeting on 26 February 2020, the LRB had been provided with copies of the
notice of review submitted by you including a request that the review proceed on the
basis of an assessment of the review documents only. The LRB had also been
provided with copies of the decision notice and the report of handling.
The LRB heard from the Planning Adviser who summarised the issues raised and
presented the drawings of the development and responded to further questions.
The plans used to determine the application were numbered 1A and 2A, Scheme 1,
being the drawings shown under the application reference number 19/04379/FUL on
the Council’s Planning and Building Standards Online Services.
The LRB in their deliberations on the matter, considered the following:
1)

The development plan, including the relevant policies of the Edinburgh Local
Development Plan.
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy Des 12 (Alterations and Extensions)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy Env 12 (Trees)

2)

Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines.
‘Guidance for Householders’

3)

The procedure used to determine the application.

4)

The reasons for refusal and the arguments put forward in the request for a
review.

Conclusion
City of Edinburgh Planning Local Review Body – 26.02.20

Page 11

Page 3 of 9

The LRB considered all the arguments put before it in respect of the proposed planning
application and discussion took place in relation to the following issues:
•

Whether this was a main door flat with access to the driveway and what were
the dimensions for a disability parking space.

•

That the neighbouring property had a driveway, but it was much bigger garden
area and therefore the dimensions complied with policies.

•

The lack of double yellow lines in front of the proposed driveway could result in
issues with access.

•

If residents were denied access from their driveway, then this would be in
breach of parking regulations.

•

Whether there would be a net gain for the individual due to a private parking
space and a net loss to the public due to the loss of on-street parking.

•

If the issue was maintaining disabled access, then the applicant could apply for
a disabled parking bay.

•

Other disabled users might park in the space.

•

The proposals didn’t comply with policy due to the loss of garden ground.

Having taken all the above matters into consideration, the LRB was of the opinion that
no material considerations had been presented in the request for a review which would
lead it to overturn the determination by the Chief Planning Officer.
Decision
To uphold the decision by the Chief Planning Officer to refuse planning permission.
Reasons for Refusal:
The proposal would not accord with neighbourhood character and would be detrimental
to the amenity of the area.
(References – Decision Notice, Report of Handling and Notice of Review, submitted)

6.

Request for Review – 22 Inverleith Place, Edinburgh

Details were submitted of a request for a review for the refusal of planning permission
for the erection of a timber fence and trellis, (in retrospect) at 22 Inverleith Place,
Edinburgh. Application No. 19/03313/FUL.
Assessment
At the meeting on 26 February 2020, the LRB had been provided with copies of the
notice of review submitted by you including a request that the review proceed on the
basis of an assessment of the review documents only. The LRB had also been
provided with copies of the decision notice and the report of handling.
The LRB heard from the Planning Adviser who summarised the issues raised and
presented the drawings of the development and responded to further questions.
City of Edinburgh Planning Local Review Body – 26.02.20

Page 12

Page 4 of 9

The plans used to determine the application were numbered 01-04, Scheme 1, being
the drawings shown under the application reference number 19/03313/FUL on the
Council’s Planning and Building Standards Online Services.
The LRB in their deliberations on the matter, considered the following:
1)

The development plan, including the relevant policies of the Edinburgh Local
Development Plan.
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy Des 1 (Design Quality and Context)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy Env 6 (Conservation Areas Development)

2)

Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines.
‘Guidance for Householders’
‘Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas’
‘The Inverleith Conservation Area Character Appraisal’

3)

The procedure used to determine the application.

4)

The reasons for refusal and the arguments put forward in the request for a
review.

Conclusion
The LRB considered all the arguments put before it in respect of the proposed planning
application and discussion took place in relation to the following issues:
•

That the proposed trellis was higher than the hedge.

•

Whether the trellis would create a leafy structure and was only temporarily
supporting the trees.

•

That the trellis would require permission because of its height, even if it was not
in a conservation area.

•

That the structure was excessively high.

•

This proposal was fairly novel, but should be seen as a landscaping trend and
was within the characteristics of the conservation area, and therefore was not
contrary to LDP Plan policy.

•

That the proposal did not comply with the characteristics of the conservation
area or guidance.

•

LDP Plan policies could be interpreted differently and there were other examples
of this type of development in this area.

Having taken all these matters into consideration and although some of the members
were in favour of refusing the application, the LRB determined that the erection of a
timber fence and trellis:

City of Edinburgh Planning Local Review Body – 26.02.20

Page 13

Page 5 of 9

1.

Was in keeping with the positive characteristics of the surrounding area and was
not contrary to LDP Policy Des 1.

2.

Would not damage the character and appearance of the conservation area and
was not contrary to LDP Policy Env 6.

It therefore overturned the decision of the Chief Planning Officer and granted planning
permission.
Motion
To uphold the decision by the Chief Planning Officer to refuse planning permission.
Reasons for Refusal:
1)

The proposal was contrary to the Local Development Plan Policy Des 1 in
respect of Design Quality and Context, as it did not draw from the positive
characteristics of the surrounding area.

2)

The proposal was contrary to the Local Development Plan Policy Env 6 in
respect of Conservation Areas - Development, as the proposal would damage
the character and appearance of the conservation area.

-

moved by Councillor Gordon, seconded by Councillor Booth.

Amendment
To not uphold the decision by the Chief Planning Officer and to grant planning
permission subject to:
The following informatives:

-

(a)

The development hereby permitted should be commenced no later than
the expiration of three years from the date of this consent.

(b)

No development should take place on the site until a ‘Notice of Initiation
of Development’ had been submitted to the Council stating the intended
date on which the development was to commence. Failure to do so
constituted a breach of planning control under section 123(1) of the Town
and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

(c)

As soon as practicable upon the completion of the development of the
site, as authorised in the associated grant of permission, a Notice of
Completion of Development must be given in writing to the Council.

moved by Councillor Mowat, seconded by Councillor Mitchell.

Voting
For the motion

-

2 votes

(Councillors Booth and Gordon.)
For the amendment

-

2 votes

(Councillors Mitchell and Mowat.)
Decision
City of Edinburgh Planning Local Review Body – 26.02.20

Page 14

Page 6 of 9

In the division, 2 members having voted for the motion and 2 members for the
amendment the Convener gave his casting vote for the motion and the Local Review
Body resolved as follows:
Decision
To not uphold the decision by the Chief Planning Officer and to grant planning
permission subject to:
The following informatives:
(a)

The development hereby permitted should be commenced no later than
the expiration of three years from the date of this consent.

(b)

No development should take place on the site until a ‘Notice of Initiation
of Development’ had been submitted to the Council stating the intended
date on which the development was to commence. Failure to do so
constituted a breach of planning control under section 123(1) of the Town
and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

(c)

As soon as practicable upon the completion of the development of the
site, as authorised in the associated grant of permission, a Notice of
Completion of Development must be given in writing to the Council.

(References – Decision Notice, Report of Handling and Notice of Review, submitted)

7.

Request for Review – 70 Salvesen Gardens Edinburgh

Details were submitted of a request for a review for the refusal of planning permission
for the refusal of planning permission for the formation of a roof dormer to rear of
dwelling house at 70 Salvesen Gardens Edinburgh. Application No. 19/04483/FUL.
Assessment
At the meeting on 26 February 2020, the LRB had been provided with copies of the
notice of review submitted by you including a request that the review proceed on the
basis of an assessment of the review documents only. The LRB had also been
provided with copies of the decision notice and the report of handling.
The LRB heard from the Planning Adviser who summarised the issues raised and
presented the drawings of the development and responded to further questions.
The plans used to determine the application were numbered 01-02, Scheme 1, being
the drawings shown under the application reference number 19/04483/FUL on the
Council’s Planning and Building Standards Online Services.
The LRB in their deliberations on the matter, considered the following:
1)

The development plan, including the relevant policies of the Edinburgh Local
Development Plan.
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy Des 12 (Alterations and Extensions)

2)

Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines.
‘Guidance for Householders’

City of Edinburgh Planning Local Review Body – 26.02.20

Page 15

Page 7 of 9

3)

The procedure used to determine the application.

4)

The reasons for refusal and the arguments put forward in the request for a
review.

Conclusion
The LRB considered all the arguments put before it in respect of the proposed planning
application and discussion took place in relation to the following issues:
•

Confirmation regarding existing consents on the site were sought.

•

The proposals represented overdevelopment and would be detrimental to the
streetscape, contrary to policy.

•

Rear dormers were usually acceptable, but the scale in relation to the roofscape
and the issue of privacy meant that this proposal was not appropriate.

•

The proposed dormer was excessively dominant in relation to the back of the
building.

Having taken all the above matters into consideration, the LRB was of the opinion that
no material considerations had been presented in the request for a review which would
lead it to overturn the determination by the Chief Planning Officer.
Decision
To uphold the decision by the Chief Planning Officer to refuse planning permission.
Reasons for Refusal:
1.

The proposal was contrary to the Local Development Plan Policy Des 12 in
respect of Alterations and Extensions, as it impacted on the character and
appearance of the existing building and the street scene; and neighbouring
amenity.

2.

The proposals were contrary to development plan policy on extensions and
alterations as interpreted using the non-statutory Guidance for Householders as
they impacted on the character and appearance of the existing building and the
street scene; and neighbouring amenity.

(References – Decision Notice, Report of Handling and Notice of Review, submitted)

8.

Request for Review – 14 York Place (Flat 6), Edinburgh

Details were submitted of a request for a review for the refusal of planning permission
to replace existing kitchen roof lights with cat slip dormer with French windows and
small concealed terrace; alter attic store to living room gallery; replace existing rear roof
hatch and front facing roof light with new conservation roof lights at York Place (Flat 6),
Edinburgh. Application No. 19/03581/FUL.

City of Edinburgh Planning Local Review Body – 26.02.20

Page 16

Page 8 of 9

Decision
To continue consideration of the matter to the next meeting of the LRB (Panel 1) to
permit the appeal decision from the Scottish Government, for the Listed Building
Consent, to be circulated to all interested parties.
(References – Decision Notice, Report of Handling and Notice of Review, submitted)
Declaration of Interest
Councillor Booth declared a non-financial interest in the above item as he knew the
agent of the applicant, left the room and took no part in the deliberations of this item.

City of Edinburgh Planning Local Review Body – 26.02.20

Page 17

Page 9 of 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5.1

City of Edinburgh Planning Local Review Body (the LRB)
General
1.

Each meeting of the LRB shall appoint a Convener. A quorum of a meeting
of the LRB will be three members.

2.

The Clerk will introduce and deal with statutory items (Order of Business
and Declarations of Interest) and will introduce each request for review.

3.

The LRB will normally invite the planning adviser to highlight the issues
raised in the review.

4.

The LRB will only accept new information where there are exceptional
circumstances as to why it was not available at the time of the planning
application. The LRB will formally decide whether this new information
should be taken into account in the review.
The LRB may at any time ask questions of the planning adviser, the Clerk,
or the legal adviser, if present.

5.

Having considered the applicant’s preference for the procedure to be used,
and other information before it, the LRB shall decide how to proceed with
the review.

6.

If the LRB decides that it has sufficient information before it, it may proceed
to consider the review using only the information circulated to it. The LRB
may decide it has insufficient information at any stage prior to the formal
decision being taken.

7.

If the LRB decides that it does not have sufficient information before it, it
will decide which one of, or combination of, the following procedures will be
used:

8.

•

further written submissions;

•

the holding of one or more hearing sessions; and/or

•

an accompanied or unaccompanied inspection of the land to which the
review relates.

Whichever option the LRB selects, it shall comply with legislation set out in
the Town and Country Planning (Schemes of Delegation and Local Review
Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013 (the Regulations).
The LRB may hold a pre-examination meeting to decide upon the manner
in which the review, or any part of it, is to be conducted.

Page 19

If the LRB decides to seek further information, it will specify what further
information is required in a written notice to be issued to the applicant,
Chief Planning Officer and any interested parties. The content of any
further submissions must be restricted to the matters specified in the written
notice.
In determining the outcome of the review, the LRB will have regard to the
requirements of paragraphs 11 and 12 below.
9.

The LRB may adjourn any meeting to such time and date as it may then or
later decide.

Considering the Request for Review
10.

Unless material considerations indicate otherwise, the LRB’s determination
must be made in accordance with the development plan that is legally in
force. Any un-adopted development plan does not have the same weight
but will be a material consideration. The LRB is making a new decision on
the application and must take the ‘de novo’ approach.

11.

The LRB will:

12.

•

Identify the relevant policies of the Development Plan and interpret
any provisions relating to the proposal, for and against, and decide
whether the proposal accords with the Development Plan;

•

identify all other material planning considerations relevant to the
proposal and assess the weight to be given to these, for and against,
and whether there are considerations of such weight as to indicate
that the Development Plan should not be given priority;

•

take into account only those issues which are relevant planning
considerations;

•

ensure that the relevant provisions of the Planning (Listed Buildings
and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997 are assessed when
the review relates to a listed building and/or conservation area; and

•

in coming to a determination, only review the information presented
in the Notice of Review or that from further procedure.

The LRB will then determine the review. It may:
•

uphold the officer’s determination;

•

uphold the officer’s determination subject to amendments or
additions to the reasons for refusal;

•

grant planning permission, in full or in part;

•

impose conditions, or vary conditions imposed in the original
determination;

•

determine the review in cases of non-determination.

Page 20

Procedure after determination
13.

The Clerk will record the LRB’s decision.

14.

In every case, the LRB must give notice of the decision (“a decision notice”)
to the applicant. Every person who has made, and has not withdrawn,
representations in respect of the review, will be notified of the location
where a copy of the decision notice is available for inspection. Depending
on the decision, the planning adviser may provide assistance with the
framing of conditions of consent or with amended reasons for refusal.

15.

The Decision Notice will comply with the requirements of regulation 22.

16.

The decision of the LRB is final, subject to the right of the applicant to
question the validity of the decision by making an application to the Court of
Session. Such application must be made within 6 weeks of the date of the
decision. The applicant will be advised of these and other rights by means
of a Notice as specified in Schedule 2 to the regulations.

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6.1

Studio DuB.
FAO: Gordon Duffy
17A-2 West Crosscauseway
EDINBURGH
United Kingdom
EH8 9JW

Mr Dean Kerslake.
Flat 6
14 York Place
Edinburgh
EH1 3EP

Decision date: 24 September 2019

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACTS
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2013
Replace existing kitchen roof lights with catslip dormer with French windows and small
concealed terrace; alter attic store to living room gallery; replace existing rear roof
hatch and front facing roof light with new conservation roof lights.
At Flat 6 14 York Place Edinburgh EH1 3EP
Application No: 19/03581/FUL
DECISION NOTICE
With reference to your application for Planning Permission registered on 29 July 2019,
this has been decided by Local Delegated Decision. The Council in exercise of its
powers under the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Acts and regulations, now
determines the application as Refused in accordance with the particulars given in the
application.
Any condition(s) attached to this consent, with reasons for imposing them, or reasons
for refusal, are shown below;
Conditions:-

Reasons:1.
The proposal is contrary to the Local Development Plan Policy Env 6 in respect
of Conservation Areas - Development, as the proposal would detract from the
character and appearance of the conservation area.
2.
The proposal is contrary to the Local Development Plan Policy Env 4 in respect
of Listed Buildings - Alterations and Extensions, as the proposed alterations will not be
in keeping with the rest of the buildings, will cause unnecessary harm to the historic
structure and diminution of its interest and are not justified.

Page 23

Jennifer Zochowska, Senior Planning Officer, Local 1 Area Team, Place Directorate.
Tel 0131 529 3793, Email jennifer.zochowska@edinburgh.gov.uk,
Waverley Court, 4 East Market Street, Edinburgh, EH8 8BG

Please see the guidance notes on our decision page for further information, including
how to appeal or review your decision.
Drawings 1-9, represent the determined scheme. Full details of the application can be
found on the Planning and Building Standards Online Services
The reason why the Council made this decision is as follows:
The proposal does not comply with the development plan and Council's non-statutory
guidance as the alterations would be detrimental to the character and appearance of
the New Town Conservation Area. It will have an adverse impact on the unique
architectural and historical character of the listed building. There are no other material
considerations to outweigh this conclusion.

This determination does not carry with it any necessary consent or approval for the
proposed development under other statutory enactments.
Should you have a specific enquiry regarding this decision please contact Jennifer
Zochowska directly on 0131 529 3793.

Chief Planning Officer
PLACE
The City of Edinburgh Council

Page 24

NOTES

1. If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision to refuse permission for or approval
required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission
or approval subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to
review the case under section 43A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act
1997 within three months beginning with the date of this notice. The Notice of Review
can be made online at www.eplanning.scot or forms can be downloaded from that
website. Paper forms should be addressed to the City of Edinburgh Planning Local
Review Body, G.2, Waverley Court, 4 East Market Street, Edinburgh, EH8 8BG. For
enquiries about the Local Review Body, please email
localreviewbody@edinburgh.gov.uk.
2. If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions and the
owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of reasonably beneficial
use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use
by carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner
of the land may serve on the planning authority a purchase notice requiring the
purchase of the owner of the land's interest in the land accordance with Part 5 of the
Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

Page 25

Report of Handling
Application for Planning Permission 19/03581/FUL
At Flat 6, 14 York Place, Edinburgh
Replace existing kitchen roof lights with catslip dormer with
French windows and small concealed terrace; alter attic
store to living room gallery; replace existing rear roof hatch
and front facing roof light with new conservation roof lights.

Item

Local Delegated Decision

Application number

19/03581/FUL

Wards

B11 - City Centre

Summary
The proposal does not comply with the development plan and Council's non-statutory
guidance as the alterations would be detrimental to the character and appearance of
the New Town Conservation Area. It will have an adverse impact on the unique
architectural and historical character of the listed building. There are no other material
considerations to outweigh this conclusion.

Links
Policies and guidance for
this application

LDPP, LDES12, LEN04, LEN06, NSG, NSHOU,
NSLBCA, OTH, CRPNEW,

Development Management report of handling –

Page 1 of 9

Page 26

19/03581/FUL

Development Management report of handling –

Page 2 of 9
Page 27

19/03581/FUL

Report of handling

Recommendations
1.1 It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below.

Background
2.1 Site description
The site lies on the north side of York Place. The property is a top floor flat of a 18th
century terraced classical stone built house. It is Category A listed building and was
listed on 14.09.1966 (LB ref 29980). It is within a street of similar designed properties.
The surrounding area is predominantly residential in nature and is characterised by
classical style houses and flats.
This application site is located within the New Town Conservation Area.
2.2 Site History
29 July 2019 - An application for listed building consent was submitted to replace
existing kitchen roof lights with catslip dormer with French windows and small
concealed terrace; alter attic store to living room gallery; replace existing rear roof
hatch and front facing roof light with new conservation roof lights (application number
19/03582/LBC). This is pending decision.

Main report
3.1 Description Of The Proposal
The proposal is to replace the existing kitchen roof lights with catslip dormer with
French windows and small concealed terrace; alter attic store to living room gallery;
replace existing rear roof hatch and front facing roof light with new conservation roof
lights.
3.2

Determining Issues

Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states - Where, in
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.
Section 59 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act
1997 states that in considering whether to grant planning permission for development
which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning authority shall have special
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses.
Development Management report of handling –

Page 3 of 9

Page 28

19/03581/FUL

Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act
1997 states - special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or
enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area.
Do the proposals comply with the development plan?
If the proposals do comply with the development plan, are there any compelling
reasons for not approving them?
If the proposals do not comply with the development plan, are there any compelling
reasons for approving them?
3.3 Assessment
To address these determining issues, it needs to be considered whether:
a) The proposal will preserve or enhance the character and appearance of the New
Town Conservation Area;
b) The proposal will have an adverse impact on the unique architectural and historical
character of the listed building,
c) The proposal will have an adverse impact on residential amenity; and
d) Any comments raised have been addressed.
a) Character and Appearance of the New Town Conservation Area
Policy Env 6 of the LDP states that development within a conservation area will be
permitted which preserves or enhances the special character or appearance of the
conservation area and is consistent with the relevant conservation area character
appraisal. The New Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal highlights the
important role which original historic buildings play in contributing to the wider character
of the area , stating: The overwhelming retention of buildings in their original design
form, allied to the standard format of residential buildings, strongly contributes to the
character of the area.
The rear of the building is visible from Dublin Street Lane South and the proposed
alterations to the roof profile will be visible from this public elevation. The proposed
dormer by way of its design and relationship with the existing bow -fronted dormer will
have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the conservation area.
The proposal will have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the
New Town Conservation Area.
The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 6.
b) Impact on the Unique Architectural and Historical Character of the Listed Building
Policy Env 4 of the adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan (LDP) states that
proposals to alter or extend a listed building will be permitted where those alterations or
extensions are justified, will not cause any unnecessary damage to historic structures

Development Management report of handling –

Page 4 of 9
Page 29

19/03581/FUL

or diminish its interest and where any additions are in keeping with other parts of the
building.
While the rear elevations along the north side York Place exhibit a mix of dormers,,
they are generally traditional in their appearance and do not incorporate the features
proposed here. Historic Environment Scotland have concerns that the proposed dormer
would negatively impact on the appearance and character of this former townhouse.
The non-traditional form of the proposed structure and visibility from street level would
have an adverse impact on the unique architectural and historical character of the listed
building and does not comply with LDP policy Env 4.
c ) Residential Amenity
There is existing overlooking at upper levels so the proposal will have no significant
effect on the residential amenity.
d) Public Comment
No comments have been received.
Conclusion
The proposal does not comply with the development plan and Council's non-statutory
guidance as the alterations would be detrimental to the character and appearance of
the New Town Conservation Area. It will have an adverse impact on the unique
architectural and historical character of the listed building. There are no other material
considerations to outweigh this conclusion.

It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below.
3.4

Conditions/reasons/informatives

Reasons:1.
The proposal is contrary to the Local Development Plan Policy Env 6 in respect
of Conservation Areas - Development, as the proposal would detract from the character
and appearance of the conservation area.
2.
The proposal is contrary to the Local Development Plan Policy Env 4 in respect
of Listed Buildings - Alterations and Extensions, as the proposed alterations will not be

Development Management report of handling –

Page 30Page 5 of 9

19/03581/FUL

in keeping with the rest of the buildings, will cause unnecessary harm to the historic
structure and diminution of its interest and are not justified.

Risk, Policy, compliance and governance impact
4.1 Provided planning applications are determined in accordance with statutory
legislation, the level of risk is low.

Equalities impact
5.1 The equalities impact has been assessed as follows:
The application has been assessed and has no impact in terms of equalities or human
rights.

Consultation and engagement
6.1 Pre-Application Process
There is no pre-application process history.
6.2 Publicity summary of representations and Community Council comments
The application was advertised on 9th August 2019 and no representations were
received.

Background reading / external references


To view details of the application go to



Planning and Building Standards online services

Development Management report of handling –

Page 6 of 9
Page 31

19/03581/FUL

ort of handling

Statutory Development
Plan Provision

The site lies within the urban area of the Edinburgh Local
Development Plan where it is designated as lying within
New Town Conservation Area.

Date registered

29 July 2019

Drawing
numbers/Scheme

1-9,
Scheme 1

David R. Leslie
Chief Planning Officer
PLACE
The City of Edinburgh Council
Contact: Jennifer Zochowska, Senior Planning Officer
E-mail:jennifer.zochowska@edinburgh.gov.uk Tel:0131 529 3793

Links - Policies
Relevant Policies:
Relevant policies of the Local Development Plan.
LDP Policy Des 12 (Alterations and Extensions) sets criteria for assessing alterations
and extensions to existing buildings.
LDP Policy Env 4 (Listed Buildings - Alterations and Extensions) identifies the
circumstances in which alterations and extensions to listed buildings will be permitted.
LDP Policy Env 6 (Conservation Areas - Development) sets out criteria for assessing
development in a conservation area.
Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines
Non-statutory guidelines 'GUIDANCE FOR HOUSEHOLDERS' provides guidance
for proposals to alter or extend houses or flats.
Development Management report of handling –

Page 32Page 7 of 9

19/03581/FUL

Non-statutory guidelines 'LISTED BUILDINGS AND CONSERVATION AREAS'
provides guidance on repairing, altering or extending listed buildings and unlisted
buildings in conservation areas.
Other Relevant policy guidance
The New Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal states that the area is
typified by the formal plan layout, spacious stone built terraces, broad streets and an
overall classical elegance. The buildings are of a generally consistent three storey and
basement scale, with some four storey corner and central pavilions.

Development Management report of handling –

Page 8 of 9
Page 33

19/03581/FUL

Appendix 1
Consultations

No consultations undertaken.

END

Development Management report of handling –

Page 34Page 9 of 9

19/03581/FUL

Comments for Planning Application 19/03581/FUL
Application Summary
Application Number: 19/03581/FUL
Address: Flat 6 14 York Place Edinburgh EH1 3EP
Proposal: Replace existing kitchen roof lights with catslip dormer with French windows and small
concealed terrace; alter attic store to living room gallery; replace existing rear roof hatch and front
facing roof light with new conservation roof lights.
Case Officer: Jennifer Zochowska
Customer Details
Name: Dr The Architectural Heritage Society of Scotland
Address: 15 Rutland Square, Edinburgh EH1 2BE
Comment Details
Commenter Type: Amenity Body
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:
Comment:Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the above planning application. The
proposals are for alterations to a category A Listed building in the New Town Conservation Area,
within Edinburgh's World Heritage Site. The Forth & Borders Cases Panel of the AHSS has
considered the proposal and wishes to make the following comments.
While considering these alterations we must note the considerable changes being made to the
roof of this A listed building. As a panel we fundamentally disagree with the section of the design
statement which states "A change to the roof scape of the subjects would make little difference to
the context either of this particular former single house, or to the group as a whole." We feel that
adding a dormer to this roof would be considerably detrimental to both the original curved dormers
and the roof in general. Council "Listed Buildings and Conservation Area" Guidance, under the
heading "Roofs" on page 7, clearly states "The roof, which includes parapets, skews, chimney
heads and chimney pots, is an important feature of a building. The retention of original structure,
shape, pitch, cladding (particularly colour, weight, texture and origin of slate and ridge material)
and ornament is important". The panel firmly agrees that adding a dormer to this roof structure is
not acceptable. Furthermore, adding even more roof lights would further contravene the
aforementioned guidance.
Accordingly, the AHSS wishes to object to the proposal.

Page 35

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Gina Bellhouse
Tue, 10 Mar 2020 11:15:33 +0000
Local Review Body;Blair Ritchie;Aidan McMillan
FW: planning local review body

Hi Aidan,
Please can you ensure that the attached response is added to the LRB papers for 14 York Place on 25
March 2020.
Many thanks,
Gina.
From: Gordon Duffy <studiodub@mac.com>
Sent: 04 March 2020 17:02
To: Gina Bellhouse <Gina.Bellhouse@edinburgh.gov.uk>
Subject: Re: planning local review body
Gina,
Thanks for confirming the position.
I’m aware that although the LBC Appeal having been decided on 17th Feb ‘20 in the applicants favour
the Reporter’s findings were not included or the decision even referred to for information in the
previous agenda papers, albeit I am happy that the Panel have sought to continue the Appeal to take the
Sc. Gvt’s Reporter findings on board.
It appears reasonable to me for the Panel to at least be aware of the outcome of the LBC Appeal, of
course i do understand it is for the Panel to decide whether to take the Reporter's findings into account.
For brevity only I copy below the key findings of the Sc Gvt Reporter:
"8. ….On balance therefore I conclude that the proposals would preserve the special architectural or
historic features of the building and would in consequence not be contrary to the statutory duty and
policies referred to above.
9. Having concluded that the proposals would not impact adversely on the listed building, and being
mindful that the principal visual impact would be to the rear overlooking the back service alley and back
yard/parking area of the building I conclude that the proposal would preserve the character and
appearance of the conservation area and would not be in conflict with the statutory duty and policies
outlined above.
10. The council have not suggested any conditions which should be attached to any consent. I consider
that the detailed specification contained within the submitted drawings adequately covers all relevant
matters related to design and use of materials. I do not therefore consider conditions necessary.

Page 36

11. Having regard to all the above I conclude that the proposal does not conflict with statute, national or
development plan policy and that in consequence listed building consent should be granted. There are
no material considerations which lead me to conclude otherwise. “
I would also like to point out an error in the comment by the AHSS which I only just read on issue of the
previous set of LRB agenda papers namely that they suggested the proposal was "adding even more roof
lights”. This is not the case, rather two number existing were being replaced and two other
number existing are to be removed.
Kind regards, Gordon
Gordon Duffy Dip ID, MA(RCA), RIBA, FRIAS
Principal, Studio DuB
Chartered Architects, Interior and Urban Designers
#2, the Press
17A West Crosscauseway
Edinburgh
EH8 9JW
tel. +441316681536
mobile +447843564420
http://www.StudioDuB.co.uk
RIBA Chartered Practice
© Studio DuB 2020: Unauthorised use / copying / distribution of this message or any image / drawing / movie /
attachment etc in whole or in part prohibited, issue is not a licence for such unless stated. Content is strictly private
and confidential.

Page 37

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division

Appeal Decision Notice



T: 0300 244 6668
E: dpea@gov.scot

Decision by Don Rankin, a Reporter appointed by the Scottish Ministers
 Listed building consent appeal reference: LBA-230-2188
 Site address: Flat 6, 14 York Place, Edinburgh, EH1 3EP
 Appeal by Mr Dean Kerslake against the decision by City of Edinburgh Council
 Application for listed building consent 19/03582/LBC dated 29 July 2019 refused by notice
dated 24 September 2019
 The works proposed: Replace existing kitchen roof lights with catslip dormer with French
windows and small concealed terrace; alter attic store to living room gallery; replace
existing rear roof hatch and front facing roof light with new conservation roof lights
 Application drawings: 1 to 9
 Date of site visit by Reporter: 11 February 2020
Date of appeal decision: 17 February 2020
Decision
I allow the appeal and grant listed building consent. Attention is also drawn to the advisory
note at the end of this notice.
Reasoning
1.
The determining issues in this appeal are: (1) whether the proposed alterations, with
particular reference to the proposed dormer feature, would alter the architectural integrity of
the building to the detriment of the building’s special architectural or historic interest and the
character and appearance of the conservation area; and (2) whether other material
considerations warrant the grant or refusal of consent.
2.
The appeal property is a category ‘A’ listed building. The building was listed in 1966
and forms one of a terrace of such listed buildings on York Place. It falls within the
Edinburgh New Town Conservation Area. The building is described in the listing citation as
a later 18th Century 3 storey, attic and basement, 3 bay terraced classical house. The rear
of the property, where the most significant part of the proposed alteration would occur, is
described as having predominantly four pane timber sash windows and a grey slate
mansard roof with a bow front slate hung dormer. There is also an acknowledgement of the
existence of modern skylights. The building is of special interest as it forms part of the
Edinburgh New Town ‘A’ group, a significant surviving part of one of the most important and
best preserved examples of urban planning in Britain. The building is clearly of significant
architectural and historic interest.

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division
4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR
www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals

Page 38

abcde abc a

LBA-230-2188

2

3.
The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas)(Scotland) Act 1997
imposes a duty at section 14(2) to have special regard to the desirability of preserving the
building or its setting or any features of special architectural interest which it possesses.
The same act imposes a duty at section 64(1) to pay special attention to the desirability of
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area. Guidance
for the implementation of this duty is provided in Historic Environment Policy for Scotland
(HEPS) and is also carried forward into the Edinburgh City Development Plan Policies
4 & 6. Essentially there are two strands to these policies. The first is a presumption
against alterations to the fabric of a listed building which may result in disproportionate
damage likely to adversely impact the architectural or historical significance of the building.
The second strand is an acceptance that the best form of preservation of a listed building is
the continued beneficial use of such a building and in consequence, without significant
damage to its special features of architectural or historic interest, its adaption to modern
living standards.
4.
Both the council and Historic Environment Scotland accept that the interior of the
attic area of the building, the location of the appeal property, has been extensively adapted
over the years and now retains very few, if any, original features worthy of preservation.
Objections to the proposal are therefore confined to the external impact of the proposed
changes. Similarly, various modern skylight features have at different times been
introduced into the roofscape. The proposal to alter these skylight features is to update
them using approved conservation grade materials. Again, this proposal to update the
skylights has not resulted in any objection from either Historic Environment Scotland or the
council. I see no reason to disagree with the Historic Environment Scotland’s or the
council’s conclusions regarding the internal alterations and the updating of the skylights.
5.
Turning to the proposed new catslip dormer and balcony, both Historic Environment
Scotland and the council accept that a new dormer feature which accommodates the
enlarged kitchen space and headroom sought by the appellant could be acceptable. They
consider however that proposed to be inappropriate and to damage the view of the building
from Dublin Street Lane South. This objection appears to centre on a perception that any
new dormer feature should more closely match those on the roofscape surrounding to
reduce any impact which the new structure would have on the integrity of the listed building.
6.
The existing north facing roof of the attic apartment has at present a substantial bow
fronted slate hung dormer. This is a historic feature and is noted in the listing citation. Apart
from this and some skylights the roof retains its original form. The same can not however
be said about the roofs of the surrounding buildings which are adorned with a variety of
both historic and modern dormer features of widely differing size. The roofscape of the
terrace has clearly evolved over time to accommodate different uses for the attic space to
such an extent that it now represents the norm. Both Historic Environment Scotland and
the council accept this with their willingness to consider a new dormer. The issue is whether
the specific design proposed would represent such a significant intrusion as to conflict with
the statutory duty and policies noted above.
7.
The dormer proposed would be a relatively modest feature alongside both the
existing bow fronted and slate hung dormer and the other dormers on the surrounding
buildings. It would differ from those others only in that it would be set back about 1 metre
and incorporate an opening French window and glass fronted balcony. The balcony would

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division
4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR
www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals

Page 39

abcde abc a

LBA-230-2188

3

extend forward to the same extent as the existing bow fronted dormer and match the height
of the dormer eaves.
8.
Individuals standing on the balcony or in the open doorway would be a novel feature
on the traditional roofscape. They would however be observed in a terrace roofscape
including many large and more incongruous features. In that context I consider that the
balcony rail feature would not appear anachronistic to observers from Dublin Street Lane
South, or from the surrounding buildings. It is important to note that Dublin Street Lane
South is itself flanked on both sides with mews buildings which obscure the vista upwards
to the eaves of the main terrace. The proposal would be sited on the rear roof and not that
facing York Place at the front of the building. It would only be observed from the rear
service alley and back yard of the building, and only then as a minor feature partially hidden
by the roof edge. Viewed from the back the proposed dormer would appear simply as a
modest adaption to modern living. On balance therefore I conclude that the proposals
would preserve the special architectural or historic features of the building and would in
consequence not be contrary to the statutory duty and policies referred to above.
9.
Having concluded that the proposals would not impact adversely on the listed
building, and being mindful that the principal visual impact would be to the rear overlooking
the back service alley and back yard/parking area of the building I conclude that the
proposal would preserve the character and appearance of the conservation area and would
not be in conflict with the statutory duty and policies outlined above.
10.
The council have not suggested any conditions which should be attached to any
consent. I consider that the detailed specification contained within the submitted drawings
adequately covers all relevant matters related to design and use of materials. I do not
therefore consider conditions necessary.
11.
Having regard to all the above I conclude that the proposal does not conflict with
statute, national or development plan policy and that in consequence listed building consent
should be granted. There are no material considerations which lead me to conclude
otherwise.

Don Rankin
Reporter

Advisory note
The length of the consent: This listed building consent will last only for three years from
the date of this decision notice, unless the works have been started within that period. (See
section 16 of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997
(as amended))

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division
4 The Courtyard, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR
www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals

Page 40

abcde abc a

Business Centre G.2 Waverley Court 4 East Market Street Edinburgh EH8 8BG Tel: 0131 529 3550 Fax: 0131 529 6206 Email:
planning.systems@edinburgh.gov.uk
Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.
Thank you for completing this application form:
ONLINE REFERENCE

100174760-006

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Applicant or Agent Details
Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting

 Applicant Agent

on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application)

Agent Details
Please enter Agent details
Company/Organisation:

Studio DuB

Ref. Number:

You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *
Gordon

First Name: *

Building Name:

Duffy

Last Name: *

Building Number:

Telephone Number: *

Address 1
(Street): *

Extension Number:

Address 2:

Mobile Number:

Town/City: *

Fax Number:

Country: *
Postcode: *

17A-2
West Crosscauseway

EDINBURGH
United Kingdom
EH8 9JW

Email Address: *
Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *



Individual



Organisation/Corporate entity

Page 41

Page 1 of 5

Applicant Details
Please enter Applicant details
Title:

Mr

You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Other Title:
First Name: *
Last Name: *

Building Name:
Dean

Building Number:
Address 1
(Street): *

Kerslake

Company/Organisation

Address 2:

Telephone Number: *

Town/City: *

Extension Number:

Country: *

Mobile Number:

Postcode: *

Flat 6
14
York Place

Edinburgh
UK
EH1 3EP

Fax Number:
Email Address: *

Site Address Details
Planning Authority:

City of Edinburgh Council

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):
Address 1:
Address 2:

FLAT 6

14 YORK PLACE

Address 3:
Address 4:
Address 5:
Town/City/Settlement:
Post Code:

EDINBURGH
EH1 3EP

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

Northing

674328

Easting

Page 42

325679

Page 2 of 5

Description of Proposal
Please provide a description of your proposal to which your review relates. The description should be the same as given in the
application form, or as amended with the agreement of the planning authority: *
(Max 500 characters)
Replace existing kitchen roof lights with catslip dormer with French windows and small concealed terrace; alter attic store to living
room gallery; replace existing rear roof hatch and front facing roof light with new conservation roof lights.

Type of Application
What type of application did you submit to the planning authority? *






Application for planning permission (including householder application but excluding application to work minerals).
Application for planning permission in principle.
Further application.
Application for approval of matters specified in conditions.

What does your review relate to? *

 Refusal Notice.
 Grant of permission with Conditions imposed.
 No decision reached within the prescribed period (two months after validation date or any agreed extension) – deemed refusal.
Statement of reasons for seeking review
You must state in full, why you are a seeking a review of the planning authority’s decision (or failure to make a decision). Your statement
must set out all matters you consider require to be taken into account in determining your review. If necessary this can be provided as a
separate document in the ‘Supporting Documents’ section: * (Max 500 characters)
Note: you are unlikely to have a further opportunity to add to your statement of appeal at a later date, so it is essential that you produce
all of the information you want the decision-maker to take into account.
You should not however raise any new matter which was not before the planning authority at the time it decided your application (or at
the time expiry of the period of determination), unless you can demonstrate that the new matter could not have been raised before that
time or that it not being raised before that time is a consequence of exceptional circumstances.
Our Appeal, based on the supporting documentation attached hereto demonstrates: We have gone to great pains to arrive at a
carefully thought through proposal designed to be in keeping with the “character and appearance of the conservation area”. The
proposal will be in keeping with the rest of the buildings and will not cause “unnecessary harm to the historic structure”. Analysis
and design show the proposals would not diminish the historic interests of the building and are “justified”.

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer at the time the
Determination on your application was made? *

 Yes  No

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising the new matter, why it was not raised with the appointed officer before
your application was determined and why you consider it should be considered in your review: * (Max 500 characters)

Page 43

Page 3 of 5

Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit with your notice of review and intend
to rely on in support of your review. You can attach these documents electronically later in the process: * (Max 500 characters)
FUL_Grounds of Appeal rear of 17 Dublin St 11.03 Proposed Perspective Views 15_02774_LBC-02__EXISTING_SITE_LAYOUT-3124140 15_02774_LBC-03_-_PROPOSED_WORKS_TO_REAR_YARD-3124142 16_03285_LBCEXISTING___PROPOSED_FLOOR_PLAN___ELEVATION-3447717 18_06714_LBCREPORT_DETAILING_PROPOSED_AND_PAST_WORK-4036349 Ariel view front 2-42 York Place Ariel view rear 2-42 York
Place rear 8-18 York Place rear 26 & 28 York Place Rootop view 2-18 York place

Application Details
Please provide details of the application and decision.
What is the application reference number? *

19/03581/FUL

What date was the application submitted to the planning authority? *

29/07/2019

What date was the decision issued by the planning authority? *

24/09/2019

Review Procedure
The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to determine your review and may at any time during the review
process require that further information or representations be made to enable them to determine the review. Further information may be
required by one or a combination of procedures, such as: written submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions and/or
inspecting the land which is the subject of the review case.
Can this review continue to a conclusion, in your opinion, based on a review of the relevant information provided by yourself and other
parties only, without any further procedures? For example, written submission, hearing session, site inspection. *

 Yes  No
Please indicate what procedure (or combination of procedures) you think is most appropriate for the handling of your review. You may
select more than one option if you wish the review to be a combination of procedures.
Please select a further procedure *
By means of inspection of the land to which the review relates
Please explain in detail in your own words why this further procedure is required and the matters set out in your statement of appeal it
will deal with? (Max 500 characters)
Such that review body members can truly understand the context

In the event that the Local Review Body appointed to consider your application decides to inspect the site, in your opinion:
Can the site be clearly seen from a road or public land? *
Is it possible for the site to be accessed safely and without barriers to entry? *

Page 44

 Yes  No
 Yes  No

Page 4 of 5

Checklist – Application for Notice of Review
Please complete the following checklist to make sure you have provided all the necessary information in support of your appeal. Failure
to submit all this information may result in your appeal being deemed invalid.
Have you provided the name and address of the applicant?. *
Have you provided the date and reference number of the application which is the subject of this
review? *
If you are the agent, acting on behalf of the applicant, have you provided details of your name
and address and indicated whether any notice or correspondence required in connection with the
review should be sent to you or the applicant? *
Have you provided a statement setting out your reasons for requiring a review and by what
procedure (or combination of procedures) you wish the review to be conducted? *

 Yes  No
 Yes  No
 Yes  No  N/A
 Yes  No

Note: You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review on your application. Your statement must set out all matters you consider
require to be taken into account in determining your review. You may not have a further opportunity to add to your statement of review
at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely
on and wish the Local Review Body to consider as part of your review.
Please attach a copy of all documents, material and evidence which you intend to rely on
(e.g. plans and Drawings) which are now the subject of this review *

 Yes  No

Note: Where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or modification, variation or removal of a
planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions, it is advisable to provide the
application reference number, approved plans and decision notice (if any) from the earlier consent.

Declare – Notice of Review
I/We the applicant/agent certify that this is an application for review on the grounds stated.
Declaration Name:

Mr Gordon Duffy

Declaration Date:

23/12/2019

Page 45

Page 5 of 5

Proposal Details
Proposal Name
100174760
Proposal Description
Replace existing kitchen roof lights with catslip
dormer with French windows and small concealed terrace; alter attic store to living room
gallery; replace existing rear roof hatch and front facing roof light with new conservation
roof lights.
Address
FLAT 6, 14 YORK PLACE, EDINBURGH, EH1
3EP
Local Authority
City of Edinburgh Council
Application Online Reference
100174760-006

Application Status
Form
Main Details
Checklist
Declaration
Supporting Documentation
Email Notification

complete
complete
complete
complete
complete
complete

Attachment Details
Notice of Review
11-03 Proposed Perspective Views
15_02774_LBC-02_-_EXISTING_SITE_LAYOUT-3124140
15_02774_LBC-03__PROPOSED_WORKS_TO_REAR_YARD-3124142
16_03285_LBCEXISTING___PROPOSED_FLOOR_PLAN___ELEVATION3447717
18_06714_LBCREPORT_DETAILING_PROPOSED_AND_PAST_WORK4036349
Ariel view front 2-42 York Place

System
Attached
Attached
Attached

A4
A3
A3
A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A4

Attached

Not
Applicable
Not
Applicable
A4
Not
Applicable
Not
Applicable
Not

Ariel view rear 2-42 York Place

Attached

FUL_Grounds of Appeal
Rootop view 2-18 York place

Attached
Attached

rear 8-18 York Place

Attached

rear 26 and 28 York Place

Attached

Page 46

rear of 17 Dublin St

Attached

Notice_of_Review-2.pdf
Application_Summary.pdf
Notice of Review-006.xml

Attached
Attached
Attached

Page 47

Applicable
Not
Applicable
A0
A0
A0

Dear Sir or Madam
I purchased the garden flat (BF2, also known as 6/1 on electoral role) in
October 1994. The patio doors and windows had been installed many years
prior to this and, I was informed, were Crittall iron metal windows. These were
draughty, insecure and inefficient in terms of heat retention. Any original
1800’s timber / sash windows had disappeared many years prior to this – so
there was no real precedent. Historical plans, of which I have a copy c1947, do
not even correspond to the window openings that I inherited e.g. a single door
opening shown leading to a back green. So, to an extent, it is unknown what
the original configuration may have been.
For the reasons above I decided that replacement was necessary. For all other
alterations I was aware that I must contact the Council for various consents
and obtained the necessary warrants and completion certificates. These are on
file at the Planning Department e.g. drainage, ventilation etc. Given this, I
asked a Council representative and was told that I would not need permission
since what I was proposing was on a “like for like” basis. When one is told that
something is not needed it is not obvious that this should be obtained in
writing.
For installation I chose a well respected company that was funded entirely by
the Council called Blindcraft. “Like for like” was specified and the order was
given to them on that basis. Visually the new French doors and two fixed
windows were very similar – see attached photos – to the Crittall. I also
specified “Georgian bars” to make the windows resemble Georgian panes. At
no time was I told that there would be a requirement for timber or that the
units should be single glazed. The finished product was a vast improvement
(visually and environmentally) over the metal windows and, in my opinion,
enhance the property. Given this I duly paid with a cheque made payable to
“Edinburgh City Council”. In fact the windows probably look far more like the
original windows that were there. Heat loss is also greatly minimised.
I was at ease with my decision given that I thought I had done the right thing. I
would never intestinally cause negative impact to a listed building and am
satisfied personally that the impact is positive.
Fourteen years later during the sale of the property the purchasers solicitor
requested that he be shown the certificate of “Listed Building Consent” and
this was the first time that I became aware that this may need to be obtained.

Page 48

The sale concludes on 21st September and thus I would request that early
attention may be given to this matter and that an assessment on the impact on
the character of the listed building be carried out as soon as possible.
Thank you for your help.

Page 49

Chartered Architects Interior and Urban Designers
17a/2 West Crosscauseway
EDINBURGH EH8 9JW
tel: 0131 668 1536

e-mail: StudioDuB@mac.com

Grounds of Appeal
Flat 6, 14 York Place, Edinburgh, EH1 3EP
“Application No: 19/03581/FUL
DECISION NOTICE
With reference to your application for Planning Permission registered on 29 July 2019, this
has been decided by Local Delegated Decision. The Council in exercise of its powers under
the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Acts and regulations, now determines the
application as Refused in accordance with the particulars given in the application.
Any condition(s) attached to this consent, with reasons for imposing them, or reasons for
refusal, are shown below;
Conditions:Reasons:1. The proposal is contrary to the Local Development Plan Policy Env 6 in respect of
Conservation Areas - Development, as the proposal would detract from the character and
appearance of the conservation area.
2. The proposal is contrary to the Local Development Plan Policy Env 4 in respect of Listed
Buildings - Alterations and Extensions, as the proposed alterations will not be in keeping
with the rest of the buildings, will cause unnecessary harm to the historic structure and
diminution of its interest and are not justified.”

Grounds:
I would like to demonstrate with some site photos and drawings that we have
gone to great pains to arrive at a proposal designed to enhance rather than
“detract from the character and appearance of the conservation area”,
ensuring that our proposal would have minimal impact:
Please refer to three photos of the Listed urban block as seen from the Mews
and and three ariel screenshots. I think that our proposal -as also shown in

GORDON DUFFY DipID MA(RCA) RIBA FRIAS

Page 50

www.studiodub.co.uk

the attached computer views- achieves through modest intervention an
acceptable balance between enhanced amenity for the applicant with minimal
intervention of the Listed fabric viewed from the back court adjoining the
subjects and from the Mews, especially in comparison with other more visible,
bulky additions here and elsewhere.
The status quo of the rear roofscape and elevations of York Place are
heterogeneous as seen today compared with the front face and tell the story
of evolving historic fabric in the City, therefore we invite you to consider our
proposal with these present day views in mind. I expect you will concur with
the case officer there is indeed “a mix of dormers” and therefore we invite you
to consider the impact of our proposal as “in keeping with the rest of the
buildings “ ie part of this evolving tradition.
We cannot force other owners to return the Listed fabric to what it was when
first built. As such the City, to move forward accepts the “mis-en-scène” and I
would hope that our proposal could be viewed as a carefully thought through
alteration that does not cause “harm to the historic structure”, please note the
following:
- The face of the proposed dormer will align with the others either side, this
means it has been designed to be set back from the original curved dormer
ie is subservient and will not compete with it or its neighbours in terms of
alignment and design and clearly does not cause any “diminution of its
interest”.
- The scale of our proposal is very modest in comparison with the existing
over-arching roofscape context hereto.
- No character of the original building has been retained within the apartment
further to the 2001 change of use of the subjects
- A close examination of the context shows that the dormer and features
proposed here (in lieu of the existing modern pattern roof windows) would
have minimal impact to the subjects, would be invisible from the Mews street
scene (the eye being drawn to the unsympathetic roof alterations, balconies,
stairs and the like) and thus have a negligible impact overall and as such are
“justified”.
I also cite 3 applications granted Planning and/or Listed Building Consent at
the 2-42 York Place urban block within the last 5 years and I invite you to
review and to compare the grounds for refusal hereto / set against our
application proposals with these applications with benefit of Consent:
15/02431/FUL & 15/02774/LBC_22 York Place:
Consent granted to remove a 4m wide section of garden wall and excavate /
remove garden ground to enable an opening to provide 3 additional car
parking spaces and platform lift - The platform lift could have been installed
and garden ground preserved without the creation of the additional car
spaces...the existing provision already being in excess of Zone 1
requirements for business use per extract from Edinburgh Design Guide

www.studiodub.co.uk

GORDON DUFFY DipID MA(RCA) RIBA FRIAS

Page 51

16/03288/FUL & 16/03285/LBC_Flat 1 14 York Place:
Consent granted to form a French door to increase amenity within - Per
application drawings, directly visible at the rear of the subjects

GORDON DUFFY DipID MA(RCA) RIBA FRIAS

Page 52

www.studiodub.co.uk

18/06714/LBC_BF2 6 York Place:
Consent granted for ugly plastic windows ‘in retrospect’ - The unsuitability of
the proposal is clearly evident in terms of materials, size and proportion
regardless of the nature of the application

www.studiodub.co.uk

GORDON DUFFY DipID MA(RCA) RIBA FRIAS

Page 53

Page 54
DUBLIN STREET LANE SOUTH

View 2

View 1

12

16

YORK PLACE

Location Plan

Studio DUB
17a/2 West Crosscauseway
Edinburgh
EH8 9JW
0131 668 1536
studiodub@mac.com
unauthorised use / copying of this drawing in whole or in part prohibited, issue is not a licence for such

GSPublisherEngine 2016.30.33.100

14/6 YORK PLACE
EH1 3EP
Dean Kerslake

Proposed Perspective Views

927.11.03

Scale:

1:500
Drawing Status:

Planning

Drawn by: Remi Lecomte
Checked by: Gordon Duffy

Date: 12/12/2019

3 cm ACTUAL
IF THE ABOVE DIMENSION DOES
NOT
MEASURE
THREE
CENTIMETERS (3 cm) EXACTLY,
THIS DRAWING WILL HAVE BEEN
ENLARGED OR REDUCED,
AFFECTING ALL LABELED SCALES.

outh

tree
S
n
i
l
Dub

eS
t Lan
1

1. Existing Rear Yard.

2

Existing 1.5m high stone
boundary wall.

3
4

Existing staff pedestrian
access, 1.2m wide
concrete flag stones.

5

Access & egress via
Dublin St Lane Sth.
6no Existing Unite
informal staff parking
spaces.

6
+0.88m
+0.00m

Existing rear yard with
gravel finish.

+1.10m
+1.20m

Page 55

22

2. Existing Rear Yard.

Public entrance to building.

k
r
o
Y

e
c
a
Pl

Elder
Park
East

revision

drawn

approved

date

description

-

-

-

-

-

Notes:

3. Existing Rear Yard.
PROJECT

CLIENT

Alterations to Office
UNITE Edinburgh, 22 York Place

UNITE The Union
THE GAS OFFICE  4 CROMAC QUAY  ORMEAU ROAD  BELFAST  BT7 2JD
consarc-design.co.uk  TEL. +44 (0)28 9082 8400  mail@consarc-design.co.uk

CONTENT

EXISTING SITE LAYOUT
NORTH

STATUS

SCALE

SIZE

DATE

1:500
-

A3
-

23.02.2015

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

JOB NO.

DRAWING NO.

pk

RY

BM

B13-1373

PL002

FOR PLANNING
REVISION

-

DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING. All dimensions are in millimetres.

Consarc Design Group Ltd

60

All rail guarding will be
1100mm high and capable
of withstanding a minimum
horizontal force of
0.74kN/m applied at a
height of 1100mm above
finished ground level.

Dubl

ss to

Exist

ce
ing ac

ne
St La
ublin

.

South

via D

is
yard
rear

60

1100

r
in St

h
Sout
e
n
a
eet L

1

300
80

New render to all walls
with a painted finish,
colour to be confirmed
with client

ACO HexDrain to full
wall length & laid in
sand/cement flush with
top of paving to falls &
connect to existing
drainage

250

2
3

Existing access & egress via
Dublin Street Lane South.

128

+1.200
80

50

7
5

Proposed area for new informal private parking to serve
No.22 York Place. Proposed new private car parking area to
be graded to provide level access from the adjacent rear
yard. New hard landscaped tarmac surface to provide
suitable finish so all can travel along it easily.

8

Proposed new 4m opening to be formed in existing yard wall
to provide access to the rear of No.22 York Place.

4000

9

New masonry retaining
wall as per engineers
design.

Proposed new Platform lift with complementary steps to
provide accessible approach to the rear entrance.

+0.00

Existing informal private car parking for Unite
staff to be modified to allow opening to be
formed in the rear yard boundary wall.

150

Page 56

4

+0.00

Proposed area for bins/recycling
Proposed new retaining wall.
A

6

MJ

1

A

2

New Tobermore Mayfair 'SANDSTONE' 600x400
Paving to landing area.

25mm rigid insulation board put in
place against walls to protect
1200g 'Visqueen' radon dpm fully
lapped & bonded, from being
punctured by hardcore backfill

3
4
5

6

Aco

drain

+1.20

7

Aco

level

New 50mm Tobermore Mayfair 'SANDSTONE'
Paving to steps with 50mm G684 black crystal
Granite (LRV 4) nosing inset and 3x3 chamfer to
front edges. Steps 250 going x 170 rise. 800
wide tactile flags to be laid 400mm from top &
bottom riser

drain

ss
acce

+1.20

New hard landscaped tarmac
surface to provide suitable finish
so all can travel along it easily on
150mm thick concrete slab with
A252 mesh reinforcement.

150

50

+0.000

Section A-A
Scale 1:5

revision

drawn

approved

date

description

Notes:

Notes:

PROJECT

CLIENT

Alterations to Office
UNITE Edinburgh, 22 York Place

UNITE The Union
THE GAS OFFICE  4 CROMAC QUAY  ORMEAU ROAD  BELFAST  BT7 2JD
consarc-design.co.uk  TEL. +44 (0)28 9082 8400  mail@consarc-design.co.uk

CONTENT

PROPOSED WORKS TO REAR YARD
SCALE

SIZE

DATE

NORTH

STATUS

1:100

A1

12.02.2015

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

JOB NO.

DRAWING NO.

pk

RY

BM

B13-1373

PL003

FOR PLANNING
REVISION

-

DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING. All dimensions are in millimetres.

Consarc Design Group Ltd

Page 57

Page 58

Page 59

Page 60

Page 61

Page 62

Page 63

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7.1

APT Planning & Development.
FAO Tony Thomas
6 High Street
East Linton
EH40 3AB

Quarry Investments.
C/o APT Planning And
Development
6 High Street
East Linton
EH40 3AB
Decision date: 20 December 2019

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACTS
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2013
Proposed development of five new detached homes.
At Land 80 Metres South Of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Application No: 19/04849/FUL
DECISION NOTICE
With reference to your application for Planning Permission registered on 10 October
2019, this has been decided by Local Delegated Decision. The Council in exercise of
its powers under the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Acts and regulations, now
determines the application as Refused in accordance with the particulars given in the
application.
Any condition(s) attached to this consent, with reasons for imposing them, or reasons
for refusal, are shown below;
Conditions:-

Reasons:1.
The proposal is contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy
Hou 1, as it does not meet the criteria for housing development within the International
Business Gateway.
2.
The proposal is contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy
Des 4, as the proposal will have a negative impact upon the setting of its surroundings.
3.
The proposal is contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy
Env 3, as the proposal will be detrimental to the setting of the listed building.

Page
65
Robert McIntosh, Planning Officer, Local 2 Area Team, Place Directorate.
Tel 0131 529 3422, Email robert.mcintosh@edinburgh.gov.uk,
Waverley Court, 4 East Market Street, Edinburgh, EH8 8BG

4.
The proposal is contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy
Env 12, as the proposal is likely to have a damaging impact upon trees worthy of
retention.
5.
The proposal is contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy
Env 16, as the proposal may have an adverse impact upon species protected under
European or UK law.
6.
The proposal is contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy
Env 18, as the proposal will result in the loss of valuable open space which will have a
significant impact upon the quality and character of the local environment.
7.
The proposal is contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy
Env 21, as the proposal may increase a flood risk or be at risk of flooding itself.
8.
The proposal is contrary to Historic Environment Scotland Managing Change in
the Historic Environment Guidance Note on setting as the proposed new houses would
detrimentally impact on the approach and wider setting of Category A listed Castle
Gogar.
9.
The proposal is contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy
Emp 6, as it does not meet the criteria for housing development within the International
Business Gateway.

Please see the guidance notes on our decision page for further information, including
how to appeal or review your decision.
Drawings 01-41, represent the determined scheme. Full details of the application can
be found on the Planning and Building Standards Online Services
The reason why the Council made this decision is as follows:
The proposal does not comply with adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy
Hou 1, Emp 6, Des 4, Env 3, Env 12, Env 16, Env 18, Env 21 and the Historic
Environment Scotland Managing Change in the Historic Environment Guidance Note
on setting. The proposals fail to preserve the setting of the listed building and so do not
meet the requirements of S59 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997. No information has been provided to justify the harm and
no alternative sites have been investigated. There are no compelling reasons to
approve the proposal.

Page 66

This determination does not carry with it any necessary consent or approval for the
proposed development under other statutory enactments.
Should you have a specific enquiry regarding this decision please contact Robert
McIntosh directly on 0131 529 3422.

Chief Planning Officer
PLACE
The City of Edinburgh Council

Page 67

NOTES

1. If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision to refuse permission for or approval
required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission
or approval subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to
review the case under section 43A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act
1997 within three months beginning with the date of this notice. The Notice of Review
can be made online at www.eplanning.scot or forms can be downloaded from that
website. Paper forms should be addressed to the City of Edinburgh Planning Local
Review Body, G.2, Waverley Court, 4 East Market Street, Edinburgh, EH8 8BG. For
enquiries about the Local Review Body, please email
localreviewbody@edinburgh.gov.uk.
2. If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions and the
owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of reasonably beneficial
use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use
by carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner
of the land may serve on the planning authority a purchase notice requiring the
purchase of the owner of the land's interest in the land accordance with Part 5 of the
Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

Page 68

Report of Handling
Application for Planning Permission 19/04849/FUL
At Land 80 Metres South Of 6, Castle Gogar Rigg, Edinburgh
Proposed development of five new detached homes.

Item

Local Delegated Decision

Application number

19/04849/FUL

Wards

B01 - Almond

Summary
The proposal does not comply with adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy
Hou 1, Emp 6, Des 4, Env 3, Env 12, Env 16, Env 18, Env 21 and the Historic
Environment Scotland Managing Change in the Historic Environment Guidance Note
on setting. The proposals fail to preserve the setting of the listed building and so do not
meet the requirements of S59 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997. No information has been provided to justify the harm and
no alternative sites have been investigated. There are no compelling reasons to
approve the proposal.

Links
Policies and guidance for
this application

LDPP, LDEL01, LDES01, LDES03, LDES04, LDES05,
LEN03, LEN12, LEN16, LEN18, LEMP06, LEN21,
LHOU01, LHOU02, LHOU03, LHOU04, LTRA02,
LTRA03, LTRA04, LTRA12, LRS06, NSG, NSGD02,
HES, HESSET,

Development Management report of handling –

Page 1 of 22

Page 69

19/04849/FUL

Report of handling

Recommendations
1.1 It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below.

Background
2.1 Site description
The site relates to two areas of green open space forming part of the grounds
associated with Castle Gogar, a white harled, four storey, Baronial style tower house
dating from 1625 with later 19th century extensions. The castle, stables, gatehouse and
garden walls are category A listed (item no. 27092).
The first area, or plot lies to the south-west of the castle in amongst the previously
approved dwelling houses and the converted original stable block. It has been referred
to in previous applications as the "Village Green".
The second area lies to the south and south east of the castle, a tree lined open space
area which stretches along the main drive. It was previous utilised as a paddock and is
still referred to as such in the submitted plans.
Five detached houses and the stable block conversion were granted in 2005 under
04/02302/FUL and 04/02302/LBC as an enabling development for the restoration of the
castle. Further developments have since been approved within the grounds such as the
erection of two apartment blocks and a separate dwelling under 15/01051/FUL and
then another further dwelling house was approved under 17/00202/FUL.
Castle Gogar is situated approximately six miles from Edinburgh city centre and 0.25
miles from the Gogar Roundabout on the north side of Glasgow Road (A8). The site is
accessed off the A8 through the original gatepiers onto a single track, tree lined drive,
approximately 600 metres in length. The tram line to Edinburgh Airport crosses the
drive just after the gatehouse and the road is two-lane at this point.
There are groups and bands of mature deciduous trees within the grounds, notably the
avenue lining the main drive and mature tree belt around the former paddock.
The secondary runway of Edinburgh Airport adjoins the north and east boundaries of
the site and the Royal Bank of Scotland headquarters lies directly south on the
opposite side of the A8. The surrounding undeveloped land is primarily agricultural. A
strip of land to the south of the site is, however, defined in the Local Development Plan
(LDP) as open space for the proposed International Business Gateway.
2.2 Site History
Development Management report of handling –

Page 2 of 22

Page 70

19/04849/FUL

25.02.2005 - listed building consent granted to restore 17th century Castle Gogar as
family residence, restore and convert existing ruined stables block into two residential
properties, alter south boundary of walled garden and demolish greenhouses and
former piggery (04/02302/LBC).
31.05.05 - planning permission granted to restore 17th century Castle Gogar as family
residence, restore and convert existing ruined stable blocks into two residential
properties and erect one office building and five residential properties (04/02302/FUL).
02.03.06 - planning application withdrawn to construct new build four contemporary
residential properties, one new-build vernacular gate house, garage and associated
walled gated entrance (05/03335/FUL).
09.09.2015 - planning permission granted to erect two apartment blocks (total of 8
apartments) and one detached dwelling house with associated access, parking, garden
ground and landscaping on land adjacent to 9 Castle Gogar Rigg (15/01051/FUL).
31.03.2017- planning permission granted for the erection of 1 dwelling house
immediately to the south of 9 Castle Gogar Rigg (17/00202/FUL)

Main report
3.1 Description Of The Proposal
The application is for planning permission for the erection of five, two-storey, three- and
four- bedroom, large detached dwelling houses with associated access, parking,
private gardens and landscaping.
Four of the houses proposed shall be constructed within the open space "paddock"
area, while one is proposed within another open space area. An office block has been
approved within this area under planning consent 04/02302/FUL. The consent for the
office building is still extant.
The proposed houses are contemporary in design with white rendered walls, flat, lead
appearance roofs or zinc pitched roofs, dark grey aluminium clad timber framed
windows and cedar faced doors.
Each house has a double garage and off street parking.
3.2

Determining Issues

Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states - Where, in
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.
Section 59 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act
1997 states that in considering whether to grant planning permission for development
which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning authority shall have special
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses.
Development Management report of handling –

Page 3 of 22
Page 71

19/04849/FUL

Do the proposals comply with the development plan?
If the proposals do comply with the development plan, are there any compelling
reasons for not approving them?
If the proposals do not comply with the development plan, are there any compelling
reasons for approving them?
3.3 Assessment
To address these determining issues, it needs to be considered whether:
a) the proposal is acceptable in principle in this location;
b) the proposals will adversely affect the setting of the listed buildings or the existing
estate;
c) the proposals will have an adverse impact on the open space and the character
and/or landscape quality of the area;
d) the proposals will negatively impact upon trees and ecology;
e) the proposals will be detrimental to residential amenity and the design proposed is
appropriate
f) the proposal will not impact upon road or pedestrian safety;
g) the proposals can proceed without risk in terms of flooding or aerodrome safety;
h) other materials matters have been addressed
i) all issues raised in representations have been addressed
a) Principle
The site is located within the area identified for the development of an International
Business Gateway (IBG) as defined in the Edinburgh Local Development Plan (LDP)
and identified in NPF3. LDP policies Emp 6 and Hou 1 permit housing in this area as a
component of a business-led mixed- use proposal subject to further consideration
through the masterplan process, appropriate infrastructure provision and where
consistent with the objectives of NPF3.
Table 4 of the LDP - Housing Proposals- identifies an opportunity for housing
development as a component of business-led mixed use proposals within the IBG, of
which this site is part, where it would contribute to place making and sustainable
development objectives.
Whilst the development of housing on this site, contained within an existing cluster of
residential units would not prejudice the opportunity to create an International Business
Gateway, the proposed development is not part of a business-led mixed-use proposal,
nor does it meet any of the other use criteria defined under LDP policy Emp 6.
Development Management report of handling –

Page 72Page 4 of 22

19/04849/FUL

The proposal therefore does not comply with LDP policy Hou 1 or Emp 6.
b) Setting of Listed Buildings and existing estate
The Historic Environment Policy for Scotland (HEPS) outlines how we should
undertake our duty of care whenever a decision affects the historic environment. It
contains a number of policies including a policy statement that decisions affecting the
historic environment should be informed by an inclusive understanding of its breadth
and cultural significance. Other policies stress that detrimental impacts should be
avoided. Where appropriate opportunities for enhancement should be sought.
Historic Environment Scotland's guidance notes on Managing Change in the Historic
Environment set out the principles that apply to altering the setting of historic buildings.
Historic Environment Scotland's (HES) Managing Change in the Historic Environment
guidance note on setting sets out the principles that apply to developments affecting
the setting of historic assets or places.
LDP policy Env 3 states that development within the curtilage or affecting the setting of
a listed building will be permitted only if not detrimental to the architectural character,
appearance or historic interest of the building, or to its setting.
LDP policy Des 4 states that planning permission will be granted for development
where it is demonstrated that it will have a positive impact upon its surroundings,
including the character of the wider townscape and landscape and impact upon existing
views.
The previously approved enabling development for the restoration of Castle Gogar
(04/02302/FUL) has been completed, except for the single storey office building
measuring approximately 680m2 in floor area which was to occupy the "village green"
area of open space to the north of this current development site. The five large
detached houses and apartments which have been erected within the extended
curtilage of the listed building have changed its setting.
The previous development granted under 04/02302/FUL was a calculated approach to
ensure the refurbishment of Castle Gogar. The development approved under
15/01051/FUL was to enable suitable, valuable green space to remain within the heart
of the estate and to minimise the impact of the development upon the setting of the
castle (the apartments are positioned further away than the proposed office block). As
a result it can be argued that the listed building no longer dominates much of its
immediate surroundings as it did prior to the enabling development and later
developments. That being said the importance of the "village green" was noted in the
report of handling for 15/01051/FUL and the significance of the paddock, the main treelined drive and the green open space enclosed by mature trees to the south of the
Castle, to the setting of the estate and to the listed building is noted in all subsequent
reports relating to proposed development at this site.
Historic Environment Scotland was consulted as part of the assessment of the
application, it responded;
Development Management report of handling –

Page 5 of 22
Page 73

19/04849/FUL

HES Managing Change guidance notes that setting can be important to the cultural
significance of an historic asset if it contributes to the way in which the historic structure
or place is "understood, appreciated and experienced". We agree with your Council's
assessment that the surviving setting of Castle Gogar consists of the southern treelined approach to the building and the open ground of the tree-lined paddock. The
historical approach to the Castle includes the listed gate piers, adjacent lodge and hogback bridge. This adds to the landscape context and sense of place of Castle Gogar.
Although new development is visible to the west on the approach to the castle, it has
not yet overwhelmed the setting here. We consider the proposed new houses would
detrimentally impact on the approach and wider setting of Category A listed Castle
Gogar. The still open semi-rural approach to the castle would be significantly
diminished, as would the tree-lined paddock area of open ground.
They continue;
As above, although consent for an office development in the centre of the site was
given in 2004, the decision to agree additional housing in 2015 was taken on the
assumption that this area would not now be built upon. Our decision not to comment at
this stage was also based on the balance of development on the site. We therefore
consider the 'village green' should ideally remain open ground, with the consequent
benefit this gives to the setting of the stable range (included within the A listing. We
consider the current proposals would have a detrimental impact on the setting and
historical significance of Category A listed Castle Gogar (and the stable cottages
contained within its listing) and that they should be resisted.
The proposed houses to be located within the existing "paddock" ground would
significantly impact upon the setting of the A listed castle as they would then be the
dominant features, not the tree lined, rural, approach. The proposed dwelling to be
sited within the existing "village green" would also be detrimental to the setting of the
castle and the nearby stable range which is also A listed.
Currently the stables can be read from within the estate, and do have a good area of
open undeveloped green space near to them. However the formation of a large
dwelling, essentially in front of it, would remove this and would be detrimental to its
setting.
The proposed development would also negatively impact upon the setting of the new
estate. There is an established built layout and setting to the existing properties as they
are all clustered together to the west of the castle and do not impede further to the east
than the listed stable block. The four houses proposed within the "paddock" area would
mean development spilling out of this cluster and would negatively impact upon the
rural tree lined approach not just to the listed castle but to the modern development.
In terms of the wider setting, Castle Gogar is largely hidden from public view due to its
distance from Glasgow Road and presence of Edinburgh Airport to the north-east. The
recently completed tram link to the airport has however, created new viewpoints from
the south and west. Although the proposed houses shall be screened to a degree by
the trees on the site, the housing proposed on the "paddock" area especially will be
visible from the tram.

Development Management report of handling –

Page 74Page 6 of 22

19/04849/FUL

The proposal will be detrimental to the setting of the castle, its associated buildings and
to the wider estate.
The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 3, Des 4 and the HES Guidance on
Managing Change in the Historic Environment on setting.
c) Green/open space and landscape character
LDP policy Hou 3 states that planning permission will be granted for development
which makes adequate provision for green space to meet the needs of future residents.
The private garden grounds of the proposed five dwellings are not overly large
considering the footprint of the buildings. That being said the houses proposed within
the paddock area will be constructed broadly in accordance with the established
building line. It is also noted that the properties with smaller gardens will have access to
a balcony. The proposal therefore generally complies with LDP policy Hou 3.
LDP policy Env 18 states that proposals involving the loss of open space will not be
permitted unless it is demonstrated that:
(a) there will be no significant impact on the quality or character of the local
environment;
(b) the open space is a small part of a larger area or of limited amenity or leisure value
and there is a significant over-provision of open space serving the immediate area; and
(c) the loss would not be detrimental to the wider network including its continuity or
biodiversity value.
Paragraph 194 of the LDP states The Council will only support development on open
space in exceptional circumstances, where the loss would not result in detriment to the
overall network and to open space provision in the locality
It is noted that one of the houses proposed shall be constructed on an area of ground
in which an office building was previously approved under planning consent
04/02302/FUL. It is acknowledged however that application 04/02302/FUL was also for
the construction of 5 dwelling houses and the conversion of the stable block to enable
the restoration of the listed castle. At the time this was felt to be the maximum level of
development permitted in order to enable the restoration works. From the plans
submitted at the time there were quite large areas of the site that were to be left
undeveloped as open/green space.
A later planning application (15/01051/FUL) permitted the erection of 2 apartment
blocks (total of 8 apartments) and 1 detached dwelling house, within a large area of the
site that was not planned for development under 04/02302/FUL. However, the report of
handling for 15/01051/FUL makes reference to;
"The current proposals are in lieu of the office development as it is in the existing
residents' interests to preserve this area as a 'village green'".

Development Management report of handling –

Page 7 of 22
Page 75

19/04849/FUL

It is further noted that on the approved site plans for 15/01051/FUL, there was a further
open space for the estate shown. Planning permission has however subsequently been
granted under 17/00202/FUL for the erection of a dwelling house on this site. This
house has now been constructed.
The apartment blocks approved under 15/01051/FUL have also now been constructed
and further limit the amount of open and green space which is usable around the
estate. The other four proposed dwelling houses will be constructed within an area of
the site noted as "the paddock", also previously shown as being free from development.
The intrusion into this area will further dramatically reduce the amount of open/green
space available to residents of the estate. As shall be detailed later, the "paddock" area
provides not only an important open space but is extremely valuable in terms of the
landscape character as you approach the estate and the listed building. The impact
that the proposal would have on the setting of the estate and the listed building shall be
discussed in detail in the section below.
The "village green" area also helps limit the density of development within this rural
estate and does add to the character and quality of the local environment.
It is further acknowledged that other areas around the site are largely contained by
fencing around the airport, the walls of the private castle grounds and farm land which
is also constrained by the nearby new tram tracks.
Whilst it is noted that an office block could still technically be constructed at this part of
the site, this office was granted consent in 2005 when there was less development and
more green/open space proposed within the site. The level of development within the
site and subsequent need for this area of open space to remain has now increased.
The granting of a dwelling on this green space and the four dwellings within the
"paddock" area would be contrary to LDP policy Env 18.
The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 18.
d) Impact on trees and ecology
LDP policy Env 12 states that development will not be permitted if likely to have a
damaging impact upon a tree protected by a Tree Preservation Order or on any other
tree or woodland worthy of retention unless necessary for good arboricultural reasons.
The Edinburgh Design Guidance states that a suitably qualified Arboriculturalist should
be used to survey and evaluate the existing tree and woodland resource within the site
and 12 metres beyond. A tree survey is required in the form of specified in BS
5837:2012 for all trees with a stem diameter of 75mm or more, at 1.5 metres above
ground on the site or within 12 metres of the boundary.
The site has many large mature trees worthy of retention especially those which are
located along the long entrance to the site. It is noted that the dwelling houses
proposed within the paddock area will be sited within close proximity of these trees.
The Councils arboriculturalist has raised concerns about the harm that the
development of these houses may have on tree roots and that their proximity may
make them vulnerable to requests to be felled or severely cut back in the future.
Development Management report of handling –

Page 76Page 8 of 22

19/04849/FUL

It is noted that no tree survey or protection plan has been submitted with the application
as clearly highlighted as being a requirement in section 3.5 of the Edinburgh Design
Guidance.
No evidence has been provided to show that the proposal complies with LDP policy
Env 12.
LDP policy Env 16 states that planning permission will not be granted for development
that would have an adverse impact upon species protected under European or UK law.
The Councils Ecologist was consulted as part of the assessment of the application.
They stated that a stage 1 bat survey would be required to ascertain whether or not the
nearby trees and woodland areas would be capable of sustaining bats. Badgers have
previously been seen on the site. A preliminary ecological assessment would also be
required to be submitted for assessment.
It is noted that a bat survey and habitat report was submitted for the 15/0105/FUL
application at the site. No bat survey or preliminary ecological assessment has been
submitted with this application.
No evidence has been provided to show that the proposal complies with LDP policy
Env 16.
e) Design and Amenity
LDP policy Des 4 states that planning permission will be granted for development
where it is demonstrated that it will have a positive impact upon its surroundings,
having regard to height and form, scale and proportions, position of buildings and
materials and detailing.
LDP policy Des 5 states planning permission will be granted for development where it
is demonstrated that the amenity of neighbours will not be adversely affected and that
future occupiers will have acceptable levels of amenity in relation to noise, daylight,
privacy and immediate outlook.
The proposed buildings are modern and are large in scale. The dwellings proposed
within the paddock area are broadly similar in design to that which has already been
approved within the grounds of the wider site. The property which shall be developed
near to the stable blocks is slightly different in design, it has a pitched roof, but would
still be appropriate, given the context of the properties which already surround the site.
As previously discussed, however, the proposed position of the buildings would
negatively impact upon its surroundings, including the character of the wider
landscape.
The proposal has been designed as to not have a negative impact on existing
properties in terms of potential loss of privacy. The proposed dwellings will also provide
future occupants with acceptable levels of amenity. Some concerns are however
raised in relation to the proposed construction of house three and its proximity to the
house directly to the north, in terms of loss of sunlight/daylight to this property and its
Development Management report of handling –

Page 9 of 22
Page 77

19/04849/FUL

garden grounds. No information has been submitted to measure the impact that this
property would have on its neighbours in terms of loss of sunlight/daylight. There are
no other concerns in regards to sunlight/daylight within the proposal.
It is noted however that the site plan submitted does show proposed house five with its
garage to the west of the plot and the main dwelling to the east, while the elevation and
floor plan drawings showing this building the other way around.
Environmental Assessment has no objections to the proposed development, subject to
an informative to protect the amenity of residents from any future use of the second
runway. If the application was granted it is recommended that this be applied.
The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Des 4 but does comply with LDP policy
Des 5
f) Road Safety
LDP policy Tra 2 states that planning permission will be granted for development where
proposed car parking complies with and does not exceed the parking levels set out in
Council Guidance. LDP policy Tra 3 states that planning permission will be granted for
development where proposed cycle parking and storage complies with the standards
set out in Council Guidance. LDP policy Tra 4 sets out the design considerations that
will be taken into account where off street parking is required.
The Roads Authority was consulted as part of the assessment of this application. They
responded that they had no objections subject to certain informatives being added to
the consent, if granted.
It states that the Council's RCC guidance requires that property/dwellings of 6 or more
are served by a road. However the presence of mature trees along the edges of the
existing private access makes it difficult to achieve because of damage to tree roots.
The existing access has passing places for vehicles to pass each other and priority is
given to traffic entering from the A8, ensuring there is no queueing back onto this
strategic road at the access junction. The distance between the access gate piers and
the stop line at the junction is 9.8m and that allows 1 vehicle to be accommodated at
the mouth of the access without causing any obstruction to the traffic on the A8. It is
considered that the proposed development will generate fewer vehicular trips than the
consented office development.
The proposals will not therefore be detrimental to road or pedestrian safety.
The Roads Authority also state that the two parking spaces proposed with each
dwelling breaches the Council's parking standards. However this this considered
acceptable given the site location and existing private access which could potentially be
used for parking without control.
Cycles could securely be stored within the garages of the proposed dwellings.
The proposal complies with LDP policy Tra 3 and Tra 4. Whilst the proposal does
breach LDP policy Tra 2, the breach is minor and is acceptable in this instance.
Development Management report of handling –

Page 78Page 10 of 22

19/04849/FUL

g) Flooding and Aerodrome Safety
LDP policy Env 21 states that planning permission will not be granted for development
that would increase a flood risk or be at risk of flooding itself.
The site falls within the 1 in 200-year fluvial flood event zone, is located near to the
Gogar burn and the southern part of the "Paddock" area just falls within an Area of
Importance for Flood Management. This is also shown on the Scottish Environment
Protection Agency (SEPA) online flood mapping plans.
SEPA were consulted as part of the assessment of the application. It confirmed that
according to the provided drawings proposed house three is outwith the functional
floodplain, houses five and four are partially within the functional floodplain, and
proposed houses six and eight are almost fully within the functional floodplain. SEPA
stated that it would require a flood risk assessment (FRA) to demonstrate that all of the
developments are located outwith the functional floodplain, in line with Scottish
Planning Policy. However, this may only serve to confirm that some parts of the
application site are unsuitable for development.
Flood Prevention was also consulted and confirmed that a Surface Water Management
Plan and FRA would be required for the application.
None of these have been submitted.
No evidence has been provided to show that the proposal complies with LDP policy
Env 21.
Edinburgh Airport was consulted and had no objections subject to an informative being
applied to the consent, if granted, relating to the requirement for the developer to
consult with the aero drome prior to any crane being used on the development.
h) Other material matters
Water and Sewerage
Scottish Water was consulted as part of the assessment of the application and
confirmed that it had no objections to the proposal.
Communities and families
Communities and families confirmed that a level of developer contributions will be
required if the application is approved.
Waste
Waste Planning was consulted and confirmed that it had no objections as the Council
already serves the estate.

Development Management report of handling –

Page 11 of 22
Page 79

19/04849/FUL

i) Representations
The application received 23 letters of objection.
Material objection
-Impact on setting of listed building, stables and estate- This is addressed in section 3.3
c
-Overdevelopment, loss of open space/greenspace. -This is addressed in section 3.3 b
-Design is inappropriate - This is addressed in section 3.3 e
-Traffic impact and road/pedestrian safety - This is addressed in section 3.3 f
-Impact on residential amenity- loss of sunlight/daylight, privacy, noise intrusion- This is
addressed in section 3.3 e
-Impact on trees and ecology- This is addressed in section 3.3 d
-Concerns relating to flooding -This is addressed in section 3.3 g
-Concerns about waste and water - This is addressed in section 3.3 h
Non Material Objections
-Costs of repairing bridge
-Developer promised never to build on green
-Concerns regarding neighbour notification for previous applications.
-Plans for the future Business District and intrusion into former greenbelt called into
question.
It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below.
3.4

Conditions/reasons/informatives

Reasons:1.
The proposal is contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy
Hou 1, as it does not meet the criteria for housing development within the International
Business Gateway.
2.
The proposal is contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy
Des 4, as the proposal will have a negative impact upon the setting of its surroundings.

Development Management report of handling –

Page 80Page 12 of 22

19/04849/FUL

3.
The proposal is contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy
Env 3, as the proposal will be detrimental to the setting of the listed building.
4.
The proposal is contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy
Env 12, as the proposal is likely to have a damaging impact upon trees worthy of
retention.
5.
The proposal is contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy
Env 16, as the proposal may have an adverse impact upon species protected under
European or UK law.
6.
The proposal is contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy
Env 18, as the proposal will result in the loss of valuable open space which will have a
significant impact upon the quality and character of the local environment.
7.
The proposal is contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy
Env 21, as the proposal may increase a flood risk or be at risk of flooding itself.
8.
The proposal is contrary to Historic Environment Scotland Managing Change in
the Historic Environment Guidance Note on setting as the proposed new houses would
detrimentally impact on the approach and wider setting of Category A listed Castle
Gogar.
9.
The proposal is contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy
Emp 6, as it does not meet the criteria for housing development within the International
Business Gateway.

Risk, Policy, compliance and governance impact
4.1 Provided planning applications are determined in accordance with statutory
legislation, the level of risk is low.

Equalities impact
5.1 The equalities impact has been assessed as follows:
The application has been assessed and has no impact in terms of equalities or human
rights.

Consultation and engagement
6.1 Pre-Application Process
Development Management report of handling –

Page 13 of 22
Page 81

19/04849/FUL

Pre-application discussions took place on this application.
6.2 Publicity summary of representations and Community Council comments
23 letters of objection were received in relation to this application. This points raised
shall be addressed in section 3.3 of this report.

Background reading / external references


To view details of the application go to



Planning and Building Standards online services

Development Management report of handling –

Page 82Page 14 of 22

19/04849/FUL

ort of handling

Statutory Development
Plan Provision
Date registered
Drawing
numbers/Scheme

10 October 2019
01-41,

David R. Leslie
Chief Planning Officer
PLACE
The City of Edinburgh Council
Contact: Robert McIntosh, Planning Officer
E-mail:robert.mcintosh@edinburgh.gov.uk Tel:0131 529 3422

Links - Policies
Relevant Policies:
Relevant policies of the Local Development Plan.
LDP Policy Del 1 (Developer Contributions and Infrastructure Delivery) identifies the
circumstances in which developer contributions will be required.
LDP Policy Des 1 (Design Quality and Context) sets general criteria for assessing
design quality and requires an overall design concept to be demonstrated.
LDP Policy Des 3 (Development Design - Incorporating and Enhancing Existing and
Potential Features) supports development where it is demonstrated that existing and
potential features have been incorporated into the design.
LDP Policy Des 4 (Development Design - Impact on Setting) sets criteria for assessing
the impact of development design against its setting.
LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design - Amenity) sets criteria for assessing amenity.
LDP Policy Env 3 (Listed Buildings - Setting) identifies the circumstances in which
development within the curtilage or affecting the setting of a listed building will be
permitted.
Development Management report of handling –

Page 15 of 22
Page 83

19/04849/FUL

LDP Policy Env 12 (Trees) sets out tree protection requirements for new development.
LDP Policy Env 16 (Species Protection) sets out species protection requirements for
new development.
LDP Policy Env 18 (Open Space Protection) sets criteria for assessing the loss of open
space.
LDP Policy Emp 6 (International Business Gateway) sets out uses that will be
supported in principle for the development of an International Business Gateway within
the boundary defined on the Proposals Map.
LDP Policy Env 21 (Flood Protection) sets criteria for assessing the impact of
development on flood protection.
LDP Policy Hou 1 (Housing Development) sets criteria for assessing the principle of
housing proposals.
LDP Policy Hou 2 (Housing Mix) requires provision of a mix of house types and sizes in
new housing developments to meet a range of housing needs.
LDP Policy Hou 3 (Private Green Space in Housing Development) sets out the
requirements for the provision of private green space in housing development.
LDP Policy Hou 4 (Housing Density) sets out the factors to be taken into account in
assessing density levels in new development.
LDP Policy Tra 2 (Private Car Parking) requires private car parking provision to comply
with the parking levels set out in Council guidance, and sets criteria for assessing lower
provision.
LDP Policy Tra 3 (Private Cycle Parking) requires cycle parking provision in
accordance with standards set out in Council guidance.
LDP Policy Tra 4 (Design of Off-Street Car and Cycle Parking) sets criteria for
assessing design of off-street car and cycle parking.
LDP Policy Tra 12 (Edinburgh Airport Public Safety Zones) establishes a presumption
against new development within the Airport Public Safety Zones apart from in
exceptional circumstances.
LDP Policy RS 6 (Water and Drainage) sets a presumption against development where
the water supply and sewerage is inadequate.
Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines
Non-Statutory guidelines Edinburgh Design Guidance supports development of the
highest design quality and that integrates well with the existing city. It sets out the
Council's expectations for the design of new development, including buildings, parking,
streets and landscape, in Edinburgh.
Development Management report of handling –

Page 84Page 16 of 22

19/04849/FUL

Relevant Government Guidance on Historic Environment.
Managing Change in the Historic Environment: Setting sets out Government guidance
on the principles that apply to developments affecting the setting of historic assets or
places.

Development Management report of handling –

Page 17 of 22
Page 85

19/04849/FUL

Appendix 1
Consultations

Environmental Protection
Environmental Protection has no objections to this proposed development.
Informative
No development should take place until a scheme for protecting all bedrooms and living
rooms of the residential development against aircraft noise has been devised. The
scheme should be designed in accordance with BS8233:2014 'Guidance on sound
insulation and noise reduction for buildings' to attain the following internal noise levels:
Bedrooms - 30dB LAeq, T and 45dB LAfmax
Living Rooms - 35 dB LAeq, D
T - Night-time 8 hours between 2300 - 0700
D - Daytime 16 hours between 0700 - 2300
The application proposes the construction of five detached residential properties at
Castle Gogar Rigg. To the north and west of the site are existing residential dwellings,
including Castle Gogar. To the east and west is open ground with the Edinburgh Tram
line over 100m to the south.
This proposed development site will see residential dwellings placed in close proximity
to Edinburgh Airport's second runway. Although this runway is rarely used and the site
falls outwith the airport's recognised noise contours, an informative is recommended to
protect the amenity of residents in particular from any future use of the second runway.
Roads Authority
ROADS AUTHORITY ISSUES
No objections to the application subject to the following being included as conditions or
informatives as appropriate:
1.
The applicant proposes double garage for each of the 5 proposed houses (see
note b);
2.
Electric vehicle charging should be incorporated in the garages;
3.
3 Cycle parking spaces to be provided(garages).
Note:
a.
It is understood that this application replaces the consented 743.2sqm office
development for the site;
Development Management report of handling –

Page 86Page 18 of 22

19/04849/FUL

b.
The proposed 2 parking spaces breaches the Council's parking standards,
however the proposed is considered acceptable given the site location and existing
private access which could potentially be used for parking without control.
c.
The Council's RCC guidance requires that property/dwellings of 6 or more are
served by a road, however the presence of matured trees on along the edges of the
existing private access makes it difficult to achieve because of damage to tree roots;
d.
The existing access has passing places for vehicles to pass each other and
priority is given to traffic entering from the A8, ensuring there is no queueing back onto
this strategic road at the access junction.
e.
The distance between the access gate piers and the stop line at the junction is
9.8m and that allows 1 vehicle to be accommodated at the mouth of the access without
causing any obstruction to the traffic on the A8;
f.
The existing access junction has a visibility to the right of X=4.5m; Y=150m and
complies with the standards set out in the DMRB for an all-purpose trunk road with a
40mph (c.65kph) speed limit (50kmh;70m DMRB);
g.
The proposed development is predicted to generate 3 two-way vehicular trips for
each of the morning and evening peak hour periods; and this is significantly fewer than
the consented office development for the site predicted to generate 13 and 10 two-way
vehicular trips for the morning and evening peak hour period respectively.
h.
At both stop lines on the private access to the tram cross over, the visibility of
the tram route and oncoming trams is very good as follows:
o
North stop line (from site)
Visibility to the right - c.250metres
Visibility to the left - c.150metres
o
South stop line (to the site)
Visibility to the right - c.230metres
Visibility to the left - c.250metres

TRAMS - Important Note:
The proposed site is on or adjacent to the Edinburgh Tram which is now operational.
Tram power lines are over 5m above the tracks and do not pose a danger to
pedestrians and motorists at ground level or to those living and working in the vicinity of
the tramway. However, the applicant should be informed that there are potential
dangers and, prior to commencing work near the tramway, a safe method of working
must be agreed with the Council and authorisation to work obtained. Authorisation is
needed for any of the following works either on or near the tramway:
o
Any work where part of the site such as tools, materials, machines, suspended
loads or where people could enter the Edinburgh Tram Hazard Zone. For example,
window cleaning or other work involving the use of ladders;
o
Any work which could force pedestrians or road traffic to be diverted into the
Edinburgh Trams Hazard Zone;
o
Piling, using a crane, excavating more than 2m or erecting and dismantling
scaffolding within 4m of the Edinburgh Trams Hazard Zone;
o
Any excavation within 3m of any pole supporting overhead lines;
o
Any work on sites near the tramway where vehicles fitted with cranes, tippers or
skip loaders could come within the Edinburgh Trams Hazard Zone when the equipment
is in use;
o
The Council has issued guidance to residents and businesses along the tram
route and to other key organisations who may require access along the line.
Development Management report of handling –

Page 19 of 22
Page 87

19/04849/FUL

See our full guidance on how to get permission to work near a tram way
http://edinburghtrams.com/community/working-around-trams
Historic Environment Scotland
Our Advice
Castle Gogar is an L-plan tower house dating from 1625 with later alterations. The
building is Category A listed, with the listing extending to include the adjacent estate
structures, including walling and stable cottages. Other separately listed structures on
the
estate include a seventeenth century bridge, the gatehouse and the eighteenth century
gatepiers on the Glasgow Road (the elaborate gates appear to have disappeared
before
2008 - without LBC?).
We note the findings of the Heritage Report. We agree that the loss of green space
around Castle Gogar has had a detrimental impact on its setting, and that the setting
has
been compromised by more recent development. Some of this development (5 houses
and a proposed office range in 2004) was part of an enabling scheme which has seen
the repair/reuse of the Castle, and repair and conversion of the stable cottages. This
enabling development was approved because your Council considered it was 'essential
to secure the survival of Gogar House'.
The new (2004) housing is largely to the west and south west of Castle Gogar in the
location of the former walled garden and ancillary buildings of the estate including the
stable cottages. There has been subsequent infilling and additional development in
2015
and 2017; (15/01051/FUL and 17/00202/FUL).
The green space in the centre of the site had permission (2004) for the erection of an
office development which has not proceeded. However, the 2015 application
(15/01051/FUL) for two new apartment blocks and a house is noted in the Report of
Handling as being 'in lieu of the proposed office block' with the application's intention to
preserve this space as a 'village green' for the development.
Both the 2015 and 2017 Reports of Handling note the setting of the Castle now
consists
of the 'main tree-lined drive and the green open space enclosed by mature trees to the
south of the castle' (the Paddock).
HES Managing Change guidance notes that setting can be important to the cultural
significance of an historic asset if it contributes to the way in which the historic structure
or place is "understood, appreciated and experienced". We agree with your Council's
assessment that the surviving setting of Castle Gogar consists of the southern treelined
approach to the building and the open ground of the tree-lined paddock. The historical
approach to the Castle includes the listed gatepiers, adjacent lodge and hog-back
bridge.
Development Management report of handling –

Page 88Page 20 of 22

19/04849/FUL

This adds to the landscape context and sense of place of Castle Gogar. Although new
development is visible to the west on the approach to the castle, it has not yet
overwhelmed the setting here.
We consider the proposed new houses would detrimentally impact on the approach
and
wider setting of Category A listed Castle Gogar. The still open semi-rural approach to
the
castle would be significantly diminished, as would the tree-lined paddock area of open
ground.
As above, although consent for an office development in the centre of the site was
given
in 2004, the decision to agree additional housing in 2015 was taken on the assumption
that this area would not now be built upon. Our decision not to comment at this stage
was also based on the balance of development on the site. We therefore consider the
'village green' should ideally remain open ground, with the consequent benefit this
gives
to the setting of the stable range (included within the A listing).
In conclusion, new development was initially allowed on the Castle Gogar site
specifically
to allow the repair and restoration of A listed buildings. Later applications have infilled
adjacent ground and appear to have 'swapped' development sites.
We consider the current proposals would have a detrimental impact on the setting and
historical significance of Category A listed Castle Gogar (and the stable cottages
contained within its listing) and that they should be resisted.

Development Management report of handling –

Page 21 of 22
Page 89

19/04849/FUL

END

Development Management report of handling –

Page 90Page 22 of 22

19/04849/FUL

Comments for Planning Application 19/04849/FUL
Application Summary
Application Number: 19/04849/FUL
Address: Land 80 Metres South Of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Proposal: Proposed development of five new detached homes.
Case Officer: Robert McIntosh
Customer Details
Name: Miss Anoushka Morillo
Address: Castle Gogar 180 Glasgow Road Edinburgh
Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:
Comment:i wish to object to this development as it will be directly in front of my home which is an
a listed castle and the setting of the castle has to be protected. these flat roof houses are not in
keeping with the style of my house. i walk up and down a single track road which already has too
much traffic on it. It is a private road, narrow with no lights and i have often had workmen on
previous construction drive far too fast. we have been subject to such terrible noise the last four
years with the development of the apartments even on sunday mornings which is most annoying
when the weekend is only time off. I also want to make sure that the badgers and deer and local
wildlife (not to mention the trees) are fully protected.

Page 91

COMMUNITIES AND FAMILIES - CONSULTATION RESPONSE
Location
Proposal
Application number
Assessment date

Land 80 Metres South Of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Proposed development of five new detached homes.
19/04849/FUL
31.10.19

The Council has assessed the impact of the growth set out in the LDP through an Education Appraisal
(August 2018), taking account of school roll projections. To do this, an assumption has been made as
to the amount of new housing development which will come forward (‘housing output’). This takes
account of new housing sites allocated in the LDP and other land within the urban area.
In areas where additional infrastructure will be required to accommodate the cumulative number of
additional pupils, education infrastructure ‘actions’ have been identified. The infrastructure
requirements and estimated delivery dates are set out in the Council’s Action Programme (January
2019).
Residential development is required to contribute towards the cost of delivering these education
infrastructure actions to ensure that the cumulative impact of development can be mitigated. In
order that the total delivery cost is shared proportionally and fairly between developments,
Education Contribution Zones have been identified and ‘per house’ and ‘per flat’ contribution rates
established. These are set out in the finalised Supplementary Guidance on ‘Developer Contributions
and Infrastructure Delivery’ (August 2018).

Assessment and Contribution Requirements
Assessment based on:
5 Houses
This site falls within Sub-Area W-1 of the ‘?West Edinburgh Education Contribution Zone’.
The Council has assessed the impact of the proposed development on the identified education
infrastructure actions and current delivery programme.
The education infrastructure actions that are identified are appropriate to mitigate the cumulative
impact of development that would be anticipated if this proposal progressed.
The proposed development is therefore required to make a contribution towards the delivery of
these actions based on the established ‘per house’ and ‘per flat’ rates for the appropriate part of the
Zone.
If the appropriate infrastructure and land contribution is provided by the developer, as set out
below, Communities and Families does not object to the application.
Total infrastructure contribution required:

£80,930

Note - all infrastructure contributions shall be index linked based on the increase in the BCIS Forecast All-in Tender Price
Index from Q4 2017 to the date of payment.

Total land contribution required:

£10,210

Page 92

Note – no indexation to be applied to land contribution.

Page 93

Comments for Planning Application 19/04849/FUL
Application Summary
Application Number: 19/04849/FUL
Address: Land 80 Metres South Of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Proposal: Proposed development of five new detached homes.
Case Officer: Robert McIntosh
Customer Details
Name: Mr RICHARD BAILEY
Address: 6 Castle Gogar Rigg, Edinburgh EH12 9FP
Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:
Comment:19/04849/FUL.
- The office block planning has expired/been withdrawn (there is no current planning consent for
offices) and this withdrawal was used as a trade-off for the last phase of development of 10 new
properties.
- The original second round approval was for 8 flats and 1 house. And there was then a further
successful application for 1 additional house, making 10 additional units in total.
- The Gogar estate has now more than doubled, from 9 to 19 properties.
- This new application cannot use the office parking trade-off for additional road usage, as that has
been used in previous applications and has therefore been forfeited for any further attempts at
planning for additional houses.
- The drive is 0.5 mile in length, single track, with 9 passing places and has a very narrow 250year-old bridge crossing the Gogar Burn.
- The current level of domestic and trade traffic is at saturation point.
- The road and bridge cannot be widened. The bridge cannot be physically widened, and the drive
cannot be widened without the removal of valuable mature trees.
- From ECC in October 2017.......quote,

Page 94

"Roads have accepted this current situation but would not wish to see any further development on
this site for road safety reasons. Roads would want to adopt the access road if this were the case.
From a planning point of view, any further development would start encroaching unacceptably on
the setting of the category A listed Castle Gogar and the adoption of the access road would not be
acceptable due to the inevitable loss of mature trees."
- From the current Planning and Design Statement....quote,
2.35. Furthermore, and at significant cost, the applicant has painstakingly restored the bridge
over the Gogar Burn, enhancing its setting and seeking to ensure that it's future condition
and maintenance is secured. This benefits the whole of the Gogar Rigg development (both
practically and in terms of its attractive restoration) whilst also providing a historic link and
clue to what lies beyond, even though the Castle is completely hidden from view.
2.35 is factually incorrect and therefore questions the accuracy of the whole application. Willie
Scott went ahead with the bridge "repair" without consultation with existing property owners, then
billed 9 owners for almost £1400 each and the payment was made to Willie Scott. We were
threatened with legal action if we didn't pay. The bridge was subject to at least 6 months of
excessive and heavy building traffic before the repair. That may be the reason for the repair being
required?
4.1 Shows new house Three, on the "Green". It dwarfs houses to the north and east and
completely removes the outlook from these 4 properties; cottages # 1-3 and house # 6 Castle
Gogar Rigg. House Three has an apex roof and is completely different to the 5 original houses
within the gated area. The 3 cottages have an apex roof but are only 1.5 stories high.
4.5 The fifth property (house Three) does not respect the house to the north, it completely
obliterates the house's view to the south. It also obliterates the west view from the 3 cottages,
demonstrated by the west elevation of proposed house Three. The west elevation plan for house
Three shows this in graphic detail. It should be noted that the elevation of house # 6 in this plan is
the south elevation of property # 6, not the west elevation. The vast majority of windows of house
# 6 face south and the proposed location of house Three will completely remove the views from
that house.
The ground floor plan for House Three shows it to be sitting on "Plot for approved offices". This is
factually incorrect. There is no approval for offices.
- The pumping station (PS) is an issue. A previous maintenance company stated that the capacity
of the PS was sufficient for the original 9 properties but could not accommodate an additional 10
properties. We are all experiencing problems with the PS currently and that is exacerbated by the
additional properties, of which only 2 of 10 are currently occupied. It can only get worse as

Page 95

properties are sold. The addition of a further 5 properties can only tip the PS into a complete
failure mode.

Page 96

Comments for Planning Application 19/04849/FUL
Application Summary
Application Number: 19/04849/FUL
Address: Land 80 Metres South Of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Proposal: Proposed development of five new detached homes.
Case Officer: Robert McIntosh
Customer Details
Name: Mr Stuart Robinson
Address: 11/4 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour-Residential
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:
Comment:Stuart Robinson
11/4 Castle Gogar Rigg
Objection to:
19/04849/FUL
04/11/2019
- The site will be over developed with the addition of the proposed 5 new houses along with the 1
house already planned and the 8 new apartments that are not yet occupied
- The above will potentially add 30-40 more residents and up to 28 more cars using the site
- The access into and from the site at the A8 Glasgow road will not cope with the increased traffic,
the entrance (which is a blind entrance) along with the tram track will become potentially
dangerous for traffic and is not adequate for the increased number of cars that will use it.
- The Bridge (B listed) and built in 1672 along with the single-track road from Glasgow Road into
Castle Gogar Rigg is not adequate for the number of residents and cars. Most residents have 2
cars, the total number of potential cars will be over 50 cars using the road and leaving / entering
the Castle Gogar site. The infrastructure will not cope with this.
- Proposed house number 3 will take away all of the existing green area within the community and
this area should be protected at all cost, it is a key aspect of the community and green areas such
as this must be protected.
- I understand that the current pumping station that deals with all the household waste is
potentially not adequate for the current number of residents and this is before all of the apartments
have been sold / occupied.
- The pumping station connects, at a higher level, into a Scottish Water sewer that feeds towards
the Airport and there is a requirement for a Pre-Development Application Form to be completed.
There is no evidence, that I can see, that this has been submitted and Scottish Water may not
accept additional feed into their sewer.

Page 97

- When we purchased our apartment 11/4 Castle Gogar we were given verbal assurance by the
developer and his sales agent (Coulters) that he was only going to develop up to 3 more
properties and we have written confirmation that an office block would never be built on the site.
The developer also stated he would never build on the "green" which is the site proposed for
house number 3.

Page 98

Comments for Planning Application 19/04849/FUL
Application Summary
Application Number: 19/04849/FUL
Address: Land 80 Metres South Of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Proposal: Proposed development of five new detached homes.
Case Officer: Robert McIntosh
Customer Details
Name: Mr David Campbell
Address: 7 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:
Comment:- The drive is 0.5 mile in length, single track, with 9 passing places and has a very
narrow 250-year-old bridge crossing the Gogar Burn.
- The current level of domestic and trade traffic is at saturation point.
- The road and bridge cannot be widened. The bridge cannot be physically widened, and the drive
cannot be widened without the removal of valuable mature trees.
- From ECC in October 2017.......quote,
"Roads have accepted this current situation but would not wish to see any further development on
this site for road safety reasons. Roads would want to adopt the access road if this were the case.
From a planning point of view, any further development would start encroaching unacceptably on
the setting of the category A listed Castle Gogar and the adoption of the access road would not be
acceptable due to the inevitable loss of mature trees."
- From the current Planning and Design Statement....quote,
4.1 Shows new house Three, on the "Green". It dwarfs houses to the north and east and
completely removes the outlook from these 4 properties; cottages # 1-3 and house # 6 Castle
Gogar Rigg. House Three has an apex roof and is completely different to the 5 original houses
within the gated area. The 3 cottages have an apex roof but are only 1.5 stories high.
4.5 The fifth property (house Three) does not respect the house to the north, it completely

Page 99

obliterates the house's view to the south. It also obliterates the west view from the 3 cottages,
demonstrated by the west elevation of proposed house Three. The west elevation plan for house
Three shows this in graphic detail. It should be noted that the elevation of house # 6 in this plan is
the south elevation of property # 6, not the west elevation. The vast majority of windows of house
# 6 face south and the proposed location of house Three will completely remove the views from
that house.
The ground floor plan for House Three shows it to be sitting on "Plot for approved offices". This is
factually incorrect. There is no approval for offices.
- The pumping station (PS) is an issue. A previous maintenance company stated that the capacity
of the PS was sufficient for the original 9 properties but could not accommodate an additional 10
properties. We are all experiencing problems with the PS currently and that is exacerbated by the
additional properties, of which only 2 of 10 are currently occupied. It can only get worse as
properties are sold. The addition of a further 5 properties can only tip the PS into a complete
failure mode.

Page 100

Comments for Planning Application 19/04849/FUL
Application Summary
Application Number: 19/04849/FUL
Address: Land 80 Metres South Of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Proposal: Proposed development of five new detached homes.
Case Officer: Robert McIntosh
Customer Details
Name: Mrs Sharon Campbell
Address: 7 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:
Comment:- The drive is 0.5 mile in length, single track, with 9 passing places and has a very
narrow 250-year-old bridge crossing the Gogar Burn.
- The current level of domestic and trade traffic is at saturation point.
- The road and bridge cannot be widened. The bridge cannot be physically widened, and the drive
cannot be widened without the removal of valuable mature trees.
- From ECC in October 2017.......quote,
"Roads have accepted this current situation but would not wish to see any further development on
this site for road safety reasons. Roads would want to adopt the access road if this were the case.
From a planning point of view, any further development would start encroaching unacceptably on
the setting of the category A listed Castle Gogar and the adoption of the access road would not be
acceptable due to the inevitable loss of mature trees."
- From the current Planning and Design Statement....quote,
4.1 Shows new house Three, on the "Green". It dwarfs houses to the north and east and
completely removes the outlook from these 4 properties; cottages # 1-3 and house # 6 Castle
Gogar Rigg. House Three has an apex roof and is completely different to the 5 original houses
within the gated area. The 3 cottages have an apex roof but are only 1.5 stories high.
4.5 The fifth property (house Three) does not respect the house to the north, it completely

Page 101

obliterates the house's view to the south. It also obliterates the west view from the 3 cottages,
demonstrated by the west elevation of proposed house Three. The west elevation plan for house
Three shows this in graphic detail. It should be noted that the elevation of house # 6 in this plan is
the south elevation of property # 6, not the west elevation. The vast majority of windows of house
# 6 face south and the proposed location of house Three will completely remove the views from
that house.
The ground floor plan for House Three shows it to be sitting on "Plot for approved offices". This is
factually incorrect. There is no approval for offices.
- The pumping station (PS) is an issue. A previous maintenance company stated that the capacity
of the PS was sufficient for the original 9 properties but could not accommodate an additional 10
properties. We are all experiencing problems with the PS currently and that is exacerbated by the
additional properties, of which only 2 of 10 are currently occupied. It can only get worse as
properties are sold. The addition of a further 5 properties can only tip the PS into a complete
failure mode.

Page 102

Comments for Planning Application 19/04849/FUL
Application Summary
Application Number: 19/04849/FUL
Address: Land 80 Metres South Of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Proposal: Proposed development of five new detached homes.
Case Officer: Robert McIntosh
Customer Details
Name: Mr David Campbell
Address: 1 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:
Comment:- The drive is 0.5 mile in length, single track, with 9 passing places and has a very
narrow 250-year-old bridge crossing the Gogar Burn.
- The current level of domestic and trade traffic is at saturation point.
- The road and bridge cannot be widened. The bridge cannot be physically widened, and the drive
cannot be widened without the removal of valuable mature trees.
- From ECC in October 2017.......quote,
"Roads have accepted this current situation but would not wish to see any further development on
this site for road safety reasons. Roads would want to adopt the access road if this were the case.
From a planning point of view, any further development would start encroaching unacceptably on
the setting of the category A listed Castle Gogar and the adoption of the access road would not be
acceptable due to the inevitable loss of mature trees."
- From the current Planning and Design Statement....quote,
4.1 Shows new house Three, on the "Green". It dwarfs houses to the north and east and
completely removes the outlook from these 4 properties; cottages # 1-3 and house # 6 Castle
Gogar Rigg. House Three has an apex roof and is completely different to the 5 original houses
within the gated area. The 3 cottages have an apex roof but are only 1.5 stories high.
4.5 The fifth property (house Three) does not respect the house to the north, it completely

Page 103

obliterates the house's view to the south. It also obliterates the west view from the 3 cottages,
demonstrated by the west elevation of proposed house Three. The west elevation plan for house
Three shows this in graphic detail. It should be noted that the elevation of house # 6 in this plan is
the south elevation of property # 6, not the west elevation. The vast majority of windows of house
# 6 face south and the proposed location of house Three will completely remove the views from
that house.
The ground floor plan for House Three shows it to be sitting on "Plot for approved offices". This is
factually incorrect. There is no approval for offices.
- The pumping station (PS) is an issue. A previous maintenance company stated that the capacity
of the PS was sufficient for the original 9 properties but could not accommodate an additional 10
properties. We are all experiencing problems with the PS currently and that is exacerbated by the
additional properties, of which only 2 of 10 are currently occupied. It can only get worse as
properties are sold. The addition of a further 5 properties can only tip the PS into a complete
failure mode.

Page 104

Comments for Planning Application 19/04849/FUL
Application Summary
Application Number: 19/04849/FUL
Address: Land 80 Metres South Of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Proposal: Proposed development of five new detached homes.
Case Officer: Robert McIntosh
Customer Details
Name: Mrs Sharon Campbell
Address: 1 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:
Comment:- The drive is 0.5 mile in length, single track, with 9 passing places and has a very
narrow 250-year-old bridge crossing the Gogar Burn.
- The current level of domestic and trade traffic is at saturation point.
- The road and bridge cannot be widened. The bridge cannot be physically widened, and the drive
cannot be widened without the removal of valuable mature trees.
- From ECC in October 2017.......quote,
"Roads have accepted this current situation but would not wish to see any further development on
this site for road safety reasons. Roads would want to adopt the access road if this were the case.
From a planning point of view, any further development would start encroaching unacceptably on
the setting of the category A listed Castle Gogar and the adoption of the access road would not be
acceptable due to the inevitable loss of mature trees."
- From the current Planning and Design Statement....quote,
4.1 Shows new house Three, on the "Green". It dwarfs houses to the north and east and
completely removes the outlook from these 4 properties; cottages # 1-3 and house # 6 Castle
Gogar Rigg. House Three has an apex roof and is completely different to the 5 original houses
within the gated area. The 3 cottages have an apex roof but are only 1.5 stories high.
4.5 The fifth property (house Three) does not respect the house to the north, it completely

Page 105

obliterates the house's view to the south. It also obliterates the west view from the 3 cottages,
demonstrated by the west elevation of proposed house Three. The west elevation plan for house
Three shows this in graphic detail. It should be noted that the elevation of house # 6 in this plan is
the south elevation of property # 6, not the west elevation. The vast majority of windows of house
# 6 face south and the proposed location of house Three will completely remove the views from
that house.
The ground floor plan for House Three shows it to be sitting on "Plot for approved offices". This is
factually incorrect. There is no approval for offices.
- The pumping station (PS) is an issue. A previous maintenance company stated that the capacity
of the PS was sufficient for the original 9 properties but could not accommodate an additional 10
properties. We are all experiencing problems with the PS currently and that is exacerbated by the
additional properties, of which only 2 of 10 are currently occupied. It can only get worse as
properties are sold. The addition of a further 5 properties can only tip the PS into a complete
failure mode.

Page 106

By email to:
robert.mcintosh@edinburgh.gov.uk

Longmore House
Salisbury Place
Edinburgh
EH9 1SH

City of Edinburgh Council
Planning and Strategy
4 Waverley Court
East Market Street
Edinburgh
EH8 8BG

Enquiry Line: 0131-668-8716
HMConsultations@hes.scot
Our case ID: 300041070
Your ref: 19/04849/FUL
06 November 2019

Dear Sir/Madam
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland)
Regulations 2013
Land 80 Metres South Of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh - Proposed development of five
new detached homes.
Thank you for your consultation which we received on 24 October 2019. We have
assessed it for our historic environment interests and consider that the proposals have
the potential to affect the following:
Ref
LB27092

Name
Designation Type
GLASGOW ROAD,
Listed Building
CASTLE GOGAR WITH
COTTAGE, GATE HOUSE,
STABLES,
OUTBUILDINGS, GATE
AND GATEPIERS

You should also seek advice from your archaeology and conservation service for matters
including unscheduled archaeology and category B and C-listed buildings.
Our Advice
Castle Gogar is an L-plan tower house dating from 1625 with later alterations. The
building is Category A listed, with the listing extending to include the adjacent estate
structures, including walling and stable cottages. Other separately listed structures on the
estate include a seventeenth century bridge, the gatehouse and the eighteenth century
gatepiers on the Glasgow Road (the elaborate gates appear to have disappeared before
2008 – without LBC?).
Historic Environment Scotland – Longmore House, Salisbury Place, Edinburgh, EH9 1SH
Scottish Charity No. SC045925
VAT No. GB 221 8680 15

Page 107

We note the findings of the Heritage Report. We agree that the loss of green space
around Castle Gogar has had a detrimental impact on its setting, and that the setting has
been compromised by more recent development. Some of this development (5 houses
and a proposed office range in 2004) was part of an enabling scheme which has seen
the repair/reuse of the Castle, and repair and conversion of the stable cottages. This
enabling development was approved because your Council considered it was ‘essential
to secure the survival of Gogar House’.
The new (2004) housing is largely to the west and south west of Castle Gogar in the
location of the former walled garden and ancillary buildings of the estate including the
stable cottages. There has been subsequent infilling and additional development in 2015
and 2017; (15/01051/FUL and 17/00202/FUL).
The green space in the centre of the site had permission (2004) for the erection of an
office development which has not proceeded. However, the 2015 application
(15/01051/FUL) for two new apartment blocks and a house is noted in the Report of
Handling as being ‘in lieu of the proposed office block’ with the application’s intention to
preserve this space as a ‘village green’ for the development.
Both the 2015 and 2017 Reports of Handling note the setting of the Castle now consists
of the ‘main tree-lined drive and the green open space enclosed by mature trees to the
south of the castle’ (the Paddock).
HES Managing Change guidance notes that setting can be important to the cultural
significance of an historic asset if it contributes to the way in which the historic structure
or place is “understood, appreciated and experienced”. We agree with your Council’s
assessment that the surviving setting of Castle Gogar consists of the southern tree-lined
approach to the building and the open ground of the tree-lined paddock. The historical
approach to the Castle includes the listed gatepiers, adjacent lodge and hog-back bridge.
This adds to the landscape context and sense of place of Castle Gogar. Although new
development is visible to the west on the approach to the castle, it has not yet
overwhelmed the setting here.
We consider the proposed new houses would detrimentally impact on the approach and
wider setting of Category A listed Castle Gogar. The still open semi-rural approach to the
castle would be significantly diminished, as would the tree-lined paddock area of open
ground.
As above, although consent for an office development in the centre of the site was given
in 2004, the decision to agree additional housing in 2015 was taken on the assumption
that this area would not now be built upon. Our decision not to comment at this stage
was also based on the balance of development on the site. We therefore consider the
Historic Environment Scotland – Longmore House, Salisbury Place, Edinburgh, EH9 1SH
Scottish Charity No. SC045925
VAT No. GB 221 8680 15

Page 108

‘village green’ should ideally remain open ground, with the consequent benefit this gives
to the setting of the stable range (included within the A listing).
In conclusion, new development was initially allowed on the Castle Gogar site specifically
to allow the repair and restoration of A listed buildings. Later applications have infilled
adjacent ground and appear to have ‘swapped’ development sites.
We consider the current proposals would have a detrimental impact on the setting and
historical significance of Category A listed Castle Gogar (and the stable cottages
contained within its listing) and that they should be resisted.
Planning authorities are expected to treat our comments as a material consideration, and
this advice should be taken into account in your decision making. Our view is that the
proposals do not raise historic environment issues of national significance and therefore
we do not object. However, our decision not to object should not be taken as our support
for the proposals. This application should be determined in accordance with national and
local policy on development affecting the historic environment, together with related
policy guidance.
Further Information
This response applies to the application currently proposed. An amended scheme may
require another consultation with us.
Guidance about national policy can be found in our ‘Managing Change in the Historic
Environment’ series available online at www.historicenvironment.scot/advice-andsupport/planning-and-guidance/legislation-and-guidance/managing-change-in-thehistoric-environment-guidance-notes/. Technical advice is available through our
Technical Conservation website at www.engineshed.org.
Please contact us if you have any questions about this response. The officer managing
this case is Steven Robb who can be contacted by phone on 0131 668 8089 or by email
on Steven.Robb@hes.scot.
Yours faithfully

Historic Environment Scotland

Historic Environment Scotland – Longmore House, Salisbury Place, Edinburgh, EH9 1SH
Scottish Charity No. SC045925
VAT No. GB 221 8680 15

Page 109

Comments for Planning Application 19/04849/FUL
Application Summary
Application Number: 19/04849/FUL
Address: Land 80 Metres South Of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Proposal: Proposed development of five new detached homes.
Case Officer: Robert McIntosh
Customer Details
Name: CC Ratho & District Community Council
Address: c/o Ratho Library School Wynd Ratho, Edinburgh
Comment Details
Commenter Type: Community Council
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:
Comment:Ratho and District Community Council has been contacted by local residents at Castle
Gogar Rigg who have expressed their concerns at the above proposals. In support of the issues
raised Ratho & District Community Council objects to the planning application.
Castle Gogar, along with its outbuildings, is an A-Listed property and the Community Council is
concerned that the proposed development will have a detrimental impact on the historic setting of
the Castle. The existing houses and apartments within Castle Gogar Rigg are part-set into the
walled garden and are largely screened from direct view of the Castle. The Council's policy on
listed buildings states that "the feeling of spaciousness of the grounds in relation to the main
building should be protected for the amenity of the property and any development should be
controlled so as not to crowd or obscure the building". The proposed five houses would do just
that and would be intrusive to the setting and privacy of the Castle.
The grounds for the Community Council's concerns about the proposals are summarised as
follows:
- The proposal represents an over-development of the site;
- The proposal would result in a loss of privacy for existing residents and would visually impact on
the setting of an A-Listed building;
- The private access road to the development, which involves 0.5mile length of single-track road
with passing places, is very narrow and has no footpath nor safety lighting facilities;
- There are reported concerns about the need for improved sewerage facilities for the whole
development;
- The impact of the proposed development on the variety of protected wildlife within the area.
The Ratho & District Community Council therefore requests that the above matters be fully
considered by the Planning Authority in consideration of this planning application and
recommends that the proposal be refused.

Page 110

Comments for Planning Application 19/04849/FUL
Application Summary
Application Number: 19/04849/FUL
Address: Land 80 Metres South Of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Proposal: Proposed development of five new detached homes.
Case Officer: Robert McIntosh
Customer Details
Name: Miss Kathy Mackin
Address: 11/4 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh Edinburgh
Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour-Residential
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:
- Councillor's Reference
Comment:Kathy Mackin
11/4 Castle Gogar Rigg
Objection to:
19/04849/FUL
11/11/2019
- The site will be over developed with the addition of the proposed 5 new houses along with the 1
house already planned and the 8 new apartments that are not yet occupied
- The above will potentially add 30-40 more residents and up to 28 more cars using the site
- The access into and from the site at the A8 Glasgow road will not cope with the increased traffic,
the entrance (which is a blind entrance) along with the tram track will become potentially
dangerous for traffic and is not adequate for the increased number of cars that will use it.
- The Bridge (B listed) and built in 1672 along with the single-track road from Glasgow Road into
Castle Gogar Rigg is not adequate for the number of residents and cars. Most residents have 2
cars, the total number of potential cars will be over 50 cars using the road and leaving / entering
the Castle Gogar site. The infrastructure will not cope with this.
- Proposed house number 3 will take away all of the existing green area within the community and
this area should be protected at all cost, it is a key aspect of the community and green areas such
as this must be protected.

Page 111

- I understand that the current pumping station that deals with all the household waste is
potentially not adequate for the current number of residents and this is before all of the apartments
have been sold / occupied.
- The pumping station connects, at a higher level, into a Scottish Water sewer that feeds towards
the Airport and there is a requirement for a Pre-Development Application Form to be completed.
There is no evidence, that I can see, that this has been submitted and Scottish Water may not
accept additional feed into their sewer.
- When we purchased our apartment 11/4 Castle Gogar we were given verbal assurance by the
developer and his sales agent (Coulters) that he was only going to develop up to 3 more
properties and we have written confirmation that an office block would never be built on the site.
The developer also stated he would never build on the "green" which is the site proposed for
house number 3.

Page 112

Comments for Planning Application 19/04849/FUL
Application Summary
Application Number: 19/04849/FUL
Address: Land 80 Metres South Of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Proposal: Proposed development of five new detached homes.
Case Officer: Robert McIntosh
Customer Details
Name: Mr Colin McLean
Address: 31 Barnton Avenue Edinburgh
Comment Details
Commenter Type: Member of Public
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:
Comment:As an Edinburgh resident I object to this proposal as damaging to the setting of a listed
building that represents an important part of Edinburgh's heritage. The plan for the IBG has been
called in due to inadequate transportation provision, questioning whether the green belt policy that
was replaced by the IBG should be further compromised without careful considerationa dn
resolution of the transport and infrastructure issues that concern the Scottish Government. The
access has space for only one vehicle without causing obstruction to the A8 traffic. Comparisons
throughout, and in the transport claims in particular, to existing office consent are inappropriate as
that development did not commence within 3 years. It is a false comparison as previous
permission and applications carried significant restrictions and in any event were withdrawn or
expired.The would also be unacceptable loss of mature trees and habitat.

Page 113

Comments for Planning Application 19/04849/FUL
Application Summary
Application Number: 19/04849/FUL
Address: Land 80 Metres South Of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Proposal: Proposed development of five new detached homes.
Case Officer: Robert McIntosh
Customer Details
Name: Mr Adam Campbell
Address: 1 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:
Comment:19/04849/FUL.
- The office block planning has expired/been withdrawn (there is no current planning consent for
offices) and this withdrawal was used as a trade-off for the last phase of development of 10 new
properties.
- The original second round approval was for 8 flats and 1 house. And there was then a further
successful application for 1 additional house, making 10 additional units in total.
- The Gogar estate has now more than doubled, from 9 to 19 properties.
- This new application cannot use the office parking trade-off for additional road usage, as that has
been used in previous applications and has therefore been forfeited for any further attempts at
planning for additional houses.
- The drive is 0.5 mile in length, single track, with 9 passing places and has a very narrow 250year-old bridge crossing the Gogar Burn.
- The current level of domestic and trade traffic is at saturation point.
- The road and bridge cannot be widened. The bridge cannot be physically widened, and the drive
cannot be widened without the removal of valuable mature trees.
- From ECC in October 2017.......quote,

Page 114

"Roads have accepted this current situation but would not wish to see any further development on
this site for road safety reasons. Roads would want to adopt the access road if this were the case.
From a planning point of view, any further development would start encroaching unacceptably on
the setting of the category A listed Castle Gogar and the adoption of the access road would not be
acceptable due to the inevitable loss of mature trees."
- From the current Planning and Design Statement....quote,
2.35. Furthermore, and at significant cost, the applicant has painstakingly restored the bridge
over the Gogar Burn, enhancing its setting and seeking to ensure that it's future condition
and maintenance is secured. This benefits the whole of the Gogar Rigg development (both
practically and in terms of its attractive restoration) whilst also providing a historic link and
clue to what lies beyond, even though the Castle is completely hidden from view.
2.35 is factually incorrect and therefore questions the accuracy of the whole application. Willie
Scott went ahead with the bridge "repair" without consultation with existing property owners, then
billed 9 owners for almost £1400 each and the payment was made to Willie Scott. We were
threatened with legal action if we didn't pay. The bridge was subject to at least 6 months of
excessive and heavy building traffic before the repair. That may be the reason for the repair being
required?
4.1 Shows new house Three, on the "Green". It dwarfs houses to the north and east and
completely removes the outlook from these 4 properties; cottages # 1-3 and house # 6 Castle
Gogar Rigg. House Three has an apex roof and is completely different to the 5 original houses
within the gated area. The 3 cottages have an apex roof but are only 1.5 stories high.
4.5 The fifth property (house Three) does not respect the house to the north, it completely
obliterates the house's view to the south. It also obliterates the west view from the 3 cottages,
demonstrated by the west elevation of proposed house Three. The west elevation plan for house
Three shows this in graphic detail. It should be noted that the elevation of house # 6 in this plan is
the south elevation of property # 6, not the west elevation. The vast majority of windows of house
# 6 face south and the proposed location of house Three will completely remove the views from
that house.
The ground floor plan for House Three shows it to be sitting on "Plot for approved offices". This is
factually incorrect. There is no approval for offices.
- The pumping station (PS) is an issue. A previous maintenance company stated that the capacity
of the PS was sufficient for the original 9 properties but could not accommodate an additional 10
properties. We are all experiencing problems with the PS currently and that is exacerbated by the
additional properties, of which only 2 of 10 are currently occupied. It can only get worse as

Page 115

properties are sold. The addition of a further 5 properties can only tip the PS into a complete
failure mode.

Page 116

Comments for Planning Application 19/04849/FUL
Application Summary
Application Number: 19/04849/FUL
Address: Land 80 Metres South Of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Proposal: Proposed development of five new detached homes.
Case Officer: Robert McIntosh
Customer Details
Name: Miss Lesley Greer
Address: 14 Maingait Medway Newcraighall
Comment Details
Commenter Type: Member of Public
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:
- Councillor's Reference
Comment:I wish to object to the above planning application. I am disappointed to read in the
various documents that were submitted that it is the opinion that because there were no objections
to Planning application 15/01051/FUL that the above application be approved. There were no
objections because there was no consultation, the 8 neighbour notifications were sent to 8 RAF
houses situated on Castle Gogar Farm Road that had been demolished. Had the residents known
about the application for two blocks of flats there would have been an opportunity to object.
The documents do not seem to take into consideration Gogar Castle which is A Listed. The castle
is A Listed for a reason and must be protected from further development. Four of the proposed
houses would have an unacceptable and adverse impact on the Castle's unique and historic
setting.
Castle Gogar is an A Listed Castle and I would wish to see it protected from further development. I
am aware of the West of Edinburgh Planning Documents and development of the IBG but none of
these would adversely affect the setting quite like this planning application.
I would wish this application rejected on the following points:
- Too many houses sharing a single track private road not enough capacity for any more vehicles
- Overdevelopment
- Loss of privacy for the A Listed Building
- Visual impact of the setting of the A Listed building

Page 117

Comments for Planning Application 19/04849/FUL
Application Summary
Application Number: 19/04849/FUL
Address: Land 80 Metres South Of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Proposal: Proposed development of five new detached homes.
Case Officer: Robert McIntosh
Customer Details
Name: Miss Ruth Lunny
Address: 2 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour-Residential
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:
Comment:I wish to record my objection to the above planning application for the following reasons:
1. Access to and road serving the development site
There are currently 19 properties on the Gogar estate, 11 of which are currently occupied. The
remainder are still for sale.
The estate is accessed via an approximately 0.5 mile single track, tree lined road, with 9 passing
places, extending over a narrow B listed bridge which crosses the Gogar Burn ("the road"). The
road is accessed directly from the main A8 Glasgow Road through a single vehicle width set of B
listed gate piers and entails crossing the tram lines.
Even with only two of the nine additional properties recently developed on the estate (ref planning
application 15/01051/FUL, only completed in the summer of this year) being currently occupied,
the road and access to it are barely fit for purpose having regard to the existing levels of domestic
and trade use which is more significant than perhaps might be appreciated, and certainly
accounted for in the present application.
Entrance from the A8 to the road leading down to the estate is relatively hidden from driver sight
and creeps up very suddenly. There is no advance signage of this junction on the A8 east bound.
Other drivers don't know it's there and appear to assume left signalling to be an expression of
intent at the Gogar roundabout, or a mistake. As such, they don't slow down and by consequence
have to break suddenly when residents and visitors turn off the main road into the estate access
road. This is an issue regardless of the time of day or what day of the week it is, but at busy times
it is particularly dangerous, made more so by the aggravation it causes to other road users.

Page 118

Given also that the gate piers at the entrance to the road can, at present, only accommodate
passage of a single vehicle at a time, it is becoming an ever frequent occurrence that traffic
travelling along the A8 has to stop suddenly whilst a vehicle seeking to access the road from the
A8 awaits clearance of a vehicle exiting from it.
The problem is even more acute for larger vehicles. I have experience of goods not being
delivered to my house because of delivery vehicles being unable to navigate the tight entrance
and I am aware of damage caused to the peirs by heavy lorries carrying construction materials
seeking to access the estate in the course of developing the most recent properties. The B listed
bridge further down the road is another sticking point for larger vehicles and construction traffic.
Pressures on the road and the A8 access to and from it in particular will inevitably be exacerbated
when all existing properties on the estate become occupied and even more so in the event of even
further development on the estate to a level that cannot be acceptable.
A road serving such a number of properties ought to be adopted and it is somewhat surprising that
permission in respect of planning application 15/01051/FUL for 8 apartments and 1 detached
house, adding to the pre-existing 9 properties, was granted permission without adoption of the
access road coming to pass or any adjustment requiring to be made, particularly given local
planning policy at that time.
On enquiry in October 2017 regarding the status of the road and its potential adoption, particularly
in the event of any future development, City of Edinburgh Council advised that the roads authority
"....would not wish to see any further development on this site for road safety reasons. Roads
would want to adopt the access road if this were the case."
CEC have also advised, however, that "from a planning point of view.....adoption of the access
road would not be acceptable due to the inevitable loss of mature trees" which is a presumed
consequence of having to widen the road in order for it to be adoptable.
If permission for the present application is to be granted, with the significantly increased number of
properties to be served by it, steps ought to be taken to ensure a suitable entrance and access
road is provided and adopted by the roads authority. If the roads authority maintain the position
that the road cannot be adopted on grounds of suitability and planning considerations are such
that steps cannot be taken to remedy this, then permission for any additional housing to be
accessed by the existing road ought to be refused.
2. Pumping station, sewerage and drainage etc
The estate as currently constituted is served by a private pumping station which pumps domestic
sewage into the main sewage system. Costs associated with the maintenance of this pump are

Page 119

shared equally between the existing occupied properties. A previous maintenance company
advised in connection with consideration of the planning application for the two apartment blocks
and house that the capacity of the pumping station was sufficient for the original 9 properties but
could not accommodate an additional 10. As stated above, development of these apartment
blocks and house (10 properties) is now complete but even with only two of these ten properties
occupied, problems with the capacity of the pumping station to cope with the additional waste are
already coming to the fore. This will only get worse as more of these properties become occupied
and the addition of a further five properties will put unbearable/unacceptable pressure on the
existing infrastructure.
I would suggest that, should planning permission for this latest proposal be approved, such
approval should be conditional on the entire drainage infrastructure serving the estate being
adopted by Scottish Water with any associated costs to achieve this being borne by the Applicant.
3. Adverse impacts on the amenity and setting of the stable block
The Applicant has failed to demonstrate that development of proposed house number 3 will have a
positive impact on its surrounding, as required under Policy Des 4, and not adversely impact on
the amenity of the existing surrounding houses. The design specification of proposed house
number 3 will have a significant adverse impact on the amenity of the stable block cottages and
existing house number 6 in relation to daylight, sunlight, privacy and immediate outlook - gardens
will be overshadowed and upper floor windows will look directly into bedrooms and bathrooms at
close proximity. The Stable Block, moreover, is a B listed building. Under Policy Env 3
"Development ....affecting the setting of a listed building will be permitted only if not detrimental to
the architectural character, appearance or historic interest of the building, or to its setting." The
design specification for proposed house number 3 is at odds with this policy.
4. Previous Advice
I wish to draw attention to advice provided previously by the planning department when asked
about the prospects of future development specifically on the site of proposed house no 3 and
those on the Paddock, that is numbers 4, 5, 6 and 8.
I was advised that the Handling Report pertaining to application 15/01051/FUL identified the main
drive and "The Paddock" as significant to the setting of Castle Gogar and "needs to be protected".
As such, "development would be inappropriate". Furthermore, part of the agreement to allow the
most recent development of apartment blocks and additional house was based on the
abandonment of planning approval previously granted for development on what is the site of
proposed house no 3 in the present application, in favour of the retention of this area as green
open space. "The loss of this space would be detrimental to the amenity of the site and the ratio of
buildings to green open space would be imbalanced." "In my opinion the site has reached
development saturation and any further houses or flats would be detrimental to the appropriate

Page 120

ratio of buildings to green open space." (Clare Macdonald, Senior Planning Officer, 14 March
2016)
5. Supplementary / miscellaneous considerations
I take this opportunity to comment on the significant inconvenience caused to and endured by
residents during the 3 year course of construction of the apartment blocks and additional house.
The noise associated with the construction works, which, for the most part, ensued 7 days per
week, starting early in the morning - around 0630 - was, at times, unbearable. Should planning
permission in respect of the present application be granted, it would be greatly appreciated if
restrictions could be put in place to ensure construction works only take place within ordinary
weekday working hours.

Page 121

Comments for Planning Application 19/04849/FUL
Application Summary
Application Number: 19/04849/FUL
Address: Land 80 Metres South Of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Proposal: Proposed development of five new detached homes.
Case Officer: Robert McIntosh
Customer Details
Name: Mr Michael Lunny
Address: 30 Ernest Wynd Motherwell
Comment Details
Commenter Type: Other
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:
Comment:I wish to record my objection to the above planning application for the following reasons:
1. Access to and road serving the development site
There are currently 19 properties on the Gogar estate, 11 of which are currently occupied. The
remainder are still for sale.
The estate is accessed via an approximately 0.5 mile single track, tree lined road, with 9 passing
places, extending over a narrow B listed bridge which crosses the Gogar Burn ("the road"). The
road is accessed directly from the main A8 Glasgow Road through a single vehicle width set of B
listed gate piers and entails crossing the tram lines.
Even with only two of the nine additional properties recently developed on the estate (ref planning
application 15/01051/FUL, only completed in the summer of this year) being currently occupied,
the road and access to it are barely fit for purpose having regard to the existing levels of domestic
and trade use which is more significant than perhaps might be appreciated, and certainly
accounted for in the present application.
Entrance from the A8 to the road leading down to the estate is relatively hidden from driver sight
and creeps up very suddenly. There is no advance signage of this junction on the A8 east bound.
Other drivers don't know it's there and appear to assume left signalling to be an expression of
intent at the Gogar roundabout, or a mistake. As such, they don't slow down and by consequence
have to break suddenly when residents and visitors turn off the main road into the estate access
road. This is an issue regardless of the time of day or what day of the week it is, but at busy times
it is particularly dangerous, made more so by the aggravation it causes to other road users.

Page 122

Given also that the gate piers at the entrance to the road can, at present, only accommodate
passage of a single vehicle at a time, it is becoming an ever frequent occurrence that traffic
travelling along the A8 has to stop suddenly whilst a vehicle seeking to access the road from the
A8 awaits clearance of a vehicle exiting from it.
The problem is even more acute for larger vehicles. I have experience of goods not being
delivered to my daughter's house because of delivery vehicles being unable to navigate the tight
entrance and I am aware of damage caused to the peirs by heavy lorries carrying construction
materials seeking to access the estate in the course of developing the most recent properties. The
B listed bridge further down the road is another sticking point for larger vehicles and construction
traffic.
Pressures on the road and the A8 access to and from it in particular will inevitably be exacerbated
when all existing properties on the estate become occupied and even more so in the event of even
further development on the estate to a level that cannot be acceptable.
A road serving such a number of properties ought to be adopted and it is somewhat surprising that
permission in respect of planning application 15/01051/FUL for 8 apartments and 1 detached
house, adding to the pre-existing 9 properties, was granted permission without adoption of the
access road coming to pass or any adjustment requiring to be made, particularly given local
planning policy at that time.
On enquiry in October 2017 regarding the status of the road and its potential adoption, particularly
in the event of any future development, City of Edinburgh Council advised that the roads authority
"....would not wish to see any further development on this site for road safety reasons. Roads
would want to adopt the access road if this were the case."
CEC have also advised, however, that "from a planning point of view.....adoption of the access
road would not be acceptable due to the inevitable loss of mature trees" which is a presumed
consequence of having to widen the road in order for it to be adoptable.
If permission for the present application is to be granted, with the significantly increased number of
properties to be served by it, steps ought to be taken to ensure a suitable entrance and access
road is provided and adopted by the roads authority. If the roads authority maintain the position
that the road cannot be adopted on grounds of suitability and planning considerations are such
that steps cannot be taken to remedy this, then permission for any additional housing to be
accessed by the existing road ought to be refused.
2. Pumping station, sewerage and drainage etc
The estate as currently constituted is served by a private pumping station which pumps domestic

Page 123

sewage into the main sewage system. Costs associated with the maintenance of this pump are
shared equally between the existing occupied properties. A previous maintenance company
advised in connection with consideration of the planning application for the two apartment blocks
and house that the capacity of the pumping station was sufficient for the original 9 properties but
could not accommodate an additional 10. As stated above, development of these apartment
blocks and house (10 properties) is now complete but even with only two of these ten properties
occupied, problems with the capacity of the pumping station to cope with the additional waste are
already coming to the fore. This will only get worse as more of these properties become occupied
and the addition of a further five properties will put unacceptable pressure on the existing
infrastructure.
I would suggest that, should planning permission for this latest proposal be approved, such
approval should be conditional on the entire drainage infrastructure serving the estate being
adopted by Scottish Water with any associated costs to achieve this being borne by the Applicant.
3. Adverse impacts on the amenity and setting of the stable block
The Applicant has failed to demonstrate that development of proposed house number 3 will have a
positive impact on its surrounding, as required under Policy Des 4, and not adversely impact on
the amenity of the existing surrounding houses. The design specification of proposed house
number 3 will have a significant adverse impact on the amenity of the stable block cottages and
existing house number 6 in relation to daylight, sunlight, privacy and immediate outlook - gardens
will be overshadowed and upper floor windows will look directly into bedrooms and bathrooms at
close proximity. The Stable Block, moreover, is a B listed building. Under Policy Env 3
"Development ....affecting the setting of a listed building will be permitted only if not detrimental to
the architectural character, appearance or historic interest of the building, or to its setting." The
design specification for proposed house number 3 is at odds with this policy.
4. Previous Advice
I wish to draw attention to advice provided previously by the planning department when asked
about the prospects of future development specifically on the site of proposed house no 3 and
those on the Paddock, that is numbers 4, 5, 6 and 8.
On enquiry made on behalf of my daughter, I was advised that the Handling Report pertaining to
application 15/01051/FUL identified the main drive and "The Paddock" as significant to the setting
of Castle Gogar and "needs to be protected". As such, "development would be inappropriate".
Furthermore, part of the agreement to allow the most recent development of apartment blocks and
additional house was based on the abandonment of planning approval previously granted for
development on what is the site of proposed house no 3 in the present application, in favour of the
retention of this area as green open space. "The loss of this space would be detrimental to the
amenity of the site and the ratio of buildings to green open space would be imbalanced." "In my

Page 124

opinion the site has reached development saturation and any further houses or flats would be
detrimental to the appropriate ratio of buildings to green open space." (Clare Macdonald, Senior
Planning Officer, 14 March 2016)
5. Supplementary / miscellaneous considerations
I take this opportunity to comment on the significant inconvenience caused to and endured by
residents during the 3 year course of construction of the apartment blocks and additional house.
The noise associated with the construction works, which, for the most part, ensued 7 days per
week, was unacceptable. Should planning permission in respect of the present application be
granted, it would be greatly appreciated if restrictions could be put in place to ensure construction
works only take place within ordinary weekday working hours.

Page 125

Comments for Planning Application 19/04849/FUL
Application Summary
Application Number: 19/04849/FUL
Address: Land 80 Metres South Of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Proposal: Proposed development of five new detached homes.
Case Officer: Robert McIntosh
Customer Details
Name: Mrs Catherine Lunny
Address: 30 Ernest Wynd Motherwell
Comment Details
Commenter Type: Other
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:
Comment:I wish to record my objection to the above planning application for the following reasons:
1. Access to and road serving the development site
There are currently 19 properties on the Gogar estate, 11 of which are currently occupied. The
remainder are still for sale.
The estate is accessed via an approximately 0.5 mile single track, tree lined road, with 9 passing
places, extending over a narrow B listed bridge which crosses the Gogar Burn ("the road"). The
road is accessed directly from the main A8 Glasgow Road through a single vehicle width set of B
listed gate piers and entails crossing the tram lines.
Even with only two of the nine additional properties recently developed on the estate (ref planning
application 15/01051/FUL, only completed in the summer of this year) being currently occupied,
the road and access to it are barely fit for purpose having regard to the existing levels of domestic
and trade use which is more significant than perhaps might be appreciated, and certainly
accounted for in the present application.
Entrance from the A8 to the road leading down to the estate is relatively hidden from driver sight
and creeps up very suddenly. There is no advance signage of this junction on the A8 east bound.
Other drivers don't know it's there and appear to assume left signalling to be an expression of
intent at the Gogar roundabout, or a mistake. As such, they don't slow down and by consequence
have to break suddenly when residents and visitors turn off the main road into the estate access
road. This is an issue regardless of the time of day or what day of the week it is, but at busy times
it is particularly dangerous, made more so by the aggravation it causes to other road users.

Page 126

Given also that the gate piers at the entrance to the road can, at present, only accommodate
passage of a single vehicle at a time, it is becoming an ever frequent occurrence that traffic
travelling along the A8 has to stop suddenly whilst a vehicle seeking to access the road from the
A8 awaits clearance of a vehicle exiting from it.
The problem is even more acute for larger vehicles. I have experience of goods not being
delivered to my daughter's house because of delivery vehicles being unable to navigate the tight
entrance and I am aware of damage caused to the peirs by heavy lorries carrying construction
materials seeking to access the estate in the course of developing the most recent properties. The
B listed bridge further down the road is another sticking point for larger vehicles and construction
traffic.
Pressures on the road and the A8 access to and from it in particular will inevitably be exacerbated
when all existing properties on the estate become occupied and even more so in the event of even
further development on the estate to a level that cannot be acceptable.
A road serving such a number of properties ought to be adopted and it is somewhat surprising that
permission in respect of planning application 15/01051/FUL for 8 apartments and 1 detached
house, adding to the pre-existing 9 properties, was granted permission without adoption of the
access road coming to pass or any adjustment requiring to be made, particularly given local
planning policy at that time.
On enquiry in October 2017 regarding the status of the road and its potential adoption, particularly
in the event of any future development, City of Edinburgh Council advised that the roads authority
"....would not wish to see any further development on this site for road safety reasons. Roads
would want to adopt the access road if this were the case."
CEC have also advised, however, that "from a planning point of view.....adoption of the access
road would not be acceptable due to the inevitable loss of mature trees" which is a presumed
consequence of having to widen the road in order for it to be adoptable.
If permission for the present application is to be granted, with the significantly increased number of
properties to be served by it, steps ought to be taken to ensure a suitable entrance and access
road is provided and adopted by the roads authority. If the roads authority maintain the position
that the road cannot be adopted on grounds of suitability and planning considerations are such
that steps cannot be taken to remedy this, then permission for any additional housing to be
accessed by the existing road ought to be refused.
2. Pumping station, sewerage and drainage etc
The estate as currently constituted is served by a private pumping station which pumps domestic

Page 127

sewage into the main sewage system. Costs associated with the maintenance of this pump are
shared equally between the existing occupied properties. A previous maintenance company
advised in connection with consideration of the planning application for the two apartment blocks
and house that the capacity of the pumping station was sufficient for the original 9 properties but
could not accommodate an additional 10. As stated above, development of these apartment
blocks and house (10 properties) is now complete but even with only two of these ten properties
occupied, problems with the capacity of the pumping station to cope with the additional waste are
already coming to the fore. This will only get worse as more of these properties become occupied
and the addition of a further five properties will put unacceptable pressure on the existing
infrastructure.
I would suggest that, should planning permission for this latest proposal be approved, such
approval should be conditional on the entire drainage infrastructure serving the estate being
adopted by Scottish Water with any associated costs to achieve this being borne by the Applicant.
3. Adverse impacts on the amenity and setting of the stable block
The Applicant has failed to demonstrate that development of proposed house number 3 will have a
positive impact on its surrounding, as required under Policy Des 4, and not adversely impact on
the amenity of the existing surrounding houses. The design specification of proposed house
number 3 will have a significant adverse impact on the amenity of the stable block cottages and
existing house number 6 in relation to daylight, sunlight, privacy and immediate outlook - gardens
will be overshadowed and upper floor windows will look directly into bedrooms and bathrooms at
close proximity. The Stable Block, moreover, is a B listed building. Under Policy Env 3
"Development ....affecting the setting of a listed building will be permitted only if not detrimental to
the architectural character, appearance or historic interest of the building, or to its setting." The
design specification for proposed house number 3 is at odds with this policy.
4. Previous Advice
I wish to draw attention to advice provided previously by the planning department when asked
about the prospects of future development specifically on the site of proposed house no 3 and
those on the Paddock, that is numbers 4, 5, 6 and 8.
Enquiry made on behalf of my daughter, advised that the Handling Report pertaining to application
15/01051/FUL identified the main drive and "The Paddock" as significant to the setting of Castle
Gogar and "needs to be protected". As such, "development would be inappropriate". Furthermore,
part of the agreement to allow the most recent development of apartment blocks and additional
house was based on the abandonment of planning approval previously granted for development
on what is the site of proposed house no 3 in the present application, in favour of the retention of
this area as green open space. "The loss of this space would be detrimental to the amenity of the
site and the ratio of buildings to green open space would be imbalanced." "In my opinion the site

Page 128

has reached development saturation and any further houses or flats would be detrimental to the
appropriate ratio of buildings to green open space." (Clare Macdonald, Senior Planning Officer, 14
March 2016)
5. Supplementary / miscellaneous considerations
I take this opportunity to comment on the significant inconvenience caused to and endured by
residents during the 3 year course of construction of the apartment blocks and additional house.
The noise associated with the construction works, which, for the most part, ensued 7 days per
week, was unacceptable. Should planning permission in respect of the present application be
granted, it would be greatly appreciated if restrictions could be put in place to ensure construction
works only take place within ordinary weekday working hours.

Page 129

Comments for Planning Application 19/04849/FUL
Application Summary
Application Number: 19/04849/FUL
Address: Land 80 Metres South Of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Proposal: Proposed development of five new detached homes.
Case Officer: Robert McIntosh
Customer Details
Name: Mr Chris Walker
Address: 9 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:
Comment:I would like to object to this application on the basis of the transportation and safety
grounds. The access is some 800m long single track with small passing places, which currently
struggle to cope with cars let alone HGVs.
The entrance, is a particularly difficult entrance for cars off a veryt busy dual carriageway and must
be incredibly dangerous for large vans or HGVs. As there are no foot paths on this road I walk my
children on the road and would be very concerned about site traffic using this road.
Regards
Chris Walker

Page 130

Comments for Planning Application 19/04849/FUL
Application Summary
Application Number: 19/04849/FUL
Address: Land 80 Metres South Of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Proposal: Proposed development of five new detached homes.
Case Officer: Robert McIntosh
Customer Details
Name: Mrs Veronika Walker
Address: 9 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:
Comment:Please register my objection to this application as there is inadequate access to this
development at this time. There are 11 properties occupied with the further 8 still to be occupied.
Cars regularly come face to face on this one car road, and is just a matter of time before there is
an accident on one of the two blind corners. My children regularly walk on the road as there are no
paths to use.
The foul water drainage system appears unable to cope with 10 properties and it is currently
broken, adding an additional 10 properties will ensure the system will no cope forget adding
another 5 properties. The narrow entrance to the drive is from a very busy dual carriageway and is
dangerous at the best of times. I would not like to think how problematic articulated lorries would
deal with this entrance.
Thanks
Veronika Walker

Page 131

Comments for Planning Application 19/04849/FUL
Application Summary
Application Number: 19/04849/FUL
Address: Land 80 Metres South Of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Proposal: Proposed development of five new detached homes.
Case Officer: Robert McIntosh
Customer Details
Name: Mr Charles Greer
Address: 37 Oxgang Road Grangemouth
Comment Details
Commenter Type: Member of Public
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:
- Councillor's Reference
Comment:Chief Planning Officer
Waverley Court
4 East Market Street
Edinburgh
EH8 8BG
Planning Application Number 19/04849/FUL
I wish to object to the above planning application on the basis that
Castle Gogar is an A Listed Castle and the scale, design and positioning of the proposed houses
would have an unacceptable and adverse impact of the setting of the listed building. I would
therefore urge you to reject this application on the grounds of :- Overdevelopment, several of the existing homes or apartments were built over two years ago
and still remain unsold.
- Serious loss of privacy.
- Unacceptably high density of homes and traffic within a small holding
- The existing sewage and drainage systems were originally designed for only several homes,
therefore it is extremely unlikely that these could handle the much increased flows and volumes.
- Visual impact of the setting of an A Listed building
- Access road not suitable for more cars as it is a single track road or lane with various blind spots
and has no pavements or lighting. The main tramline to and from the airport crosses over this lane
very close to Glasgow Road entrance/exit and has NO barriers. Any further increase in traffic here
will be a serious health and safety hazard and potentially a serious accident waiting to happen,
with the closure of the tramline being a likely outcome.
- Noise and Disturbance for all owners who have just had to endure 4 years of non stop building
work 7 days a week

Page 132

Chas Greer
Charles Greer
37 Oxgang Road
Grangemouth
FK3 9BZ

Page 133

Comments for Planning Application 19/04849/FUL
Application Summary
Application Number: 19/04849/FUL
Address: Land 80 Metres South Of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Proposal: Proposed development of five new detached homes.
Case Officer: Robert McIntosh
Customer Details
Name: Mrs Shona Greer
Address: 37 Oxgang Road Grangemouth
Comment Details
Commenter Type: Member of Public
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:
- Councillor's Reference
Comment:Chief Planning Officer
Waverley Court
4 East Market Street
Edinburgh
EH8 8BG
Planning Application Number 19/04849/FUL
I wish to object to the above planning application on the basis that
Castle Gogar is an A Listed Castle and the scale, design and positioning of the proposed houses
would have an unacceptable and adverse impact of the setting of the listed building. I would
therefore urge you to reject this application on the grounds of :- Overdevelopment, several of the existing homes or apartments were built over two years ago
and still remain unsold.
- Serious loss of privacy.
- Unacceptably high density of homes and traffic within a small holding
- The existing sewage and drainage systems were originally designed for only several homes,
therefore it is extremely unlikely that these could handle the much increased flows and volumes.
- Visual impact of the setting of an A Listed building
- Access road not suitable for more cars as it is a single track road or lane with various blind spots
and has no pavements or lighting. The main tramline to and from the airport crosses over this lane
very close to Glasgow Road entrance/exit and has NO barriers. Any further increase in traffic here
will be a serious health and safety hazard and potentially a serious accident waiting to happen,
with the closure of the tramline being a likely outcome.
- Noise and Disturbance for all owners who have just had to endure 4 years of non stop building
work 7 days a week

Page 134

Shona Greer
37 Oxgang Road
Grangemouth
FK3 9BZ

Page 135

MEMORANDUM
PLACE

To:

Robert McIntosh

Your Ref: 19/04849/FUL

Our Ref:

T/TP/DC/40463/KA

Date:

13 November 2019

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997
PLANNING APPLICATION NO: 19/04849/FUL
FOR: PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT OF FIVE NEW DETACHED HOMES.
AT: LAND 80 METRES SOUTH OF 6, CASTLE GOGAR RIGG, EDINBURGH
ROADS AUTHORITY ISSUES
No objections to the application subject to the following being included as conditions or informatives
as appropriate:
1. The applicant proposes double garage for each of the 5 proposed houses (see note b);
2. Electric vehicle charging should be incorporated in the garages;
3. 3 Cycle parking spaces to be provided(garages).
Note:
a. It is understood that this application replaces the consented 743.2sqm office development for the
site;
b. The proposed 2 parking spaces breaches the Council’s parking standards, however the proposed
is considered acceptable given the site location and existing private access which could potentially
be used for parking without control.
c. The Council’s RCC guidance requires that property/dwellings of 6 or more are served by a road,
however the presence of matured trees on along the edges of the existing private access makes it
difficult to achieve because of damage to tree roots;
d. The existing access has passing places for vehicles to pass each other and priority is given to
traffic entering from the A8, ensuring there is no queueing back onto this strategic road at the
access junction.
e. The distance between the access gate piers and the stop line at the junction is 9.8m and that
allows 1 vehicle to be accommodated at the mouth of the access without causing any obstruction
to the traffic on the A8;
f. The existing access junction has a visibility to the right of X=4.5m; Y=150m and complies with
the standards set out in the DMRB for an all-purpose trunk road with a 40mph (c.65kph) speed
limit (50kmh;70m DMRB);
g. The proposed development is predicted to generate 3 two-way vehicular trips for each of the
morning and evening peak hour periods; and this is significantly fewer than the consented office
development for the site predicted to generate 13 and 10 two-way vehicular trips for the morning
and evening peak hour period respectively.
h. At both stop lines on the private access to the tram cross over, the visibility of the tram route and
oncoming trams is very good as follows:
• North stop line (from site)
Visibility to the right – c.250metres
Visibility to the left – c.150metres
• South stop line (to the site)
Visibility to the right – c.230metres

T/TP/4442222-40463_KA

Page 136

Visibility to the left – c.250metres

•
•
•
•
•
•

TRAMS - Important Note:
The proposed site is on or adjacent to the Edinburgh Tram which is now operational. Tram power
lines are over 5m above the tracks and do not pose a danger to pedestrians and motorists at ground
level or to those living and working in the vicinity of the tramway. However, the applicant should be
informed that there are potential dangers and, prior to commencing work near the tramway, a safe
method of working must be agreed with the Council and authorisation to work obtained.
Authorisation is needed for any of the following works either on or near the tramway:
Any work where part of the site such as tools, materials, machines, suspended loads or where people
could enter the Edinburgh Tram Hazard Zone. For example, window cleaning or other work
involving the use of ladders;
Any work which could force pedestrians or road traffic to be diverted into the Edinburgh Trams
Hazard Zone;
Piling, using a crane, excavating more than 2m or erecting and dismantling scaffolding within 4m of
the Edinburgh Trams Hazard Zone;
Any excavation within 3m of any pole supporting overhead lines;
Any work on sites near the tramway where vehicles fitted with cranes, tippers or skip loaders could
come within the Edinburgh Trams Hazard Zone when the equipment is in use;
The Council has issued guidance to residents and businesses along the tram route and to other key
organisations who may require access along the line.
See our full guidance on how to get permission to work near a tram way
http://edinburghtrams.com/community/working-around-trams

T/DC/4442222-40463_KA

Page 137

Policy Consultation Response- Principle of use for residential development
Policy Officer – Lindsay Robertson
19/04849/FUL
Land 80 Metres South Of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg

The Application
5 detached dwelling houses
Assessment
The site is within the area identified for the development of an International Business Gateway as
defined in the Edinburgh Local Development Plan (LDP) and identified in NPF3. LDP policies Emp 6
and Hou 1 permit housing in this area as a component of a business-led mixed- use proposals subject
to further consideration through the masterplan process, appropriate infrastructure provision and
where consistent with the objectives of NPF3.
Table 4 of the LDP – Housing Proposals- identifies an opportunity for housing development within
the IBG, of which this site is part, where it would contribute to place making and sustainable
development objectives.
The proposed development is not part of a business-led mixed-use proposal. There are two parts to
the site. Part of the site is within an existing cluster of residential units which have been developed
over recent years. The remainder of the site forms an extension of this cluster to the east and south
east of the site. The development of this area could be complimentary to the existing cluster of
residential units and seen as completion of the existing grouping.

The LDP supports the provision of housing in sustainable locations through Policy Hou 1 which
priorities delivery of housing land supply identified in the plan and on other suitable sites in the
urban area. It identifies an element of housing as a potential use within this area. The
development of housing on this site, contained within an existing cluster of residential units would
not prejudice the opportunity to create an International Business Gateway as supported by LDP
Policy Emp 6.
The development of this site for housing is acceptable in principle subject to meeting other
relevant policies of the Development Plan. The LDP proposals map shows that a small part of the
site is within an area of importance for flood management. Policy Env 21 would therefore apply.

Page 138

Edinburgh Airport
EH12 9DN
Scotland
W: edinburghairport.com

Robert McIntosh
City of Edinburgh Council
By email
11 November 2019
Dear Robert
Your Ref:
19/04849/FUL
Development: Proposed development of five new detached homes, Castle Gogar Rigg, Edinburgh
Our Ref:
EDI2836
The proposed development has been examined from an aerodrome safeguarding perspective and does not
conflict with safeguarding criteria. We therefore have no objection to this proposal, however have made the
following observation:
Cranes
Given the nature of the proposed development it is possible that a crane may be required during its
construction. We would, therefore, draw the applicant’s attention to the requirement within the British
Standard Code of Practice for the safe use of Cranes, for crane operators to consult the aerodrome before
erecting a crane in close proximity to an aerodrome. This is explained further in Advice Note 4, ‘Cranes’
(available at http://www.aoa.org.uk/policy-campaigns/operations-safety/)
It is important that any conditions requested in this response are applied to a planning approval. Where a
Planning Authority proposes to grant permission against the advice of Edinburgh Airport, or not to attach
conditions which Edinburgh Airport has advised, it shall notify Edinburgh Airport, and the Civil Aviation
Authority and the Scottish Ministers as specified in the Safeguarding of Aerodromes Direction 2003.
Yours sincerely

Claire Brown
Edinburgh Airport Limited
0131 344 3359
safeguarding@edinburghairport.com

Page 139

Edinburgh Airport Limited, incorporated in Scotland
(Company number: SC096623). Registered office is at
Edinburgh Airport, Edinburgh EH12 9DN.
VAT registration number 123 4230 62.

By email to:
robert.mcintosh@edinburgh.gov.uk
City of Edinburgh Council
Planning and Strategy
4 Waverley Court
East Market Street
Edinburgh
EH8 8BG

Longmore House
Salisbury Place
Edinburgh
EH9 1SH
Enquiry Line: 0131-668-8716
HMConsultations@hes.scot
Our case ID: 300041070
Your ref: 19/04849/FUL
06 November 2019

Dear Sir/Madam
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland)
Regulations 2013
Land 80 Metres South Of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh - Proposed development of five
new detached homes.
Thank you for your consultation which we received on 24 October 2019. We have
assessed it for our historic environment interests and consider that the proposals have
the potential to affect the following:
Ref
LB27092

Name
Designation Type
GLASGOW ROAD,
Listed Building
CASTLE GOGAR WITH
COTTAGE, GATE HOUSE,
STABLES,
OUTBUILDINGS, GATE
AND GATEPIERS

You should also seek advice from your archaeology and conservation service for matters
including unscheduled archaeology and category B and C-listed buildings.
Our Advice
Castle Gogar is an L-plan tower house dating from 1625 with later alterations. The
building is Category A listed, with the listing extending to include the adjacent estate
structures, including walling and stable cottages. Other separately listed structures on the
estate include a seventeenth century bridge, the gatehouse and the eighteenth century
gatepiers on the Glasgow Road (the elaborate gates appear to have disappeared before
2008 – without LBC?).
Historic Environment Scotland – Longmore House, Salisbury Place, Edinburgh, EH9 1SH
Scottish Charity No. SC045925
VAT No. GB 221 8680 15

Page 140

We note the findings of the Heritage Report. We agree that the loss of green space
around Castle Gogar has had a detrimental impact on its setting, and that the setting has
been compromised by more recent development. Some of this development (5 houses
and a proposed office range in 2004) was part of an enabling scheme which has seen
the repair/reuse of the Castle, and repair and conversion of the stable cottages. This
enabling development was approved because your Council considered it was ‘essential
to secure the survival of Gogar House’.
The new (2004) housing is largely to the west and south west of Castle Gogar in the
location of the former walled garden and ancillary buildings of the estate including the
stable cottages. There has been subsequent infilling and additional development in 2015
and 2017; (15/01051/FUL and 17/00202/FUL).
The green space in the centre of the site had permission (2004) for the erection of an
office development which has not proceeded. However, the 2015 application
(15/01051/FUL) for two new apartment blocks and a house is noted in the Report of
Handling as being ‘in lieu of the proposed office block’ with the application’s intention to
preserve this space as a ‘village green’ for the development.
Both the 2015 and 2017 Reports of Handling note the setting of the Castle now consists
of the ‘main tree-lined drive and the green open space enclosed by mature trees to the
south of the castle’ (the Paddock).
HES Managing Change guidance notes that setting can be important to the cultural
significance of an historic asset if it contributes to the way in which the historic structure
or place is “understood, appreciated and experienced”. We agree with your Council’s
assessment that the surviving setting of Castle Gogar consists of the southern tree-lined
approach to the building and the open ground of the tree-lined paddock. The historical
approach to the Castle includes the listed gatepiers, adjacent lodge and hog-back bridge.
This adds to the landscape context and sense of place of Castle Gogar. Although new
development is visible to the west on the approach to the castle, it has not yet
overwhelmed the setting here.
We consider the proposed new houses would detrimentally impact on the approach and
wider setting of Category A listed Castle Gogar. The still open semi-rural approach to the
castle would be significantly diminished, as would the tree-lined paddock area of open
ground.
As above, although consent for an office development in the centre of the site was given
in 2004, the decision to agree additional housing in 2015 was taken on the assumption
that this area would not now be built upon. Our decision not to comment at this stage
was also based on the balance of development on the site. We therefore consider the
Historic Environment Scotland – Longmore House, Salisbury Place, Edinburgh, EH9 1SH
Scottish Charity No. SC045925
VAT No. GB 221 8680 15

Page 141

‘village green’ should ideally remain open ground, with the consequent benefit this gives
to the setting of the stable range (included within the A listing).
In conclusion, new development was initially allowed on the Castle Gogar site specifically
to allow the repair and restoration of A listed buildings. Later applications have infilled
adjacent ground and appear to have ‘swapped’ development sites.
We consider the current proposals would have a detrimental impact on the setting and
historical significance of Category A listed Castle Gogar (and the stable cottages
contained within its listing) and that they should be resisted.
Planning authorities are expected to treat our comments as a material consideration, and
this advice should be taken into account in your decision making. Our view is that the
proposals do not raise historic environment issues of national significance and therefore
we do not object. However, our decision not to object should not be taken as our support
for the proposals. This application should be determined in accordance with national and
local policy on development affecting the historic environment, together with related
policy guidance.
Further Information
This response applies to the application currently proposed. An amended scheme may
require another consultation with us.
Guidance about national policy can be found in our ‘Managing Change in the Historic
Environment’ series available online at www.historicenvironment.scot/advice-andsupport/planning-and-guidance/legislation-and-guidance/managing-change-in-thehistoric-environment-guidance-notes/. Technical advice is available through our
Technical Conservation website at www.engineshed.org.
Please contact us if you have any questions about this response. The officer managing
this case is Steven Robb who can be contacted by phone on 0131 668 8089 or by email
on Steven.Robb@hes.scot.
Yours faithfully

Historic Environment Scotland

Historic Environment Scotland – Longmore House, Salisbury Place, Edinburgh, EH9 1SH
Scottish Charity No. SC045925
VAT No. GB 221 8680 15

Page 142

To: Robert McIntosh
From: Colin Brown, Environmental Protection, Place
Date: 4/11/19
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT OF FIVE NEW DETACHED HOMES. AT
LAND 80 METRES SOUTH OF 6 CASTLE GOGAR RIGG, EDINBURGH
(19/04849/FUL)
Environmental Protection has no objections to this proposed development.
Informative
No development should take place until a scheme for protecting all bedrooms
and living rooms of the residential development against aircraft noise has been
devised. The scheme should be designed in accordance with BS8233:2014
'Guidance on sound insulation and noise reduction for buildings' to attain the
following internal noise levels:
Bedrooms - 30dB LAeq, T and 45dB LAfmax
Living Rooms - 35 dB LAeq, D
T - Night-time 8 hours between 2300 - 0700
D - Daytime 16 hours between 0700 – 2300

The application proposes the construction of five detached residential properties at
Castle Gogar Rigg. To the north and west of the site are existing residential dwellings,
including Castle Gogar. To the east and west is open ground with the Edinburgh Tram
line over 100m to the south.
This proposed development site will see residential dwellings placed in close
proximity to Edinburgh Airport’s second runway. Although this runway is rarely used
and the site falls outwith the airport’s recognised noise contours, an informative is
recommended to protect the amenity of residents in particular from any future use of
the second runway.
Should you wish to discuss the above, please do not hesitate to contact me on 0131 469
5802.

Page 143

1st November 2019
Edinburgh City Council
Waverly Court 4 East Market Street
Edinburgh
EH8 8BG
Development Operations
The Bridge
Buchanan Gate Business Park
Cumbernauld Road
Stepps
Glasgow
G33 6FB
Development Operations
Freephone Number - 0800 3890379

E-Mail - DevelopmentOperations@scottishwater.co.uk
www.scottishwater.co.uk

Dear Local Planner
EH12 Edinburgh 6 Castle Gogar Rigg 80M South
PLANNING APPLICATION NUMBER: 19/04849/FUL
OUR REFERENCE: 784399
PROPOSAL: Proposed development of five new detached homes
Please quote our reference in all future correspondence

Scottish Water has no objection to this planning application; however, the applicant should
be aware that this does not confirm that the proposed development can currently be serviced
and would advise the following:
Water


Foul


There is currently sufficient capacity in the Marchbank Water Treatment Works.
However, please note that further investigations may be required to be carried out
once a formal application has been submitted to us.
There is currently sufficient capacity in the Edinburgh PFI Waste Water Treatment
Works. However, please note that further investigations may be required to be
carried out once a formal application has been submitted to us.

The applicant should be aware that we are unable to reserve capacity at our water
and/or waste water treatment works for their proposed development. Once a formal
connection application is submitted to Scottish Water after full planning permission
has been granted, we will review the availability of capacity at that time and advise the
applicant accordingly.
Surface Water

Page 144

For reasons of sustainability and to protect our customers from potential future sewer
flooding, Scottish Water will not accept any surface water connections into our combined
sewer system.
There may be limited exceptional circumstances where we would allow such a connection
for brownfield sites only, however this will require significant justification taking account of
various factors including legal, physical, and technical challenges. However it may still be
deemed that a combined connection will not be accepted. Greenfield sites will not be
considered and a connection to the combined network will be refused.
In order to avoid costs and delays where a surface water discharge to our combined sewer
system is proposed, the developer should contact Scottish Water at the earliest opportunity
with strong evidence to support the intended drainage plan prior to making a connection
request. We will assess this evidence in a robust manner and provide a decision that reflects
the best option from environmental and customer perspectives.
General notes:


Scottish Water asset plans can be obtained from our appointed asset plan
providers:
Site Investigation Services (UK) Ltd
Tel: 0333 123 1223
Email: sw@sisplan.co.uk
www.sisplan.co.uk



Scottish Water’s current minimum level of service for water pressure is 1.0 bar or
10m head at the customer’s boundary internal outlet. Any property which cannot be
adequately serviced from the available pressure may require private pumping
arrangements to be installed, subject to compliance with Water Byelaws. If the
developer wishes to enquire about Scottish Water’s procedure for checking the water
pressure in the area then they should write to the Customer Connections department
at the above address.



If the connection to the public sewer and/or water main requires to be laid through
land out-with public ownership, the developer must provide evidence of formal
approval from the affected landowner(s) by way of a deed of servitude.



Scottish Water may only vest new water or waste water infrastructure which is to be
laid through land out with public ownership where a Deed of Servitude has been
obtained in our favour by the developer.



The developer should also be aware that Scottish Water requires land title to the area
of land where a pumping station and/or SUDS proposed to vest in Scottish Water is
constructed.



Please find all of our application forms on our website at the following link
https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/Business-and-Developers/Connecting-to-OurNetwork

Page 145

Next Steps:


Single Property/Less than 10 dwellings
For developments of less than 10 domestic dwellings (or non-domestic equivalent)
we will require a formal technical application to be submitted directly to Scottish
Water or via the chosen Licensed Provider if non domestic, once full planning
permission has been granted. Please note in some instances we will require a PreDevelopment Enquiry Form to be submitted (for example rural location which are
deemed to have a significant impact on our infrastructure) however we will make you
aware of this if required.



10 or more domestic dwellings:
For developments of 10 or more domestic dwellings (or non-domestic equivalent) we
require a Pre-Development Enquiry (PDE) Form to be submitted directly to Scottish
Water prior to any formal Technical Application being submitted. This will allow us to
fully appraise the proposals.
Where it is confirmed through the PDE process that mitigation works are necessary
to support a development, the cost of these works is to be met by the developer,
which Scottish Water can contribute towards through Reasonable Cost Contribution
regulations.



Non Domestic/Commercial Property:
Since the introduction of the Water Services (Scotland) Act 2005 in April 2008 the
water industry in Scotland has opened up to market competition for non-domestic
customers. All Non-domestic Household customers now require a Licensed Provider
to act on their behalf for new water and waste water connections. Further details can
be obtained at www.scotlandontap.gov.uk



Trade Effluent Discharge from Non Dom Property:
Certain discharges from non-domestic premises may constitute a trade effluent in
terms of the Sewerage (Scotland) Act 1968. Trade effluent arises from activities
including; manufacturing, production and engineering; vehicle, plant and equipment
washing, waste and leachate management. It covers both large and small premises,
including activities such as car washing and launderettes. Activities not covered
include hotels, caravan sites or restaurants.
If you are in any doubt as to whether or not the discharge from your premises is likely
to be considered to be trade effluent, please contact us on 0800 778 0778 or email
TEQ@scottishwater.co.uk using the subject "Is this Trade Effluent?". Discharges
that are deemed to be trade effluent need to apply separately for permission to
discharge to the sewerage system. The forms and application guidance notes can
be found using the following link https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/business/ourservices/compliance/trade-effluent/trade-effluent-documents/trade-effluent-noticeform-h

Page 146

Trade effluent must never be discharged into surface water drainage systems as
these are solely for draining rainfall run off.
For food services establishments, Scottish Water recommends a suitably sized
grease trap is fitted within the food preparation areas so the development complies
with Standard 3.7 a) of the Building Standards Technical Handbook and for best
management and housekeeping practices to be followed which prevent food waste,
fat oil and grease from being disposed into sinks and drains.
The Waste (Scotland) Regulations which require all non-rural food businesses,
producing more than 50kg of food waste per week, to segregate that waste for
separate collection. The regulations also ban the use of food waste disposal units
that dispose of food waste to the public sewer. Further information can be found at
www.resourceefficientscotland.com

If the applicant requires any further assistance or information, please contact our
Development Operations Central Support Team on 0800 389 0379 or at
planningconsultations@scottishwater.co.uk
Yours sincerely
Angela Allison
Angela.Allison@scottishwater.co.uk

Page 147

COMMUNITIES AND FAMILIES - CONSULTATION RESPONSE
Location
Proposal
Application number
Assessment date

Land 80 Metres South Of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
Proposed development of five new detached homes.
19/04849/FUL
31.10.19

The Council has assessed the impact of the growth set out in the LDP through an Education Appraisal
(August 2018), taking account of school roll projections. To do this, an assumption has been made as
to the amount of new housing development which will come forward (‘housing output’). This takes
account of new housing sites allocated in the LDP and other land within the urban area.
In areas where additional infrastructure will be required to accommodate the cumulative number of
additional pupils, education infrastructure ‘actions’ have been identified. The infrastructure
requirements and estimated delivery dates are set out in the Council’s Action Programme (January
2019).
Residential development is required to contribute towards the cost of delivering these education
infrastructure actions to ensure that the cumulative impact of development can be mitigated. In
order that the total delivery cost is shared proportionally and fairly between developments,
Education Contribution Zones have been identified and ‘per house’ and ‘per flat’ contribution rates
established. These are set out in the finalised Supplementary Guidance on ‘Developer Contributions
and Infrastructure Delivery’ (August 2018).

Assessment and Contribution Requirements
Assessment based on:
5 Houses
This site falls within Sub-Area W-1 of the ‘?West Edinburgh Education Contribution Zone’.
The Council has assessed the impact of the proposed development on the identified education
infrastructure actions and current delivery programme.
The education infrastructure actions that are identified are appropriate to mitigate the cumulative
impact of development that would be anticipated if this proposal progressed.
The proposed development is therefore required to make a contribution towards the delivery of
these actions based on the established ‘per house’ and ‘per flat’ rates for the appropriate part of the
Zone.
If the appropriate infrastructure and land contribution is provided by the developer, as set out
below, Communities and Families does not object to the application.
Total infrastructure contribution required:

£80,930

Note - all infrastructure contributions shall be index linked based on the increase in the BCIS Forecast All-in Tender Price
Index from Q4 2017 to the date of payment.

Total land contribution required:

£10,210

Page 148

Note – no indexation to be applied to land contribution.

Page 149

Our ref:
Your ref:

PCS/168950
19/04849/FUL

If telephoning ask for:

Robert McIntosh
City of Edinburgh Council
City Development
Waverley Court
4 East Market Street
Edinburgh
EH8 8BG

Alasdair Milne
16 December 2019

By email only to: planning@edinburgh.gov.uk

Dear Sir

Planning application: 19/04849/FUL
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT OF FIVE NEW DETACHED HOMES
LAND 80 METRES SOUTH OF 6, CASTLE GOGAR RIGG, EDINBURGH
Thank you for your consultation email which SEPA received on 28 November 2019.

Advice for the planning authority
We object to this planning application on the grounds of a lack of information relating to flood risk.
We will review this objection if the issues detailed in Section 1 below are adequately addressed.

1.

Flood Risk

1.1

We object to the proposed development on the grounds that it may place buildings and
persons at flood risk contrary to Scottish Planning Policy.

1.2

In the event that the planning authority proposes to grant planning permission contrary to
this advice on flood risk, the Town and Country Planning (Notification of Applications)
(Scotland) Direction 2009 provides criteria for the referral to the Scottish Ministers of such
cases. You may therefore wish to consider if this proposal falls within the scope of this
Direction.

Technical Report
1.3

Review of the SEPA Flood Map (Scotland) 200-year flood outline (i.e. the flood with a 0.5%
chance of occurring in any single year) indicates that this area lies within this envelope and
as such is potentially at risk of fluvial flooding from the Gogar Burn.

1.4

Scottish Planning Policy paragraph 255 states that “The planning system should promote
flood avoidance by safeguarding flood storage and conveying capacity, and locating
development away from functional flood plains and medium to high risk areas”.

Page 150

2

1.5

According to the provided drawing (PL L(90)03, Rev. T), house three is outwith the functional
floodplain, houses five and four are partially within the functional floodplain, and six and
eight are almost fully within the functional floodplain. We require a flood risk assessment
(FRA) to demonstrate that all of the developments are located outwith the functional
floodplain, in line with Scottish Planning Policy. However, this may only serve to confirm
that some parts of the application site are unsuitable for development.

1.6

The Gogar Burn is culverted past Castle Gogar on the north eastern side of the site. Any
FRA undertaken should consider the potential for and impact of blockage at this culvert.

1.7

For your information SEPA maintain and operate a flow monitoring station on the Gogar
Burn close by at Turnhouse, NGR NT 161 733. A number of FRA’s have been undertaken
on the Gogar Burn in the past and the City of Edinburgh Council may hold additional helpful
information that can be included in a site specific FRA for the current planning application.

Summary of Technical Points
1.8

In summary we wish to receive clarification on the following points before we would
consider removing our objection to the proposed development:
•

A flood risk assessment showing that the development accords with Scottish Planning
Policy.

Caveats & Additional Information for Applicant
1.9

The SEPA Flood Maps have been produced following a consistent, nationally-applied
methodology for catchment areas equal to or greater than 3km2 using a Digital Terrain
Model (DTM) to define river corridors and low-lying coastal land. The maps are indicative
and designed to be used as a strategic tool to assess flood risk at the community level and
to support planning policy and flood risk management in Scotland. For further information
please visit http://www.sepa.org.uk/environment/water/flooding/flood-maps/

1.10

We refer the applicant to the document entitled: “Technical Flood Risk Guidance for
Stakeholders”. This document provides generic requirements for undertaking Flood Risk
Assessments and can be downloaded from
http://www.sepa.org.uk/environment/land/planning/guidance-and-advice-notes/.
Please note that this document should be read in conjunction Policy 41 (Part 2).

1.11

Our Flood Risk Assessment checklist should be completed and attached within the front
cover of any flood risk assessments issued in support of a development proposal which
may be at risk of flooding. The document will take only a few minutes to complete and will
assist our review process. It can be downloaded from
http://www.sepa.org.uk/media/159170/flood-risk-assessment-checklist.xls.

1.12

Please note that we are reliant on the accuracy and completeness of any information
supplied by the applicant in undertaking our review, and can take no responsibility for
incorrect data or interpretation made by the authors.

1.13

The advice contained in this letter is supplied to you by SEPA in terms of Section 72 (1) of
the Flood Risk Management (Scotland) Act 2009 on the basis of information held by SEPA
as at the date hereof. It is intended as advice solely to the City of Edinburgh Council as
Planning Authority in terms of the said Section 72 (1). Our briefing note entitled: “Flood

Page 151

3

Risk Management (Scotland) Act 2009: Flood risk advice to planning authorities” outlines
the transitional changes to the basis of our advice in line with the phases of this legislation
and can be downloaded from http://www.sepa.org.uk/environment/land/planning/guidanceand-advice-notes/.

Regulatory advice for the applicant
2.

Regulatory requirements

2.1

Authorisation is required under The Water Environment (Controlled Activities) (Scotland)
Regulations 2011 (CAR) to carry out engineering works in or in the vicinity of inland surface
waters (other than groundwater) or wetlands. Inland water means all standing or flowing
water on the surface of the land (e.g. rivers, lochs, canals, reservoirs).

2.2

Management of surplus peat or soils may require an exemption under The Waste
Management Licensing (Scotland) Regulations 2011. Proposed crushing or screening will
require a permit under The Pollution Prevention and Control (Scotland) Regulations 2012.
Consider if other environmental licences may be required for any installations or processes.

2.3

A Controlled Activities Regulations (CAR) construction site licence will be required for
management of surface water run-off from a construction site, including access tracks,
which:
•
•
•

is more than 4 hectares,
is in excess of 5km, or
includes an area of more than 1 hectare or length of more than 500m on ground with a
slope in excess of 25˚

See SEPA’s Sector Specific Guidance: Construction Sites (WAT-SG-75) for details. Site
design may be affected by pollution prevention requirements and hence we strongly
encourage the applicant to engage in pre-CAR application discussions with a member of
the regulatory services team in your local SEPA office.
2.4

Below these thresholds you will need to comply with CAR General Binding Rule 10 which
requires, amongst other things, that all reasonable steps must be taken to ensure that the
discharge does not result in pollution of the water environment. The detail of how this is
achieved may be required through a planning condition.

2.5

Details of regulatory requirements and good practice advice for the applicant can be found
on the Regulations section of our website. If you are unable to find the advice you need for
a specific regulatory matter, please contact a member of the regulatory services team in
your local SEPA office at:
Silvan House, 231 Corstorphine Road, Edinburgh, EH12 7AT, tel 0131 449 7296

If you have any queries relating to this letter, please contact me by telephone on 01786 452537 or
e-mail at planning.se@sepa.org.uk
Yours faithfully

Alasdair Milne
Senior Planning Officer

Page 152

4

Planning Service
ECopy to: t
Disclaimer
This advice is given without prejudice to any decision made on elements of the proposal regulated by us, as
such a decision may take into account factors not considered at this time. We prefer all the technical
information required for any SEPA consents to be submitted at the same time as the planning or similar
application. However, we consider it to be at the applicant's commercial risk if any significant changes
required during the regulatory stage necessitate a further planning application or similar application and/or
neighbour notification or advertising. We have relied on the accuracy and completeness of the information
supplied to us in providing the above advice and can take no responsibility for incorrect data or
interpretation, or omissions, in such information. If we have not referred to a particular issue in our response,
it should not be assumed that there is no impact associated with that issue. For planning applications, if you
did not specifically request advice on flood risk, then advice will not have been provided on this
issue. Further information on our consultation arrangements generally can be found on our website planning
pages.

Page 153

JM PLANNING SERVICES
31 Kilburn Wood Drive, Roslin Midlothian EH25 9AA

My Ref: PL/MM/SG/CGRE/85
Chief Planning Officer
PLACE
Waverley Court
4 East Market Street
Edinburgh
EH8 8BG
22nd November 2019
Dear Sir/Madam,
19/04849/FUL - Proposed development of five new detached homes on Land 80 Metres South
of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh
I am submitting this letter on behalf of my clients, Mr Malcolm Mills and Ms Sheevaun Gallagher, who
own the property at No 3. Castle Gogar Rigg, Edinburgh which is one of 3 terraced cottages which
sits at the northern end of the row in a former stables building. The building was partly converted to
residential (part of it was already a cottage – No. 1 at the opposite end of the building to No. 3) as part
of the original development at Castle Gogar Rigg.
The letter sets out their detailed objections to the above planning application submitted by Quarry
Investments and which has been submitted within the notification period for comments which expires
on 22nd November 2019.
1.0
Context
The former stables is a Category A Listed Building which, among other features, is included as part of
the Castle listing (LB27092). This is an important factor when considering the development of land
within the immediate vicinity of my client’s property and the potential impact on its setting as a
Category A listed building, since it is located immediately to the east of the site for a new dwelling
which forms part of the current planning application.
2.0
Objections
My clients’ objections mainly focus on the proposed house on the site opposite their own property.
However, they also have significant concerns over the wider proposals for 4 other houses on the land
outwith the existing small gated Castle Gogar Rigg community.
By way of general comment initially, the planning history demonstrates that development at this
location has been incremental and piecemeal which contradicts the applicant’s suggestion that the
overall scale of development now being envisaged at Castle Gogar Rigg had been planned all along
from the outset, as hinted in the Planning and Design Statement which states that “the site now has
an unfinished feel to it” and that this current application is regarded as the “final phase of
development” representing the “logical conclusion of development along the southern boundary of the
site.”
My clients strongly disagree with these statements and believe that the application proposals
represents “development creep” and a speculative attempt to increase development at a location that
is not suitable for new development, for a number of reasons as set out in this letter.

E-Mail: johnmaccallum@jmplanningservices.co.uk

Page 154

Mobile: 07780465240

Castle Gogar Rigg, Edinburgh

2.1
Planning History
The planning history for the development at this location is extensive and complex, dating back to
2004 (Application Ref 04/02302/FUL – the restoration of Castle Gogar, erection of 5 new houses,
conversion of stables building to 2 houses and erection of an office building). Despite reviewing the
Council’s planning portal, it has been difficult to trace all the relevant documentation for the previous
applications. In particular, there do not appear to be any the drawings publicly available on the
Council’s planning portal of the office building associated with Application Ref 04/02302/FUL other
than a Perspective Drawing showing the proposed layout for the office building, 5 houses and
converted stables building. There is, however, a subsequent variation application which provides
these details.
It has been possible to obtain a good understanding from the Reports of Handling for the 2004
application and the Reports of Handling and various other documents associated with the further
applications in 2015 (Ref 15/01051/FUL – 2 Apartment Blocks (8 apartments) and 1 House) and 2017
(Ref 17/00202/FUL – Erection of 1 house). Application Ref 14/04109/FUL for the Erection of 2
apartment blocks and 1 'Gatehouse' property, with associated access, parking, garden ground and
landscaping on Land 80 Metres South of 6 Castle Gogar Rigg Edinburgh which was subsequently
withdrawn, is also of relevance. Therefore, the objections contained in this letter are, to a certain
degree, relied upon by that planning history.
It is noted that the 2014 application was submitted on the basis of additional residential development
“in lieu of” the originally consented office building. That application was withdrawn and an alternative
but similar scheme still proposing housing to replace the office building was submitted under the
terms of the 2015 application which also related to the land to the south west of the original consented
development but also included another area of “open space” between 1 apartment block and a house
originally approved under the 2004 consent.
Information submitted in support of that 2015 application confirmed that it was a replacement for
Application 14/04109/FUL. In the absence of any partial revoking of the original 2004 consent to
prevent the office building from being implemented in the future, it would appear that the 2004
consent remains extant in that regard. Nevertheless, the idea promoted in the 2014 application and
inferred by the replacement 2015 application that the consented office site would be a village green is
a matter which remains significant in the consideration of the suitability of that location for
development at all, particularly since it was the developer’s own promotion of the idea to replace the
office with housing elsewhere in the development:“Further, the relocation of development footprint from the “green” at the centre of the Rigg site
to the southern area diminishes further impact on the setting of the Castle and the established
houses by a more sympathetic and appropriate setting of further development to the southern
part of the Rigg site.” (Ref. Planning and Design Statement, October 2014)
The 2017 application was submitted on the basis as a substitute house for one of the houses
consented in 2015 (on a plot to the east of one of the apartment blocks) and relocated to the area
previously identified as “open space”. However, the 2015 consent had already been implemented and
the new house was approved with no partial revoking of the 2015 consent, resulting in a further 1
additional house and the loss of the “open space” between the previously consented buildings.

Page 155

Castle Gogar Rigg, Edinburgh

Consequently, the new build aspect of the development has incrementally been allowed to increase in
size from 5 houses when originally approved to 15 residential units comprising 7 houses and 8
apartments (in 2 building blocks) with the Council’s Planners acceding to the additional requests for
development each time in 2015 and 2017. The total amounts to 17 residential units when taking into
account the converted stables building to 2 houses.
My clients consider that Castle Gogar Rigg has already reached its maximum capacity and that this
further proposal for new development should be resisted.
2.2
Consultation
My clients are encouraged to note from the applicant’s own supporting Planning and Design
Statement, that Council Planning Officials are disinclined to accept any further development at this
location based on early pre-application discussions, which suggests that the Council considers that
Castle Gogar Rigg has reached its maximum level of development and that, possibly, further
development would be an overdevelopment at the location, as well as having potential further
detrimental and adverse impacts on the setting of the Listed Buildings.
The section of the Planning and Design Statement entitled “Pre-application Engagement” at
paragraphs 2.37 to 2.40 has sought to highlight an “inclusive and proactive approach” to engagement
with the Council. My clients would wish it to be noted that no such approach has been adopted by the
developer with them or with other residents, either as part of these proposals or with the other 2
previous application proposals, even on an informal and advisory basis. This is despite the existence
of an established and active Residents Committee of which the developer was and is a member.
This demonstrates the developer’s complete lack of regard for the interests of those who will be most
affected by new development proposed around them.
2. 3
Site for one House (House Type 3)
2.3.1 The Principle of Development
It is evident that the 5 houses which were approved under the 2004 consent have all been
implemented, as well as the stables conversion to 2 cottages, but the office building has never been
implemented. The 2015 application (Ref 15/01051/FUL) was submitted on the basis that the proposed
8 apartments (within 2 building blocks) and 1 detached dwelling would be a replacement for this
unimplemented office development. The Planning and Design Statement accompanying the 2015
application confirms that “Application 14/04109/FUL has subsequently been withdrawn to be replaced
by this application.” It is significant to note that the Planning Case Officer maintained that this
replacement 2015 application was still proposing new housing in place of the office building, as
confirmed in the Report of Handling for the 2015 application which states:“The current proposals are in lieu of the office development as it is in the existing residents'
interests to preserve this area as a 'village green'.”
It was accepted then that the significant level of additional housing (9 new residential properties)
would replace the previously proposed office development and that this further development would
take place on land further away from the existing Castle Gogar and stables cottage properties, all of
which are Category A Listed Buildings. As noted in the planning history earlier, the preservation of a
village green type of open space was to help reinstate some of the setting for these listed properties
which would have been completely lost had the office development been implemented as part of the
2004 consented scheme.

Page 156

Castle Gogar Rigg, Edinburgh

My clients strongly oppose the proposal to develop on this land as they (along with other existing
residents) believe the opportunity to build on that land has been lost based on subsequent proposals
to omit the office development and the intention to create a village green. The consenting in 2015 of
housing development on land further away with less impact on the listed buildings, in place of the
previously consented office building, with that land being retained as open space, as was intended, is
a material planning consideration for the current application. Consequently, my clients believe this
should have considerable weight when assessing this proposal which re-introduces the prospect of
developing this site again.
2.3.2 Siting and Design of House Type 3
The plans for proposed house type 3 illustrate a style of house which is 2 storey in height and with a
pitched roof, similar to what would be found in any modern urban or suburban development. It also
has a single storey element to it as an off-shoot, creating an odd L-shape at an offset angle. The roof
ridge of the 2 storey element extends to a similar height as the property to the north (No. 6 Castle
Gogar Rigg) and the single storey roof ridge is comparable with the roof ridge height of the converted
stables building to the east (Nos. 1 to 3 Castle Gogar Rigg).
In addition to my clients’ objection to the principle of a house at this location, for the reasons stated
earlier, they also object to the style and design of the house type and to its siting on the plot.
Firstly, in terms of its style and design, the shape of the building footprint with a combination of single
storey and 2 storey elements, both with pitched roofs, would introduce a wholly incongruous and alien
building relative to its surroundings, both in respect of the Category A Listed Buildings of the
converted Stable Buildings (Nos. 1 to 3 Castle Gogar Rigg) and the new build houses, which reflect a
more modern and contemporary design approach consistent throughout.
Secondly, the proposed house is to be sited close to the northern and eastern boundaries of the plot,
close to the properties at Nos. 1 to 3 and No. 6 Castle Gogar Rigg. The properties at Nos. 1 to 3 have
their garden to the front (west) and their main outlook is to the west, based on the internal layout. No.
2 and No. 3 will be particular impacted on as both the single storey and the 2 storey part of the
proposed house will be directly across from them respectively, giving a sense of enclosure rather than
a more open outlook that they presently enjoy. The positioning of the proposed house, combined with
the design, scale and massing of the building will therefore create an overbearing and dominating
appearance on these immediately adjacent properties, in particular, dwarfing the listed converted
stables buildings. This will have a significant adverse and detrimental impact on the setting of this
Category A Listed Building.
In the absence of the approved drawings being available for the office building, as alluded to earlier, it
has not been possible to undertake a detailed comparison exercise with the proposed house
proposal. However, the site perspective drawing, if depicting a correct location for the office building,
clearly shows the office building being sited further away from the closest buildings to the north and
east, as described above. This reflects a better relationship with these buildings and demonstrates
greater respect for the setting of the Category A Listed stables building in particular.
Any new development at this location, if it was ever to be deemed acceptable again by the Council,
should relate to the more modern part of the development and should therefore only be sited further
to the west on its plot, as per the office building originally accepted. The design, scale and massing of
any building should also reflect the modern style of housing in that part of the development. However,

Page 157

Castle Gogar Rigg, Edinburgh

the expectation by my clients and the other residents at Castle Gogar Rigg was previously and still is
for this area to be a village green and the developer should be required to honour this since it was
part of the 2015 application to justify the further residential development elsewhere in the
development in place of the office building.
It is considered therefore that the proposed house as submitted is contrary to Policy Env 3 Listed
Buildings - Setting in the adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan 2016.
2.3.3. Site for 4 houses
It is considered important to draw reference to the Council’s Planner’s reports for the 2015 and 2017
applications, in which it is stated: “the important part of the curtilage can now be defined as the
main tree-lined drive and the green open space enclosed by mature trees to the south of the
Castle.” This area represents the main part of the current application site where it is proposed to
erect 4 new houses. The Heritage Impact Assessment which supports the application appraises the
potential impact on the cultural assets that exist in the vicinity of the site, of which it is noted that there
are many, in addition to the Castle itself.
The conclusion of the assessment (paragraph 6.7) appears to struggle with the suitability of the
development, admitting that it would have a detrimental impact on the setting of the Category A Listed
Castle and the Bridge. The mitigation used to allow the development to be considered in a more
favourable light appears apologetic and the detrimental impact of past development should not be
used to excuse further unacceptable and inappropriately sited additional development at this location.
My clients would argue initially that the housing proposed on these 4 plots represents new
development outwith the established existing gated residential community. This in itself demonstrates
that the location is not a logical and natural location for further development, in addition to their belief
that this area was NOT always regarded suitable for a “final phase of development” and was NOT
part of a long term plan from the outset by the developer.
More importantly, they contend that the landscaped grounds either side of the driveway and the area
to the south of Castle Gogar containing the identified listed structures remain the important setting for
the Castle itself and these other listed buildings and help to define what remains of the cultural
heritage context for the location. My clients believe they are features which add to the desirability of
residing at Castle Gogar Rigg. Conversely, they do not consider it appropriate that these areas should
in any way be considered as being “up for grabs” for development merely because some of the land
has been used as a “building compound” for the development already permitted, according to the
justification presented in the Planning and Design Statement. It is clear, therefore, to my clients that
the developer has demonstrated a complete lack of respect in their initial approach to considering the
suitability of this location for further development.
Clearly, the proposed development for this location would compound the detrimental impacts on the
Category A Listed Buildings (Gogar Castle itself and the Bridge) that have already occurred. It is
considered that the remaining important setting for the cultural heritage assets should be preserved
and the application proposals would not seek to do so.
In that regard, the application is deemed to be contrary to adopted LDP Policy Env 3.

Page 158

Castle Gogar Rigg, Edinburgh

2.3.4 Roads/Traffic/Transport
In 2004, the Roads Department were mindful of the enabling development attributes of the proposals
and did not object to that original application. In particular it was stated:“As the access road has a reduced standard due to the extent of tree loss if the road were upgraded
to meet adoptable standards, the road will remain private.”
It is important to highlight that the same support was not evident in each of the 2015 and 2017
applications for subsequent further development at Castle Gogar Rigg, with the Council’s Transport
Planning Department recommending refusal of each application.
It apparent that they have made concessions on the following: the access driveway road not being
brought up to adoptable standards to preserve the existing trees; and improvements not being sought
to the access driveway with its crossing of the Tram line and its proximity to the junction with the A8
including widening of the road, due to ownership constraints and impacts on the listed gate piers and
walls at the entrance.
While the applicant has attempted to draw into the equation the unimplemented office development
which has an extant consent, there was an understanding and expectation from the proposals in 2015
that the 9 new additional houses (8 apartments and 1 house) would be “in lieu of” the consented office
building.
With 17 new houses already in existence, this was not the level of development that was envisaged
when the initial 2004 application contained the office building, as demonstrated by the absence of any
long term masterplan prepared at that time nor since. It has been allowed to develop incrementally
and the current application is another piecemeal and speculative proposal representing “development
creep” well beyond the level of development that was predicted would take place back in 2004.
Although it is understood that the consent for the office development appears to remain extant
according to the information obtained from the Council’s planning portal, my clients are of the opinion
that the opportunity to revisit developing the site for the office has since been lost by the developer’s
subsequent consents for additional housing elsewhere in place of the office building. There was and
still is a strong expectation by residents for this area to become a village green. This factor alone
would allow the Council to assess the road safety implications of the 5 new houses in isolation and
with no comparison with a scenario involving traffic generated from the office development. In that
regard, the additional traffic generated by 5 houses over and above the significant level of
development that has taken place since the 2004 consent is a further material consideration in the
assessment of this application.
The Council’s Transport Planning Department have had their recommendations overturned on the
past 2 previous occasions and it is anticipated that they will likely make a similar recommendation on
this proposal given the application represents a further increase in numbers. My clients would hope
that both Planning and Transport Planning Officials will concur that the proposed development
constitutes a further intensification of the use of the access driveway and junction with the A8 and
agree that no more development is acceptable at this location on road safety grounds.

Page 159

Castle Gogar Rigg, Edinburgh

2.3.5. International Business Gateway (IBG) allocation
The housing development approved in 2015 was accepted as being in compliance with emerging
planning policy in the Edinburgh Local Development Plan, since adopted in 2016. It was also
considered that since the five large detached houses had impacted significantly on the setting of
Gogar Castle and that the further development would be further away, the additional development of
2 apartment blocks (8 apartments in total) and a house would not have as detrimental an impact on
the Listed Building as the original development.
The impacts of further development on these listed assets has already been covered in this letter.
With regard to other policy in the adopted LDP, the IBG allocation remains of relevance under the
terms of Policy Emp 6 for this further development proposal at this location.
Both previous applications in 2015 and 2017 were rightly considered against a planning policy
framework which identified the land as part of the IBG within the Development Plan, and it was
determined at that time that the proposed housing was compliant with the relevant policies in SESplan
and the emerging and then adopted LDP.
Wherein the policies advocate for economic development and an allowance for some limited
residential development, the scope for housing within the allocation was to have been assessed as
part of a masterplan exercise. Specifically, Policy Emp 6 in the adopted LDP states:“Housing as a component of a business – led mixed use proposal subject to further
consideration through the master plan process, appropriate infrastructure provision and
where consistent with the objectives of the National Planning Framework 3.”
It further states:“All IBG proposals must accord with the IBG development principles and other relevant local
development plan policies. The West Edinburgh Strategic Design Framework (WESDF),
supported by master plans where appropriate, provides further guidance for development
proposals, including guidance about the required contributions towards meeting the mode
share targets.”
Notwithstanding the level of development that has already taken place at Castle Gogar Rigg in the
recent past, any further new development would appear to be in conflict with the policy objectives for
IBG which state that housing proposals should come forward in a comprehensive and planned way as
part of the masterplanning process for the area and be part of a business led, mixed use proposal.
Furthermore, and given that the WESDF identifies the listed building at Castle Gogar as a “constraint”
to development and that the indicative layouts in that document do not identify the land which is the
subject of the current application to be included within any of the proposed development areas,
recognising the importance of the setting for the listed building, the proposals represent an ad hoc
and piecemeal attempt to introduce new housing within this strategically important Development Plan
allocation in an unplanned way.
It is considered that the Council would be entitled to re-consider the suitability of the principle of
further housing development at this location against the policy requirements set out in Policy Emp 6,
taking cognisance also of the WESDF document.

Page 160

Castle Gogar Rigg, Edinburgh

In that regard, my clients’ position is that they believe that the application is in conflict with the
stated Development Plan policy objectives for the IBG.
3.0
Conclusion
The application proposals as submitted represent additional unacceptable development, both on land
within the existing Castle Gogar Rigg development and ouwith its established boundary, for the
reasons set out in this letter. The application is contrary to the relevant policies in the Development
Plan and should be refused.
My clients, Mr Mills and Ms Gallagher, respectfully request that their objections, as represented by
this letter submitted on their behalf, are duly considered by the Council’s Planning Department and
that the Council supports their position and refuses planning permission for application Reference
19/04849/FUL.
I would be grateful if you could acknowledge receipt of this letter of representation by return.
Yours sincerely,

John MacCallum BSc (Hons), MRTPI
Planning Consultant
cc

Clients

Page 161

Page 162

Page 163

Page 164

Page 165

Page 166

Page 167

Page 168

Page 169

Page 170

Page 171

Page 172

Page 173

Page 174

Page 175

Page 176

Page 177

Page 178

Page 179

Page 180

Page 181

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
19/04849/FUL

Aleda Roskamp Morillo
13 Apr 2020 22:43:11 +0000
Local Review Body
Gina Bellhouse
Re: YOUR REF 20/00034/REV REF.............Planning Application:

Dear Gina, I refer to the attached which my neighbour Mr Bailey has kindly sent to me.
We have not received the Notice of Review either by mail or by email which is rather
disappointing. I notice from the planning portal website that yet again they are using
heavily doctored photographs which appear to show the Castle as being engulfed by a
forest and therefore not visible to the rest of the estate or the proposed development
which is not the case and as Mr Bailey has stated the paragraph regarding Mr Scott
paying for the bridge is untrue, verbal abuse, letters threatening court by the developer
(not his laywer) for non payment of the £12,000 invoice were issued to residents by the
developer after the bridge was fixed without any consultation with the residents.
I echo what Mr Baillie has written and I stand by my original letter dated 28 October
2019 which I would urge you to read when I objected to this planning application. The
22 page Report of Handling that was issued by the Council thereafter was full and
thorough and I am entirely grateful to Historic Environmental Scotland for their detailed
response indicating the detrimental effect it would have on my property, Castle Gogar.
At the time of purchasing the Castle in 2007 we were told that no further works would
be permitted on the estate after John Dennis Development completed the 5 houses
within the blueprint of the walled garden.
We are now in completely unchartered territory with what is going on worldwide and I
can only imagine that what lies ahead of us is a complete horrendous recession and
economic downturn and to date the developer has still only managed to sell 2 flats in 4
years and the last thing we all need is years and years of building work given what we
have all been put through during the neverending construction of the flats (even during
this social isolation there are people working on the flats its just madness).
If you are doing a Notice of Review for this planning application then I feel strongly that
you should also do an investigation as to why the flats actually got planning permission
(15/01051/FUL) in the first place, noone got neighbour notifications and noone was able
to object. Had we all known about it I have no doubt the whole estate would have
strongly objected as they have to this application. The only people who did get
neighbour notification was the developer himself and a whole row of demolished ex RAF
houses which are a considerable distance from the estate but noone in close proximity
who would be severely affected by years of building work was actually notified.
If there is a new date given to this review I should like to be informed and I please urge
you once again to refuse the appeal.

Page 182

Thank you.
Sincerely
Aleda Morillo
Castle Gogar
Glasgow Road
Edinburgh
EH12 9BQ
From: Richard Bailey
>
Sent: 07 April 2020 02:22 PM
To: localreviewbody@edinburgh.gov.uk <localreviewbody@edinburgh.gov.uk>
Cc: Gina.Bellhouse@edinburgh.gov.uk <Gina.Bellhouse@edinburgh.gov.uk>
Subject: YOUR REF 20/00034/REV REF.............Planning Application: 19/04849/FUL
Hi Gina
I trust you are keeping well in these very challenging times, as we plough through completely
uncharted waters.
I refer to your Notice of Review dated 25th March 2020, referenced as above.
The planning department carried out a very detailed analysis of the original Application and
gave a very forensic explanation as to why the Application was rejected. There is no new
evidence to suggest that the original rejection should be reversed.
I would like to re-iterate the following point which was included as part of my original objection
on 3rd November 2019.
“2.35. Furthermore, and at significant cost, the applicant has painstakingly restored the bridge
over the Gogar Burn, enhancing its setting and seeking to ensure that it’s future condition
and maintenance is secured. This benefits the whole of the Gogar Rigg development (both
practically and in terms of its attractive restoration) whilst also providing a historic link and
clue to what lies beyond, even though the Castle is completely hidden from view.”
2.35 is factually incorrect and therefore questions the accuracy of the whole application. Willie
Scott went ahead with the bridge “repair” without consultation with existing property owners,
then billed 9 owners for almost £1400 each and the payment was made to Willie Scott. We were
threatened with legal action if we didn’t pay. The bridge was subject to at least 6 months of prior
excessive and heavy building traffic before the repair. That may be the reason for the repair
being required in the first place?
Thank you for considering this further communication.

Page 183

I look forward to hearing the outcome of the Review in June. Though this date may well have to
be postponed because of the current pandemic.
RICHARD, CHAIR, CGRA
Very best regards

+44 (0) 131 339 9444
+44 (0) 7836 352545
 richard@castlegogar.com
RICHARD BAILEY
6 CASTLE GOGAR RIGG
EDINBURGH
EH12 9FP

Page 184

Business Centre G.2 Waverley Court 4 East Market Street Edinburgh EH8 8BG Email: planning.support@edinburgh.gov.uk
Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.
Thank you for completing this application form:
ONLINE REFERENCE

100181892-003

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Applicant or Agent Details
Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application)

 Applicant Agent

Agent Details
Please enter Agent details
Company/Organisation:

APT PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT

Ref. Number:

You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *
TONY

First Name: *

Building Name:

THOMAS

Last Name: *

Building Number:

Telephone Number: *

Address 1
(Street): *

Extension Number:

Address 2:

Mobile Number:

Town/City: *

Fax Number:

Country: *
Postcode: *

6
HIGH STREET

EAST LINTON
UK
EH40 3AB

Email Address: *
Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *



Individual



Organisation/Corporate entity

Page 185

Page 1 of 5

Applicant Details
Please enter Applicant details
Title:

You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Other Title:

Building Name:

First Name: *

Building Number:

Last Name: *

Address 1
(Street): *

Company/Organisation

QUARRY INVESTMENTS

c/o APT Planning & Development
6
HIGH STREET

Address 2:

Telephone Number: *

Town/City: *

Extension Number:

Country: *

Mobile Number:

Postcode: *

EAST LINTON
UK
EH40 3AB

Fax Number:
Email Address: *

Site Address Details
Planning Authority:

City of Edinburgh Council

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):
Address 1:
Address 2:
Address 3:
Address 4:
Address 5:
Town/City/Settlement:
Post Code:
Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

Northing

672888

Easting

Page 186

316544

Page 2 of 5

Description of Proposal
Please provide a description of your proposal to which your review relates. The description should be the same as given in the
application form, or as amended with the agreement of the planning authority: *
(Max 500 characters)
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT OF FIVE NEW DETACHED HOMES

Type of Application
What type of application did you submit to the planning authority? *






Application for planning permission (including householder application but excluding application to work minerals).
Application for planning permission in principle.
Further application.
Application for approval of matters specified in conditions.

What does your review relate to? *

 Refusal Notice.
 Grant of permission with Conditions imposed.
 No decision reached within the prescribed period (two months after validation date or any agreed extension) – deemed refusal.
Statement of reasons for seeking review
You must state in full, why you are a seeking a review of the planning authority’s decision (or failure to make a decision). Your statement
must set out all matters you consider require to be taken into account in determining your review. If necessary this can be provided as a
separate document in the ‘Supporting Documents’ section: * (Max 500 characters)
Note: you are unlikely to have a further opportunity to add to your statement of appeal at a later date, so it is essential that you produce
all of the information you want the decision-maker to take into account.
You should not however raise any new matter which was not before the planning authority at the time it decided your application (or at
the time expiry of the period of determination), unless you can demonstrate that the new matter could not have been raised before that
time or that it not being raised before that time is a consequence of exceptional circumstances.
PLEASE REFER TO REVIEW STATEMENT AS PART OF THIS SUBMISSION.

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer at the time the
Determination on your application was made? *

 Yes  No

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising the new matter, why it was not raised with the appointed officer before
your application was determined and why you consider it should be considered in your review: * (Max 500 characters)

Page 187

Page 3 of 5

Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit with your notice of review and intend
to rely on in support of your review. You can attach these documents electronically later in the process: * (Max 500 characters)
LRB Review Statement All application documents associated with 19/04849/FUL including all layout, elevation and floorplan
details for all proposed new houses as well as Planning Statement, Heritage Statement, Transportation Statement and Landscape
and Visual Impact Assessment.

Application Details
Please provide the application reference no. given to you by your planning
authority for your previous application.

19/04849/FUL

What date was the application submitted to the planning authority? *

17/10/2019

What date was the decision issued by the planning authority? *

20/12/2019

Review Procedure
The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to determine your review and may at any time during the review
process require that further information or representations be made to enable them to determine the review. Further information may be
required by one or a combination of procedures, such as: written submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions and/or
inspecting the land which is the subject of the review case.
Can this review continue to a conclusion, in your opinion, based on a review of the relevant information provided by yourself and other
parties only, without any further procedures? For example, written submission, hearing session, site inspection. *

 Yes  No

Please indicate what procedure (or combination of procedures) you think is most appropriate for the handling of your review. You may
select more than one option if you wish the review to be a combination of procedures.
Please select a further procedure *
Holding one or more hearing sessions on specific matters
Please explain in detail in your own words why this further procedure is required and the matters set out in your statement of appeal it
will deal with? (Max 500 characters)
We believe that the key determining factors should be discussed and explored in detail as part of an LRB hearing with the ability
to present to and answer questions from the LRB panel.

In the event that the Local Review Body appointed to consider your application decides to inspect the site, in your opinion:
Can the site be clearly seen from a road or public land? *
Is it possible for the site to be accessed safely and without barriers to entry? *

 Yes  No
 Yes  No

If there are reasons why you think the local Review Body would be unable to undertake an unaccompanied site inspection, please
explain here. (Max 500 characters)

Page 188

Page 4 of 5

Checklist – Application for Notice of Review
Please complete the following checklist to make sure you have provided all the necessary information in support of your appeal. Failure
to submit all this information may result in your appeal being deemed invalid.
Have you provided the name and address of the applicant?. *
Have you provided the date and reference number of the application which is the subject of this
review? *
If you are the agent, acting on behalf of the applicant, have you provided details of your name
and address and indicated whether any notice or correspondence required in connection with the
review should be sent to you or the applicant? *
Have you provided a statement setting out your reasons for requiring a review and by what
procedure (or combination of procedures) you wish the review to be conducted? *

 Yes  No
 Yes  No
 Yes  No  N/A
 Yes  No

Note: You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review on your application. Your statement must set out all matters you consider
require to be taken into account in determining your review. You may not have a further opportunity to add to your statement of review
at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely
on and wish the Local Review Body to consider as part of your review.
Please attach a copy of all documents, material and evidence which you intend to rely on
(e.g. plans and Drawings) which are now the subject of this review *

 Yes  No

Note: Where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or modification, variation or removal of a
planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions, it is advisable to provide the
application reference number, approved plans and decision notice (if any) from the earlier consent.

Declare – Notice of Review
I/We the applicant/agent certify that this is an application for review on the grounds stated.
Declaration Name:

Mr TONY THOMAS

Declaration Date:

20/03/2020

Page 189

Page 5 of 5

Proposal Details
Proposal Name
Proposal Description
HOMES
Address
Local Authority
Application Online Reference

100181892
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT OF 5 DETACHED

City of Edinburgh Council
100181892-003

Application Status
Form
Main Details
Checklist
Declaration
Supporting Documentation
Email Notification

complete
complete
complete
complete
complete
complete

Attachment Details
Notice of Review
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ 1 in 20 FLOOD MAP _
CASTLE GOGAR
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ AERIAL CGI _ SEPTEMBER
2019
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ EXISTING SITE PLAN _ PL
L_90_02 _ A1 1 500
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HERITAGE STATEMENT SEPTEMBER 2019
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ House Type CGIs _ October
2019
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ LANDSCAPE AND VISUAL
ANALYSIS _ SEPTEMBER 2019
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ Planning and Design
Statement _ October 2019
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ TRANSPORTATION

System
Attached

A4
A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A1

Attached

A4

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A4

Attached

A4

Page 190

STATEMENT _ SEPTEMBER 2019
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ PROPOSED SITE PLAN _ PL
L_90_03 Rev T _ Option A A1 1 500
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 3 _ PL_20_01 South
Elev Rev B A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 3 _ PL_20_02 North
Elev Rev B A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 3 _ PL_20_03 East
Elev Rev B A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 3 _ PL_20_04 West
Elev Rev B A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 3 _ PL_23_01 Rev B
GF A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 3 _ PL_23_02 Rev A
FF A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 3 _ PL_27_01 Rev A
Roof A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 4 _ PL_20_01 Rev F
South Elev A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 4 _ PL_20_02 Rev F
North Elev A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 4 _ PL_20_03 Rev E
East Elev A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 4 _ PL_20_04 Rev F
West Elev A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 4 _ PL_23_01 Rev F
GF A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 4 _ PL_23_02 Rev F
FF A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 4 _ PL_27_01 Rev F

Attached

A1

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Page 191

Roof A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 4 and 8 _ PL_20_05
Rev F South and North Elevs A3 1
200
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 5 _ PL_20_01 Rev E
- Elev A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 5 _ PL_20_02 Rev D
North Elev A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 5 _ PL_20_03 Rev D
East Elev A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 5 _ PL_20_04 Rev D
West Elev A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 5 _ PL_23_01 Rev C
GF A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 5 _ PL_23_02 Rev C
FF A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 5 _ PL_27_01 Rev C
Roof Plan A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 5 and 6 _ PL_20_05
Rev E S and N Elevs A3 1 200
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 6 _ PL_20_04 Rev D
West Elev A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 6 _ PL_20_01 Rev E
South Elev A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 6 _ PL_20_03 Rev D
East Elev A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 6 _ PL_23_01 Rev C
GF A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 6 _ PL_23_02 Rev C
FF A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Page 192

RIGG _ HOUSE 6 _ PL_27_01 Rev C
Roof Plan A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 6_ PL_20_02 Rev D
North Elev A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 8 _ PL_20_01 Rev F
South Elev A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 8 _ PL_20_02 Rev F
North Elev A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 8 _ PL_20_03 Rev E
East Elev A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 8 _ PL_20_04 Rev F
West Elev A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 8 _ PL_23_01 Rev F
GF A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 8 _ PL_23_02 Rev F
FF A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ HOUSE 8 _ PL_27_01 Rev F
Roof A3 1 100
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ Location Plan A3 1 1250
19_04849_FUL _ CASTLE GOGAR
RIGG _ LRB REVIEW STATEMENT _
March 2020
Notice_of_Review-2.pdf
Application_Summary.pdf
Notice of Review-003.xml

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A3

Attached

A4

Attached
Attached
Attached

A0
A0
A0

Page 193

QUARRY INVESTMENTS LTD.

REVIEW STATEMENT
APPLICATION 19/04849/FUL
Proposed Residential Development
Castle Gogar Rig, Edinburgh
March 2020

6 High Street
East Linton
EH40 3 AB
T–

Page 194

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Application 19/04849/FUL - Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg
LRB Review Statement

Executive Summary
a. This appeal to the Local Review Body is lodged following the refusal of application
19/04849/FUL on 20th December 2019.
b. The Local Review Panel may consider that the design, layout and location of the proposed
development are such that they will not result in unacceptable impacts on the character
and appearance on the Castle Gogar group of buildings. Despite a long list of policies
referred to in the reasons for refusal, we believe that it is the setting of Castle Gogar itself
that remains the key determining issue.
c. The Local Review Panel has the advantage of looking at the application afresh and not
necessarily hamstrung by policies which may have led the case officer to the conclusion that
there was no other possible outcome. However in this instance we believe that potential
impacts have been exaggerated in their relation to planning policy.
d. The Panel is able to take a more holistic view, and determine that in-the-round, the
application represents an excellent and innovative design solution for the site; that it would
represent an appropriate and high quality final phase of development at Castle Gogar Rigg
and should be granted planning permission. This would not necessarily suggest that the case
office and planning team made an incorrect determination, more that the LRB is in a position
to adopt a slightly different approach.
e. Disappointingly, there was no engagement from the case officer during the determination of
this application (despite requests). There was no opportunity to discuss the key elements of
the application, whether policy, design, access, layout or landscape related.
f.

The committee report acknowledges that the design of the proposed buildings is in keeping
with the other modern additions to the Castle Gogar site, that the importance of the Castle
in defining the character of the wider area has diminished over time and that there are no
transportation impacts that would warrant the refusal of planning permission.

g. It is worth noting that it is the same architect involved with this application as has been
involved in the restoration of Castle Gogar and earlier enabling development as well as the
applications in 2015 and 2017. This ensures a continuity of design and understanding of the
site. This is critical when interpreting the relationship to Castle Gogar, and creating a highquality, managed setting has always been central to the proposals at Castle Gogar Rigg.
h. We also contend, that a number of reasons for refusal were mistakenly and misleadingly
added to the decision notice.

Page 195

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Application 19/04849/FUL - Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg
LRB Review Statement

i.

There is no flood risk (as the submitted flood plan illustrates); the ecology of the site has
been so disturbed by previous and ongoing development that a completed development will
benefit the local biodiversity of Castle Gogar; the development is in keeping with the other
residential properties at Castle Gogar Rigg and there will be is no loss of formal, designated
open space through the proposed development.

j.

Genuine concerns could have been discussed further and negotiated with planning officials
had they engaged in any post submission discussions. The applicant was ready and willing to
liaise with officials to ensure that the proposed development could be the best it could be.
The layout and design was submitted as our best foot forward, but we were prepared to
negotiate further as appropriate.

k. There are nine reasons for refusal (each dealt with in turn as part of this submission) which
cite concerns around the principle of development, impacts on listed buildings, flooding,
ecology and tree protection. We have responded accordingly and feel that the key
determining issue is the potential impacts, positive or negative on the setting and character
of Caste Gogar and other listed structures.
a. The setting and character of Castle Gogar was compromised many years ago as it fell into
a state of disrepair. It was also fundamentally compromised with the construction of the
airport runway to the north.
b. The previous enabling development did ensure the Castle’s future but also led to
compromises of a different sort with development being permitted in close proximity to
the north-west part of the Castle grounds and within the original walled garden.
Subsequent development has been further away from the Castle and we wish to continue
this pattern of development.
c. The committee report acknowledges that the Castle is no longer the dominant feature of
the site. While it must be protected in its own right as a significant historic building, its
influence beyond the policy walls is now far more limited. This is amplified by the earlier
development in the walled garden.
l. The proposals will not therefore have a detrimental impact on how the Castle and its
grounds can be understood, appreciated and experienced. It is a private Castle, mainly
unseen as part of a private development of substantial homes, not open to the public. Many
aspects of its significance will remain unchanged. Its relevance is not in its current setting
(either visually or through public access) but through an acknowledgement of its history both
architecturally and culturally. The proposals do nothing to diminish this interpretation but
seek to ensure the Castle sits in a high quality environment befitting a Category ‘A’ listed
building.

Page 196

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Application 19/04849/FUL - Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg
LRB Review Statement

m. We strongly contend that the final development of up to five well-designed well positioned
new homes, designed to reflect the enabling and subsequent development that has gone
before, will ensure that the Castle sits in its own environs whilst neighbouring development is
of the highest quality, ensuring it sits in an environment befitting the quality of the Castle
itself (and since refurbishment).
n. The applicant has also undertaken a programme of bridge repairs at his own cost (the bridge
is a Category ‘B’ listed structure). This improves the quality of the approach to both Castle
Gogar Rigg and the Castle itself. This work amply illustrates the applicant’s commitment to
the site (where he lives). His intent is to create a high-quality environment at Castle Gogar
through landscape management and maintenance alongside appropriate and high-quality
development.

Page 197

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Application 19/04849/FUL - Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg
LRB Review Statement

INTRODUCTION
1.

apt planning & development has prepared this Review Statement on behalf of Quarry
Investments Ltd. with regards to application 19/04849/FUL seeking planning permission for
the erection of five new two-storey homes on land at Castle Gogar Rigg, Edinburgh. The
application was refused via delegated powers on 20th December 2019.

2.

Application for planning permission 19/04849/FUL was accompanied by a suite of
supporting documents (and also submitted in support of this appeal), including a Heritage
Statement, Landscape and Visual Analysis and Transportation Statement. This appeal
statement tries not to repeat much of what has been written before, but will concentrate on
the reasons for refusal given when the application was refused via delegated powers in
December.

3.

Despite this comprehensive approach, and pre-application engagement with the City of
Edinburgh Council, we were not offered any feedback on the application at any time or the
opportunity to enter into any post-submissions discussions and negotiations about the
application’s content. No further information was requested to better inform the
determination process.

SITE CHARACTERISTICS, BACKGROUND AND PLANNING HISTORY

4.

The appeal site lies close to the Category ‘A’ listed Castle Gogar at the end of a 600m access
driveway off the A8 Glasgow Road, close to Edinburgh Airport to the west and north, the
new tram line and Gogar Tram Depot to the south and east, as well as the Gyle Shopping
Centre and Royal Bank of Scotland Headquarters (immediately to the south) at Gogarburn.

Page 198

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Application 19/04849/FUL - Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg
LRB Review Statement

5.

The wider Castle Gogar site was the subject of planning permission 04/02302/FUL which
sought the refurbishment/redevelopment of Castle Gogar, enabled by the development of a
number of residential properties within the environs of the Castle.

6.

Application 15/01051/FUL was granted planning permission (via delegated powers) in
September 2015 for the development of two apartment blocks and a singles detached
dwelling.

7.

Application 17/00202/FUL was granted permission in March 2017 for the erection of a
single detached dwelling house on land at Castle Gogar Rigg. This house has been
completed.

8.

This brings the total number of new dwellings at Castle Gogar to 17 (including the two new
homes created from the conversion of the existing stable buildings) alongside Castle Gogar
that remains on the north-east part of the site, though almost totally hidden from its
neighbours, owing to a combination of the high stone walls and mature tree cover.

9.

The last fifteen years has therefore seen an evolution of Castle Gogar, initially by way of
enabling development to secure the restoration of the Castle, but more recently, by way of
allowing further, appropriate and high quality development in the immediate vicinity of the
previous developments. This is very much the final stage of that evolution, creating a high
quality and established residential neighbourhood in its own right but also in relation to
Castle Gogar.

10.

Development in and around Castle Gogar and Castle Gogar Rigg is further underpinned by
the allocation of the International Business Gateway (IBG) on land to the south and west,
creating a significant new business, commercial, leisure and residential area between the
Gogar Roundabout and Tram Depot and Edinburgh Airport. The entire Castle Gogar site is
included within the IBG allocation and the additional large scale development around the
wider Castle Gogar location will further diminish any sense of a rural setting.

11.

In more general (SESPlan) terms, residential development is to be steered to ‘sustainable
locations where there is infrastructure capacity’. Policy 1A of SESPlan identifies 13 Strategic
Development Areas (SDA’s), one of which is West Edinburgh and including the Castle Gogar
site within its boundary.

12.

The Edinburgh LDP was adopted in November 2016 and remains the extant Local
Development Plan offering the Council’s most up to date planning policies. Although the
application site is too small to be considered in depth as a LDP proposal, we tested the
proposal against relevant policies.

Page 199

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Application 19/04849/FUL - Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg
LRB Review Statement

13.

The proposed development at Castle Gogar will complement the future plans for this area of
Edinburgh whilst the limited scale of development will not prejudice any wider employment
use proposals that may have an element of residential development.

14.

This is a very site-specific proposal, both in terms of the land being available under a single
ownership and in being able to respond to the common design character evident throughout
the site and especially in the various iterations of new build homes over the past 15 years.

15.

Great care has been taken, with all the phases of development at Castle Gogar to ensure
that a common design character has been adopted, typically a clean, modern approach,
picking up on some key design elements of the Castle, whilst also creating interesting and
high quality homes, fit for modern living.

16.

We have continued this ethos with this final proposal for development at Castle Gogar Rigg.
The new homes will be high quality, appropriate and will not have a detrimental impact on
the surrounding area.

17.

Each of the phases have been delivered under a single ownership, ensuring control in the
delivery of the development but perhaps more importantly, an assurance over the design
detail, enabling the overall character of Castle Gogar Rigg to evolve sympathetically,
sensitively and attractively.

18.

The applicant is a resident of Castle Gogar Rigg. This ensures great care being taken in the
design and maintenance of the wider site, and it is the applicant that has overseen and
funded the significant refurbishment works to the listed bridge over the Gogar Burn just
before you reach the application site.

19.

The applicant has lived at Castle Gogar Rigg since it was developed in 2004/2005 and is
invested in its future not simply as a developer but as a local resident. He is also
responsible for ensuring that the wider landscape has been maintained, whether through
grass cutting or more complex tree maintenance (ultimately in removal and replacement)
and this dedication ensures that in the longer-term it is the wider setting of Castle Gogar
itself that benefits (with no input or contribution from the owner of the Castle itself).

PRE-APPLICATION ENGAGEMENT
20.

Throughout the process (enabling development and the two subsequent applications for
planning permission) there has been an encouraging level of pre-application and post
submission engagement with the City of Edinburgh Council. In keeping with this inclusive and
proactive approach, we submitted pre-application details to the Council in February 2018.

Page 200

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Application 19/04849/FUL - Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg
LRB Review Statement

21.

We received a brief response in April 2018 stating that there were concerns over the setting
of the listed building and access arrangements to the site off the A8. Needless to say we were
disappointed with this response and in working with OPEN, Simpson & Brown and SWECO we
have sought to address these concerns and lodge a comprehensive and credible application.

22.

Throughout the process, we have always sought to work with the Council, and this was no
different, but in this instance we fundamentally disagreed with the concerns raised, and this
stance has been underpinned by the findings of the work undertaken by the other specialist
members of the design team. As stated elsewhere the lack of engagement post-submission
has been especially disappopinting.

Application 19/04849/FUL
22.

Application 19/04849/FUL was validated on 10th October 2019 (confirmation received on 24th
October). Despite repeated and unsuccessful requests for further engagement with the
planning team, the application was subsequently refused via delegated powers on 20th
December 2019. Nine reasons for this refusal were given and we address each in turn below:
Reason 1
The proposal is contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy Hou 1, as it
does not meet the criteria for housing development within the International Business
Gateway.

23.

We have always promoted the development proposed as the final phase of development at
Castle Gogar Rigg (CGR), that it would represent a well-planned high-quality setting paying
due respect to its surroundings whilst providing attractive modern homes in keeping with
the existing buildings at Castle Gogar Rigg.

24.

Development here will complement the existing development at Castle Gogar Rigg but will
also complement with wider aspirations of the International Business Gateway (IBG). It
would be unlikely that Castle Gogar Rigg could be developed in conjunction with the IBG
simply due to timescales and land ownership/control.

25.

What this application does is seek to complete the Rigg development which in itself will
become a peripheral but potentially positive element of the IBG. The fact that CGR has been
completed first gives the setting of the IBG a reference point – modern airport related
development to the west and the CGR development (alongside Castle Gogar) in the northeast corner. The overall IBG is a major business-led masterplan and long term development
aspiration.

Page 201

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Application 19/04849/FUL - Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg
LRB Review Statement

26.

The fact that the proposals at CGR are not part of a co-ordinated business-led masterplan
should not preclude it from favourable consideration – it will form part of the wider
allocation in due course as the IBG grows.
Reason 2
The proposal is contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy Des 4, as the
proposal will have a negative impact upon the setting of its surroundings.

27.

The proposed new homes have been designed specifically to continue the design theme
already introduced at CGR namely the introduction of further modern simply designed
relatively substantial detached homes sitting alongside the ‘hidden’ Castle building beyond
the high castle walls and mature tree cover yet complementing the converted stable block.

28.

Looking specifically at Policy Des4, the buildings are of an appropriate scale and height,
being subordinate to the taller apartment buildings to the west and the much larger Castle
to the north/rear of the site whilst being similar in style and scale to the existing homes.

29.

The proposed buildings are positioned to complement the existing homes and the Castle,
presenting an entrance feature as you arrive over the listed bridge structure (over the Gogar
Burn). The two homes on the southern edge of the area face the Castle walls whilst the
Castle itself is almost completely hidden from view.

30.

The homes frame the approach and focus attention but do not detract from the gates that
form the main entrance into the Castle. The materials and detailing maintains the simple
modern approach elsewhere on the site.

31.

The principle of the development at Castle Gogar Rigg has always been to deliver an
appropriate, high quality and sympathetic final phase of residential development.

32.

We therefore strongly dispute that the proposals fail when tested against policy Des4 and
that the key characteristics show a detailed and sensitive understanding of the context of
the site with an appropriate design solution proposed.

Page 202

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Application 19/04849/FUL - Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg
LRB Review Statement

Reason 3
The proposal is contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy Env 3, as the
proposal will be detrimental to the setting of the listed building.
33.

The applicant commissioned Simpson & Brown to advise with regards to the proposed
development and the setting and character of Castle Gogar.

34.

This is a long established development site, and an already compromised setting of the listed
building. When the initial enabling development was granted permission, the castle was in a
state of disrepair (and very much compromised as a heritage asset) and the permission
secured its future restoration (including the stable block).

35.

The three existing homes immediately to the west of the Castle complex (and the converted
stable block) are far closer and intrusive to the setting of the Castle (as they are set in the
original walled garden).

36.

As the CGI image below illustrates, this northern part of the site is much busier in terms of
built form and the proposed new homes have been deliberately set back to ensure the
Castle retains some sense of isolation in the north east corner. The proposed homes will not
compromise this.

Page 203

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Application 19/04849/FUL - Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg
LRB Review Statement

37.

The applicant has taken on ownership of the access road including the bridge over the Gogar
Burn and invested considerable sums in its upkeep and that of the main access road and
vegetation/tree cover. This work continues to benefit all residents of Castle Gogar Rigg as
well as the setting of the Castle.

38.

The applicant is committed to maintaining and improving the quality of the access road
which is the historic drive to the castle from the public road. This includes works to manage
trees and other planting, including replanting trees, and works to historic boundary walls.

39.

Consultation responses noted that the open area to the south of the south Castle wall
should be retained. This was identified as a former paddock but has long since become a
building site works area with no grass. Nonetheless, in the proposed development, to retain
the sense of the former paddock, two houses have been set close as possible to the south
boundary as possible (avoiding mature tree root protection areas etc). This means that there
an open and green area would be created between the built form of the houses and the
Castle wall, restoring the sense of the paddock.

40.

In addition these two houses have been designed to refer to the wider historic setting of the
Castle. There is evidence from historic maps that there was a tree belt which formed a view,
drawing the eye perhaps to an historic fort marked on early maps. This feature may have
been intended to suggest a connection between the owners of the Castle and the ancient
fort, to reinforce social or political legitimacy or for antiquarian interest.

41.

The remaining trees from this tree belt still appear on the 1852 Ordnance Survey map. The
proposed development deliberately sets a pair of mirrored houses, with a large gap between
them, to allude to this aspect of the setting of the Castle.

42.

The proposals seek to complement the setting of Castle Gogar within its modern high-quality
setting (though offset to the north-east and mainly hidden from view). Despite its obvious
architectural merit, the key feature remains the intrigue as to what lies beyond the high
walls and tree cover. It is a private hidden property.

43.

We have contended from the outset that the development will complement the setting of
the Listed Building and not compromise that setting. The direct impact will be negligible as
the Castle remains a hidden gem.

Page 204

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Application 19/04849/FUL - Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg
LRB Review Statement

Reason 4
The proposal is contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy Env 12, as
the proposal is likely to have a damaging impact upon trees worthy of retention.
44.

The applicant has maintained the trees on the site for many years, taking great care to
ensure maximum and appropriate protection. There have been some losses due to weather
damage and disease over the years but there has been no malicious removal of trees and
this approach will continue.

45.

It would be counterproductive to promote a high quality, executive style development that
would undermine the presence and quality of the existing and remaining trees. They provide
and attractive backdrop to development and will be supplemented by significant additional
landscape planting as development is completed (avenue planting along the main access
road being a case in point).

46.

With many of the trees on site being of a similar maturity, the inclusion of replacement
planting with young specimens will help to diversify the age profile and avoid the site
becoming devoid of trees when the mature trees come to the end of their lives at a similar
time.

47.

This will also deliver a more varied range of habitats to the area with managed grounds and
gardens presenting their own biodiversity benefits.
Reason 5
The proposal is contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy Env16, as
the proposal may have an adverse impact upon species protected under European or UK
law.

48.

There is no evidence that development will have any adverse impact on any protected
species. There was some evidence of the presence of badgers (not setts) in 2015 but given
the level of disturbance caused by the ongoing development, it is unlikely that any further
disturbance will occur or be relevant.

49.

There has been a significant level of development in the immediate area and the finished
development would seek to implement a high quality environment with a suitably diverse
habitat however it is unlikely that any protected species will be impacted as a result of this
development.

Page 205

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Application 19/04849/FUL - Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg
LRB Review Statement

50.

Had there been any engagement with the Case Officer, a further ecological study could have
been completed (though, in our opinion, unnecessarily) but as the ecological value would
have deteriorated significantly since the 2015 report due to the level of construction work, it
was not felt necessary at the outset to instruct further work.

51.

Should this appeal to the local review body be successful, we would be happy to accept a
condition requiring further ecological investigations to be completed prior to development
starting but it is our position that no protected species would be impacted by this
development. The proposals are not therefore contrary to Policy Env16.
Reason 6
The proposal is contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy Env 18, as
the proposal will result in the loss of valuable open space which will have a significant
impact upon the quality and character of the local environment.

52.

No part of the proposed development provides an element of useable or valuable open
space at Castle Gogar Rigg.

53.

The area referred to as the paddock has always been an unused private space, fenced off
and in the main, overgrown with infrequent maintenance. The driveway beyond the bridge is
simply a route into Castle Gogar Rigg that has changed significantly over the years.

54.

Despite comments to the contrary, the so called village green is identified for development.
It retains an extant permission for the development of an office building. Discussions did
take place in 2015 about the implementation or otherwise of that permission but nothing
was ever formalised. It remains extant and was taken into consideration by the
transportation team when considering the likely transport impacts of development.

55.

It is misleading to describe the village green as open space, it is a vacant and well maintained
development plot with an extant planning permission.

56.

Again, if the planning team had engaged in post-submission discussions, it may well have
been the case that the applicant was asked to remove the proposed house on the site of the
consented office building. This discussion never took place, but we can confirm that if it was
requested as part of a wider permission, we would be willing to remove this house from the
application – planning permission could be granted that excludes this particular house if this
was identified as a key stumbling block to development being permitted.

Page 206

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Application 19/04849/FUL - Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg
LRB Review Statement

57.

The proposals are not contrary to Policy Env18 and there will be no loss of formal or informal
open space. Furthermore the issue of open space was not raised during the pre-application
process. Had it been (and this is after all what the process is designed to achieve) we would
have provided further evidence that there would not be any loss of valuable useable open
space.
Reason 7
The proposal is contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy Env 21, as
the proposal may increase a flood risk or be at risk of flooding itself.

58.

The applicant instructed McGregor & McMahon Associates to look at the likelihood of the
site flooding using the 1:200 flood event as its guide and given the proximity of the Gogar
Burn to House Eight.

59.

As the flood map lodged alongside this appeal illustrates, none of the proposed buildings lie
within the flood plain of the Gogar Burn. On this basis, the buildings would not be at risk of
flooding nor would they increase the risk of flooding elsewhere downstream (specifically
Castle Gogar that lies at a lower ground level).

60.

In terms of ground levels and finished floor levels, the grounds of Castle Gogar are lower
than that of the nearest house to the Gogar Burn. There is no evidence or knowledge of
Castle Gogar ever flooding. We do not believe that any of the house plots lie within an
active 1:200 flood plain and therefore the application cannot be contrary to Policy Env21.

Page 207

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Application 19/04849/FUL - Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg
LRB Review Statement

Reason 8
The proposal is contrary to Historic Environment Scotland Managing Change in the Historic
Environment Guidance Note on setting as the proposed new houses would detrimentally
impact on the approach and wider setting of Category A listed Castle Gogar.
61.

We refer back to our response to Policy Env3 in terms of the impact on the setting and
character of Castle Gogar and other listed structures.

62.

The ‘Managing Change’ document asks to identify the likely listed structures that are likely
to be impacted. We have done this with the key building being Castle Gogar itself.

63.

Before assessing impact we must understand the setting in terms of how the building is
understood, appreciated and experienced. In this instance, the privately owned Castle
Gogar has been hidden from the public for many years by a combination of policy walls and
mature planting.

64.

The best, and probably only view is on certain approaches as you take off or land at
Edinburgh Airport. It is true that the tram route has potentially opened up additional
viewpoints (mainly in winter when there is less leaf cover), but this fleeting viewpoint
offering limited glimpses is seen in the context of existing modern development enabled as
part of the 2005 permission and more recent additional development.

65.

In terms of the existing landscape setting, key vistas into and out from the historic asset, its
prominence and aesthetic qualities, the relative seclusion of the building mitigates against
these potential impacts from the very outset.

66.

There are no key vistas into or out from Castle Gogar, it is not a prominent feature in the
landscape, especially from ground level and it now sits in a rapidly changing landscape
including the development of modern homes at Castle Gogar Rigg and the every changing
environs of the Airport which is soon to take on a whole new character when the
International Business Gateway commences development.

67.

We mention that the Castle setting has been compromised throughout our submissions and
this is very much the case. What this development is intended to do is ensure that the
Castle at least sits in the midst of a very high quality residential setting, with interesting,
modern but sensitively styled homes.

Page 208

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Application 19/04849/FUL - Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg
LRB Review Statement

68.

If further mitigation was possible and deemed necessary, we would have been very happy to
discuss these in more detail but no contact or further discussion was forthcoming from the
planning team. The applicant would be happy to consider further measures, design, layout,
and/or landscape planting that could potentially mitigate the impacts of the proposed
development and/or improve the setting of Castle Gogar and other historic assets and as set
out in the Heritage Statement.
Reason 9
The proposal is contrary to adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy Emp 6, as it
does not meet the criteria for housing development within the International Business
Gateway.

69.

We have already addressed the compliance of the proposed development at Castle Gogar
Rigg with the Emp6 allocation with regards to the International Business Gateway and we
would refer you back to our response with regards to Policy Hou1 (reason for refusal 1).

70.

Suffice to say that we believe that the site is located within the Emp6 allocation, that is
represents the immediate delivery of homes within the IBG (wcich will take far longer to
come to fruition) and will have no impact on the viability of any future IBG proposals.

71.

It would have been impractical for the applicant to wait or become a part of the far bigger
development immediately to the west, nor does the development at Castle Gogar Rigg
depend on the progress of the IBG. They will coexist very comfortably whilst the
development at Castle Gogar Rigg justifies itself given the high quality of the proposals and
the context within an area that has experienced change involving the development of a
number of properties since 2005.

SUMMARY
57.

This LRB Appeal relates to the refusal of application 19/04849/FUL for the development of
five new homes on land at Castle Gogar Rigg and following the development of 17 new
homes over the past 15 years.

58.

We were naturally very disappointed to receive the refusal (20th December 2019) especially
as there has been no feedback or engagement from the planning officials despite repeated
requests. We also feel that the nine reasons for refusal significantly overstate concerns over
the development of the site, many of which could have been addressed during the
determination of the application had we known.

Page 209

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Application 19/04849/FUL - Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg
LRB Review Statement

59.

This appeal statement addresses each of the reasons for refusal in turn and we believe that
there are no insurmountable obstacles to prevent further development at Castle Gogar
Rigg. We are willing to explore any compromises that might be necessary to achieve this,
but in the first instance we put our best foot forward with this application. With no
engagement from Council officials, it was impossible to consider or promote any mitigation
or changes to the proposals.

60.

It is our opinion that the key consideration regards the impact of the proposals on the
character and setting of Castle Gogar and specifically with reference to policy Env3 and
Historic Environment Scotland publications.

61.

The wider setting of Castle Gogar has been compromised over time, by the airport to the
north and east, the tram embankment to th south and the depot at Gogar and the
development of the Royal Bank of Scotland Headquarters to the south. The International
Business Gateway represents the latest and alongside the Airport, most impactful,
development and will further change the wider landscape context of Castle Gogar.

62.

An important consideration, according to Historic Environment Scotland is how an historic
asset is understood, appreciated and experienced. It is our opinion that the setting of
Castle Gogar has already been so compromised that the proposed development will make
little material change.

63.

The proposals even offers opportunities to consolidate what remains of the setting,
recovering the sense of the paddock to the south of the Castle policy walls, improving the
approach road and by mirrored houses, suggesting the historic setting in relation to the
land to the south.

64.

These carefully considered aspects of the proposals are intended to improve the way that
the Castle and its setting are understood, appreciated and experienced.

65.

This final piece in the jigsaw at Castle Gogar Rigg will ensure that development within the
immediate environs of Castle Gogar is of the highest quality and although the Castle does
not respond to, nor interact with ‘The Rigg’, the completion of the modern development
will ensure that the Castle sits as the hidden gem amongst a very high-quality setting.

66.

The application site and access road are under single ownership, not only ensuring the
delivery of the new homes, but also (and has been the case over recent years) ensuring the
maintenance and upkeep of the development.

67.

The applicant is also a resident of Castle Gogar Rigg and has already spent a great deal of
time and money restoring the bridge over the Gogar Burn, itself, a listed structure. This
sense of responsibility and stewardship will continue into the future.

Page 210

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Application 19/04849/FUL - Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg
LRB Review Statement

68.

Additional professional support was sought with regards to heritage, landscape and
transportation to ensure that we have assessed the pertinent issues in the determination
of this application. Unfortunately we are unsure of the response to these documents from
planning officials as they have offered no assessment of our own submissions.

69.

The site has an unfinished feel to it and this application seeks to secure permission for the
final phase of development which we believe represents the logical and appropriate
conclusion of development along the southern boundary of the site.

70.

This application represents an opportunity to introduce further limited high quality
residential development to the site, complementing existing homes, sitting comfortably and
appropriately in its setting and providing five executive style homes at an attractive and
marketable location.

71.

The proposals seek to introduce a modern, simple yet high quality design, taking
appropriate reference from the existing built form and acting as an appropriate conclusion
to development at Castle Gogar Rigg.

72.

We strongly contend that these proposals offer an appropriate and high quality
development opportunity to complete this discreet neighbourhood in an attractive and
high quality way and maintaining and enhancing the character of Castle Gogar Rigg.

Page 211

Quarry Investments Ltd.

Planning & Design Statement
Proposed Residential Development
Castle Gogar Rig, Edinburgh
October 2019

6 High Street
East Linton
EH40 3 AB
T – 07747 780 852
tony@apt-plandevelop.co.uk
www.apt-plandevelop.co.uk

Page 212

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

Contents
1.

Introduction

2.

Planning Policy

3.

Contextual Analysis

4.

Design Response

5.

Summary & Conclusions

Page 213

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

1.

INTRODUCTION

1.1.

This Planning & Design Statement, prepared by apt planning & development ltd. is lodged
in support of an application for planning permission to erect five two-storey homes at the
Castle Gogar Rig site on the south-western outskirts of Edinburgh. This is very much seen as
the final piece in the jigsaw of creating an appropriate, high quality and coordinated
neighbourhood at Castle Gogar.

1.2.

The site lies close to the Grade A listed Castle Gogar at the end of a 600m access driveway
off the A8 Glasgow Road, close to Edinburgh Airport to the west and north, the new tram
line and Gogar Tram Depot to the south and east, as well as the Gyl Shopping Centre and
Royal Bank of Scotland Headquarters (immediately to the south) at Gogarburn.

Site History
1.3.

The wider Castle Gogar site was the subject of planning permission 04/02302/FUL which
sought the refurbishment/redevelopment of Castle Gogar, enabled by the development of
a number of residential properties within the wider grounds of the Castle.

1.4.

With the exception of the consented office block this permission has been implemented
with the development of 5 substantial and distinctive modern detached homes and two
further residential properties created from the conversion of the original stable block. At
the time, the enabling aspect of the development, namely to restore a derelict Grade A
listed building, was seen to override the presumption against development in the Edinburgh
Green Belt (and with regards to impacts on the setting and character of a listed building).

1.5.

Application 15/01051/FUL was granted planning permission (via delegated powers) in
September 2015 for the development of two apartment blocks and a singles detached
dwelling.

1.6.

Application 17/00202/FUL was granted permission in March 2017 for the erection of a
single detached dwelling house on land at Castle Gogar Rigg. This house has been
completed.

1.7.

This brings the total number of new dwellings at Castle Gogar to 17 (including the two new
homes created from the conversion of the existing stable buildings) alongside Castle Gogar
that remains on the north-east part of the site, though almost totally hidden from its
neighbours.

1.8.

The last fifteen years has therefore seen an evolution of Castle Gogar, initially by way of
enabling development to secure the refurbishment and modernisation of the Castle, but
more recently, by way of allowing further, appropriate and high quality development in the
immediate vicinity of the previous developments. This is very much the next and final stage
of that evolution, creating a high quality setting for Castle Gogar.

Page 214

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

2.

PLANNING POLICY

2.1.

The relevant Development Plan consists of the South East Scotland Strategic Development
Plan (SESPlan), approved in June 2013 and the 2016 Edinburgh Local Development Plan
(LDP).

SESPlan

2.5.

2.2.

The SESPlan Spatial Strategy outlines the
overarching ‘locational priorities for
development’
also
giving
broad
assumptions on the scale of growth and
longer-term strategies. This is underpinned
by a central purpose to increase
sustainable economic growth. To this end,
specific areas of the SESPlan area are
identified for significant business related
development whilst the SESPlan also
identifies key areas to accommodate future
residential development.

2.3.

In general terms, residential development
is to be steered to ‘sustainable locations
where there is infrastructure capacity’. It is
up the individual Local Development Plans
to identify specific sites but the SESPlan
recognises the requirement for a longerterm
growth
strategy
directing
development
to
more
sustainable
locations.

2.4.

With this in mind Policy 1A identifies 13
Strategic Development Areas (SDA’s) across
the SESPlan area, one of which is West
Edinburgh and includes the Caste Gogar
site within its boundary.

Under Policy 1B, SESPlan then directs Local Authorities to ensure that their LDP’s contain
policies that protect natural and built heritage including Listed Buildings whilst promoting
high quality design and sustainability.

Page 215

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

2.6.

In promoting the West Edinburgh SDA, the SESPlan authorities recognise its important
strategic location close to major road networks, adjacent to Edinburgh Airport and served
by the Edinburgh Tram Line. SESPlan also highlights that housing development in West
Edinburgh will be promoted where it complements major business proposals.

2.7.

The major allocation impacting on the future of land at Castle Gogar is the proposed
International Business Gateway (IBG) which runs roughly west-east from land adjacent to
the airport and includes the whole of the Castle Gogar lands (covering the previously
developed modern homes in the grounds of Castle Gogar and the field that is the subject to
this application).

2.8.

Even though the Castle Gogar ‘estate’ is within the IBG allocation, it is outwith the area
subject to the ongoing masterplanning exercise. This is merely recognition of the existing
built form at Castle Gogar.

2.9.

Whilst the SESPlan Housing section mainly deals with how each authority will allocate land
for housing development through each of their LDP processes, it does highlight the
importance of maintaining a five-year hosing land supply and that whenever possible these
allocations should be made in the SDA’s.

2.10.

There are a large number of very significant and/or constrained potential development sites
across the SESPlan region. It is entirely reasonable to assume (as the SESPlan does) that
many of these units will be developed in the period post-2019 (and potentially post 2024).
Important as these allocations are, they are not going to contribute to the five-year or even
ten-year land supply (in their entirety).

2.11.

It is also worth noting that a five-year supply should relate to housing completions, ‘roofs
over heads’ so to speak. It is easy to allocate land for housing that theoretically delivers
sufficient housing numbers to meet short, medium and long-term demand, but it is
something quite different to see homes completed that then contribute towards alleviating
the housing shortage.

2.12.

Against this backdrop Local Authorities are encouraged to employ an element of flexibility
in allocating sufficient land to meet demand, but also in securing windfall development on
previously unallocated and unidentified residential development sites.

2.13.

This is reflected in Policies 5 and 6 of the SESPlan, the latter of which goes further in
allowing the flexibility to support new housing development outwith the local plan
timetable.

Page 216

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

2.14.

2.15.

Paragraph 116 and Policy 7 then go a step further stating that greenfield sites can be
granted planning permission for residential development outwith the LDP timetable in
order to maintain a 5 year housing land supply providing the site’s meet the following
criteria:
•

“The development will be in keeping with the character of settlement and local area;

•

The development will not undermine green belt objectives; and

•

Any additional infrastructure required as a result of the development is either committed or
to be funded by the developer.”

In SESPlan terms, the application site at Castle Gogar is of limited significance. Five
additional units will have little impact on the overall housing supply issues facing the
SESPlan area in the coming years. However:
•

it will constitute development on an effective site that would contribute to the immediate
five year land supply;

•

the development proposed would be in-keeping with its immediate context (as highlighted in
the planning history section above), reflecting the continued appropriate development of
land at Castle Gogar within the additional context of the setting of the Castle;

•

The proposed development is of a high design quality, catering for a specific market sector
not well serviced in Edinburgh and on an eminently sustainable location close to Edinburgh
Airport and with a choice of means of transport within easy reach.

2016 Edinburgh Local Development Plan
2.16.

The Edinburgh LDP was adopted in
November 2016 and remains the extant
Local Development Plan offering the
Council’s most up to date planning policies.
Although the application site is too small to
be considered in depth as a LDP proposal,
we have tested the proposal against
relevant policies.

2.17.

At Part 1, Section 3, the IBG is identified as
a Special Economic Area (cross referenced
to Policy EMP6). It highlights the
commitment to create a major economic
development opportunity to attract inward
investment and additional jobs to Scotland.

Page 217

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

2.18.

Policy EMP6 sets out the criteria for the IBG and housing is identified as a potential land
use ‘as a component of a business-led mixed uses proposal’. This application is proposing
the development of additional high quality new homes which will complement the existing
residential uses at this location, as well as being ideally located for employees working at
the IBG/Airport/RBS and beyond.

2.19.

The proposed development at Castle Gogar will complement the future plans for this area
of Edinburgh whilst the limited scale of development will not prejudice any wider
employment use proposals that may have an element of residential development. This is a
very site-specific proposal, both in terms of the land being available under a single
ownership and in being able to respond to the common design character evident
throughout the site and especially in the various iterations of new build homes over the
past 15 years.

2.20.

Section 2 of the LDP looks at Design Principles for New Development seeking to ensure
that new development is of the highest quality, encouraging integrated and sustainable
development in creating distinctive places that will enhance the special character of
Edinburgh.

2.21.

Great care has been taken, with all the phases of development at Castle Gogar to ensure
that a common design character has been adopted, typically a clean, modern approach,
picking up on some key design elements of the Castle, whilst also creating interesting and
high quality homes, fit for modern living.

2.22.

We have continued this ethos with this final proposal for development at Castle Gogar
Rigg. The new homes will be high quality, appropriate and will not have a detrimental
impact on the surrounding area.

2.23.

Each of the phases have been delivered under a single ownership (before individual homes
have subsequently been sold), ensuring control in the delivery of the development but
perhaps more importantly, an assurance over the design detail, enabling the overall
character of Castle Gogar Rigg to evolve appropriately and attractively.

Page 218

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

2.24.

The applicant is also a resident of Castle Gogar Rigg. This continues to result in great care
being taken in the design and maintenance of the wider site, and it is the applicant that has
overseen and funded the significant refurbishment works to the listed bridge over the
Gogar Burn just before you reach the application site.

2.25.

The applicant has lived at Castle Gogar Rigg since it was developed in 2004/2005 and is
invested in its future not simply as a developer but as a local resident. He is also
responsible for ensuring that the wider landscape has been maintained, whether through
grass cutting or more complex tree maintenance (ultimately in removal and replacement)
and this dedication ensures that in the longer-term it is the wider setting of Castle Gogar
itself that benefits (with no input from its owner).

2.26.

Furthermore the proposals accord with design policies Des2, Des3 and Des4 as below.

2.27.

Des2 - Co-ordinated Development - These proposals will not have any impact on the
development of the much wider International Business Gateway of which Castle Gogar is a
part (in terms of the LDP allocation boundary) and indeed the provision of high-end homes
at this location further complement important nearby business destinations (Edinburgh
Airport, Edinburgh Park, RBS Headquarters and the IBG).

Page 219

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

2.28.

Des3 – Incorporating and Enhancing Existing and Potential Features – as has already been
highlighted, we see this proposal as the completion of the considered, high quality
development of the Castle Gogar Rigg site. Taking its lead from the Castle itself and the
subsequent enabling development, the site has clearly got the potential to be completed
as an attractive, desirable and sustainable place to live and ultimately creating a wellmaintained, high-quality setting for the Castle, despite the limited relationship it has with
its immediate surroundings.

2.29.

Des4 – Impact on Setting – the common design characteristics running through the
existing and proposed development will ensure that the proposed new homes will have a
positive impact on the character and setting of the existing development at Castle Gogar
Rigg. We address the specific setting of Castle Gogar later in this document (alongside the
Heritage Statement as prepared by Simpson & Brown). By use of materials, and key design
criteria, height, colour, orientation etc. this final phase of Castle Gogar will complement
what has gone before in completing the appropriate and high quality neighbourhood.

2.30.

Policy Des5 – Amenity – the proposals will not have any detrimental impacts on
neighbouring properties and will complement them in terms of design and continued
residential use. The proposals will also meet other criteria of Policy Des5.

Page 220

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

2.31.

With regards to the specific development of the site, Policy ENV3 deals with the setting of
Listed Buildings. Development that has been completed within the extended curtilage of
Castle Gogar (walled garden etc.) has already impacted significantly on the setting of the
building. This was a calculated approach to ensure the building’s refurbishment, even
though it clearly no longer dominates its immediate surrounds as it once did.

2.32.

This proposed development to the south of the main Castle entrance is of an appropriate
scale and design to complement the homes already permitted and built, and importantly
with regards to Policy ENV3, will have no detrimental impact on the setting of the listed
building. In fact, and as consistently stated, we strongly contend that in creating a highquality small-scale neighbourhood in and around the grounds of Castle Gogar, we are
seeking to create a setting of the highest quality, which whilst not exposing what is
essentially a large private house, seemingly impenetrable to views from outwith its
immediate boundary, creates an attractive, well-maintained setting.

2.33.

Castle Gogar is essentially hidden from view by high walls, an impenetrable gate and
existing tall boundary vegetation. It does not interact with its immediate surroundings but
perhaps more importantly when assessing setting and impact, there are few clues to its
very existence. The application site (in its existing state) does not offer any clues as to what
lies beyond the gate and walls/trees, the Castle is an invisible element of the site.

2.34.

Regardless, and given the quality of the existing development at Castle Gogar Rigg, it is
integral that the design and layout of the new homes did not jar either with the existing
homes, or damaged what setting there is for the main Castle. In creating a well laid out
modern and attractive development, we believe that we are proposing the final piece in
the overall picture for Castle Gogar which will complete a setting for Castle Gogar of the
highest design quality.

2.35.

Furthermore and at significant cost, the applicant has painstakingly restored the bridge
over the Gogar Burn, enhancing its setting and seeking to ensure that it’s future condition
and maintenance is secured. This benefits the whole of the Gogar Rigg development (both
practically and in terms of its attractive restoration) whilst also providing a historic link and
clue to what lies beyond, even though the Castle is completely hidden from view.

2.36.

Policy Hou1 - New Housing Development - the proposals at Castle Gogar Rig arguably
comply with criteria ‘b’ and/or ‘e’. There is no issue with housing mix or housing density as
the development is entirely appropriate for the site in presenting a high quality, low
density solution in-keeping with what has gone before. Given the presence of the existing
development, the proposals will further add to the housing mix of the site with the
development of 5 executive homes of a similar scale and design to those existing.

Page 221

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

Pre-application Engagement
2.37.

Throughout the process (enabling development and the two subsequent applications for
planning permission) there has always been an encouraging level of pre-application and
post submission engagement with the City of Edinburgh Council. In keeping with this
inclusive and proactive approach, we submitted pre-application details to the Council in
February 2018.

2.38.

We received a short response in April 2018 stating that there were concerns over the
setting of the listed building and access arrangements to the site off the A8. Needless to say
we were disappointed with this response and in working with OPEN, Simpson & Brown and
SWECO we have sought to address these concerns and lodge a comprehensive and credible
application.

2.39.

Throughout the process, we have always sought to work with the Council, and this was no
different, but in this instance we fundamentally disagree with the concerns raised, and this
stance has been underpinned by the findings of the work undertaken by the other specialist
members of the design team.

2.40.

No attempt was made by Council officials to engage further with the project team, to meet
and better understand the concerns, and the proposed solutions or detailed responses to
the concerns. We believe that the application represents an entirely appropriate response
to the evolving characteristics of the application site and its surroundings.

Page 222

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

3.

CONTEXTUAL ANALYSIS
The Site

3.1.

The application site comprises part of the former garden grounds of Castle Gogar. The site
is situated approximately six miles from Edinburgh city centre and 0.25 miles from the
Gogar Roundabout on the north side of Glasgow Road (A8).

3.2.

Castle Gogar is an L-plan baronial style tower house dating from 1625 with circa 1700 and
later 19th century extensions. It is constructed in white harled rubble sandstone with
sandstone dressings, painted window margins, sash and case windows and a slate roof.

3.3.

To the south-west of the castle lies a former stable block, now restored and with a rebuilt
cottage forms a terrace of three houses in a single storey rectangular plan. This block is
separated from the house by a rubble sandstone garden wall with rock faced banded ashlar
gatepiers and cast iron gates.

3.4.

The walled garden is a rectangular structure measuring 0.67 hectares enclosed by rubble
sandstone walls measuring between approximately 3.5 – 5m in height. The east wall is red
brick faced on the garden elevation. Prior to the initial enabling development of the site,
the garden was substantially overgrown with some trees and hedgerows.

3.5.

The original castle grounds occupy approximately 5.8 hectares, excluding the approach
road. The latter is a mature, tree-lined, single track drive approximately 600m in length
running north then west from Glasgow Road.

Page 223

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

3.6.

Gogar Bridge forms part of the drive where it crosses the Gogar Burn. The bridge is a
category B listed single-span rubble sandstone structure with a hog's back profile, dating
from 1672.

3.7.

The drive terminates (at the A8) with banded ashlar sandstone gatepiers with cast/wrought
iron gates. The gatehouse on the west side of the main entrance is a rectangular-plan single
storey rendered rubble sandstone building with a slate pitched roof.

3.8.

There are groups and bands of mature deciduous trees within the grounds and an
overgrown track leading to the terraced houses dissects the southern section of the site.

3.9.

The house, stables, walled garden, gatehouse and garden walls are category A listed.

3.10.

Gogar Mains, a scheduled ancient monument, is located in an arable field adjacent to the
A8, approximately 400m south of the castle. A secondary runway of Edinburgh Airport
adjoins the north and east boundaries of the site with the terminal building located
approximately one mile to the north west of Castle Gogar. The Royal Bank of Scotland
headquarters lies directly south of the castle on the opposite side of the A8. The
surrounding undeveloped land is primarily agricultural.

3.11.

The application sites within the wiser setting of the Castle Gogar site to the south of the
Castle itself. It also includes the site that was originally granted planning permission for a
single office building on what is currently a piece of open space. The proposals extend along
the main access drive towards but short of the bridge over the Gogar Burn.

3.12.

The application site is generally level – there are major changes in levels.

Page 224

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

Neighbourhood Context
3.13.

The site is within the Castle Gogar Rigg development. As noted above, planning permission
reference 04/02302/FUL and Listed Building Consent 04/02302/LBC approved the
restoration of Castle Gogar for use a family residence, enabled by development of the
existing stable block into two houses, with subsequent rebuilding of an adjoining cottage,
the erection of five large detached houses and an office building.

3.14.

The restored stable block has rubble sandstone walls, timber framed astragalled windows
and semi-glazed timber lined doors. The roof has a natural slate finish and single and
double dormers with timber framed astragalled windows on both pitches. The cottage at
the south end of the stable block has been rebuilt with new and reclaimed sandstone with
similar detailing to the stable block. Parking spaces for the dwellings are located to the
north east and south of this block.

3.15.

Two of the new houses are located within the south west and south east corners of the
walled garden. A third house straddles the southern boundary of the walled garden in
place of the former greenhouses and required removal of sections of this wall. The fourth
house is situated opposite, to the south on the site of the former piggery. The fifth house is
30 metres west of the fourth.

3.16.

These houses are modern style two storey geometric structures, finished in white render
with areas of cedar panelling. The windows and sliding screens are aluminium faced timber
framed and the doors are constructed in cedar faced timber. The mono pitch and pyramid
roofs are finished in tern coated stainless steel with standing seam joints and the flat roofs
are covered in lead appearance Sarnafil. The two houses within the walled garden are
accessed by 3.5m openings in the stone wall. Parking is provided in detached garages and
spaces.

3.17.

The above consents included an L-shaped plan single storey and attic office block
measuring approximately 680m2 in area (after variations) to be erected to the south of
house 4 and west of the stable block. The proposed building is traditional in overall form
with a pitched slate roof including arched and flat roofed dormers. The detailing is
contemporary and the external finishes match those of the new houses. Eight open parking
spaces will serve this part of the development. This building has not been erected.

3.18.

As outlined at the beginning of this statement, Application 15/01051/FUL was granted
planning permission in September 2015 for the development of two apartment blocks and
a single detached dwelling. Application 17/00202/FUL was subsequently granted
permission in March 2017 for the erection of a further single detached dwelling house on
land at Castle Gogar Rigg.

Page 225

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

3.19.

The design of the apartment blocks and two additional homes has closely followed the
character of the homes built under the previous 2004 permissions with a modern
appearance, a predominance of glazing and white render. All the properties are of high
design quality and internal/external specification meeting the demands of the executive
housing market.

3.20.

It is clear that the Castle Gogar site has evolved significantly over the past 15 years and it is
intended that the five new proposed would follow the lead of the already completed new
homes and apartments, ensuring a coordinated and attractive approach, creating a high
quality, well-maintained and attractive wider setting for Castle Gogar.

Views
3.21.

The Castle Gogar site is largely hidden from public view due to the distance from the
Glasgow Road, the Airport to the north-east and at the time of the original development,
the fields to the south and west. The relatively recent introduction of the Tram link to the
Airport has created new viewpoints from the south and west.

3.22.

The proposed new homes will appear as part of the continued and coordinated
development of Castle Gogar Rigg, mirroring the prevailing design characteristics of the
existing modern homes and providing an interesting backdrop to passing tram passengers.

3.23.

The new homes will in no way obscure views of Gogar Castle as the building is not visible
from any existing roads or tram routes. In a site that has evolved over the past 15 years to
create a number of high-end, attractive, modern homes, the proposed five new homes will
be an entirely appropriate final stage of this wider development.

Character and identity
3.24.

The original setting of Castle Gogar has a compromised character and identity. No longer a
historic house set within generous grounds surrounded by farmland, it is now a grouping of
houses, sitting at the edge of the former Green Belt within what will eventually become the
International Business Gateway development.

3.25.

The approach from the Glasgow Road through the original gates and past the gatehouse is
disconnected from the tree lined drive by the tram line and with the tram depot visible to
the east there is no feeling of a grand entrance to a site of any historic or architectural
significance.

3.26.

The A8 and tram line (and to a lesser extent the proximity of Edinburgh Airport and the RBS
Headquarter building) have eroded the wider setting of Castle Gogar over many years. The
creation of the International Business Gateway will further alter the setting and significance
of the site. We are trying to recreate that sense of arrival, that there is something
worthwhile behind the gates.

Page 226

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

3.27.

As you approach the application site from the south, the drive is largely hidden with limited
views until the Castle gates are reached and it becomes apparent the Castle is private,
hidden from view with no interaction with the new houses. You do however get a sense of
arrival into ‘The Rigg’ and the proposed new homes alongside the continued restorative
works to the Listed bridge over the Gogar Burn and the extensive landscape and
replacement replanting of dead or dying older trees, will enhance both the setting of Gogar
Rigg and what is left of the sense of arrival at Castle Gogar.

3.28.

The application site, to the south and west of the access road (with the exception of the
proposed house on the site of the permitted office building) is currently open ground with
some trees though no discernible planting scheme (though in truth, the application site
forms the construction compound for the earlier phases of development).

3.29.

The applicant owns the access road and surrounding verges and open space hence his
commitment to the long-term landscape setting, restoration of the bridge and general high
quality setting of Castle Gogar Rigg.

3.30.

The main feature of the Rigg site is that the new houses have created a new neighbourhood
within existing physical and visual boundaries. Further development within these
boundaries would not change this character or the identity of the community as a discrete,
high-end housing development and in our view presents an entirely appropriate bookend
to the development of the site creating an active final phase of development.

Public Transport/Local
3.31.

There are good transport links within a short distance of the application site. The A90
(Glasgow Road) is accessible at the end of the drive leading to Edinburgh Airport and the
motorway network radiating from Newbridge to the west and to the east towards the Gyle
and the City By-pass and on towards the City Centre.

3.32.

Regular buses on the A90 and the tram line with a stop opposite the RBS Gogar building
offers alternative transport to the City, the Airport and beyond. There is also a dedicated
cycle path alongside the A90 road.

3.33.

All of the above options are accessed via the private drive, which as mentioned earlier is
approximately 600m long. Preliminary images of the IBG Masterplan suggest there may be
opportunities for alternative connections between the Rigg site and the IBG site, though
that development may be quite some time in the future.

Page 227

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

Constraints and Opportunities
3.34.

The main constraint to development within this site is how proposals might affect the
setting of the listed building, landscape and grounds. These considerations have been
central to the original development permissions and all subsequent applications and
enquiries.

3.35.

The enabling development was considered to be best located in relatively close proximity
to the Castle, stables and cottage whilst utilising the walled garden. This strategy left areas
of informal, unused and not particularly attractive or noteworthy land to the south of the
new development. The south-west portion of this ‘surplus’ land has now been developed,
again for high quality and attractive new homes leaving the application site as the
remaining area of undeveloped land.

3.36.

The role of Castle Gogar has changed considerably and is now the ‘hidden gem’ existing
behind the high walls and trees surrounding its immediate garden ground. There are few if
any views of the Castle from outwith the site and what the applicant is attempting to do is
ensure that the remainder of the land is developed in line with the character and perhaps
most importantly, the quality of what has gone before. The direct but beneficial and
appropriate consequence of this is that the Castle will remain as the somewhat reluctant
centrepiece of a very high quality development.

3.37.

The Council has consistently expressed concerns about the capacity of the road and
junction onto the A8 and this was repeated in the Council’s response to our latest preapplication submission. Our understanding is that the Transportation department is
unwilling to support additional housing development beyond that already approved.

3.38.

There have been previous discussions with regards to the impact of the planning
permission for office development in terms of the perceived/permitted level of traffic
generated by an office building. Once this use is removed from the site, it ‘frees’ up a
significant level of road capacity and potential daily traffic movements, and far more than
residential properties require.

3.39.

For a relatively remote office building it would seem more likely that user vehicle
movement will be frequent resulting in a high demand for on-site parking creating and
exacerbating pressure on the existing access road and site capacity.

3.40.

This therefore represents a final opportunity to remove what must now be seen as an
incompatible use from the site by granting permission for this final phase of residential
development in place of an office building.

3.41.

Previous applications looked at removing the office permission as part of the overall control
of the future development of the site, but this was never required or formalised but we do
recognise it was part of earlier conversations.

Page 228

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

3.42.

In truth and as the supporting Transportation Assessment confirms, the likely traffic
generated by the residential properties is far less than the still permitted office building and
of such limited impact that there are no concerns around road capacity or road safety. In
essence, traffic impacts (either capacity or safety) should be of no concern in the
determination of this application.

3.43.

To emphasise this point, the Council implemented the tram line at the edge of the
application site access road, immediately limiting the capacity for traffic turning into the
site to back-up before it enters the A8 carriageway.

3.44.

This was done with full knowledge of the permission for an office use at Castle Gogar Rigg.
What is being proposed and that development already permitted, still does not equal the
anticipated impacts of that permission and in real terms reduces future potential conflict at
the southern edge of the access road to Castle Gogar Rigg (which regardless SWECO has
stated is within acceptable limits.

Page 229

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

4. DESIGN RESPONSE
Concept
4.1.

4.2.

4.5.

The architectural design concept for
the proposals follows the lead given
by the new houses of the Rigg
development. Buildings are mainly
detached with contemporary design
features of geometric forms and
with flat and mono-pitch roofs.

The location of development on the southern boundary of the site has already been
accepted with the development of the two apartment buildings and the additional new
home (as per permission 15/01051/FUL). The proposed detached houses take a clear
reference from the existing modern housing and reacts to the alignment of the apartment
blocks, existing trees, boundaries and access road.
4.3.

As you approach Castle Gogar over
the refurbished listed bridge the
two proposed houses take their
lead as new gate lodges, longer and
narrower than the more established
homes already built, and presenting
a modern and attractive first view
of the design ethos at ‘The Rigg’.

4.4.

The two new houses along the
southern boundary of the site
almost act as symbolic gate posts
funnelling views and attention
towards the invisible Castle beyond,
essentially identical homes handed
so they present the lower elements
to each other revealing the gatepost
imagery.

Finally, the fifth house is positioned where the office block was intended. Set back from the
road and respecting the larger homes to the west and the converted stables to the east the
house will reflect the transition from the old buildings in the east and north east of the site,
to the modern elements further south and south-wet

Page 230

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

Setting
4.6.

The design of these proposals has kept the quality and setting of the existing landscape and
boundary treatments to the forefront of layout considerations.

4.7.

The application site has been carefully considered and proposals developed to respect the
essential quality of landscape and trees whilst paying due respect to the rhythm and
character of the existing development.

4.8.

The application site is currently open ground (in actual fact the site is a building compound
for the development already permitted and nearing completion) with very limited role in
the setting of Castle Gogar. This area was part of the Castle grounds but there is no
established planting scheme or evidence of a historic or planned garden.

4.9.

There will be a programme of replacement tree planting to create a high-quality attractive
environment for existing and future residents. There has been a programme of landscape
management by the applicant over the years dealing appropriately with existing trees as
they have shown signs of deterioration. The proposals will ensure that this programme
continues enhancing the setting for Castle Gogar and its neighbouring properties.

4.10.

The quality of the proposals will provide the final phase of development at Castle Gogar
Rigg and create an appropriate wider setting for Castle Gogar which will remain the hidden
gem behind the modern interpretation of estate buildings. Despite its lack of interaction
with its immediate surroundings, the finished neighbourhood at Castle Gogar Rigg will give
the Castle a much grander, high quality and appropriate setting then if the site had been
left untouched.

4.11.

Existing views from the west and south will essentially remain unchanged. The two houses
as you approach Castle Gogar will be out-of-sight due to existing buildings, level changes
(beyond the site) and their positioning. The house on the site of the permitted office
building cannot be seen from outside the site, whilst the two gate-post houses (as
described above) will be an indistinguishable extension of the existing development, having
a negligible, neutral impact on the setting of Castle Gogar as a whole yet permitting
glimpses through the trees and buildings to what might lie beyond.

4.12.

Further context with regards to views to and from both the application site and Castle
Gogar needs to be considered given the future International Business Gateway
development (of which Castle Gogar is part of the allocation) which will dramatically change
the setting and landscape of the whole of the area to the south and west of the site (a
wider setting that has already been hugely compromised by Edinburgh Airport and the
Gogar Tram Depot).

Page 231

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

Sustainability
4.13.

The main objectives of sustainable design are to reduce, or avoid, depletion of critical
resources like energy, water, and raw materials; prevent environmental degradation caused
by facilities and infrastructure throughout their life cycle; and create built environments
that are liveable, comfortable, safe, and productive. While the definition of sustainable
building design is constantly changing, certain principles persist and will be incorporated in
the detail design of the proposals:
•

Optimise Site Potential – Consideration is given to the location, orientation, and
landscaping of the buildings and how they affect local ecosystems, transportation
methods, and energy use. The existing site has ample capacity for additional
buildings using existing roads and services. Surface water drainage can be managed
on site and the landscape design can support and encourage the flora and wildlife of
the area.

•

Optimise Energy Use – Building design is focused on reducing energy load, increase
efficiency, and maximising the use of renewable energy sources. High levels of
insulation, energy recovery and smart controls for environmental systems will be
utilised to move towards low energy useage and reduce dependence on fossil fuelderived energy.

•

Protect and Conserve Water - Sustainable buildings should use water efficiently, and
reuse or recycle water for on-site use, when feasible.

•

Optimise Building Space and Material Use – The use of materials must maximize
their value, prevent production pollution and conserve resources. A sustainable
building is designed and operated to use and reuse materials in the most productive
and sustainable way across its life cycle. The materials used in sustainable building
should minimize life-cycle environmental impacts. Environmentally preferable
materials will be selected where possible.

•

Enhance Internal Environmental Quality - The internal environmental quality of a
building has a significant impact on occupant health, comfort, and productivity.
Among other attributes, a sustainable building maximizes daylighting, has
appropriate ventilation and moisture control, optimizes acoustic performance, and
avoids the use of materials with toxic emissions. Interior design will emphasize
occupant control over systems such as lighting and temperature.

•

Optimise Operational and Maintenance Practices – Consideration will be given to
operating and maintenance issues during the design phase contributing to improved
environments, reduced energy and resource costs. Specification of materials and
systems will aim to simplify and reduce maintenance requirements; require less
water, energy, and toxic chemicals and cleaners to maintain; and be cost-effective

Page 232

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

and reduce life-cycle costs. Additionally, detailed design will include meters in order
to track the progress of sustainability initiatives.

Transport/Access
4.14.

As described in Section 3 of the statement the site enjoys excellent transport connections
nearby. It is also likely that most transport links to the site will be by private vehicle using
the existing single track with passing places access road.

4.15.

The key transportation issues are dealt with in the accompanying transportation statement
prepared by SWECO, clearly concluding that the site can accommodate the existing and
proposed traffic generation without any detrimental impacts on junction capacity, road
capacity or road safety. SWECO also looked at the scenario where we are not seeking to
offset the impact of the proposed development against the permitted office development.
The development is acceptable regardless.

Page 233

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

5.

SUMMARY & CONCLUSIONS

5.1.

Over the past 15 years, previous planning permissions have seen the development of seven
new homes, eight apartments and two converted stable buildings within the extended
curtilage of Castle Gogar.

5.2.

As a result of these existing developments, the site now has an unfinished feel to it and this
application seeks to secure permission for the final phase of development which we believe
represents the logical conclusion of development along the southern boundary of the site.

5.3.

This application represents an opportunity to introduce further limited high quality
residential development to the site, complementing existing homes, sitting comfortably and
appropriately in its setting and providing five executive style homes at an attractive and
marketable location.

5.4.

The planning context of the site has changed in the relatively recent past. The site had
previously been part of the Edinburgh Green Belt, but now falls within the major
International Business Gateway (IBG) allocation (running eastwards from Edinburgh
Airport). The proposals would be complementary to the long-term aspiration for this area
of Edinburgh.

5.5.

Planning Policy encourages appropriate residential development as part of the Strategic
Development Areas (SESPlan) of which the IBG is one and as this statement concludes, the
proposals comply with other policies relating to residential development and design. The
houses will also be built to meet and exceed modern standard in terms of sustainability,
being attractive and environmentally friendly. All other things being considered equal, the
principle of residential development at Castle Gogar Rigg is established.

5.6.

The proposals seek to introduce a modern, simple yet high quality design, taking
appropriate reference from the existing built form and acting as an appropriate conclusion
to development at Castle Gogar Rigg.

5.7.

The wider setting of Castle Gogar has been compromised over time, whether by the airport
to the north and east, the tram depot at Gogar and the development of the Royal Bank of
Scotland Headquarters to the south. The International Business Gateway represents the
latest and alongside the Airport, most impactful, development and will further, irreparably
change the wider context of Castle Gogar.

5.8.

This final piece in the jigsaw at Castle Gogar Rigg will ensure that development within the
immediate environs of Castle Gogar is of the highest quality and although the Castle does
not respond to, nor interact with ‘The Rigg’, the completion of the modern development
will ensure that the Castle sits as the hidden gem amongst a very high-quality setting.

Page 234

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

5.9.

We have sought to add further interest to the site, with the new homes acting as an
attractive introduction to the site, whilst Houses 5 and 6 provide imaginary gate-posts to
what lies beyond the high wall and mature landscaping. Whilst creating modern, attractive
and marketable homes at this accessible and appropriate location, we are also ensuring the
high quality setting of the wider Castle site.

5.10.

The application site and access road are under single ownership, not only ensuring the
delivery of the new homes, but also (and has been the case over recent years) ensuring the
maintenance and upkeep of the development. The applicant is also a resident of Castle
Gogar Rigg and has already spent a great deal of time and money restoring the bridge over
the Gogar Burn, itself, a listed structure. This sense of responsibility and stewardship will
continue into the future.

5.11.

We have instructed further professional input with regards to Heritage (Simpson & Brown),
landscape (OPEN) and transportation (SWECO) to ensure that we have assessed the
pertinent issues in the determination of this application. Further limited development will
have little or no impact on road capacity or safety, whilst both the Landscape and Visual
Analysis and Heritage Statement informed and guided the design process.

5.12.

The evolution of this site over the past 15 years, and following decades of decay and
deterioration, has brought Castle Gogar back to its former glory as a building, the
compromise being the development within the wider site.

5.13.

We strongly contend that these proposals offer an appropriate and high quality
development opportunity to complete this discreet neighbourhood in an attractive and
high quality way and maintaining and enhancing the character of Castle Gogar Rigg.

Page 235

Transport Statement
Sweco UK Limited
Sweco 2nd Floor Quay 2
139 Fountainbridge
Edinburgh, EH3 9QG
+44 131 550 6300

Castle Gogar Rigg
Residential Development

06/08/2019
Project Reference: 118330
Document Reference: 118330/Transport Statement
Revision: [1]
Prepared For: Scott Developments

Page 236
www.sweco.co.uk

1 of 14

Status / Revisions
Rev.

Date

Reason
for issue

Prepared

Reviewed

Approved

[1]

06.08.19

Draft

CD

05.0819

RM

06.08.19

RM

06.08.19

[2]

[00.00.00]

[Text]

[XX]

[00.00.00]

[XX]

[00.00.00]

[XX]

[00.00.00]

[3]

[00.00.00]

[Text]

[XX]

[00.00.00]

[XX]

[00.00.00]

[XX]

[00.00.00]

© Sweco 2019. This document is a Sweco confidential document; it may not be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted in any form or by any
means, electronic, photocopying, recording or otherwise disclosed in whole or in part to any third party without our express prior written consent. It should be
used by you and the permitted disclosees for the purpose for which it has been submitted and for no other.

Reg. Office Address:
Sweco UK Limited
Grove House
Mansion Gate Drive
Leeds, LS7 4DN
+44 113 262 0000

Reg. No.: 2888385
Reg. Office: Leeds
www.sweco.co.uk

Sweco UK Limited
Sweco 2nd Floor Quay 2
139 Fountainbridge
Edinburgh, EH3 9QG
+44 131 550 6300

Page 237

2 of 14

Table of contents
1

2

Introduction............................................................................................................................. 1
1.1

Background ..................................................................................................................... 1

1.2

Report Structure .............................................................................................................. 1

Development Proposals and Site Accessibility ...................................................................... 2
2.1

Site Location ................................................................................................................... 2

2.2

Development Content ..................................................................................................... 2

•

apartment blocks, containing a total of 8 apartments (planning permission granted); .......... 2

•

1 detached dwelling house (planning permission granted); and............................................ 2

•

5 detached residential dwellings. ........................................................................................... 2

3

2.3

Access Strategy .............................................................................................................. 3

2.4

Accessibility .................................................................................................................... 3

Travel Demands ..................................................................................................................... 5
3.1

Trip Generation and Mode Share ................................................................................... 5

3.1.1

Proposed Housing ..................................................................................................... 5

3.1.2

Extant Planning Permission ...................................................................................... 5

3.1.3 Scenario 1 - Comparison of the Consented Office Development vs the Residential
Proposals ............................................................................................................................... 5
3.1.4
3.2
4

Trip Distribution ............................................................................................................... 6

Traffic Impact Study ............................................................................................................... 7
4.1

Introduction ..................................................................................................................... 7

4.2

Analysis ........................................................................................................................... 7

4.2.1

Access Road / A8 Visibility Splays ............................................................................ 8

4.2.2

Vehicle Storage Capacity .......................................................................................... 8

4.2.3

Tram Crossing ........................................................................................................... 9

4.3
5

Scenario 2 - Consented Office Development plus Residential Proposals ................ 6

Accident Analysis .......................................................................................................... 10

Summary and Conclusions .................................................................................................. 11
5.1

Summary ....................................................................................................................... 11

5.2

Conclusions .................................................................................................................. 11

Transport Statement, Castle Gogar Rigg
118330/Transport Statement, Rev.: [1], 06/08/2019

Page 238
3 of 14

1

Introduction

1.1
Background
Sweco was commissioned to undertake a Transport Statement (TS) in support of a planning application for
further residential development at Castle Gogar Rigg, located in the west of Edinburgh (Ref: 15/01051/FUL
and 17/00202/FUL).
This report assesses the development proposals in terms of accessibility and operational impact of the access
road from its junction with the A8 to the point at which it crosses the tram line. The assessment includes a
review of geometries, visibilities, and storage capacity.
The scope of the transport input to be provided was agreed with the City of Edinburgh Council, including an
agreement that a TS would be sufficient to support the planning application.
1.2
Report Structure
The report comprises the following chapters:
•
•
•
•

Review of development proposals and summary of the site accessibility;
Travel Demands;
Traffic Impact Study; and
Summary and Conclusions.

Transport Statement, Castle Gogar Rigg
118330/Transport Statement, Rev.: [1], 06/08/2019

Page 239

1 of 14

2

Development Proposals and Site Accessibility

2.1
Site Location
The site is located in the west of Edinburgh and to the north of the A8. It is bound to the north by Edinburgh
Airport with agricultural land/vacant land on the other sides. There are a number of properties occupied or
under construction within the overall site. Figure 2.1 provides a site location plan.
Figure 2.1 – Site Location Plan

2.2
Development Content
It is understood that the following development is consented/proposed at Castle Gogar Rigg:

•
•
•

apartment blocks, containing a total of 8 apartments (planning permission granted);
1 detached dwelling house (planning permission granted); and
5 detached residential dwellings.

An extant planning permission also exists for the conversion of a ruined stable block into 2 residential
properties and the erection of a further 5 residential properties and an 8,000 sq.ft GFA office block. It is
considered that, at this time, there are no plans to reapply for the extant permission pertaining to the
development of an office building on the site. This Transport Statement also considers a scenario where the
office block is constructed with the introduction of a further five houses.

Transport Statement, Castle Gogar Rigg
118330/Transport Statement, Rev.: [1], 06/08/2019

Page 240

2 of 14

For clarity, the following scenarios are considered:
•

Scenario 1 – 5 residential dwellings and the removal of the consented office development; and

•

Scenario 2 – Consented office development + 5 residential dwellings.

2.3
Access Strategy
Access to the site by all modes of transport is via a quiet rural/residential road, which is connected to the A8
by a three-arm priority junction, this operates as a left in/left out only junction. Foot/cycleway provision exists
along the north side of the A8 as it passes the junction, offering access to the surrounding public transport
provision and off-road cycle network.
The access road is a single lane carriageway throughout, with passing points evenly spaced along its length.
A tram crossing is also present on the access road, at which point the road widens to two lanes. It should be
noted that there are two listed gate piers on either side of the access road at the junction with the A8 which
results in one-way traffic on a short section of the road, with priority given to those approaching from the A8.
Given the low numbers of vehicles using this access, it does not result in capacity or road safety issues (a
review of www.crashmap.co.uk indicates that no accidents have been recorded at this junction in the last 5
years).
2.4
Accessibility
Given that the distance to local amenities exceeds 1.6km (>20minute walk), it is expected that the vast
majority of pedestrian trips will be associated with accessing the nearest public transport services on the A8.
The nearest bus stops and tram halt are within approximately 800m (10minute walk) of the site (refer to Figure
2.2 for the locations of public transport stops relative to the site). The services stopping on the A8 provide
direct public transport access to employment and facilities at South Gyle, Edinburgh Park, and the City Centre.
Figure 2.2 – Walking Provision

Transport Statement, Castle Gogar Rigg
118330/Transport Statement, Rev.: [1], 06/08/2019

Page 241

3 of 14

With respect to cycling, Quiet Route 9 runs within 800metres of the site adjacent to the A8. Towards the city
centre it connects with Quiet Route 8 and the National Cycle Network (NCN). This offers continuous cycle
route provision to employment at South Gyle, Edinburgh Park, and the city centre. Figure 2.3 highlights the
available routes in the vicinity of the site and also illustrates a 30minute cycle catchment (8km).
Figure 2.3 – Cycling provision

It can be seen in Figure 2.3 that the city centre can be reached within a 30minute cycle of the site, with
employment in the west of Edinburgh within a 10minute cycle.
Further information on the available cycle routes in and around Edinburgh can be found at
https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/info/20087/cycling_and_walking/1475/explore_quiet_routes

Transport Statement, Castle Gogar Rigg
118330/Transport Statement, Rev.: [1], 06/08/2019

Page 242

4 of 14

3

Travel Demands

3.1

Trip Generation and Mode Share

3.1.1
Proposed Housing
To estimate the vehicle trip generation associated with the proposals, vehicle trip rates were extracted from
the TRICS database for ‘Houses Privately Owned’.
The vehicle trip rates and corresponding trip generation are outlined in Table 3.1. The morning and evening
peaks relate to 08:00-09:00 and 17:00-18:00 respectively, based on the TRICS data.
Table 3.1 - Vehicle Trip Rates and Trip Generation for both Existing and Proposed Development
Land Use

Units

Vehicular Trip Rates
AM Peak

Houses Privately Owned

5

Vehicular Trip Generation

PM Peak

AM Peak

PM Peak

Arr

Dep

Arr

Dep

Arr

Dep

Arr

Dep

0.142

0.379

0.335

0.19

1

2

2

1

Table 3.1 suggests that there would be approximately 3 two-way vehicle trips in the morning and evening
peak hours, respectively.
3.1.2
Extant Planning Permission
As there is an existing permission in place for the development of an 8,000sqft (743.2m 2) GFA office
development which is proposed to be changed to one residential unit, it is important to understand what level
of traffic would have likely been generated by the office should it have progressed.
Trip rates were extracted from the TRICS database for the ‘Office’ land use and applied to the consented
office GFA. The vehicular trip rates and trip generation are provided in Table 3.2.
Table 3.2 - Vehicle Trip Rate and Trip Generation for the Extant Office Development
Land Use

GFA (sq.m)

Vehicular Trip Rates
AM Peak

Office

743.2

PM Peak

Vehicular Trip Generation
AM Peak

PM Peak

Arr

Dep

Arr

Dep

Arr

Dep

Arr

Dep

1.418

0.267

0.193

1.215

11

2

1

9

A review of Table 3.2 suggests that a vehicle trip generation for the existing planning permission would have
resulted in approximately 13 and 10 two-way trips in the morning and evening peak hours, respectively.
3.1.3
Scenario 1 - Comparison of the Consented Office Development vs the Residential Proposals
A review of the trip generations for the current new proposals against those associated with the existing
permission was undertaken and is summarised in Table 3.3.
Table 3.3 - Vehicle Trip Generation for both New and Extant Proposals
Application

Vehicle trip generation
AM Peak

Consented office block
Residential proposals
Net change

Transport Statement, Castle Gogar Rigg
118330/Transport Statement, Rev.: [1], 06/08/2019

PM Peak

Arr

Dep

Arr

Dep

11

2

1

9

1

2

2

1

-10

0

+1

-8

Page 243

5 of 14

It is anticipated that the current proposals would result in a reduction of 10 and 7 two-way vehicle trips in the
morning and evening peak hours in comparison to the level of traffic which could be generated by the existing
permission.
3.1.4
Scenario 2 - Consented Office Development plus Residential Proposals
Should the client choose to deliver the consented office development plus the introduction of 5 additional
residential dwellings then the potential overall vehicle trip generation estimates are summarised in Table
3.4.
Table 3.4. Vehicle Trip Generation for the Consented Office and Residential Proposals
Application

Vehicle trip generation
AM Peak

PM Peak

Arr

Dep

Arr

Dep

Consented office block

11

2

1

9

Residential proposals

1

2

2

1

Total

12

4

3

10

With the development of both the office block and the 5 residential dwellings, it is predicted to generate 16
two-way vehicle trips in the morning peak and 13 vehicles in the evening peak. This equates to approximately
one vehicle movement every 4 minutes in the morning peak and every 5 minutes in the evening peak.
3.2
Trip Distribution
As the access road joins the A8 at a point which restricts right-turning vehicles, it is considered that 100% of
the traffic leaving the development would turn left onto the A8, with 100% turning left from the A8 when arriving
at the development.

Transport Statement, Castle Gogar Rigg
118330/Transport Statement, Rev.: [1], 06/08/2019

Page 244

6 of 14

4

Traffic Impact Study

4.1
Introduction
The Council wishes the traffic impact study to review the suitability of the A8 access junction and
the access road. As such, this Chapter describes the methodology and analysis undertaken to
assess the traffic impact and safety implications of the new proposals on the junction and access
road.
4.2
Analysis
A site visit was undertaken in October 2016 and March 2019 to check relevant junction and
access road geometries. It can be seen from Figure 4.1 that a gate pier on both sides of the
access road creates an entrance to the access road.
Figure 4.1 - Gated Piers on Access Road (Image capture: May 2018 © Google)

The width between the two piers was measured as 3.6metres. An existing priority system is in
place to facilitate the managed two-way movement of traffic. Priority is given to traffic entering
from the A8, ensuring there is no queueing back onto this strategic road.

Transport Statement, Castle Gogar Rigg
118330/Transport Statement, Rev.: [1], 06/08/2019

Page 245
7 of 14

4.2.1
Access Road / A8 Visibility Splays
In order to assess the visibility at the access road / A8 priority junction, reference was made to
the DMRB standards set out in TD41/95, which are shown in Table 4.1.
Table 4.1 - DMRB value of "Y" distance
Design speed of major road (kph)
120
“Y” distance (m)

295

100

85

70

60

50

215

160

120

90

70

As traffic from the A8 is only able to gain access from the eastbound carriageway, visibility to the
right from the access road is key. The access road achieves a visibility to the right of:
•
•

X = 4.5m
Y = 150m

The visibility to the right complies with the standards set out in the DMRB for an all-purpose trunk
road with a 40mph (c.65kph) speed limit.
4.2.2
Vehicle Storage Capacity
Consideration must also be given to the vehicle storage capacity between the listed gate piers
and the junction stop line where it meets the A8 and also between the listed gate piers and the
tram crossing on the access road. The distance between the gate piers and the access junction
crossing is illustrated in Figure 4.2.
Figure 4.2 - Distance between gated piers and give-way markings (Image capture: May 2016 © Google)

A distance of 9.8metres was measured between the stop line and the gate piers, indicating that
1 vehicle can be accommodated at the mouth of the access without causing obstruction to the
traffic on the A8.

Transport Statement, Castle Gogar Rigg
118330/Transport Statement, Rev.: [1], 06/08/2019

Page 246
8 of 14

As the traffic approaching from the A8 has priority over traffic approaching from the access road,
it is considered that this storage capacity is acceptable, with no issues observed under existing
conditions. With the addition of only 3 vehicles in each peak period as a result of the proposals,
it is expected that this will have no impact on the operation of the access junction.
4.2.3
Tram Crossing
With respect to the interaction between the access road / tram line, Figure 4.3 highlights the
distance between the gate piers and the tram crossing on the access road.
Figure 4.3 - Distance between tram crossing and gated piers (Image capture: May 2015 © Google)

A total of 37metres was measured between the gate piers and the tram crossing, which indicates
that approximately 4 vehicles could be stored without causing obstruction to the tram line.
On exit from the development, it can be seen in Figure 4.3 that there is very good forward visibility
to oncoming traffic and the appropriate signage requiring drivers to stop before crossing the tram
line. Signage can also be clearly seen giving priority to drivers entering from the A8.
At both stop lines, the visibility of the tram route and oncoming trams is very good as follows:
•

North stop line (from site)
o Visibility to the right – c.250metres
o Visibility to the left – c.150metres

Transport Statement, Castle Gogar Rigg
118330/Transport Statement, Rev.: [1], 06/08/2019

Page 247
9 of 14

•

South stop line (to the site)
o Visibility to the right – c.230metres
o Visibility to the left – c.250metres

This layout also ensures that tram drivers also have very good forward visibility of vehicles at this
location.
Given the traffic management in place at this location and the low traffic levels in both Scenarios
1 and 2, it is anticipated that there will be no impact on the operation of the tram crossing or
access road as a result of the development proposals.
4.3
Accident Analysis
A review undertaken of accidents since 2014 at the access junction, using www.crashmap.co.uk,
indicates that there have been no road accidents at this location in the last 5 years.

Transport Statement, Castle Gogar Rigg
118330/Transport Statement, Rev.: [1], 06/08/2019

Page 248
10 of 14

5

Summary and Conclusions

5.1
Summary
Sweco was commissioned to undertake a Transport Statement (TS) in support of a planning
application for further residential development at Castle Gogar Rigg, located in Gogar, west
Edinburgh.
The proposals will see the introduction of 5 new residential units.
Two scenarios are considered within this TS:
•

Scenario 1 – 5 residential dwellings and the removal of the consented office
development; and

•

Scenario 2 – Consented office development + 5 residential dwellings.

This report assesses the development proposals in relation to:
•
•
•
•

The accessibility of the site;
The previously consented office block;
The current visibility and vehicle storage capacity at the access road / A8 priority junction;
and
The operation of the access road in the vicinity of the tram line.

The trip generation of both the current proposals and consented office block have been estimated,
with an assessment provided for Scenarios1 and 2.
5.2
Conclusions
It is estimated that the residential development proposals will generate a minimal amount of traffic,
with 3 two-way vehicle trips estimated in both morning and evening peak hours, respectively.
Should the office block not be developed then analysis of the vehicle trip generation suggests that
the current proposals would result in a lower number of vehicle movements in comparison to
those which could have been generated by the existing office consent.
With both the consented office block and residential dwellings delivered then it is expected that
combined they would generate a total of 16 two-way vehicle trips in the morning peak hour and
13 two-way vehicle trips in the evening peak hour.
The visibility at the access junction complies with the visibility standards set out within the DMRB
TD 41/95. It is anticipated that the existing junction has sufficient storage capacity to
accommodate the forecasted traffic associated with the development proposals without causing
operational or safety issues at the junction.
It is considered that the stop line before the tram crossing, in combination with the good visibility
from this point to the access junction, and the relatively low number of vehicles predicted to use
the access road, allows drivers to safely assess the traffic situation before crossing the tram line.
It is concluded that the development proposals will have a negligible impact on the operation of
the surrounding road network.

Transport Statement, Castle Gogar Rigg
118330/Transport Statement, Rev.: [1], 06/08/2019

Page 249
11 of 14

Quarry Investments Ltd.

Proposed Residential Development
Castle Gogar Rig, Edinburgh
October 2019

HOUSE TYPE CGI’S

6 High Street
East Linton
EH40 3 AB
T – 07747 780 852
tony@apt-plandevelop.co.uk
www.apt-plandevelop.co.uk

Page 250

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

3

5

6

4
8

Page 251

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

HOUSE 3

HOUSE 5

Page 252

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

HOUSE 6

HOUSE 4

Page 253

Quarry Investments Ltd.
Proposed Residential Development - Castle Gogar Rigg

HOUSE 8

Page 254

Landscape and Visual Appraisal
Gogar Rigg, Castle Gogar
PLANNING APPLICATION

Date: 02/10/2019

Page 255

›› contents
1.

2.

Introduction 1
1.1

Content of the Appraisal  1

1.2

Approach 1

1.3

Project Description  1

1.4

Study Area  1

Development Design Mitigation  7

5.

Appraisal of Effects on Landscape Character  8
5.1

2.1

Scope of the Appraisal  2

2.2

Categories of Effects   2

2.3

Methodology 2

Sensitivity 8
Magnitude of change 8
Level of Effect 8

6.

Page 256

Viewpoint 2: A8 opposite Gogarburn Golf Club 11

Levels of effect 2

Site Study 2

Baseline Conditions  3
3.1

Survey of landscape character  3

Site Location 3
Site Description 3
Landscape Character 3
Landscape Designations 3
Gardens and Designed Landscapes 5
Special Landscape Areas 5
Views and Visibility 5

Landscape and Visual Appraisal | Gogar Rigg, Castle Gogar

Viewpoints 9

Viewpoint 1: A8 Gogarburn Bridge 9

Magnitude of effect 2

Method of baseline data collation   2

Appraisal of Effects on Visual Receptors  9
6.1

Sensitivity 2

2.4

Effects on the landscape character of West Craigs Farmland LCA  8

Baseline 8

Appraisal Methodology  2

Desk study 2

3.

4.

Viewpoint 3: A8 near Edinburgh Airport junction 12

7.

Summary 14

316000

317000

318000

Ca m m

Cammo Park

ad

Bughtlin Burn

02
Craig
s

Edinburgh Airport

672000

ogarl

th G
S ou

y le

Cr
e s cent

Edinburgh
Park Station

0.25

0.5

1 km

[

Figure 1.
Site Location & Study Area
Ref No: 181217

Created By:

Scale:

Drawing Size: A3

1:16,000

LA

Rev No:

2

Date: 08/08/2019

Coordinate System: BNG OS GB 1936 Datum

ns
Cut li

Edinburgh
Park

d
Roa

1

0

CASTLE GOGAR RIGG

rt

ank

Road
Gy le

South Gyle

Edinburgh
Park
Central

Gogar Burn

yke

S out h

Co u

b
gar
Go

Bro
adw
ay

side

671000

y le

h
Loc

Play Space

Contains OS data © Crown copyright and database right (2019)

e

rS
ta

oc h S

venu

Edinburgh Park
Putting Green

oad
nR
t io

d
Roa
Roddinglaw
Cottages

Little
Kellerstain

le A

So
uth
G

nue
A ve
s ide
0
Loc h
A7 2

law

Ashley

Kellerstain
Lodge

Millburn
Tower

ga
Go

ding
Rod

M8

Av

nds
Freela

Lesser
Millburn

ad
Ro

Gy

e View
Lochsid

Knocktower

Other Sports
Facility

e
Gyle Centre e nu

East Lodge

Gogar

Royal Bank Of Scotland
Leisure Centre

St Thomas's
Church

le
Gy

d

oad
Gogarstone R

A8

North Gyle Av
en
ue

A8

Roa

d
oa
Norton
Mains Farm

Easter Norton

North Gy le Lo
an
North Gyle Dri
ve

rrace
North Gyle Te

Edinburgh West Craigs
Gateway

The
Gyle

G

673000

Ea

C raigs

Myret on Drive

Gogarburn

Number 1

Craigmount
High School

Gro ve

st

to n

R

Farm
ins

lis
Ing

Page 257

Ingliston
Park and Ride

Play
Space Craig
s

East Craigs

Castle Gogar

!
H

Play Space

Drive

West Craigs

Rig g

a
ar M
Gog

Gogar Burn

B urnbrae

Play Space

Meadowfield
Farm Cottages

Gogar Mains

ad
ld Ro
E as t fie

Ingliston

v
ry Dr i

Play Space

Road

Meadowfield
Farm Cottages

on
d R
oad

Road
view
Fair

A9
Ma
y bu

Play Space
Bughtlin Burn

Craig mou nt

Jubilee R

Lennie
Cottages

e

674000

Bughtlin

o

's W

Bughtlin Burn

Turnhouse
Ro
ad

Edinburgh
Airport

rn

Play Space

lk
Wa

Turnhouse
Golf Course

ay

by
Ma

m

Lennie Hill

Turnhouse

Spitfire
House

Al

F au
l

db u

uir

Site Location

Playing Field

o
mm
Ca

ym
nn
Le

!
H

2km Study Area Boundary

River Almond

d
oa

o Gard
ens

1

mm
Ca

o
oR

ve
o Gro
Cam m

Legend

A 90

B7 0

Pepper
Wood Lodge

Craigs Gardens

315000

1. Introduction
This Landscape and Visual Appraisal (LVA) has been prepared in support of
the planning application for the erection of six detached dwellings at Gogar

1.2

Approach

1.3

Project Description

Rigg. It evaluates the effects of the Gogar Rigg residential development

Although there is no requirement for a formal Environmental Assessment to

The LVA is based on a planning application that comprises six new homes,

(hereafter referred to as ‘the proposed development’) on the landscape

support the Planning Application for the development, this appraisal follows

associated access, public and private space, and parking. The proposed

character and visual amenity of the site and surrounding area. The appraisal

best practice guidance produced by the Landscape Institute in its ‘Guidance

development is located on land within the existing curtilage of Gogar Rigg,

has been undertaken by Chartered Landscape Architects at Optimised

for Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment’ (GLVIA) (3rd Edition 2013) and

which lies to the west and south of Castle Gogar. The appraisal is based upon

Environments Limited (OPEN) on behalf of Quarry Investments.

evaluates the likely effects of the proposed development on the landscape

the project description set out below. The key information which is used to

character and visual amenity of the site and its surroundings.

inform the appraisal of landscape and visual effects includes the location,

1.1

Content of the Appraisal

This appraisal contains the following sections:

scale and massing of the proposed residential dwellings and associated
The following extract, taken from the GLVIA Statement of Clarification (Jan

infrastructure, as well as the integration of open space and landscape planting.

2013), gives guidance on the terminology to be used in non EIA Landscape
and Visual Impact Appraisals, such as this.

The key components of the proposed development include:

1. Introduction: setting out the content of the appraisal, the approach

Page 258

taken, the description of the project and extent of the study area;

‘In carrying out appraisals, the same principles and process as LVIA may be

•

Six new detached dwellings of up to two-storey in height;

2. Appraisal methodology: describing the methods used in the baseline

applied but, in so doing, it is not required to establish whether the effects

•

Associated private garden grounds;

appraisal, the appraisal of sensitivity and magnitude of change, and

arising are or are not significant given that the exercise is not being undertaken

•

Associated infrastructure including access roads;

the appraisal of the level of effect;

for EIA purposes. The reason is that should a landscape professional apply

•

Associated semi-public open space; and

•

Landscape structure planting.

3. Baseline conditions: describing the landscape character and visual
amenity of the development site and the surrounding area based on
desk based study and site visits;
4. Development design mitigation: summary of the measures taken to
avoid or minimise the landscape and visual effects of the proposed
development through the design;
5. Appraisal of effects on landscape character: identifying the residual
effects on landscape character areas;

LVIA principles and processes in carrying out an appraisal and then go on to
determine that certain effects would be likely be significant, given the term
‘significant’ is enshrined in EIA Regulations, such a judgement could trigger

Details of the site selection and design process are provided within the

the requirement for a formal EIA. The emphasis on likely ‘significant effects’

planning chapter, which accompanies this application.

in formal LVIA stresses the need for an approach that is proportional to the
scale of the project that is being assessed and the nature of its likely effects.
The same principle - focussing on a proportional approach – also applies to
appraisals of landscape and visual impacts outside the formal requirements
of EIA.’

6. Appraisal of effects on visual amenity: identifying the residual effects
on selected viewpoints and principal visual receptors; and
7. Summary of effects.

In this appraisal, effects are assessed to be either ‘minor’, ‘moderate’
or ‘major’. The level of effect is assessed through a combination of two
considerations - the sensitivity of the landscape element, landscape character

The appraisal is supported by a set of figures which contain GIS maps and

receptor or visual receptor, and the magnitude of change that will result from

viewpoint photographs with the extent of the proposed development marked

the proposed development. This evaluation is carried out for each of the

on. These figures, along with site work, have supported the professional

receptors described within the baseline section of the report.

judgement that is applied within the appraisal.

Landscape and Visual Appraisal | Gogar Rigg, Castle Gogar
1

1.4

Study Area

Site work has shown that the visual influence of the proposed development
would be limited to the localised area around the site. This is largely owing
to the screening effect of built form, land form and mature tree cover within
the vicinity of the site. The study area, therefore, has been set at a radius
of 2km from the edge of the boundary of the proposed development. This
reflects the localised extent within which it is likely for notable effects to arise.

2. Appraisal Methodology
Presented below is a summary of the appraisal methodology. The following

The appraisal of effects on landscape character and visual amenity are

or visual receptor. A minor effect occurs where the effect of the proposed

sources have been used in the preparation of the methodology and as

informed by a series of viewpoints that have been selected to represent

development is not material, and the baseline characteristics of the landscape

guidance in the preparation of the written appraisal and production of figures;

visibility of the proposed development from the principal visual receptors

element, landscape character receptor, or visual receptor continue to provide

around the study area. Further information on these viewpoints is provided

the definitive influence. A moderate effect occurs where the proposed

in the baseline section of this appraisal.

development has a notable influence on a landscape element, landscape

•

The

Landscape

Institute

with

the

Institute

of

Environmental

Management and Assessment (2012) Guidelines for Landscape and
Visual Impact Assessment, Third Edition (GLVIA3);
•

Scottish Natural Heritage and The Countryside Agency (2002)

character receptor or visual receptor, but where the baseline characteristics

2.3 Methodology

Landscape Character Assessment Guidance for England and Scotland;
•

2.1

continue to provide the definitive influence.

2.4 Method of baseline data collation

and

Sensitivity

Landscape Institute (2011) Landscape Institute Advice Note 01/11,

Sensitivity is an expression of the ability of a landscape or visual receptor

Photography and photomontage in landscape and visual impact

to accommodate the proposed development. The sensitivity is determined

assessment.

through a combination of the value of the receptor, and the susceptibility of

A desk study has been carried out as part of the appraisal. This study

the receptor to the proposed development.

identifies aspects of the landscape and visual resource that may need to

Scope of the Appraisal

Desk study

be considered as receptors in the landscape and visual appraisal, including

Page 259

Levels of sensitivity - high, medium to high, medium, medium to low, low

landscape-related planning designations, landscape character typology,

The appraisal covers the potential landscape and visual effects of the

and negligible- are applied in order that the judgement used in the process

roads, footpaths, and settlements.

proposed development. It considers the layout and design of six residential

of appraisal is made clear. The criteria used to determine sensitivity differ

dwellings to be integrated amongst the existing residential dwellings on the

for the effects on landscape receptors and visual receptors, as well as the

Gogar Rigg site. The appraisal considers how the proposed development

cumulative effects on both. These criteria are explained in full in the Appendix

would integrate with the existing residential development and landscape

to this report.

The following sources have been referred to in the desk study:
•

Edinburgh Landscape Character Assessment;

setting and to what extent the characteristics of these will be changed.

2.2 Categories of Effects

Magnitude of effect

•

Magnitude of effect is an expression of the extent of the effect on the

•

of the proposed development. The magnitude of effect is assessed in terms

are grouped into two categories: effects on landscape character and effects

of the size and scale of the effect. The geographical extent of the area

on visual amenity.

influenced is described in relation to the magnitude of effect.

Land Use Consultants in association with Carol Anderson (2010)
Edinburgh Landscape Character Assessment;

landscape and visual receptors that will would result from the introduction
In the appraisal, the potential effects on the landscape and visual resource

ASH consulting group (1998). Scottish Natural Heritage Review No.91-

Land Use Consultants (2010). Review of Local Landscape Designations.
Prepared for Edinburgh Council;

•

The City of Edinburgh Council (2016) Edinburgh Local Development
Plan. Available at: http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/downloads/file/9065/
edinburgh_local_development_plan

Effects on landscape arise either through the introduction of new elements

Levels of magnitude of effect - high, medium to high, medium, medium to

that physically alter the pattern of elements that makes up landscape

low and low - are applied in order that the judgement used in the process of

character, or through visibility of the proposed development, which may

appraisal is made clear. The criteria used to determine magnitude of effect

alter the way in which the pattern of elements is perceived. This category

differ for the effects on landscape receptors and visual receptors, as well

of effects is made up of landscape character receptors, which fall into two

Available

as the cumulative effects on both. These criteria are explained in full in the

groups; landscape character types and designated areas.

support/listing-scheduling-and-designations/gardens-and-designed-

Appendix to this report.

landscapes.

Effects on visual amenity is an appraisal of how the proposed development

•

Scottish Government (2008). Scottish Planning Policy 23: Planning
and the Historic Environment; and

•

Historic Environment Scotland Gardens and Designed Landscapes.
at:

https://www.historicenvironment.scot/advice-and-

will affect views throughout the study area. The appraisal of visual effects

Levels of effect

Site Study

is presented as an appraisal of the effects that the proposed development

In order to ascertain the level of effect, the sensitivity rating is combined

Visits to the site and the study area have been carried out in the course of

will have on views from principal visual receptors, which are the notable

with the magnitude of change rating, through the application of professional

the appraisal, in order to review the baseline conditions of the site, identify

settlements, routes, features and attractions found throughout the study area

judgement to conclude whether the level of the effect is major, moderate or

potential landscape and visual receptors, take viewpoint photographs,

(as ascertained through the baseline study).

minor. A major effect occurs where the proposed development would provide

and carry out and review the appraisal of effects. Site visits and viewpoint

a defining influence on a landscape element, landscape character receptor

photography took place in May 2018.

Landscape and Visual Appraisal | Gogar Rigg, Castle Gogar
2

3. Baseline Conditions
The baseline study records the existing conditions of the site and study area.

of the existing modern residential dwellings, with two more located to the

The LCAs within the LLCA follow a broad pattern of alignment in relation to

The process of this survey helps to gain an understanding of what makes the

south. In the grounds further south, two apartment blocks occupy the south-

the coastal edge of Edinburgh and the Lothians, such that parallel landscapes

landscape distinctive and what the important components or characteristics

west corner with a further detached dwelling to the immediate east of these.

occur in linear bands following a west to east direction, their continuity

are. The baseline study is instrumental in the identification of the landscape

Adjacent to the western enclosure of Castle Gogar lies the renovated stables

interrupted only by the urban area of Edinburgh. In this pattern, landform

elements, landscape character receptors and visual receptors that are

and cottage which also accommodate residential dwellings.

rises from the coastal edge of the Firth of Forth to the uplands of the Pentland

included in the appraisal. The baseline study is presented in three sections:

Hills. The application site is located fairly close to the coastal edge, such that
Castle Gogar is accessed by the south drive which extends from the A8 to

it occupies a relatively low-lying location in the wider landscape.

•

Survey of landscape character;

the south. It is lined by mature trees which enclose views on approach to the

•

Review of landscape related planning designations; and

castle and grounds. Mature trees also run along the southern boundary of the

In the Edinburgh Landscape Character Assessment (ELCA), three LCAs are

•

Survey of principal visual receptors and representative viewpoints.

site, marking the distinction from the surrounding open farmland. The ground

identified within the study area, namely, Lowland Farmland: West Craigs

are cut-off to the north by the presence of Edinburgh Airport runways.

Farmland LCA, Settled Farmland: Airport LCA and Settled Farmland: Gogar

3.1

Survey of landscape character

The aim of this section is to survey and record the landscape character of the

Farmland and Institutions.

Landscape Character

The West Craigs Farmland LCA lies to the west of Edinburgh City and is a
small pocket of land that lies between Edinburgh Airport, in the north, and

‘The Lothians Landscape Character Assessment’ (1998) and the ‘Edinburgh

RBS Headquarters in the south. It comprises an area of gently undulating

Landscape Character Assessment’ (2010) . The Lothians Landscape Character

farmland with large fields of arable and small clumps of woodland. It

Assessment presents a broad classification of the Landscape Character

identifies the early 17th century tower house of Castle Gogar as a feature in

Types (LCTs) and Landscape Character Areas (LCAs) across the region.

this landscape, although one largely concealed by surrounding woodland.

The Edinburgh Landscape Character Assessment presents a more detailed

West Craigs Farmland is described in the ELCA as ‘an area of relatively low

The application site lies on the western edge of the City of Edinburgh,

classification of the LCTs and LCAs in and around the City of Edinburgh.

scenic quality due to the fragmentation of the landscape by built development

approximately 7km from the City Centre. It is located between Edinburgh

Whilst the Lothians Landscape Character Assessment provides useful

and transport infrastructure.’

Airport, to the north and west, and the Edinburgh Tram and A8 to the south.

descriptions of the broad landscape character, the Edinburgh Landscape

While there remains a reasonable extent of rural farmland, the proximity of

Character Assessment provides more detailed and up-to-date descriptions

The effects of the proposed development in the context of the West Craigs

this area to the city means that urban development has encroached into

focussing largely on the transitional landscapes around the city periphery. The

Farmland LCA is assessed in this appraisal. As previously noted, the more

this area. As well as the all the infrastructure associated with Edinburgh

relevant LCTs and LCAs to the proposed development are identified below.

detailed and recent nature of the ELCA classifications, makes them a more

Page 260

There are two Landscape Character Assessments of relevance to this LVIA:

site and study area. The relevant documents are reviewed, and conclusions
regarding natural characteristics, cultural and social factors, and aesthetic
and perceptual responses are described.

Site Location

Airport, there is also extensive development of large scale hotels and other
associated land-uses. The A8 and the Edinburgh Tram form the main links
between the city centre and the airport. The A8 forms the main west to east
arterial route into the city and is often busy. The Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS)
Headquarters is located to the south of the site and the A8.

appropriate basis for the assessment of landscape effects. It is unlikely that
In the Lothians Landscape Character Assessment (LLCA), the application

the Settled Farmland: Airport LCA or the Settled Farmland: Gogar Farmland

site is located on the boundary between the Lower Almond Farmlands LCA

and Institutions, would be notably affected by the proposed development

and the Urban Area of Edinburgh. The Lowland Farmland Landscapes LCT,

owing to the extent of built development that characterises the baseline

surrounding and underlying much of West Edinburgh, is characterised by a

description of both these LCAs.

broad tract of predominantly arable farmland, extending from the western

Site Description

periphery west towards Uphall and Broxburn, and south towards Currie

Castle Gogar dates from 1625, with early 18th and late 19th century extensions.

at Dalmahoy Hill, with farmland made up of medium sized fields divided by

Landscape designations are used, along with LCTs, in the assessment of

It is a four-storey, white baronial style mansion, complete with towers, turrets

hedgerows, fences or stone walls and interspersed with farmsteads, hamlets

effects on landscape character. They denote the special scenic value that

and crowstep gables. Parkland comprising mature trees occupies the land to

and villages. Since the LLCA was published in 1998, increased pressure for

has been formally attributed to a landscape area.

the south of Castle Gogar, which along with the stone boundary wall forms

city expansion combined with an increase in development in the Green Belt

some degree of enclosure. The remainder of the grounds to the west and

beyond the city boundary, have combined to alter the landscape character,

south have in more recent times been developed for residential dwellings.

by increasing the urban and reducing the rural influences.

The walled garden lies to the west of Castle Gogar and is occupied by three

Landscape and Visual Appraisal | Gogar Rigg, Castle Gogar
3

and Balerno. The land gradually rises to the south, reaching a high point

Landscape Designations

The site is not covered by any landscape designations which would otherwise
denote a special sensitivity in terms of landscape value. It is, however, subject
to the planning designation of the Edinburgh Green Belt. This is a planning
designation that does not relate to landscape value.

316000

317000

318000

Ca m m

o
mm
Ca

Cammo Park

ad
Ro

¬
«7

02

72
¬
«

Myret on Drive

Roa

672000

A9
ogarl

th G
S ou

y le

Cr
e s cent

Edinburgh
Park Station
Edinburgh
Park

d
Roa

1

0

0.25

0.5

1 km

[

Figure 2.
Landscape Character
Ref No: 181217

Created By:

Scale:

Drawing Size: A3

1:16,000

LA

Rev No:

2

Date: 08/08/2019

Coordinate System: BNG OS GB 1936 Datum

ns
Cut li

Contains OS data © Crown copyright and database right (2019)

ank

Gogar Burn

Road
Gy le

CASTLE GOGAR RIGG

rt

U
¬
«

b
gar
Go

S out h

Co u

oad
nR
t io

d
Roa

Play Space

30
¬
«

yke

South Gyle

Edinburgh
Park
Central

Edinburgh Park
Putting Green

rS
ta

Bro
adw
ay

side

law
Roddinglaw
Cottages

Little
Kellerstain

y le

h
Loc

Kellerstain
Lodge

ga
Go

ding
Rod

¬
«

Ashley

29
¬
«

Millburn
Tower

oc h S

venu

e

ad
Ro

M8

22

Lesser
Millburn

le A

So
uth
G

nue
A ve
s ide
0
Loc h
A7 2

nds
Freela

Gogar

Royal Bank Of Scotland
Leisure Centre

Knocktower

Av

Norton
Mains Farm

Other Sports
Facility
Gy

e View
Lochsid

oad
Gogarstone R

Easter Norton

A8

St Thomas's
Church

e
Gyle Centre e nu

East Lodge

U - Urban

U
¬
«

le
Gy

d

Number 1

North Gyle Av
en
ue

72 - Settled Farmland - Airport

G

d
oa

A8

The
Gyle

North Gy le Lo
an
North Gyle Dri
ve

rrace
North Gyle Te

Edinburgh West Craigs
Gateway

30 - Settled Farmland - East Hermiston
Farmland

Gro ve

C raigs

R

¬
«9

Farm
ins

to n

Ingliston
Park and Ride

22 - Rolling Farmland - Ratho Farmland
29 - Settled Farmland - Gogar Farmland
and Institutions

Play
Space Craig
s

Craigmount
High School

Castle Gogar

!
H

10 - Lowland Farmland - Almond Farmland

Play Space

East Craigs

Rig g

a
ar M
Gog

lis
Ing

Page 261

673000

West Craigs
st

Gogar Mains

B urnbrae

Play Space

Meadowfield
Farm Cottages

Gogarburn

671000

v
ry Dr i

Play Space

Road

Meadowfield
Farm Cottages

Gogar Burn

9 - Lowland Farmland - West Craigs
Farmland

Play Space
Bughtlin Burn

Ea

Jubilee R

Edinburgh Airport

ad
ld Ro
E as t fie

Road
view
Fair

8 - Lowland Farmland - Lennie Golf Course

Bughtlin Burn

Ma
y bu
Craig
s

on
d R
oad

Ingliston

¬
«6

Drive

m

7 - Policy Landscape - Cammo Policies

Play Space

Lennie
Cottages

Edinburgh
Airport

rn

Bughtlin

ay

W
by's
Ma

¬
«8

6 - Lowland Farmland - Cammo Fringe
Farmland

Craig mou nt

Al

F au
l

e

Turnhouse
Ro
ad

lk
Wa

Turnhouse
Golf Course

Spitfire
House

674000

Lennie Hill

Turnhouse

Source: Edinburgh Landscape Character Assessment (2010)

Playing Field

db u

uir

Site Location

Edinburgh Landscape Character
Bughtlin Burn

o
mm
Ca

ym
nn
Le

!
H

2km Study Area Boundary

River Almond

d
oa

o Gard
ens

1

¬
«
10

ve
o Gro
Cam m

Legend

A 90

B7 0

Pepper
Wood Lodge

Craigs Gardens

315000

‘Policy Env 10 Development in the Green Belt and Countryside’ of the

of intervening landform and mature tree cover means that it would be unlikely

Edinburgh Council LDP, states the following:

for the proposed development to be visible from either of the GDLs and
for this reason these have been scoped out as potential receptors from this

‘For development relating to an existing use or building(s) such as an extension

appraisal.

to a site or building, ancillary development or intensification of the use,

Views and Visibility
The extent to which the proposed development would be visible across the
surrounding area would be limited. This would be a result of the screening
effect of the existing buildings in the Castle Gogar grounds which would

provided the proposal is appropriate in type in terms of the existing use, of

Although not a GDL, Castle Gogar is included in City of Edinburgh Council’s

largely screen the new dwellings to the north and east. Although the western

an appropriate scale, of high quality design and acceptable in terms of traffic’.

‘Survey of Gardens and Designed Landscapes.’ While the assessment

aspect is more open, there would only be one dwelling on this side, set

of significance attributed to this site concludes that there is only little or

between existing buildings, and which would lie adjacent to open fields that

Furthermore, the policy states in point 181 that: ‘The purpose of the green belt

some significance relating to all criteria apart from the architectural value,

separate the proposed development from the airport.

is not to prevent development from happening’. This landscape and visual

which is outstanding, it does highlight some specific sensitivities, including

appraisal demonstrates that the proposed development would not have a

the ‘essential setting’ of the outlook to the south and the importance of

significant impact on the landscape character or visual amenity.

the mature tree cover to the wider landscape setting. The presence of the

The two types of landscape designation which occur within the 2km study area

Page 262

around the proposed development are Gardens and Designed Landscapes
(GDL) and Special Landscape Areas (SLAs).

Gardens and Designed Landscapes
Gardens and Designed Landscapes (GDLs) are designated by Historic
Environment Scotland (HES)7 to reflect the national importance of a
landscape area in respect of its special design qualities or value. Although
not protected by statute, GDLs are protected through SPP23 Planning and the
Historic Environment . HES provides citations for GDLs, which are presented
on the HES website7. These highlight the special value of each inventory
landscape against the following criteria; work of art, historical, horticultural,
architectural, scenic, nature conservation and archaeological.
Although GDLs are not a statutory designation, they are protected through
the Edinburgh Local Development Plan (2016). Policy Env 7 ‘Historic Gardens
and Designed Landscape’s states:
‘Development will only be permitted where there is no detrimental impact
on the character of a site recorded in the Inventory of Gardens and Designed
Landscapes, adverse effects on its setting or upon component features which
contribute to its value. Elsewhere, adverse effects on historic landscape
features should be minimised. Restoration of Inventory sites and other historic
landscape features is encouraged.’
Cammo and Millburn Tower are the only GDLs which occur in the study
area. The Cammo GDL broadly coincides with the Cammo SLA, while the
Millburn Tower GDL occurs as a small area within the Gogar SLA. The extent

Landscape and Visual Appraisal | Gogar Rigg, Castle Gogar
5

existing modern residential dwellings on this site has already altered the
character of the designed landscape. The design of the proposed dwellings
does, nonetheless, create a central paddock to replicate this original feature
shown on historic maps an retain a gap between the detached dwellings on
the southern boundary to ensure a visual connection still occurs with the
adjacent landscape.

Special Landscape Areas

Potential visual effects would, therefore, arise in respect to the southern
aspect, along which four of the new dwellings would be located, albeit with
partial screening from tree cover. There is a limited number of visual receptors
on this southern aspect, the most notable being the A8 and Gogarburn Bridge.
. While there is potential for road-users to experience relatively open views
from the elevated overbridge, visibility is reduced along sections of the A8
by intervening vegetation and landform.
Viewpoints representing the visual amenity of the surrounding area have been
selected and are shown in Figures 5 to 7 and listed in Table 1 below.

Special Landscape Areas (SLAs) are designated by Edinburgh Council8
to reflect the local importance of a landscape area in respect of its scenic
qualities or value. The justification for their designation is presented in

Table 1: Representative viewpoints

LUCs Edinburgh ‘Review of Local Landscape Designations’ (2010)9. SLAs

Viewpoint number and name

Reason for inclusion

were formally adopted by The City of Edinburgh Council through the Local

Viewpoint 1 (Figure 5): A8

View from RBS overbridge looking north

Development Plan6 in 2016. Policy Env 11 ‘Special Landscape Areas’ of the

Gogarburn Bridge

towards site. Representative of views of
road-users, cyclists and pedestrians on the

LDP states:

overbridge.

‘Planning permission will not be granted for development which would have a

Viewpoint 2 (Figure 6): A8

View from the A8 to the south-west with

significant adverse impact on the special character or qualities of the Special

opposite Gogarburn Golf Club

view looking north-east towards the site.
Representative of views of road-users, cyclists

Landscape Areas shown on the Proposals Map.’

and pedestrians on the A8 / path.

The Gogar SLA and Cammo SLA are the two SLAs which occur in the study

Viewpoint 3 (Figure 7): A8 near

View from the A8 further to the west with

area. Neither of these SLAs are relevant to the assessment, as the extent of

Edinburgh Airport junction

view looking north-east towards the site.

intervening landform and mature tree cover means that it would be unlikely

Representative of views of road-users, cyclists

for the proposed development to be visible from either of the SLAs. For

and pedestrians on the A8 / path.

this reason the effects of the proposed development on the Gogar SLA and
Cammo SLA have been scoped out as potential receptors from this appraisal.

316000

317000

Cam
m

Craigiehall

Cammo Park

ad

e

Craig
s

Edinburgh Airport

C raigs

le
Gy

ue

Edinburgh
Park Central

So

ut

side

h

G y l e Cresc ent

rt

e
nu

Co u

Ave

n

h
Loc

Edinburgh Park
Putting Green

ide

0
A7 2

hs
Loc

Gogar Burn

Edinburgh
Park Station
Edinburgh
Park

ce
Terr a
hea d
Ban k

oad

1

R
ins

nk
rb a
a
g
Go

0

0.25

0.5

1 km

[

CASTLE GOGAR RIGG
Figure 3.
Landscape Designations
Ref No: 181217

Created By:

Scale:

Drawing Size: A3

1:16,000

LA

Rev No:

2

Date: 08/08/2019

Coordinate System: BNG OS GB 1936 Datum

Cutl

Copyright City of Edinburgh Council and Historic Environment Scotland. Contains OS data © Crown copyright and database right (2019)

t io

ad
Ro

d
Roa

Play Space

Millburn Tower

ta

law
Roddinglaw
Cottages

Little
Kellerstain

Road
Gy le

South
Gy l
eB
road
way
South Gyle

rS
ga
Go

ding
Rod

Gogar

yke

S out h

Millburn
Tower

M8

oc h S

A ven

ogarl

Gy l
e

Lesser Millburn

ad
Ro

Ashley

Av

Gogar

St Thomas's
Church

Other Sports
Facility

e
Gyle Centre e nu

Royal Bank Of Scotland
Leisure Centre

Knocktower

nds
F reela

East Lodge

e View
Lochsid

oad
Gogarstone R

Easter Norton

A8

rrace
North Gyle Te

A8

d
Gogarburn

Av
en
ue

G

673000

Ea

st

Myret on Drive

Edinburgh West Craigs
Gateway

The
Gyle

North Gyle Loa
n
North Gy le Dr
ive
Gyle
North

!
H

Roa

d
n Roa
isto

Norton
Mains Farm

Craigmount
High School

Gro ve

East Craigs

Castle Gogar

Farm
ins

Ingliston
Park and Ride

Play
Space Craig
s

Drive

West Craigs

Rig g

a
ar M
Gog

Page 263

ad
ld Ro
E as t fie

Gogar Burn

B urnbrae

Play Space

Meadowfield
Farm Cottages

Gogar Mains

Ing
l

672000

Road

Meadowfield
Farm Cottages

Number 1

671000

Play Space

Craigs Gardens

674000

Edinburgh
Airport

Play Space
Bughtlin Burn
Ma
ybu
iv
Play Space
ry D r

Lennie
Cottages

Craig mou nt

Jubilee

Ro
ad

ay

Ingliston

Bughtlin Burn
Bughtlin

ad

Road
view
Fair

Green Belt

rn

Play Space

lk
Wa

Turnhouse
Golf Course

Tur
nh
ous
e

W
by's
Ma

02

Cammo

Garden & Designed Landscape

F au
l

A9

Turnhouse

Spitfire
House

Ro

Playing Field

db u

Lennie Hill

Site Location

Special Landscape Area

o
mm
Ca

ir
mu

!
H

2km Study Area Boundary

Cammo
y
nn
Le

Al
mo
nd

r ove
mo G

Bughtlin Burn

River Almond

ad
Ro

Cam

o Gard
ens

1

mm
Ca

o
oR

Legend

A 90

B7 0

Pepper
Wood Lodge

318000

No rth Gyle Road

315000

4. Development Design Mitigation
This following section presents the appraisal of effects on the landscape and

The concept for the layout design has been to consolidate the residential

The potential for mitigation of landscape and visual effects has been

visual receptors. The appraisal is laid out in three sections that follow the

development within a well-defined landscape setting, to retain a sense of

considered throughout the design and appraisal process and is described in

categories of effects as described previously:

containment and achieve a good level of integration with the existing buildings

the appraisal of each receptor that has been identified as requiring detailed

in the grounds. This has been achieved by infilling the gaps in the existing

appraisal. There is very limited potential for ‘add-on’ mitigation of landscape

layout and keeping them suitable recessed from the tree-lined boundary to

and visual effects, that is mitigation that would be added following the

ensure this strong landscape feature can be retained and enhanced.

construction of the proposed development, and this has not been considered

•

Appraisal of physical effects on landscape elements;

•

Appraisal of effects on landscape character (including effects on
landscape character types and designated areas); and

•

Appraisal of visual effects (effects on principal visual receptors).

Within each of these categories, the effects which could arise from the
construction and operational phases of the proposed development are

in the appraisal.
The following mitigation measure have been incorporated into the design of
the layout;
•

The retention of the tree-lined avenue on the approach into the site,

assessed. This appraisal includes an evaluation of the sensitivity of each

which would create a setting for the new dwellings and moderate their

landscape element, landscape character receptor and visual receptor; the

prominence as new features;

magnitude of change that would result from the introduction of the proposed

•

Page 264

development; and whether the effect would be major, moderate or minor.
The appraisal also includes a description of how potential effects have
been mitigated. The principal mitigation of landscape and visual effects

the importance of the landscape structure and ensure that the site
would not appear over developed;
•

retained, albeit partially screened, especially in the summer months,

elements of the proposed development, such as the layout of the buildings

by tree cover along this boundary; and

and how the layout responds to the existing tree cover and orientation of the
space and planting, which can reduce effects, or in some cases, prevent
effects from arising.

Landscape and Visual Appraisal | Gogar Rigg, Castle Gogar
7

The retention of a gap between the two dwellings on the southern
boundary to ensure a connection with the wider landscape setting is

is ‘embedded’ mitigation, achieved through careful design of the various

site, the density and massing of the buildings, and the integration of open

The creation of a central open space (the paddock) which would raise

•

The inclusion of tree and hedgerow planting integrated within the site
to further enhance the landscape framework to the site.

5. Appraisal of Effects on
Landscape Character
Landscape character is the distinct and recognisable pattern of elements
that occurs consistently in a particular type of landscape, and the way
that this pattern is perceived. Effects on landscape character would occur
contextually, where visibility of the proposed development may alter the way
in which this pattern of elements would be perceived.

5.1

Effects on the landscape character of West Craigs Farmland LCA

Baseline

Magnitude of change

The landscape around the site is typical of the description contained in the

The proposed development would be located within this LCA, however, given

Page 265

ELCA classification in that it comprises an agricultural landscape fragmented

its location within the curtilage of an existing area of recent development

As previously noted, the more detailed and recent nature of the ELCA

by transport corridors, the airport and other large scale developments. West

it would have a limited effect on the character of the wider landscape. The

classifications, makes them a more appropriate basis for the assessment of

Craigs Farmland LCA is divided into a northern and southern area by the

relatively small number of dwellings being developed, their relatively small

landscape effects and therefore the appraisal considers the impact on the

runways of Edinburgh Airport which lie to the immediate north of the site. The

scale and their contained nature, whereby they will be partially screened by

West Craigs Farmland LCA, in which the site is located.

southern boundary of the LCA is marked by the A8 and the western boundary

tree cover, will all moderate the potential magnitude of effect, which would

is also marked by Edinburgh Airport. This small pocket of land is occupied

be low. The proposed development would be located within a concentration

by fields of arable farmland with little enclosure from hedgerows or trees. It

of existing development associated with Castle Gogar, and within the existing

is in the context of this relatively open local landscape that the mature tree

curtilage of the developed grounds, which means the proposed development

cover around Castle Gogar forms a notable feature. While the castle is largely

will not cause an expansion of the development into what is perceived as the

screened by the tree cover, the modern dwellings which occupy the grounds

rural area.

to the west and south of the castle are readily evident.

Sensitivity

Level of Effect
The effect of the proposed development on the Ratho Farmland LCA would

The value of this LCA is medium to low. The LCA is not covered by any local,

be minor. Whilst the proposed development would be located within the LCA,

regional or national designations which would otherwise denote a special

its limited scale and extent, and its location within the castle grounds curtilage

value. In addition, the LCA is assessed to be typical of Edinburgh and the

where there is already a baseline influence form the existing modern dwellings,

Lothians and does not have any key features which make it either unique or

means that the impact on the rural character is very limited. Furthermore, the

rare. The proposed development would be situated within the curtilage of the

existing influences of the A8, Edinburgh Airport and other developments, sets

castle grounds, which is a clearly defined area, in which modern residential

a baseline character in respect of which the proposed development would

dwellings establishes the baseline character. The proposed development

have little additional influence.

would, therefore, not result in any loss of farmland. The landscape surrounding
the site does not have a high sensitivity and there is already a major influence
from the presence of the busy A8 to the south and Edinburgh airport to the
north.
The susceptibility of the local landscape character to the proposed
development is medium to low. There is already a notable influence on this
site owing to the cluster of modern dwellings at Gogar Riggs. Furthermore,
the proposed development would be located within the existing curtilage
which is clearly defined and enclosed by a row of mature trees.
The combination of the value of the West Craigs Farmland LCA and its
susceptibility to the proposed development gives rise to an overall medium
to low sensitivity.

Landscape and Visual Appraisal | Gogar Rigg, Castle Gogar
8

6. Appraisal of Effects on Visual
Receptors
Effects on visual amenity are the changes to views that would result from
the introduction of the proposed development. The assessment of effects
on views was carried out through site survey. The assessment of effects on

6.1

Viewpoints

The susceptibility of road-users, cyclists and pedestrians crossing the bridge
is medium. Whilst the proposed development would be visible from this
location, it would be seen from only a short section of the wider route from

views is based on three representative viewpoints. Baseline photography has

Viewpoint 1: A8 Gogarburn Bridge

been overlaid with an indication of the proposed building location. This is not

The viewpoint is located on the northern side of the Gogarburn Bridge, south

representative of the form, detail, style or materials of the proposed building

of the proposed development, and looking north towards it. It represents

but is an indication of location in relation to the existing developments.

a localised area from which elevated and open views towards the site can

The combination of the value of this view and susceptibility of towpath users

which this elevated and open view would be experienced and in association
with the existing residential dwellings.

gives rise to an overall medium sensitivity.

with the open farm fields of arable and the predominantly deciduous tree

surrounding area. The baseline character of the view from each viewpoint

cover highlighting the agricultural origins of this settled landscape, while

Magnitude of change

is described and then the predicted effects are assessed in respect of the

the presence of the A8 and overbridge, the tramline and Edinburgh Airport

The magnitude of change as a result of the proposed development would

sensitivity of the view and the degree of change that will occur to the view

emphasises the extent to which development has encroached into this

be medium. The proposed development would be seen in the context of the

as a result of the proposed development, taking into account the mitigation

peripheral area to the west of the city. The existing residential dwellings on

existing developments at Gogar Riggs and therefore would not add a new

measures incorporated into the design of the layout.

this site form a prominent feature owing to their white render and non-typical

feature to this area, but instead be seen to extend an existing feature. While

flat roof structures.

the existing dwellings on the western side of the site form quite exposed

Page 266

be experienced. The view comprises a mix of rural and urban features,
Three viewpoints have been selected to represent the visual amenity of the

Visibility across the surrounding landscape is limited by the combination of
the enclosure of landform, tree cover and built-form, such that the only aspect
with potential to be affected is to the south and south-west and the only
receptors with potential to be affected being the A8 and the Edinburgh Tram.
The viewpoints are, therefore, representative of the local area to the south
and south-west of the site.

Sensitivity

features, the proposed dwellings, more towards the eastern side of the site
would benefit from the partial screening of the mature tree cover along

The value of this view is medium to low. The view is not taken from a formal

the southern site boundary. There would be good integration between the

viewpoint and the area is not covered by any landscape designations which

existing and proposed dwellings owing to their similar design and scale, such

would otherwise denote a special value. It is a view that is experienced

that would appear as part of a unified whole.

incidentally by road-users, cyclists and pedestrians crossing the bridge. Many

Level of effect

workers at RBS Headquarters use the bridge to connect with Gogarburn tram
stop.

The effect of the proposed development would be moderate. This finding
relates principally to the influence of the existing dwellings on this view and
the extent to which the proposed dwellings would integrate with both the
existing dwellings and the wooded landscape context.

Landscape and Visual Appraisal | Gogar Rigg, Castle Gogar
9

316000

317000

Ca m m

Craigiehall

Cammo Park

ad

Playing Field

02
Cammo

674000

Edinburgh
Airport

Ma
y bu
Craig
s

Edinburgh Airport

on
d R
oad

Myret on Drive

le
Gy

d

Royal Bank Of Scotland
Leisure Centre

Knocktower

Lesser Millburn

y le

y le

Cr
e s cent

Edinburgh
Park Station
Edinburgh
Park

d
Roa

1

0

0.25

0.5

1 km

[

Figure 4.
Viewpoint Locations
Ref No: 181217

Created By:

Scale:

Drawing Size: A3

1:16,000

LA

Rev No:

2

Date: 08/08/2019

Coordinate System: BNG OS GB 1936 Datum

ns
Cut li

ank

Gogar Burn

Road
Gy le

CASTLE GOGAR RIGG

rt

b
gar
Go

S out h

Co u

Edinburgh Park
Putting Green

yke

South Gyle

Edinburgh
Park
Central

side

Play Space

Bro
adw
ay

h
Loc

671000

So
uth
G

0
A7 2

Little
Kellerstain

rS
ta

oad
nR
t io

d
Roa

Roddinglaw
Cottages

Millburn Tower

oc h S

venu

ga
Go

law

Ashley

ding
Rod

M8

Kellerstain
Lodge

le A

th G
S ou

Millburn
Tower

ad
Ro

Gy

ue
A ven

nds
Freela

Gogar

s ide
Loc h

672000

A8

e

Easter Norton

2

Av

oad
Gogarstone R

Norton
Mains Farm

Number
1

Other Sports
Facility

e
Gyle Centre e nu

East Lodge

e View
Lochsid

3

Gogarburn

St Thomas's
Church

A8

Roa

d
oa

1

rrace
North Gyle Te

Edinburgh West Craigs
Gateway

North Gyle Av
en
ue

ogarl

673000

C raigs

to n

R

Farm
ins

lis
Ing

Page 267

Ingliston
Park and Ride

The Gyle

North Gy le Lo
an
North Gyle Dri
ve

Castle Gogar

!
H

Play Space

Craigmount
High School

Rig g

a
ar M
Gog

Gogar Burn

B urnbrae

Play Space
Play
Space
East Craigs Craigs Park

West Craigs

Meadowfield
Farm Cottages

Gogar Mains

ad
ld Ro
E as t fie

Ingliston

Road
view
Fair

v
ry Dr i

Play Space

Road

Meadowfield
Farm Cottages

Play Space
Bughtlin Burn

e

Lennie
Cottages

G

Jubilee R

Ro
ad

st

's W

Bughtlin

ay

by
Ma

m

Bughtlin Burn

Ea

Al

Turn
hou
se

Gogarburn Bridge
A8 near Gogarburn Golf Club
A8 near Airport Junction

Play Space

lk
Wa

Turnhouse
Golf Course

Spitfire
House

rn

A9

Lennie Hill

Turnhouse

1
2
3

Faul

dbu

uir

Site Location

Viewpoint Locations

Bughtlin Burn

o
mm
Ca

ym
nn
Le

!
H

2km Study Area Boundary

River Almond

d
oa

o Gard
ens

1

mm
Ca

o
oR

ve
o Gro
Cam m

Legend

A 90

B7 0

Pepper
Wood Lodge

318000

Craigs Gardens

315000

Viewpoint 2: A8 opposite Gogarburn Golf Club

Sensitivity

Magnitude of change

The viewpoint is located on the A8 between Viewpoint 1: A8 Gogarburn

The value of this view is medium to low. The viewpoint is not representative

The magnitude of change as a result of the proposed development would

Bridge and Viewpoint 3: A8 close to Edinburgh Airport junction. It is situated

of a formal viewpoint and is not located in an area covered by a landscape

be negligible. The intervening landform would largely screen the proposed

to the north of Gogarburn Golf Club and while this aspect is largely enclosed

designation. The view wil be experienced incidentally by road-users, cyclists

development from this section of the A8. Whilst it may be possible for the

by mature road-side trees, to the north, the views open out across arable

and pedestrians travelling on the A8 and is representative of the open views

roof tops to be visible towards the west or the east from the viewpoint, the

farmland.

of the landscape in which rural development is a baseline feature.

magnitude of change on these views would be very limited.

The susceptibility of road-users, cyclists and pedestrians to the proposed

Level of effect

development is low. From this section of the A8, although the rise in the

The effect of the proposed development would be minor. This finding relates

landform is subtle, it is of sufficient elevation to largely screen both the

to the very limited visibility that would be experienced by road-users, cyclists

existing dwellings and the proposed dwellings from this section of the A8.

and pedestrians on this section of the A8.

The combination of the value of the view and the susceptibility of road-users

Page 268
Landscape and Visual Appraisal | Gogar Rigg, Castle Gogar
11

gives rise to an overall medium to low sensitivity.

Viewpoint 3: A8 near Edinburgh Airport junction

Sensitivity

Magnitude of change

The viewpoint is located on the A8, east of the junction to Edinburgh Airport.

The value of this view is medium to low. The viewpoint is not representative

The magnitude of change as a result of the proposed development would

The view looks north-east, over the open arable fields towards the site. The

of a formal viewpoint and is not located in an area covered by a landscape

be low. The extent to which the proposed development be visible would be

view is representative of the views of east-bound road-users, cyclists and

designation. The viewpoint is representative of the views experienced

limited by the separation distance from the viewpoint, the screening effect

pedestrians. The key feature in the view is Edinburgh Airport, which is seen on

incidentally by road-users, cyclists and pedestrians travelling east-bound

of parts of the proposed dwellings by the existing dwellings and the partial

the left of the view (the north of the viewpoint). While the control tower acts

along the A8. The key feature is Edinburgh Airport which detracts from the

screening formed by intervening landform and tree cover. A comparison with

as landmark feature, the other modern blocks extend over a wide horizontal

rural character of the sider landscape.

the large scale and extent of the developments associated with Edinburgh
Airport would further accentuate the relatively small scale of the proposed

extent to form a notable urban influence. In contrast, the view to the northeast is predominantly rural, characterised by open fields of arable with tree

The susceptibility of road-users, cyclists and pedestrians at this location is low.

cover and low hills adding to the perceived extent of this area. The existing

This is because the proposed development would occur as a distant feature

residential dwellings at Gogar Rigg are visible from this viewpoint, although

and seen in the context of much closer range and larger scale development

Level of effect

seen as distant and relatively small scale features, set within a wooded

associated with Edinburgh Airport.

The effect of the proposed development would be minor. This finding relates

backdrop.

Page 269

The combination of the value of the view and the susceptibility of road-users
gives rise to an overall low sensitivity.

development.

to the low sensitivity of the visual receptors and the low magnitude of change
they would experience as a result of the proposed development. It would form
a relatively distant and small scale feature in this view.

Landscape and Visual Appraisal | Gogar Rigg, Castle Gogar
12

Page 270

7. Summary
A Landscape and Visual Appraisal (LVA) has been prepared in support of the
planning application for Gogar Rigg and this follows best practice guidance

•

produced by the Landscape Institute in its Guidance for Landscape and
Visual Impact Assessment (GLVIA) (3rd Edition 2013). It evaluates the level
of effect on the landscape character, and visual amenity of the site and its
surroundings.

•

would occur, the proposed development would be seen as a distant and

The design of the proposed development ensures it integrates visually

small scale feature, partly screened by intervening landform and existing tree

with the existing residential developments;

cover around the southern site boundary. The level of effect on these views

The relatively small scale of the proposed development means that
the effects rapidly dissipate with distance from the site;

•

The proposed development comprises the addition of six residential dwellings,
associated infrastructure, open and private space, tree and hedge planting,

proposed development;

•

development, these would be mostly minor and occur within the localised

the site is not prominent within the wider landscape;

area of the site. These effects would also be mitigated by the responsive and

The mature trees along the northern, eastern and southern boundaries

integrated design of the layout.

would reduce the extent to which the proposed development would

effects relate to the to the landscape character on this urban / rural fringe,

be visible across the wider landscape;
•

the A8 and Gogarburn Bridge.

The inclusion of additional tree and hedge planting and areas of open
space would enhance the existing landscape setting and reduce the

Page 271

The following table sets out the findings of the appraisal in terms of the
sensitivity of each receptor, the magnitude of change as a result of the
proposed development and the level of effect in respect of the sensitivity
rating combined with the magnitude of change rating.

urban influence of the proposed development; and
•

The presence of Edinburgh Airport contributes to a context where
large scale development forms an established part of the baseline
character, thus reducing the comparative influence of the proposed
development.

Receptor

Sensitivity

Magnitude of change

Level of effect

The main finding of the appraisal has been that most of the effects as a result

Lowland Farmland:

medium to low

low

minor

of the proposed development would be contained within the local area around

West Craigs

the site. Visibility of the proposed development would be very limited in

Farmland
VP 1:

This report concludes that while effects may arise as a result of the proposed

The landform of the site and surroundings is relatively flat such that

on the Gogar Rigg site to the south and west of Castle Gogar. The potential
and changes to the visual amenity of road-users, cyclists and pedestrians on

would be minor.

extent, especially to the north and east where visibility would be negligible
medium

medium

moderate

owing to the dense screen of the woodland edge, as well as to the southeast, where tree cover screens visibility from much of the adjacent area. This

VP 2:

medium to low

negligible

minor

VP 3:

low

low

minor

creates a situation in which visibility is concentrated to the immediate south
and south-east where the A8 overbridge and the A8 occur.
In terms of effects on landscape receptors, the site constitutes a very small
proportion of the much wider West Craigs Farmland LCT, which is already
influenced by the presence of the existing residential dwellings at Gogar
Rigg. The contribution the site makes to the character of the wider LCU is

The appraisal has found that the effects of the proposed development on
the surrounding landscape and visual receptors would be limited in terms of
level of effect and extent of effect, with all effects contained within the local
area. This finding relates to the following factors:
•

•

very limited and this reduces the level of effect of the proposed development.
In terms of effects on visual receptors, there would be no major effects. A
moderate effect has been assessed for the closest range viewpoint; Viewpoint
1: A8 Overbridge to the immediate south of the site. This effect relates to the

The presence of existing residential dwellings on the Gogar Rigg site

proximity of the viewpoint to the proposed development and its elevated

establishes this type and style of development as part of the baseline

position, although the proposed development would be seen as an integrated

character;

extension to the existing development. Visibility form the A8 would be

The existing residential developments form a screen to parts of the

intermittent and where open views towards the proposed development

Landscape and Visual Appraisal | Gogar Rigg, Castle Gogar
14

optimised environments ltd.
Edinburgh
Quartermile Two | 2 Lister Square | Edinburgh | EH3 9GL
t 0131 221 5920 | w optimisedenvironments.com
Optimised Environments Ltd. Registered in Scotland SC359690.
Registered address: Quartermile Two | 2 Lister Square | Edinburgh | EH3 9GL

London
Unit 6 | 36-42 New Inn Yard | Shoreditch | London | EC2A 3EY
t 0203 984 4022

Manchester
13 Swan Street | Manchester | M4 5JJ
t 0161 696 7550

Page 272

Page 273

McGregor

McMahon

& ASSOCIATES

CONSULTING ENGINEERS
Castle Court, Carnegie Campus, Dunfermline, Fife KY11 8PB
Tel: 01383 734905 Fax: 01383 731591
email: mma@mcgregor-mcmahon.com
website: www. mcgregor-mcmahon.com

Page 274

R

WP

CASTLE GOGAR

R
RW

P

WP

N

R

APPROVED OFFICES

WP

R

Page 275

W

P

MhCl

STABLE COTTAGES
MhCl

MhCl

FH

MhCl

MhCl

IC

IC

IC
SV
SV

F1

CO

UR

D
AR
TY

PADDOCK

HOUSE ONE

MhCl

APPROVED HOUSE

APARTMENT BLOCK 2

APARTMENT BLOCK 1

HOUSES THREE TO EIGHT
5.0

0

10.0

30.0

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
SITE PLAN . AS EXISTING
1:500

5.0

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(90)02

Rev
08.10.19

A1 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

Castle Gogar, Edinburgh
Heritage Statement
September 2019

Simpson & Brown

Page 276

Primary author

LE

Checked/approved

NJU

Issue number

Issue 2

The Old Printworks, 77a Brunswick Street, Edinburgh, EH7 5HS | 70 Cowcross Street,
London, EC1M 6EJ admin@simpsonandbrown.co.uk | +44 (0)131 555 4678
www.simpsonandbrown.co.uk

Page 277

1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1

1.1
1.2
1.3
1.4

Purpose and background to heritage statement
Historic assets
History of Castle Gogar and its estate
Heritage impacts of the proposals and proposed mitigation

1
1
1
1

2.0

INTRODUCTION

3

2.1
2.2
2.3
2.4
2.5
2.6
2.7

Objectives of this heritage statement
Study Area
Other studies and related documents
Limitations
Project team
Acknowledgements
Abbreviations in this report

3
3
4
5
5
5
5

3.0

RELEVANT HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT ASSETS

6

3.1
3.2
3.3
3.4
3.5

Historic environment receptors considered in this statement
Listed Buildings
Scheduled Monuments (SM)
Sites and Monuments Records (SMR)
Other designations

6
6
7
7
9

4.0

HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT POLICY AND GUIDANCE

11

4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4

The Scottish Planning Policy (2014)
11
Historic Environment Policy for Scotland (May 2019)
11
Local planning policy: Edinburgh Local Development Plan (2016)
11
Guidance - Historic Environment Scotland Managing Change in the Historic
Environment: Setting
15

5.0

HISTORICAL SUMMARIES

18

5.1
5.2
5.3
5.4
5.5

Map regression
Castle Gogar
Other built structures
Recent planning history
Cultural Significance Assessment

18
23
24
27
27

6.0

IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND MITIGATION

29

6.1
6.2
6.3
6.4
6.5
6.6
6.7

Proposals
Listed building setting: Castle Gogar and curtilage structures
Listed building setting: the bridge
Other listed buildings in a 500m radius from the site
Scheduled Monument
CECAS Sites and Monument Records
Conclusions

29
30
34
35
35
35
36

Page 278

Page 279

1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

Purpose and background to heritage statement

Quarry Investments Ltd. is making a planning application to the City of Edinburgh
Council (CEC) for the erection of five houses at Castle Gogar Rigg. Simpson & Brown
has been commissioned to prepare a heritage statement to accompany the planning
application.
This report has been prepared to consider the historic-environment implications of
the proposed development in support of the planning application. Several
documents and archaeological field work were commissioned as part of previous
development on the same site, now completed. These documents have provided
background information about the history and significance of the site. Site visits were
made in 2018 in the preparation of this document.
1.2

Historic assets

The proposed development site is within the direct setting of two listed buildings;
Castle Gogar, listed in category A, and Castle Gogar Bridge, listed in Category B. It is
in the vicinity of other listed buildings and within the setting or proximity of several
local Sites and Monument Records (SMR). It is located within the setting of the
Scheduled Monument ‘fort, palisaded enclosure and field system 850m SSE of Gogar
Mains’.
1.3

History of Castle Gogar and its estate

A first house was erected c.1300, which was incorporated in a larger mansion, in the
baronial style, in 1625. An extension was added to the west c.1700 and further
extensions were made during the nineteenth century. It is probably at that time that
the stables and the walled garden were added.
The bridge was built in 1672, and carries the drive to Castle Gogar. The castle and
bridge sit were originally situated, in a rural environment, mainly consisting of fields
and parkland, which remained little changed until the second half of the twentieth
century. Modern developments including the airport, the tram, and the existing
residential development, have significantly modified this environment.
1.4

Heritage impacts of the proposals and proposed mitigation

Following the assessment of the proposed development and its impact on the historic
assets concerned in this heritage statement, it is considered that the overall impact of
the proposal would be detrimental in the impacts on the setting of the castle and
bridge. However, these assets are compromised in cultural-heritage terms, by the
existing development, the tramline, the proposed IBG road and the proximity of the
airport.
Regarding mitigation, the client’s design team has made modified designs, to reduce
impacts on assets. In addition, to offset impacts, there is a programme of
archaeological works to be specified by CECAS, works to improve and maintain
trees and walls on the drive, the latter enhancing the setting of the castle and bridge.
This mitigation is committed to by the applicant.

Page 280

Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

1

Therefore, on balance of harm versus mitigation, it is considered that the proposed
development should be seen as acceptable in cultural heritage terms.

2

Page 281
Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

2.0

INTRODUCTION

2.1

Objectives of this heritage statement

This heritage statement was commissioned by Quarry Investments Ltd. as part of the
proposed development of five additional houses on the land of Castle Gogar, to the
west and south of the castle. At the time of writing, five houses had already been
completed, allowing the restoration of the A-listed building Castle Gogar, and
planning permission has been granted by City of Edinburgh Council (CEC) for the
development of two houses and two apartment buildings on site.
This heritage statement is intended to provide an assessment of the impact of the
proposed development of five additional houses, on the historic environment,
including listed buildings and structures, their setting and curtilage buildings,
scheduled monuments and local Sites and Monuments Record sites (SMRs). It
assesses both direct and indirect effects. It has been prepared in accordance with
current national and local policy and guidance, and industry best practice.
2.2

Study Area

Castle Gogar and its land, on which development is proposed, is located on the
outskirts of Edinburgh, to the west of the city bypass and north of the A8. Edinburgh
Airport lies directly to the north-west and the tram line runs near the south edge of
the site. It is within the jurisdiction of Edinburgh City Council.

Figure 1 Castle Gogar, indicated with a red circle, in the context of Edinburgh. The site is
located west of the Edinburgh Bypass, north of the A8 road and directly to the south east of
the airport. OpenStreetMap

Page 282

Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

3

Figure 2 Aerial photograph of Castle Gogar, showing the castle and the existing houses and
apartments on the development site. The tram line is visible along the bottom of the image
and the airport runway in the top-right corner. Google Maps 2019

2.3

Other studies and related documents

As part of the previous developments on the site or nearby area, the following
relevant studies have been carried out:
Faber Maunsell, Report on the likely effects on cultural heritage interests of the
construction and operation of the proposed Tram Line 2, Edinburgh. c.20091
Headland Archaeology, Castle Gogar Rigg development, Edinburgh. Planning
enforcements works. Planning Ref. 15/01051/FUL and 17/00202/FUL. Edinburgh,
2017
McGowan, Peter, Edinburgh Survey of Gardens and Designed Landscapes – 136
Castle Gogar. City of Edinburgh Council, 2009.2
This Heritage Statement is being submitted as part of a suite of documents
supporting the planning application for the erection of new houses at Castle Gogar.
It should be read in conjunction with the Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment

Further details on this report are available on the Canmore website:
https://canmore.org.uk/collection/1144216 accessed August 2019
2 Available online:
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/downloads/download/76/gardens_and_designed_landsca
pes_site_reports accessed August 2019
1

4

Page 283
Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

(LVIA) and the Transportation and Planning Support Statement, prepared by different
authors.
2.4

Limitations

It is possible that further information will become available after the completion of
this report. Any new information should be acknowledged by the stakeholders.
2.5

Project team

The team from Simpson & Brown comprised:
-

Nicholas Uglow MA (Hons.) MSc (heritage consultant, associate)

-

Laure Emery BA MSc (heritage consultant)

The team worked in conjunction with the client and their design team.
2.6

Acknowledgements

This report contains maps reproduced by permission of the Trustees of the National
Library of Scotland (NLS). The Roy Military Survey appears courtesy of the British
Library Board (BL). To view these maps online, see http://www.nls.uk/
All photographs and drawings in this report are by the authors unless stated.
2.7

Abbreviations in this report

CEC – City of Edinburgh Council

OS – Ordnance Survey

CECAS – City of Edinburgh Council
Archaeology Service

S&B – Simpson & Brown

HES – Historic Environment Scotland
HEPS
–
Historic
Environment
Scotland Policy Statement (2019)

SM – Scheduled Monument
SMR – Sites and Monuments Record
sites
SPP – Scottish Planning Policy

NLS – National Library of Scotland
LDP – Local Development Plan
LPA – Local planning authority

Page 284

Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

5

3.0

RELEVANT HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT ASSETS

3.1

Historic environment receptors considered in this statement

The primary receptor for impacts considered in this statement is the setting of the Alisted Castle Gogar, and its curtilage structures.
However, the impact on adjacent receptors within approximately 500m from the
proposed development site are also considered. These are the B-listed bridge on the
approach road, the scheduled monument to the south and SMRs. Other historic
assets (designated and non-designated) beyond 500m have been excluded from the
analysis because there is no intervisibility with the proposed development site.
3.2

Listed Buildings

Castle Gogar with cottage, gate house, stables, outbuildings, gate and gatepiers is
listed in Category A (LB27092). In its vicinity, other listed buildings include Castle
Gogar Bridge (LB27102); Castle Gogar lodge and gates and gatepiers (LB27112);
located at the entrance of the approach road; Gogar Parish Church and churchyard
(LB26984); and the former Gogar Parish Church and Graveyard (LB27268). All are
listed in category B. It is understood that the two churches are not historically
directly associated with Castle Gogar, but are the remaining buildings of the former
village of Nether Gogar.
As Castle Gogar was set for most of its history in a rural area, there is a low density
of buildings and therefore the number of listed buildings in its vicinity is limited to
those stated above. There are more listed buildings located to the south of the A8
road.
Buildings are listed because they are considered to have special architectural or
historic interest, as set out in the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas)
(Scotland) Act 1997. Listed buildings are provided with statutory protection through
the planning system, to ensure that their special character and interest are preserved
where changes are proposed. Historic Environment Scotland (HES) defines the
different categories as follows:
F

Category A
Buildings of special architectural or historical interest which are outstanding
examples of a particular period, style or building type.
Category B
Buildings of special architectural or historic interest which are major examples of
a particular period, style or building type.
Category C
Buildings of special architectural or historic interest which are representative
examples of a period, style or building type.3

https://www.historicenvironment.scot/advice-and-support/listing-scheduling-anddesignations/listed-buildings/what-is-listing/#categories-of-listing_tab Accessed August
2019
3

6

Page 285
Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

The Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) states that ‘changes to a listed building should be
managed to protect its special interest while enabling it to remain in active use’ and
that ‘special regard must be given to preserving and enhancing the building, its
setting and any features of special architectural or historic interest’.4
3.3

Scheduled Monuments (SM)

Castle Gogar is not recognised as a scheduled monument. The fort, palisaded
enclosure and field system (SM4573) located to the south of Castle Gogar and north
of the A8 road is the only scheduled monument in the vicinity of Castle Gogar. It is
located about 400m from the castle itself and about 250m from the proposed
development.
Structures, buildings and sites are added to the schedule of monuments because they
are considered to be of national importance. This is the single criterion contained in
The Ancient Monuments and Archaeological Areas Act 1979. The purpose of
scheduling is to preserve and control works on monuments, the survival of which is
in the national interest. The SPP states that development should not create an
adverse effect on scheduled monuments and their setting, and permission should
only be granted for change in exceptional circumstances.5
3.4

Sites and Monuments Records (SMR)

SMRs are non-designated, and they have no statutory protection. However, they
have heritage value and Local Planning Authorities are required to protect and
preserve them. Section 150, the Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) states that
Planning authorities should protect archaeological sites and monuments as an
important, finite and non-renewable resource and preserve them in situ wherever
possible. Where in situ preservation is not possible, planning authorities should,
through the use of conditions or a legal obligation, ensure that developers undertake
appropriate excavation, recording, analysis, publication and archiving before and/or
during development. If archaeological discoveries are made, they should be reported to
the planning authority to enable discussion on appropriate measures, such as
inspection and recording.6
Most SMRs within the jurisdiction of City of Edinburgh Council Archaeology Service
(CECAS) are referenced on Canmore. Canmore is the National Record of the Historic
Environment which is part of Historic Environment Scotland, and they ‘collect, care
for and make available material relating to Scotland’s archaeology, buildings,
industrial and maritime heritage’7. The Canmore entries in a 500m radius of the
proposed development site have been considered and are listed in Table 1 below.
They include buildings (listed and non-listed), other built structures, landscape
features (lake, ditch etc.) and events (archaeological evaluations, dig, watching-brief
etc.).

Scottish Ministers Scottish planning policy (Scottish Government: 2014). para. 141
Scottish Ministers Scottish planning policy (Scottish Government: 2014). para. 145
6 Scottish Ministers Scottish planning policy (Scottish Government: 2014). para. 150
7 https://canmore.org.uk/content/about accessed June 2018
4
5

Page 286

Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

7

Table 1 Canmore entries located in a 500m radius from Castle Gogar development site

8

Canmore ID

Name

Classification

Listed Building (LB)
or Scheduled
Monument (SM) ID
when applicable

152650

Edinburgh, Gogar
Mains

Farmstead (period
Unassigned)

-

347090

Edinburgh, Gogar
Roundabout,
Edinburgh Tram
Scheme, Tram Station

No Class (event), Gyle
Shopping Centre

-

268552

Edinburgh, Glasgow
Road, Castle Gogar,
Walled Garden

Walled Garden (period
Unassigned)

-

254001

Edinburgh, Glasgow
Road, Castle Gogar,
Cottage And Stables

Cottage (period
Unassigned), Stable(s)
(period Unassigned)

LB27092

50717

Edinburgh, Glasgow
Road, Castle Gogar

Ditch(s) (17th Century),
Lairds House (17th
Century), Gogar Castle,
Gogar House

LB27092

50706

Gogar

Linear Feature(s) (period
Unassigned), Settlement
(period Unassigned)

SM4573

50705

Gogar

Fort (period Unassigned)

SM4573

145853

Edinburgh, Glasgow
Road, Castle Gogar,
Bridge

Road Bridge (period
Unassigned), Gogar Burn

LB27102

300205

Gogar Bank

No Class (event)

-

271382

Gogarburn

No Class (event)

-

306834

Edinburgh, Gogar

Lake (period Unassigned)

-

145809

Edinburgh, 194
Glasgow Road,
Gogar Parish Church,
Churchyard With
Liston Monument

Churchyard (period
Unassigned),
Commemorative
Monument (period
Unassigned)

LB27268

50670

Edinburgh, 194
Glasgow Road,
Gogar Parish Church

Church (period
Unassigned)

LB26984

171097

Gogar

Enclosure (period
Unassigned)

-

50710

Edinburgh, West
Craigs, Meadowfield,
Cast-iron Bridge

Bridge (period
Unassigned)

-

Page 287
Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

In addition to the referenced sites, a watching brief and excavation was undertaken
on the site of the construction of dwelling houses and apartments to the south-west
of the castle (planning applications 15/01051/FUL and 17/00202/FUL, approved in
2015 and 2017). The archaeological work was carried by Headland Archaeology and
the report was completed in July 2017. The report’s summary states that:
The exposed sections revealed a foundation cut of a wall to the west of the two
apartment blocks and a further ditch, possibly associated with a foundation cut to the
east of the apartments. A ditch along with the remains of a stone wall were also
recorded on the same alignment further to the east within the easternmost monitored
topsoil strip areas. The monitoring at the north of the development area revealed a
stone-built culvert in association with a large linear ditch, along with a small pit. All
identified features are of potentially 16th to 17th century date. No other
archaeological features or deposits were identified.8
The proposed development site is set in an area of rich archaeological resources.
Consultation with CECAS has established that, when consulted as part of a live
planning application, it would recommend a phased excavation of the site prior to
construction, if the planning application was consented.9
3.5

Other designations

There are no other designations applicable to Castle Gogar. There is no Conservation
Area, World Heritage Site, Gardens and Designed Landscape Inventory area, or
historic battlefield.

8
9

Palyvos, Aris, Castle Gogar Rigg Development, Edinburgh. Headland Archaeology, 2017. p.1
John Lawson, pers. com. 13 June 2018

Page 288

Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

9

Figure 3 Relevant designations within a 500m radius from the proposed development site.
Base map OpenStreetMap and Ian Aitken Arch.

10

Page 289
Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

4.0

HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT POLICY AND GUIDANCE

4.1

The Scottish Planning Policy (2014)

The Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) sets out national planning policies which reflect
Scottish Ministers’ priorities for the operation of the planning system and for the
development and use of land. The SPP promotes consistency in the application of
policy across Scotland whilst allowing sufficient flexibility to reflect local
circumstances.10 The SPP includes the Scottish Government’s national planning
policy on the conservation of the historic environment.
It includes an explicit recognition of the need for informed conservation, to
understand the significance of historic sites and the potential impacts that any
proposed development might have. It also emphasises the need to ‘enable positive
change in the historic environment’ based on well-informed understanding.11
This document has been prepared in accordance with the following policies:

4.2

•

General policies relating to the historic environment (policy numbers 135, 136
& 137)

•

Development Management (140)

•

Listed buildings (141 & 142)

•

Scheduled Monuments (145)

•

Archaeology and Other Historic Environment Assets (150 & 151)
Historic Environment Policy for Scotland (May 2019)

The Historic Environment Policy for Scotland (HEPS) by HES, along with their
Managing Change in the Historic Environment guidance note series (see 4.4), are the
documents to which local planning authorities are directed in consideration of
applications affecting historic environment assets in their jurisdiction.
The protection and enhancement of the historic environment is its fundamental basis.
However, there is also a clear emphasis on enabling change that is sustainable.
4.3

Local planning policy: Edinburgh Local Development Plan (2016)

The LDP was adopted in November 2016.
The LDP sets out policies and proposals relating to the development and use of land
in the Edinburgh area. The policies in the LDP will be used to determine future
planning applications.12
Concerning listed buildings within the Council’s jurisdiction, it comments that:

Scottish Ministers Scottish planning policy (Scottish Government: 2014)
Scottish Ministers Scottish planning policy (Scottish Government: 2014). p.33
12 The City of Edinburgh Council Edinburgh Local Development Plan (adopted November 2016).
para. 2
10
11

Page 290

Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

11

Listed Buildings are buildings of special architectural or historic interest… Some
proposals may also require planning permission. Development plan policies have a
role to play in helping to protect listed buildings, their setting and features of special
interest.13
Concerning archaeology:
Edinburgh has a wealth of archaeological resources, from buildings to buried
remains and marine wrecks, dating from earliest prehistory to the 20th century.
This archaeological resource is finite and non-renewable. It contains unique
information about how the city’s historic and natural environment developed
over time. In addition to providing a valuable insight into the past, archaeological
remains also contribute to a sense of place and bring leisure and tourism benefits.
Care must be taken to ensure that these are not needlessly destroyed by
development.
The Council maintains a Historic Environment Record of known designated and
non-designated archaeological remains which in 2013 contains 63 nationally
important scheduled monuments protected by the Ancient Monuments and
Archaeological Areas Act 1979.
There may also be many potentially important archaeological features which have
not yet been discovered. These are therefore not included in national or local
records. Scottish Planning Policy sets out the Government’s approach to
protecting archaeological remains and the weight to be given to archaeological
considerations when assessing against the benefits of development. Detailed
advice is provided in Planning Advice Note 2/2011 Planning and Archaeology.14
Relevant policies are:
Policy Env 3 Listed Buildings – Setting
Development within the curtilage or affecting the setting of a listed building will be
permitted only if not detrimental to the architectural character, appearance or historic
interest of the building, or to its setting.15
Policy Env 9 Development of Sites of Archaeological Significance
Planning permission will be granted for development on sites of known or
suspected archaeological significance if it can be concluded from information
derived from a desk-based assessment and, if requested by the Council, a field
evaluation, that either:
a) no significant archaeological features are likely to be affected by the
development or
b) any significant archaeological features will be preserved in situ and, if
necessary, in an appropriate setting with provision for public access and
interpretation or
c) the benefits of allowing the proposed development outweigh the importance of
preserving the remains in situ. The applicant will then be required to make

CEC Edinburgh Local Development Plan (November 2016). para. 26
CEC Edinburgh Local Development Plan (November 2016). para. 30-32
15 CEC Edinburgh Local Development Plan (November 2016). p.100
13
14

12

Page 291
Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

provision for archaeological excavation, recording, and analysis, and
publication of the results before development starts, all to be in accordance
with a programme of works agreed with the Council.
The objective of the above policies is to protect and enhance archaeological
remains, where possible by preservation in situ in an appropriate setting. In some
cases, depending on the nature of the remains and character of the site, the
Council may require provision for public access and interpretation as part of the
proposed development. When preservation in situ is not possible, recording
and/or excavation followed by analysis and publication of the results will be
required.
Developers should seek early advice from the Council’s Archaeologist for sites
where historic remains are known or thought likely to exist. Where a development
may affect a scheduled monument or its setting, early contact should be made
with Historic Environment Scotland.16
In the LDP and its Proposals Map Castle Gogar and houses are indicated as part of
the Special Economic Area: International Business Gateway (policy Emp 6) (Figure
4). Policy Emp 6 will support in principle further development, including housing as
a component of a business. However, ‘All IBG proposals must accord with the IBG
development principles and other relevant local development plan policies.’17 These
include the historic-environment policies noted above.
The area of land between Castle Gogar and west of Gogar Burn is shown as an IBG
Open Space (Greenspace Proposal GS 6). ‘The West Edinburgh Landscape
Framework (approved in December 2011) identifies strategic landscape design and
open space requirements. Three main areas of open space are proposed as key
elements of the International Business Gateway.’ The open space located south of the
castle is defined as the ‘archaeology park’ and covers the Scheduled Monument area.
The LDP also acknowledge the need for road access in connection with the
development of the International Business Gateway and West Edinburgh. The
proposal referenced T9: Gogar Link Road is proposed as a ‘largely single
carriageway through IBG with some widening to allow public transport priority.
Link may be bus/cycle/pedestrian only’.18 It is indicated on the Proposals Map
running east-west between the present tram line and the south boundary of Castle
Gogar development site.

CEC Edinburgh Local Development Plan (November 2016). p.101
CEC Edinburgh Local Development Plan (November 2016). p.111
18 CEC Edinburgh Local Development Plan (November 2016). p.38
16
17

Page 292

Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

13

Figure 4 Edinburgh local development plan proposals map (detail of the Gogar area) City of
Edinburgh Council

14

Page 293
Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

4.4

Guidance - Historic Environment Scotland Managing Change in the
Historic Environment: Setting

Proposed development is located in the setting of two listed buildings, Castle Gogar
and the bridge on the approach road. HES Managing Change in the Historic
Environment guidance series, are non-statutory notes explaining how to apply
government policies to adequately manage change in the historic environment. Their
guidance on managing change in the setting of heritage structures
sets out the principles that apply to developments affecting the setting of historic
assets or places, including scheduled monuments, listed buildings… and
undesignated sites.
Planning authorities usually make the initial assessment of whether a
development will affect the setting of a historic asset or place... If a planning
authority identifies a potential impact on a designated historic asset, it may
consult Historic Environment Scotland, who act as statutory consultees in the
planning process.19
The document identifies key issues:
2. Where development is proposed it is important to:
– identify the historic assets that might be affected
– define the setting of each historic asset
– assess the impact of any new development on this
3. Setting often extends beyond the property boundary or ‘curtilage’ of an
individual historic asset into a broader landscape context. Both tangible and less
tangible elements can be important in understanding the setting. Less tangible
elements may include function, sensory perceptions or the historical, artistic,
literary and scenic associations of places or landscapes.
4. If proposed development is likely to affect the setting of a key historic asset, an
objective written assessment should be prepared by the applicant to inform the
decision-making process. The conclusions should take into account the
significance of the asset and its setting and attempt to quantify the extent of any
impact. The methodology and level of information should be tailored to the
circumstances of each case.
5. In the light of the assessment described above, finalised development proposals
should seek to avoid or mitigate detrimental impacts on the settings of historic
assets.
Setting is defined:
‘Setting’ is the way the surroundings of a historic asset or place contribute to how
it is understood, appreciated and experienced.
[Scheduled] Monuments, buildings, gardens and settlements were almost always
placed and orientated deliberately, normally with reference to the surrounding

Historic Environment Scotland Managing change in the historic environment: Setting (2016).
p.4
19

Page 294

Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

15

topography, resources, landscape and other structures. Over time, these
relationships change, although aspects of earlier settings can be retained.
Setting can therefore not simply be defined by a line on a map, and is likely to be
unrelated to modern landownership or to curtilage, often extending beyond
immediate property boundaries into the wider area. 20
6F

There is guidance on how to define and analyse setting:
Key viewpoints to, from and across the setting of a historic asset should be
identified. Often certain views are critical to how a historic asset is or has been
approached and seen, or understood when looking out. These views were
sometimes deliberately manipulated, manufactured and/or maintained, and may
still be readily understood and appreciated today. Depending on the historic asset
or place these could include specific points on current and historical approaches,
routeways, associated farmland, other related buildings, monuments, natural
features, etc.
Sometimes these relationships can be discerned across wide areas and even out to
distant horizons…
Changes in the surroundings since the historic asset or place was built should be
considered, as should the contribution of the historic asset or place to the current
landscape. In some cases the current surroundings will contribute to a sense of
place, or how a historic asset or place is experienced.
The value attributed to a historic asset by the community or wider public may
influence the sensitivity of its setting. Public consciousness may place a strong
emphasis on an asset and its setting for aesthetic reasons, or because of an artistic
or historic association. Such associative values can contribute to the significance
of a site, and to the sensitivity of its setting.
Whether or not a site is visited does not change its inherent value, or its
sensitivity to alterations in its setting. This should be distinguished from the
tourism, leisure or economic role of a site. Tourism and leisure factors may be
relevant in the overall analysis of the impact of a proposed development, but they
do not form part of an assessment of setting impacts. 21
7F

Factors to be considered in assessing the impact of a change on the setting of a
historic asset or place include:
–
–
–
–

20
21

whether key views to or from the historic asset or place are interrupted
whether the proposed change would dominate or detract in a way that
affects our ability to understand and appreciate the historic asset
the visual impact of the proposed change relative to the scale of the historic
asset or place and its setting
the visual impact of the proposed change relative to the current place of the
historic asset in the landscape

Historic Environment Scotland Managing change in the historic environment: setting. p.6
Historic Environment Scotland Managing change in the historic environment: setting. p.9

16

Page 295
Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

–

–

the presence, extent, character and scale of the existing built environment
within the surroundings of the historic asset or place and how the proposed
development compares to this
the magnitude of the proposed change relative to the sensitivity of the
setting of an asset - sometimes relatively small changes, or a series of small
changes, can have a major impact on our ability to appreciate and
understand a historic asset or place. Points to consider include:
− the ability of the setting to absorb new development without
eroding its key characteristics
− the effect of the proposed change on qualities of the existing setting
such as sense of remoteness, current noise levels, evocation of the
historical past, sense of place, cultural identity, associated spiritual
responses
− cumulative impacts: individual developments may not cause
significant impacts on their own, but may do so when they are
combined.22

Advice is given on mitigation:
Where the assessment indicates that there will be an adverse impact on the setting
of a historic asset or place, even if this is perceived to be temporary or reversible,
alterations to the siting or design of the new development should be considered to
remove or reduce this impact.
Other mitigation measures include screening the development, for example with
trees or bunding (enclosing structures). However, the screening itself needs
careful consideration so that it does not cause an impact in its own right. 23
9F

Principles set out in Managing Change in the Historic Environment: Setting have been
followed as a key guidance in this document to assess the impact of the proposed
development on the setting of the listed buildings and to recommend appropriate
mitigation.

22
23

Historic Environment Scotland Managing change in the historic environment: setting. p.11
Historic Environment Scotland Managing change in the historic environment: setting. p.12

Page 296

Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

17

5.0

HISTORICAL SUMMARIES

5.1

Map regression

‘Gogar’ is represented along with the burn by Joan Blaeu in 1654, in a shape of a
mansion and then by John Adair c.1682 with some trees and surrounded by a
rectangular enclosure.

Figure 5

Joan Blaeu, ‘Lothian and Linlitquo’, 1654. NLS

Figure 6 John Adair, ‘A map of MidLothian’, c.1682. Original manuscript. NLS

Figure 7 John Adair, ‘A map of Mid-Lothian’,
imprint: 1735, from 1680s manuscript. NLS

William Roy is the first to depict the estate of ‘Gouger’ in greater details (Figure 8).
He represents two buildings (certainly the castle and stables or other ancillary
buildings) and a red rectangle to the west, possibly a walled enclosure. On Roy’s
map, the whole estate extends south, up to the present A8 road; further north to
where is now the airport; but also to the east of the Gogar Burn. All is enclosed by
boundary features indicated in red, and several planted allées and tree belts are also
represented. It is not clear on Roy’s map where the entrance of the estate and the
approach road to the castle are located. However, it should be noted that a feature
indicated in red on the map, and crossing the burn diagonally, seems to follow what
is now the approach road. The crossing point of the burn would appear to be the
listed bridge, as the Listed Building data states that it was constructed in 1672. It
therefore seems possible that the present approach road has been in use as such since
at least the late-seventeenth century.
Roy also depicts a north-south tree belt, which is also shown on all subsequent maps,
running from the stables to the burn. There is no apparent function for this landscape
feature, however, the remains of the undated fort (SMR, Canmore ID 50705) are
located near the burn, in the exact alignment of the tree belt. It was not uncommon in
the seventeenth and eighteenth century to design landscapes which included planted

18

Page 297
Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

features including belts and allées, leading the eye or framing views from houses or
castles towards ruins or ancient historical sites, and this might have been the case
here. The belt would have directed the view from the castle towards the remains of
the fort, and connected metaphorically the owners of the castle to the ancient site,
either because they were forebears, or to lend them legitimacy. Also, the belt
screened the cultivated land to the west from the pasture by the burn.

Figure 8

Roy ‘Military Survey map of Scotland’, 1747-55. BL - NLS

Furthermore, Roy depicts an allée of trees, to the east of the burn. It is assumed that
this was terminated visually with the church in Nether Gogar; the allée was
presumably intended to frame the view or create an informal route to the church for
the occupants of the castle. The allée is not clearly depicted on subsequent maps, with
the exception of Knox (see below).
The maps of John Laurie (1766) and A. and M. Armstrong (1773) both represent the
mansion set in a mix of fields and parkland with tree lines creating enclosures, and of
similar extent as those on Roy’s map (Figure 9 and Figure 10).

Figure 9 John Laurie, ‘A plan of Edinburgh Figure 10 Armstrong, ‘Map of the three
and places adjacent’, 1766. NLS
Lothians’, imprint: 1773. NLS

Page 298

Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

19

James Knox (1816) and Greenwood, Fawler & Sharp (1828) are the first to clearly
represent the approach road as it is today. Both maps show trees lining the road, the
burn the allée and tree belts. Greenwood, Fawler & Sharp indicates the extent of
parkland (or possibly extent of ownership) in a darker shade. This covers the area
around the castle, between the burn and the road to Gogar Mains and the area south
of the castle, on both sides of the burn, and delimited by plantations. It also shows
that the allée had been removed between 1816 and 1826, though a roundel feature
with planting on the drive is shown, possibly a remnant of the allée or a new feature.

Figure 11

James Knox, ‘Map of the shire of Edinburgh’, imprint: 1816. NLS

Figure 12
NLS

Greenwood, Fawler and Sharp, ‘Map of the county of Edinburgh’, imprint: 1828.

20

Page 299
Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

The subsequent Ordnance Survey maps show very little change from one to another
but most landscape features seem to be remnants of what is shown on the previous
maps. The shaded area (likely parkland associated with the castle) is smaller than
that shown in 1828. The north-south tree belt or allée that is clearly shown in 1816 and
1828 south of the castle and west of the burn has been reduced to only four trees on
the first edition and disappears entirely in the following revisions. On the sequence
of OS maps, the tree belts immediately to the south of the castle change several times,
especially around the paddock area. This may indicate that the trees were being
felled and re-planted. It is possible that the land south of the paddock, shown as
parkland on the 1828 map (Figure 12), was no longer in the same ownership in the
mid-nineteenth century, and that tree planting was used to screen the castle and its
parkland from the agricultural fields to the south. The plantation along the road is
also represented on the historic maps, showing more densely to the south.

Figure 13

Ordnance Survey, 6 inch to the mile, surveyed: 1852. NLS

Page 300

Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

21

Figure 14

Ordnance Survey, 25 inch to the mile, revised: 1893. NLS

Figure 15

Ordnance Survey, 6 inch to the mile, revised: 1914. NLS

22

Page 301
Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

Figure 16

Ordnance Survey, 6 inch to the mile, revised: c.1938. NLS

A lodge is first represented at the entrance of the drive, along Glasgow Road in 1852.
It is then shown as a rectangular building to the east of the drive. This lodge was
replaced between 1914 and 1938, when the first lodge is no longer represented and
was seemingly replaced by a square building to the left of the drive. This lodge still
exists today and is occupied.
5.2

Castle Gogar

The following summary is derived from the Edinburgh Survey of Gardens and Designed
Landscape, 136 Castle Gogar.24 This study provides a well-referenced comprehensive
understanding of the history of the castle and its setting, and should be consulted for
further information.

McGowan, Peter, Edinburgh Survey of Gardens and Designed Landscapes – 136 Castle Gogar.
City of Edinburgh Council, 2009
24

Page 302

Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

23

Figure 17

Castle Gogar, seen from the south-west, c.1920. Canmore SC 1225121

The village of Nether Gogar is represented on most maps, to the south-east of Castle
Gogar, east of the burn (see above). It is indicated as Gogartoun on John Adair’s
maps (Figure 6 and Figure 7). Nether Gogar was first recorded in 1453 but might
have been in existence since the twelfth century.
Gogar Estate in itself went through various ownerships during the Middle Ages, and
a first house, belonging to the Forresters of Corstorphine, was erected c.1300. The
estate was then sold to Adam or John Cowper in 1601 and 1604. Castle Gogar was
built by his son in 1625, incorporating the first house, and his and his wife’s initials
are inscribed on pediments on the north and south elevations. The mansion was built
in an L-plan, in the baronial style and is thought to have been designed by William
Ayton. It was built of harled rubble with sandstone dressings.
The house was extended to the west c.1700, and a cottage was added at the same
period, forming a C-shape building around a courtyard to the south. The house was
extended again during the nineteenth century.
5.3

Other built structures

5.3.1

The stables

The stables first appear on the 1852 OS map, and could have been added at the time
the house was extended in the nineteenth century. It is a long rectangular building,
lying to the south-west of the castle, on a north-south axis. The stables were in a
ruinous state and were restored and converted into cottages as part of the recent
development. The stables are included in the Castle Gogar listing (LB27092).

24

Page 303
Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

5.3.2

The walled garden

The walled garden appears on the 1852 OS map, but in 1828, a rectangular planted
feature is already represented on its location. It was possibly part of the nineteenth
century improvements of the house. The walled garden was retained in the recent
development. Two houses have been erected within the enclosure and one directly
along its south wall. The walled garden is not listed in itself but is part of the
curtilage structures of Castle Gogar (LB27092).

Figure 18 The former stables, now
converted, seen from the north.

5.3.3

Figure 19 The nineteenth century garden
wall (in the background)

The bridge

The bridge is listed separately (LB27102) and the listed entry gives the following
description: ‘Dated 1672. Single-span rubble bridge with later ashlar saddleback
coping to rubble parapet carrying avenue to Castle Gogar over burn. Hog's back
profile.’25 The bridge has been carefully restored as part of the recent site
development (Figure 20 and Figure 21).

Figure 20 The bridge, prior to restoration
work, showing unstable coping stones
Quarry Investments Ltd.

25

Figure 21 The bridge, photographed in June
2018, after restoration

http://portal.historicenvironment.scot/designation/LB27102 accessed August 2019

Page 304

Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

25

Figure 22 The bridge, prior to restoration
work, showing missing rubble stones at the
base of the bridge Quarry Investments Ltd.

5.3.4

Figure 23 The bridge, photographed in June
2018, after restoration

The entrance lodge

The Gate lodge is listed separately (LB27112) and the listed entry gives the following
description: ‘Gatelodge dating to the early 20th century, possibly incorporating mid19th century fabric. Single storey, L-plan lodge with lower rear jamb. Squared and
coursed sandstone rubble with polished sandstone margins, chamfered reveals.
Jerkin-headed gables. Droved quoins.’26 As the map evidence demonstrates, the
original lodge was located on the east side of the drive, and it was rebuilt before
1938. The 1938 OS maps shows a square building, suggesting that an extension was
added after that date. The lodge is still in use but is no longer in the same ownership
as the castle. The tram line, completed in 2012, cuts across the drive, directly north of
the lodge.
5.3.5

Circular walls along the drive

About half-way between the lodge and the entrance of the castle, are two semicircular walls, located on each side of the drive. They are clearly identified on the
1828 map (Figure 12) and appear again on all subsequent OS maps. This feature
seems to be in the location of north end of the allée shown on eighteenth-century
maps, but removed between 1816 and 1828. It may be a remnant of the eighteenthcentury allée or a feature, new by 1828. This structure is not listed but is considered
part of the curtilage structures of Castle Gogar (LB27092).

Figure 24 The entrance lodge, as seen from Figure 25
the north east
2018

26

The bridge, photographed in June

http://portal.historicenvironment.scot/designation/LB27112 accessed August 2019

26

Page 305
Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

5.4

Recent planning history

This section provides a brief summary of the planning history of the site since 2000.
This is intended to give an understanding of the recent significant changes which
occurred at Castle Gogar and the effects on its setting.27
In 2004, planning and listed building consent applications were submitted to CEC
for: the restoration of Castle Gogar as a family residence; the restoration and
conversion of the ruined stables into residences; alteration of the walled garden;
demolition of the greenhouse and former piggery; and erection of an office building
and five residential properties (04/02302/FUL, 04/02302/LBC and subsequent
amendments). All consented work has been carried out, apart from the proposed
office building which was not erected.
An application was submitted and consented in 2006 for the demolition of the
ruinous cottage, adjacent to the stables, and its replacement with a new residential
cottage (06/00043/FUL and 06/01422/LBC).
The tram line, south of the site, was completed in 2012. Although it is not on the
proposed development site, the new tram line had an impact on the setting of the
castle by cutting across the historic drive, the construction of a bridge over the burn,
and a considerable embankment, with catenary stanchions. These latter works
separated the entrance lodge and the historical estate from each other, largely
blocking views to the south from the castle and its paddock.
Planning applications were submitted then withdrawn in 2005 and 2014 for the
construction of additional residential buildings on the open spaces to the south of the
castle. A new proposal was submitted and granted in 2015 for the erection of two
apartment blocks and one house on the south west area of the site, along the south
boundary (15/01051/FUL). Permission was granted for the addition of another
dwelling house along the west boundary of the site was granted in 2017
(17/00202/FUL).
In 2015, the land directly to the south and west of the proposed development site was
included in the phase 2 of the International Business Gateway, to provide mixed use
development, adopted in the LDP in 2016.
5.5

Cultural Significance Assessment

The Edinburgh Survey of Gardens and Designed Landscape, 136 Castle Gogar includes an
assessment of significance of the site, reproduced below:
Overall
A small and isolated site with limited features but of some historical interest.
Although it lies in an area of rapid change and is positioned between Edinburgh
airport and the main Glasgow Road the place remains significant in the locality
on account of its listed buildings and mature trees along the drive and in the core
site in an area (north of A8) that is largely devoid of trees.

See CEC planning portal:
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/info/20067/planning_applications/288/view_and_commen
t_on_planning_applications accessed August 2019
27

Page 306

Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

27

Work of Art
Little
Historical
Some
Horticultural / Arboricultural / Sylvicultural
Little
Architectural
Outstanding
Scenic
Some
Nature Conservation
Little
Archaeological
High
Recreational
Little 28

McGowan, Peter, Edinburgh Survey of Gardens and Designed Landscapes – 136 Castle Gogar.
City of Edinburgh Council, 2009. p.8-9
28

28

Page 307
Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

6.0

IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND MITIGATION

6.1

Proposals

The proposed scheme consists of the construction of five new detached houses near
Castle Gogar, in keeping with the existing style and scale of the houses erected
between 2014 and 2018 on the site. One house (house three) is proposed directly to
the west of the former stables, in the location of the proposed office (see planning
application in 2004), two houses are proposed along the south of the site boundary,
to the east of the existing apartment blocks and approved house (houses five and six)
and two houses are proposed to the south east, along the drive (houses four and
eight).
The following drawings are included for information only, and are not the full set of
drawings produced for this application. Please see the planning application for full
scheme drawings.

Figure 26 The proposed development includes the five houses within the two areas
bounded by a red line: four detached houses along the south east edge of the site and one
house west of the former stables. Ian Aitken Arch.

Page 308

Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

29

Figure 27
Arch.

Rendering of the proposed development, as seen from the south east. Ian Aitken

Figure 28

Proposed house three, south elevation. Ian Aitken Arch.

6.2

Listed building setting: Castle Gogar and curtilage structures

As there is no proposed development on the standing structure of Castle Gogar, it is
considered that the proposed development will only impact the setting of the castle.

30

Page 309
Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

The setting of Castle Gogar is considered to extend to the A8 road to the south, to the
airport ownership to the east and north, and to extend further to the west, where
there are open fields. The historical setting of Castle Gogar extended further, but it
has been significantly truncated with modern infrastructure and development.
The land around the castle is mostly flat, and the policies immediately around the
castle are densely planted. Therefore, all views towards the castle are very limited.
They are almost only restricted to distant views from the west, including kinetic
views from the tram, and only the upper floors and roof of the castle are visible. The
wall enclosure around the castle and the dense vegetation significantly restrict short
distance views.

Figure 29 Extent of Castle Gogar’s setting today, approximately delineated in colour. Castle
Gogar and its wall enclosure is indicated in red. Aerial view: Google

Figure 30 View from the field to the southeast of the site, looking north-west. The tram
line is a prominent feature and the existing
houses are visible in the background with
the airport tower visible in the distance. The
castle is behind the trees to the right.

Figure 31 View from the tram, near the
junction with the secondary road to the west of
the site, looking east. The upper parts and
roofline of the castle are visible in the distance.

Page 310

Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

31

Figure 32 South section of the drive,
looking north

Figure 33 North end of the drive. The gate to
the castle enclosure is visible to the right, and
the enclosure wall is visible to the left, along
the road leading to the existing houses. It
shows the dense vegetation and mature trees
blocking views towards the castle.

Figure 34 View from the south boundary
of the site, looking north showing the
converted stables in the background. The
castle is not visible behind the trees.

Figure 35 View from the south west of the
central green where house three is proposed,
looking north east and showing the converted
stables with only the chimneys of the castle
visible.

6.2.1

Elements that contribute to the special interest

Elements that contribute to the special interest of the setting of Castle Gogar are:
-

the rural character of the setting, which has been mostly maintained to the
south and west of the site with open fields and the presence of the burn

-

the mature trees along the drive, along the south edge of the site and along
the western edge of the paddock are planted areas visible on historic maps

-

the many remaining curtilage structures to the castle such as the walled
garden, the stable blocks, the drive with its circular walls and listed bridge,
and the walled enclosure of the castle

6.2.2

Elements that adversely affect the special interest

Elements that adversely affect the special interest of the setting of Castle Gogar are:
-

32

the late twentieth and early twenty-first century developments. The airport
runway is a significant intrusion in the rural setting of the castle and the tram
line cuts through the historic drive. The housing development also

Page 311
Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

significantly impacted the direct setting of the castle, it was, however, offset
but the restoration of Castle Gogar.
6.2.3

Impact of the proposals

Impacts from the proposed changes on the setting of Castle Gogar would overall be
neutral on elements that contribute to the special interest.
The proposed
development would result in the loss of green open spaces in the direct setting of the
castle, which would have a detrimental impact, however, the setting of Castle Gogar
is already largely compromised by modern interventions, and improvement of the
tree planting are proposed and would have a positive effect on the general landscape
and setting of the castle.
6.2.4

Proposed mitigation

Mitigation of impacts has been developed, and falls into two categories, that of
reducing impact on the assets by changes to the designs, and offsetting the impacts
with additional actions.
The four proposed houses along the south boundary and along the drive would be
built on the same scale, style and materials as the existing houses, which have a good
modern design with quality materials and a white render, matching that of the castle.
House three is proposed with a design that acknowledges the close presence of the
converted stables and would have a similar, traditional character. The eastern part of
the proposed house, facing the stables, would be one storey only, the zinc pitched
roof would be of similar form and colour as the stables’ roof, and lintels, sills, quoins
and ribats are proposed in natural stone to match the colour of the stables.
There is already permission for an office building on the south part of this area.
However, it is proposed to locate the new house on the north part of this area only.
This would relate better to the existing former stables, by being parallel, and would
retain a greater area of open green space to the south, which would be read
continuously with the paddock to the east. Hedge or screening would be kept at low
level to maintain the sense of open space. This would enhance this aspect of the
setting of the castle.
Houses five and six would be set back as much as possible to the south boundary to
further preserve the sense of green open space, in the area known as the paddock.
The hedge along the north of the paddock would be maintained at low level, to
further retain the sense of openness.
Houses four and eight would be set as far as possible from the drive and screen
planting would be included to minimise views from the drive.
Mitigation by offsetting impacts would comprise a programme of archaeological
works, which would be specified by the CECAS. This would begin with approval of
a Written Scheme of Investigation, which would propose evaluation of the site by
trial trenches of up to 10% of the proposed development area. The results of the
evaluation would be presented to CECAS and they would further specify whether a
full open-area excavation, or only a watching brief on any groundbreaking works
was required. If the former, then post-excavation work, including publication, is
committed to by the client.

Page 312

Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

33

There would be further offsetting of impacts by works to improve and maintain the
quality of the tree planting along the drive, and the circular walls would be restored.
This would enhance the setting of the castle and the bridge.
6.3

Listed building setting: the bridge

There is no proposed development which would create a direct impact on the bridge
itself, and the proposed development will only impact its setting.
The setting of the bridge includes the castle, the drive and the burn.

Figure 36 The bridge as seen from the west Figure 37 The bridge, looking south, with the
side of the drive
site of the proposed house eight visible on the
right

Figure 38 Site of the proposed houses four
and eight, looking south, showing the
bridge on the left

6.3.1

Figure 39 The Gogar Burn, as seen from the
bridge, looking south west. Part of the site of
the proposed house eight is visible on the
right. The tram bridge, embankment and
catenary system close the view.

Elements that contribute to the special interest

Elements that contribute to the special interest of the bridge and its setting are:
-

the appearance of the seventeenth-century structure, and its masonry details,
restored with high-quality workmanship and materials.

-

the setting of the bridge has been very little changed since its construction
and the bridge still has its original function as a crossing over the Gogar Burn,
creating access to the castle

6.3.2

Elements that adversely affect the special interest

Elements that adversely affect the special interest of the bridge and its setting are:

34

Page 313
Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

6.3.3

the tarmac surfacing of the road and signage
Impact of the proposals

The proposed house four, and more specifically house eight would be in the direct
setting of the bridge, which would result in an effect on some of the elements that
contribute to its special interest. However, to minimise the impact, house eight
would be set as far back as possible from the bridge. Good design and the quality of
the material would also reduce the magnitude of effect.
6.3.4

Proposed mitigation

Improvement of the tree planting along the drive, including low-level planting
between the mature trees, to increase the screening of the houses from the drive.
As with the mitigation of impacts of the development on the castle, there would be
works to improve and maintain the quality of the tree planting along the drive, and
the circular walls would be restored.
6.4

Other listed buildings in a 500m radius from the site

Other listed buildings in a 500m radius from the site include the two churches and
the entrance lodge, near the A8 road. There is no intervisibility between the site and
these listed buildings, and it is therefore considered that the proposed development
would not have any impact on them or their setting.
6.5

Scheduled Monument

The fort, palisaded enclosure and field system 850m SSE of Gogar Mains (SM4573) is
located about 260m to the south of the proposed development. The site is considered
to be on the setting of the scheduled monument due to its proximity, however the
tram line makes a strong separation between the site and the SM and there is limited
intervisibilty.
It is therefore considered that the proposed development is in accordance with
Scottish Planning Policy, paragraph 145, as it would not have an adverse effect on the
scheduled monument or on the integrity of its setting.
6.6

CECAS Sites and Monument Records

The City of Edinburgh Council Archaeology Service (CECAS) maintains an SMR,
which is accessible though the Canmore database. SMR sites in a 500m radius around
the site are listed in section 3.4.
The density of SMR sites around Castle Gogar is low. There are no SMRs on the
location of the proposed development, however, the castle, stables, walled garden
and bridge are all standing structures registered as SMR sites and would be impacted
as detailed above.
Other standing structures include the churches and the entrance lodge, on which
there would be no impact.
Other SMRs are below-ground deposits and would not be impacted by the proposed
development. However, there is the potential for evidence to be found of human

Page 314

Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

35

activity from all periods of human occupation of the site, with particular evidence
from the late seventeenth to nineteenth century. There would be loss of this evidence
by ground-breaking works in the proposed development area.
In order to comply with LDP Policy Env 9, the applicant is committed to mitigation
which would ensure appropriate provisions for a desk-based assessment and, if
requested by CECAS, a field evaluation and for preservation by record.
6.7

Conclusions

Following the assessment of the proposed development and its impact on the historic
assets concerned in this heritage statement, it is considered that the overall impact of
the proposal would be detrimental in the impacts on the setting of the castle and
bridge. However, these assets are compromised in cultural-heritage terms, by the
existing development, the tramline, the proposed IBG road and the proximity of the
airport.
Regarding mitigation, the client’s design team has made modified designs, to reduce
impacts on assets. In addition, to offset impacts, there is a programme of
archaeological works to be specified by CECAS, works to improve and maintain
trees and walls on the drive, the latter enhancing the setting of the castle and bridge.
This mitigation is committed to by the applicant.
Therefore, on balance of harm versus mitigation, it is considered that the proposed
development should be seen as acceptable in cultural heritage terms.

36

Page 315
Castle Gogar, Edinburgh – Heritage Statement

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
CONTEMPORARY RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES:
HOUSE THREE SPECIFICATION :

PITCHED ROOF:
ZINC CLADDING (LEAD GREY APPEARANCE) BY
’ARTISAN ZINC & COPPER ROOFING & CLADDING LTD.’
(OR EQUAL & APPROVED).
WALLS :
WHITE SYLICON RENDERED BLOCKWORK,
NATURAL STONE BASE COURSE, LINTOLS,
CILLS, QUOINS & RIBATE DETAILS,
WHERE INDICATED, TO MATCH COLOUR, AS NEAR AS
POSSIBLE, OF THE EXISTING CONVERTED STABLE
BLOCK COTTAGES OPPOSITE.
WINDOWS :
DARK GREY ALUMINIUM FACED TIMBER SIDE
HUNG WINDOWS AND SLIDING SCREENS BY
’ADW RATIONEL’ OR EQUAL & APPROVED.
RAINWATER GOODS : STAINLESS STEEL WHERE
VISABLE EXTERALLY,
INTERNAL UPVC FROM FLAT ROOFS.

FIRST FLOOR FCL 5.960M

DOORS : CEDAR FACED TIMBER, SOLID AND GLAZED

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.260M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 2.900M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

Page 316

HOUSE . SOUTH ELEVATION 1:100

FIRST FLOOR FCL 5.960M

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.260M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 2.900M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

HOUSE . SOUTH ELEVATION 1:200
1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE THREE . SOUTH ELEVATION
1:100 & 1:200

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(20)01

Rev B
05.09.18

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

FIRST FLOOR FCL 5.960M

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.260M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 2.900M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

Page 317

HOUSE . NORTH ELEVATION 1:100

FIRST FLOOR FCL 5.960M

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.260M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 2.900M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

HOUSE . NORTH ELEVATION 1:200
1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE THREE . NORTH ELEVATION
1:100 & 1:200

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(20)02

Rev B
02.03.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

FIRST FLOOR FCL 5.960M

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.260M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 2.900M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

Page 318

HOUSE THREE . EAST ELEVATION 1:100

FIRST FLOOR FCL 5.960M

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.260M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 2.900M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

HOUSE THREE . EAST ELEVATION 1:200
1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE THREE . EAST ELEVATION
1:100 & 1:200

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(20)03

Rev B
12.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

FIRST FLOOR FCL 5.960M

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.260M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 2.900M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

Page 319

HOUSE THREE . WEST ELEVATION 1:100

FIRST FLOOR FCL 5.960M

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.260M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 2.900M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

HOUSE THREE . WEST ELEVATION 1:200
1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE THREE . WEST ELEVATION
1:100 & 1:200

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(20)04

Rev B
19.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

REAR ENTRANCE

CLOAKS
KITCHEN / BREAKFAST

UTILITY
WC

EN-SUITE

STUDY
BEDROOM 2

ST
Seperate Double Garage & Gdn Stores

ENTRANCE HALL

DINING

HALL

SITTING

Page 320

MAIN ENTRANCE
BEDROOM 3

EN-SUITE

EN-SUITE

GF GIFA 212.40 m2 with seperate Double Garage & Gdn Stores
FF GIFA 76.81 m2
BEDROOM 4

TOTAL GIFA 289.21 m2 3,113 ft2

N
HOUSE . GROUND FLOOR PLAN

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

HOUSE ON PLOT FOR
APPROVED OFFICES

6.0

0.5

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE . GROUND FLOOR PLAN
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(23)01

Rev B
28.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

800

750

STUDY

EN-SUITE

DRESSING AREA

Seperate Double Garage & Gdn Stores

MASTER BEDROOM

Page 321
GF GIFA 212.40 m2 with seperate Double Garage & Gdn Stores
FF GIFA 76.81 m2
TOTAL GIFA 289.21 m2 3,113 ft2

N
HOUSE . FIRST FLOOR PLAN

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

HOUSE ON PLOT FOR
APPROVED OFFICES

6.0

0.5

For Planning Approval

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE . FIRST FLOOR PLAN
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(23)02

Rev A
05.01.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

Seperate Double Garage & Gdn Stores

Page 322

N
HOUSE . ROOF PLAN

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

HOUSE ON PLOT FOR
APPROVED OFFICES

6.0

0.5

For Planning Approval

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE . ROOF PLAN
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(27)01

Rev A
012.01.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
CONTEMPORARY RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES:
HOUSE FOUR SPECIFICATION :
PITCHED ROOF & FLAT ROOFS:
’SARNAFIL’ SYSTEM (LEAD APPEARANCE)
WALL TO PITCHED ROOF
ZINC CLADDING (LEAD GREY APPEARANCE) BY
’ARTISAN ZINC & COPPER ROOFING & CLADDING LTD.’
(OR EQUAL & APPROVED).
WALLS :
WHITE SYLICON RENDERED BLOCKWORK,
’STAFFORDSHIRE BLUE DRAG FACED’ FACING
BRICK BASE COURSE AND FULL STOREY HIGH
FEATURE WALLS.
NATURAL STONE FULL STOREY HIGH FEATURE
WALLS, WHERE INDICATED, TO MATCH COLOUR,
AS NEAR AS POSSIBLE, OF THE EXISTING CONVERTED
STABLE BLOCK COTTAGES.
WINDOWS :
DARK GREY ALUMINIUM FACED TIMBER SIDE
HUNG WINDOWS AND SLIDING SCREENS BY
’ADW RATIONEL’ OR EQUAL & APPROVED.
RAINWATER GOODS : STAINLESS STEEL WHERE
VISABLE EXTERALLY,
INTERNAL UPVC FROM FLAT ROOFS.
DOORS : CEDAR FACED TIMBER, SOLID AND GLAZED

Page 323

FIRST FLOOR FCL 6.255M

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.655M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 3.040M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

EXT GROUND LEVEL 0.000M

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

HOUSE FOUR . SOUTH ELEVATION

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE FOUR . SOUTH ELEVATION
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(20)01

Rev F
23.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

Page 324

FIRST FLOOR FCL 6.255M

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.655M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 3.040M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

EXT GROUND LEVEL 0.000M

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

HOUSE FOUR . NORTH ELEVATION

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE FOUR . NORTH ELEVATION
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(20)02

Rev F
25.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

Page 325

FIRST FLOOR FCL 6.255M

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.655M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 3.040M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

EXT GROUND LEVEL 0.000M

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

HOUSE FOUR . EAST ELEVATION

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE FOUR . EAST ELEVATION
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(20)03

Rev E
25.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

Page 326

FIRST FLOOR FCL 6.255M

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.655M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 3.040M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

EXT GROUND LEVEL 0.000M

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

HOUSE FOUR . WEST ELEVATION

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE FOUR . WEST ELEVATION
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(20)04

Rev F
27.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

KITCHEN / BREAKFAST

LARDER
MAIN ENTRANCE

HALL
DOUBLE GARAGE

FAMILY
PATIO
800

750

Page 327

ST

BOILERS

DINING
CLOAKS

ST

SITTING

GF GIFA 136.16 m2 OR 1,465 ft2

N

FF GIFA 123.18 m2 OR 1,326 ft2
TOTAL GIFA 259.34 m2 OR 2,791 ft2
PATIO

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

HOUSE FOUR . GROUND FLOOR PLAN

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE FOUR . GROUND FLOOR PLAN
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(23)01

Rev F
21.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

TERRACE

800

BEDROOM 2

EN-SUITE

BEDROOM 4

750

ST
EN-SUITE

HALL

TERRACE

Page 328

750

EN-SUITE

800

ST

BEDROOM 3

EN-SUITE

MASTER BEDROOM

GF GIFA 136.16 m2 OR 1,465 ft2

TERRACE

N

FF GIFA 123.18 m2 OR 1,326 ft2
TOTAL GIFA 259.34 m2 OR 2,791 ft2

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

HOUSE FOUR . FIRST FLOOR PLAN

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE FOUR . FIRST FLOOR PLAN
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(23)02

Rev F
21.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

Page 329

N

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

HOUSE FOUR . ROOF PLAN

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE FOUR . ROOF PLAN
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(27)01

Rev F
22.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
CONTEMPORARY RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY
HOUSE FIVE SPECIFICATION :

FLAT ROOFS:
’SARNAFIL’ SYSTEM (LEAD APPEARANCE)
WALLS :
WHITE ’K-REND’, OR EQUAL & APPROVED
RENDERED BLOCKWORK
FACING BRICK BASE COURSE, ’STAFFORDSHIRE
BLUE DRAG FACED.

WINDOWS :
DARK GREY ALUMINIUM FACED TIMBER SIDE
HUNG WINDOWS AND SLIDING SCREENS BY
’ADW RATIONEL’ OR EQUAL & APPROVED.
RAINWATER GOODS : STAINLESS STEEL WHERE
VISABLE EXTERALLY,
INTERNAL UPVC FROM FLAT ROOFS.
DOORS : CEDAR FACED TIMBER, SOLID AND GLAZED

Page 330
FIRST FLOOR FCL 6.255M

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.655M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 3.040M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

EXT GROUND LEVEL 0.000M

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

HOUSE FIVE . SOUTH ELEVATION

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE FIVE . SOUTH ELEVATION
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(20)01

Rev E
17.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

Page 331
FIRST FLOOR FCL 6.255M

U/S OF CEILING 4.425

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.655M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 3.040M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

EXT GROUND LEVEL 0.000M

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

HOUSE FIVE . NORTH ELEVATION

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE FIVE . NORTH ELEVATION
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(20)02

Rev D
18.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

Page 332
FIRST FLOOR FCL 6.255M

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.655M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 3.040M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

EXT GROUND LEVEL 0.000M

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

HOUSE FIVE . EAST ELEVATION

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE FIVE . EAST ELEVATION
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(20)03

Rev D
18.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

Page 333
FIRST FLOOR FCL 6.255M

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.655M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 3.040M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

EXT GROUND LEVEL 0.000M

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

HOUSE FIVE . WEST ELEVATION

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE FIVE . WEST ELEVATION
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(20)04

Rev D
19.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

GF GIFA 113.27 m2 OR 1,219 ft2
FF GIFA 124.10 m2 OR 1,335ft2
TOTAL GIFA 237.37 m2 OR 2,554 ft2

PATIO

SITTING

MAIN ENTRANCE
ENTRANCE HALL

Page 334

ST

BOILERS
CLOAKS
DINING

HALL

N
800

KITCHEN
750

ST
DOUBLE GARAGE

SHOWER ROOM

PATIO

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

HOUSE FIVE . GROUND FLOOR PLAN

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE FIVE . GROUND FLOOR PLAN
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(23)01

Rev C
02.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

GF GIFA 113.27 m2 OR 1,219 ft2
FF GIFA 124.10 m2 OR 1,335ft2
TOTAL GIFA 237.37 m2 OR 2,554 ft2

TERRACE

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 4

EN-SUITE

EN-SUITE

Page 335

HALL

BEDROOM 3

ST

N
BATH
800

MASTER BEDROOM

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

750

TERRACE

6.0

0.5

HOUSE FIVE . FIRST FLOOR PLAN

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE FIVE . FIRST FLOOR PLAN
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(23)02

Rev C
02.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

Page 336

N

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

HOUSE FIVE . ROOF PLAN

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE FIVE . ROOF PLAN
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(27)01

Rev C
02.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

FIRST FLOOR FCL 6.255M

FIRST FLOOR FCL 6.255M

U/S OF CEILING 4.425

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.655M

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.655M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 3.040M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 3.040M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

EXT GROUND LEVEL 0.000M

EXT GROUND LEVEL 0.000M

HOUSES FIVE & SIX NORTH ELEVATIONS

Page 337
FIRST FLOOR FCL 6.255M

FIRST FLOOR FCL 6.255M

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.655M

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.655M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 3.040M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 3.040M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

EXT GROUND LEVEL 0.000M

EXT GROUND LEVEL 0.000M

HOUSES FIVE & SIX SOUTH ELEVATIONS

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

HOUSES FIVE & SIX 1: 200 ELEVATIONS

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSES FIVE & SIX 1: 200 S & N ELEVATIONS
1:200

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(20)05

Rev E
23.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

Page 338
FIRST FLOOR FCL 6.255M

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.655M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 3.040M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

EXT GROUND LEVEL 0.000M

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

HOUSE SIX . WEST ELEVATION

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE SIX . WEST ELEVATION
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(20)04

Rev D
27.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
CONTEMPORARY RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY
HOUSE SIX SPECIFICATION :

FLAT ROOFS:
’SARNAFIL’ SYSTEM (LEAD APPEARANCE)
WALLS :
WHITE ’K-REND’, OR EQUAL & APPROVED
RENDERED BLOCKWORK
FACING BRICK BASE COURSE, ’STAFFORDSHIRE
BLUE DRAG FACED
WINDOWS :
DARK GREY ALUMINIUM FACED TIMBER SIDE
HUNG WINDOWS AND SLIDING SCREENS BY
’ADW RATIONEL’ OR EQUAL & APPROVED.
RAINWATER GOODS : STAINLESS STEEL WHERE
VISABLE EXTERALLY,
INTERNAL UPVC FROM FLAT ROOFS.
DOORS : CEDAR FACED TIMBER, SOLID AND GLAZED

Page 339
FIRST FLOOR FCL 6.255M

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.655M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 3.040M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

EXT GROUND LEVEL 0.000M

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

HOUSE SIX . SOUTH ELEVATION

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE SIX . SOUTH ELEVATION
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(20)01

Rev E
21.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

Page 340
FIRST FLOOR FCL 6.255M

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.655M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 3.040M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

EXT GROUND LEVEL 0.000M

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

HOUSE SIX . EAST ELEVATION

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE SIX . EAST ELEVATION
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(20)03

Rev D
25.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

GF GIFA 113.27 m2 OR 1,219 ft2
FF GIFA 124.10 m2 OR 1,335ft2
TOTAL GIFA 237.37 m2 OR 2,554 ft2

PATIO

SITTING

MAIN ENTRANCE
ENTRANCE HALL

Page 341

ST

BOILERS
CLOAKS
DINING

HALL

N
800

KITCHEN

DOUBLE GARAGE

750

ST

SHOWER ROOM

PATIO

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

HOUSE SIX . GROUND FLOOR PLAN

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE SIX . GROUND FLOOR PLAN
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(23)01

Rev C
30.01.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

GF GIFA 113.27 m2 OR 1,219 ft2
FF GIFA 124.10 m2 OR 1,335ft2
TOTAL GIFA 237.37 m2 OR 2,554 ft2

TERRACE

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 4

EN-SUITE

EN-SUITE

Page 342

HALL

BEDROOM 3

ST

N
BATH
800

750

TERRACE

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

MASTER BEDROOM

6.0

0.5

HOUSE SIX . FIRST FLOOR PLAN

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE SIX . FIRST FLOOR PLAN
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(23)02

Rev C
31.01.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

Page 343

N

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

HOUSE SIX . ROOF FLOOR PLAN

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE SIX . ROOF FLOOR PLAN
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(27)01

Rev C
31.01.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

Page 344
FIRST FLOOR FCL 6.255M

U/S OF CEILING 4.425

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.655M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 3.040M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

EXT GROUND LEVEL 0.000M

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

HOUSE SIX . NORTH ELEVATION

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE SIX . NORTH ELEVATION
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(20)02

Rev D
23.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
CONTEMPORARY RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES:
HOUSE EIGHT SPECIFICATION :
FLAT ROOFS:
’SARNAFIL’ SYSTEM (LEAD APPEARANCE)
WALLS :
WHITE SYLICON RENDERED BLOCKWORK,
’STAFFORDSHIRE BLUE DRAG FACED’ FACING
BRICK BASE COURSE AND FULL STOREY HIGH
FEATURE WALLS.
NATURAL STONE FULL STOREY HIGH FEATURE
WALLS, WHERE INDICATED, TO MATCH COLOUR,
AS NEAR AS POSSIBLE, OF THE EXISTING CONVERTED
STABLE BLOCK COTTAGES.
WINDOWS :
DARK GREY ALUMINIUM FACED TIMBER SIDE
HUNG WINDOWS AND SLIDING SCREENS BY
’ADW RATIONEL’ OR EQUAL & APPROVED.
RAINWATER GOODS : STAINLESS STEEL WHERE
VISABLE EXTERALLY,
INTERNAL UPVC FROM FLAT ROOFS.
DOORS : CEDAR FACED TIMBER, SOLID AND GLAZED

Page 345
FIRST FLOOR FCL 6.255M

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.655M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 3.040M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

EXT GROUND LEVEL 0.000M

HOUSE EIGHT . SOUTH ELEVATION

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

For Planning Approval

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE EIGHT . SOUTH ELEVATION
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(20)01

Rev F
03.03.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

Page 346
FIRST FLOOR FCL 6.255M

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.655M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 3.040M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

EXT GROUND LEVEL 0.000M

HOUSE EIGHT . NORTH ELEVATION

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

For Planning Approval

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE EIGHT . NORTH ELEVATION
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(20)02

Rev F
04.03.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

Page 347

FIRST FLOOR FCL 6.255M

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.655M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 3.040M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

EXT GROUND LEVEL 0.000M

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

HOUSE EIGHT . EAST ELEVATION

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE EIGHT . EAST ELEVATION
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(20)03

Rev E
28.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

Page 348

FIRST FLOOR FCL 6.255M

FIRST FLOOR FFL 3.655M

GROUND FLOOR FCL 3.040M

GROUND FLOOR FFL 0.200M

EXT GROUND LEVEL 0.000M

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

6.0

0.5

HOUSE EIGHT . WEST ELEVATION

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE EIGHT . WEST ELEVATION
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(20)04

Rev F
02.03.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

Cl
Mh

MAIN ENTRANCE

LARDER

KITCHEN/ DINING

ENTRANCE HALL

800

750

SITTING
ST

CLOAKS

Page 349

BAR

BOILERS
DOUBLE GARAGE

FAMILY
STUDY

GF GIFA 122.82 m2 OR 1,322 ft2

PATIO

FF GIFA 134.93 m2 OR 1,452 ft2
TOTAL GIFA 257.75 m2 OR 2,774 ft2

HOUSE EIGHT . GROUND FLOOR PLAN

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

N

6.0

0.5

For Planning Approval

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE EIGHT . GROUND FLOOR PLAN
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(23)01

Rev F
22.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

800

EN-SUITE

750

GUEST BEDROOM

HALL
EN-SUITE
SHOWER
ROOM

DRESSING

750

750

800

800

Page 350

MASTER BEDROOM

BEDROOM 3

BEDROOM 2

TERRACE

TERRACE

GF GIFA 122.82 m2 OR 1,322 ft2
FF GIFA 134.93 m2 OR 1,452 ft2
TOTAL GIFA 257.75 m2 OR 2,774 ft2

HOUSE EIGHT . FIRST FLOOR PLAN

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

N

6.0

0.5

For Planning Approval

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE EIGHT . FIRST FLOOR PLAN
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(23)02

Rev F
24.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

Page 351
HOUSE EIGHT . ROOF PLAN

1.0

2.0

0

2.0

N

6.0

0.5

For Planning Approval

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
HOUSE EIGHT . ROOF PLAN
1:100

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(27)01

Rev F
24.02.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

RWP

CASTLE GOGAR

RWP

RWP

EDINBURGH AIRPORT

RWP

Page 352

RWP

STABLE COTTAGES

N

AC
CE
SS
RO
AD

GOGAR BRIDGE

ACCE
SS R
OAD
(ROU
GH G
ROUN
D)

10.0

0

20.0

60.0

APPLICATION SITE

ADJOINING LAND OWNED BY APPLICANT

20.0

5.0

LOCATION PLAN

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG
1:1250

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(90)01

Rev
27.09.19

A3 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

R

WP

CASTLE GOGAR

R
RW

P

WP

N

R
WP

R

Page 353

W

P

MhCl

STABLE COTTAGES
HOUSE THREE

MhCl

MhCl

FH

MhCl

MhCl

IC

IC

IC
SV

PADDOCK

F1

O
LC
BA

NY

CO

UR

D
AR
TY

SV

HOUSE FOUR
HOUSE ONE

HOUSE SIX
HOUSE FIVE

MhCl

APPROVED HOUSE

HOUSE EIGHT

APARTMENT BLOCK 2

APARTMENT BLOCK 1

OPTION A
HOUSES THREE TO EIGHT
5.0

0

10.0

30.0

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

PROPOSED RESIDENCES . GOGAR RIGG

1:500
5.0

Mr & Mrs W Scott

Ian

Aitken

B Arch (Hons) Dip Arch

PL L(90)03

RevT
24.02.19

A1 Frame

This drawing and content is the copyright of Ian Aitken B Arch (Hons)
Dip Arch.
Not be used for any purpose other than that intended.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7.2

Jane McPhillips.
7 Fallhills Court
Penicuik
Scotland
EH26 8QE

Mr Gerard Davis
30 Greenbank Crescent
Edinburgh
Scotland
EH10 5SG
Decision date: 18 December 2019

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACTS
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2013
Planning Permission in Principle for construction of Dwelling
At 30 Greenbank Crescent Edinburgh EH10 5SG
Application No: 19/04982/PPP
DECISION NOTICE
With reference to your application for Planning Permission in Principle registered on 23
October 2019, this has been decided by Local Delegated Decision. The Council in
exercise of its powers under the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Acts and
regulations, now determines the application as Refused in accordance with the
particulars given in the application.
Any condition(s) attached to this consent, with reasons for imposing them, or reasons
for refusal, are shown below;
Conditions:-

Reason for Refusal:1.
The proposal is contrary to policies Hou 1, Hou 4, Des 1 and Des 4 of the
adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan as it would have an adverse impact on the
character and appearance of the surrounding area by virtue of the subdivision of an
existing plot, which disrupts the established character of the area and does not create
an attractive residential environment due to its size and location in comparison to other
buildings in the area.

Page 355

Christopher Sillick, Planning Officer, Local 2 Area Team, Place Directorate.
Tel 0131 529 3522, Email christopher.sillick@edinburgh.gov.uk,
Waverley Court, 4 East Market Street, Edinburgh, EH8 8BG

Please see the guidance notes on our decision page for further information, including
how to appeal or review your decision.
Drawings 01-02, represent the determined scheme. Full details of the application can
be found on the Planning and Building Standards Online Services
The reason why the Council made this decision is as follows:
The proposal is contrary to policies Hou 1, Hou 4 and Des 1 of the adopted Local
Development Plan. The proposal would have an adverse impact on the character and
appearance of the area. The density is considered excessive for the area and leads to
a development which is crammed into the site. The proposal therefore does not comply
with relevant policies or guidance and there is no justification for approval contrary to
the Development Plan.
This determination does not carry with it any necessary consent or approval for the
proposed development under other statutory enactments.
Should you have a specific enquiry regarding this decision please contact Christopher
Sillick directly on 0131 529 3522.

Chief Planning Officer
PLACE
The City of Edinburgh Council

Page 356

NOTES

1. If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision to refuse permission for or approval
required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission
or approval subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to
review the case under section 43A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act
1997 within three months beginning with the date of this notice. The Notice of Review
can be made online at www.eplanning.scot or forms can be downloaded from that
website. Paper forms should be addressed to the City of Edinburgh Planning Local
Review Body, G.2, Waverley Court, 4 East Market Street, Edinburgh, EH8 8BG. For
enquiries about the Local Review Body, please email
localreviewbody@edinburgh.gov.uk.
2. If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions and the
owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of reasonably beneficial
use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use
by carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner
of the land may serve on the planning authority a purchase notice requiring the
purchase of the owner of the land's interest in the land accordance with Part 5 of the
Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

Page 357

Report of Handling
Application for Planning Permission in Principle
19/04982/PPP
At 30 Greenbank Crescent, Edinburgh, EH10 5SG
Planning Permission in Principle for construction of
Dwelling

Item

Local Delegated Decision

Application number

19/04982/PPP

Wards

B10 - Morningside

Summary
The proposal is contrary to policies Hou 1, Hou 4 and Des 1 of the adopted Local
Development Plan. The proposal would have an adverse impact on the character and
appearance of the area. The density is considered excessive for the area and leads to
a development which is crammed into the site. The proposal therefore does not comply
with relevant policies or guidance and there is no justification for approval contrary to
the Development Plan.

Links
Policies and guidance for
this application

LDPP, LDES01, LDES04, LDES05, LEN12, LEN21,
LHOU01, LHOU03, LHOU04, NSG, NSGD02,

Development Management report of handling –

Page 1 of 9

Page 358

19/04982/PPP

Report of handling

Recommendations
1.1 It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below.

Background
2.1 Site description
The application site relates to No. 30 Greenbank Crescent, a lower villa flat within a
subdivided property of a traditional design. The surrounding area is mainly residential in
nature and is characterised by large semi-detached houses and bungalows with
generous rear gardens.
2.2 Site History
There is no relevant planning history for this site.

Main report
3.1 Description Of The Proposal
The proposal is for the erection of a single dwelling house within the northern section of
the application site, replacing an existing garage.
3.2

Determining Issues

Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states - Where, in
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.
Do the proposals comply with the development plan?
If the proposals do comply with the development plan, are there any compelling
reasons for not approving them?
If the proposals do not comply with the development plan, are there any compelling
reasons for approving them?
3.3 Assessment
To address these determining issues, it needs to be considered whether:
a) The proposal can be considered acceptable in principle;
Development Management report of handling –

Page 2 of 9

Page 359

19/04982/PPP

b) The proposal would have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of
the surrounding area;
c) The proposal will result in the creation of a satisfactory residential environment;
d) The proposal would have a detrimental impact on the amenity of neighbouring
residents;
e) The proposal raises any issues in respect of parking, road safety and maintenance;
f) The proposal raises any issues in respect of flood prevention;
g) The proposal raises any issues in respect of the removal of trees and vegetation
worthy of retention;
h) Any issues raised in representations have been addressed.
a) Principle of Development
Policy Hou1 (Housing Development) of the adopted Edinburgh Local Development
Plan (LDP) states that priority will be given to the delivery of the housing land supply
and relevant infrastructure on suitable sites in the urban area, provided proposals are
compatible with other policies in the plan.
The application site is defined as being part of the urban area in the adopted LDP. The
principle of housing development at the site is therefore acceptable as long as the
proposals are compatible with other policies in the plan. Compliance with other policies
in the plan are addressed in further detail in sections below.
Overall the site is not compatible with other policies in the plan and therefore the
principle of housing development at the site is not acceptable.
b) Character and Appearance of the Surrounding Area
Policy Hou 4 on Housing Density states the Council will seek an appropriate density of
development on the site having regard to:
- its characteristics and those of the surrounding area;
- the need to create an attractive residential environment and safeguard living
conditions within the development ;
- the accessibility of the site includes access to public transport; and
- the need to encourage and support the provision of local facilities necessary to high
quality urban living.
The existing house is part of an established residential area, defined by a strong
rhythm of long plots with large properties fronting onto the street with generous private
rear gardens. There is a clear articulation of private and public spaces. This is a
settled townscape with a strong urban grain. The area is low density and this proposal
seeks to alter the density of the site to such as degree it disrupts the established
character of the area and does not create an attractive residential environment. Given
the position of the site, between No. 30 Greenbank Crescent and No. 8 Greenbank
Road, and its limited size compared to other plots on the street, a dwelling house could
not be constructed on this site that respects the established built form of the street in
terms of density, positioning and layout. The proposal is therefore considered contrary
to policy Hou 4.

Development Management report of handling –

Page 360Page 3 of 9

19/04982/PPP

LDP policy Des 1 (Design Quality and Context) states that new development should
contribute towards a sense of place and design should draw from positive aspects of
the surrounding area. Policy Des 4 (Development Design- Impact on Setting) states
that planning permission will be granted for development where it is demonstrated that
it will have a positive impact upon its surroundings. As stated above the area is
characterised by large buildings with generous rear gardens. The subdivision of this
garden would leave plots of size which is not characteristic of the area. A new dwelling
within the limited space currently taken up by the existing garage within the application
site would be small in comparison to other buildings and would feel cramped. Overall
this would have a detrimental impact on the appearance and character of the area. The
proposal is contrary to policy Des 1 and Des 4.
c) Creation of a Satisfactory Residential Environment
LDP policy Des 5 states that planning permission will be granted for development
where it is demonstrated that future occupiers will have acceptable levels of amenity in
relation to noise, daylight, sunlight, privacy or immediate outlook. Policy Hou 3 states
that planning permission will be granted for development which makes adequate
provision for green space to meet the needs of future residents. The proposed new
dwelling would front a road; however, it is located in an established residential area and
the noise from this road is not seen as likely to be detrimental to the amenity of any
future occupiers.
The plan provided does not indicate the overall size of the proposed development or
the number of bedrooms any dwelling would contain; however, any future proposal
would need to demonstrate that the size of the dwelling met the requirements set out in
Edinburgh Design Guidance. The subdivision of the garden of No. 30 Greenbank
Crescent would result in a rear curtilage of an adequate size to meet the amenity needs
of future occupiers.
d) Impact of the amenity of Neighbouring Residents
The final dimensions of the proposed house is not detailed on the submitted documents
for this application and as such it is not possible to fully and accurately assess the
impact of the proposal on the amenity of neighbouring residents in respect of
overshadowing or loss of daylight in the context of this application. Detailed design
matters and the scale and form of the house would be assessed through any
subsequent application for approval of matters specified in the conditions of any
planning permission in principle granted.
e) Parking, Road Safety and Maintenance
LDP policy Tra 2 states that planning permission will be granted for development where
proposed car parking provision complies with the levels set out in Council guidance.
The Roads Authority were consulted as part of this application and have raised no
objection subject to parking provision and access design forming part of the reserved
matters in any future AMC application.
f) LDP policy Env 21 states that planning permission will not be granted for
development that would;
Development Management report of handling –

Page 4 of 9
Page 361

19/04982/PPP

- Increase a flood risk or be at risk of flooding itself
- impede the flow of flood water
- be prejudicial to existing or planned flood defence systems.
The site does not fall within an area which has been defined as being of flood risk. That
being said a surface water management plan would be required to be submitted as part
of the AMC application.
g) Removal of Trees
LDP Policy Env 12 states that development will not be permitted if likely to have a
damaging impact on a tree or woodland worthy of retention unless necessary for good
arboricultural reasons.
A number of mature growth trees are located to the rear of the properties on this street;
including within the application site and neighbouring properties. The current
application does not indicate the location of trees or how any work would impact them.
Any future application would require a tree survey the form specified in BS 5837:2012
for all trees with a stem diameter of 75mm or more, at 1.5m above ground on the site or
within 12m of its boundary. Trees should then be categorised in accordance with their
quality and suitability for retention.
h) Public Comments
The application received four representations within the notification period, all objecting
to the application. The content of these representations is summarised and addressed
below:
Material Representations
- The proposal would adversely affect the character of the area; this is addressed in
Section 3.3b.
- Traffic and parking concerns; this is addressed in Section 3.3e.
- The proposal could result in a loss of light and overlooking; this is addressed in
Section 3.3d.
- The site is not large enough to accommodate a dwelling of sufficient size to create a
satisfactory residential environment; this is addressed in Section 3.3c.
- Loss of trees and vegetation; this is addressed in Section 3.3g.
Non-Material Representations
- Noise disturbance; this is a civil matter between neighbours and not an issue dealt
with through the planning system.
It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below.
3.4

Conditions/reasons/informatives

Development Management report of handling –

Page 362Page 5 of 9

19/04982/PPP

Reason for Refusal:1.
The proposal is contrary to policies Hou 1, Hou 4, Des 1 and Des 4 of the
adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan as it would have an adverse impact on the
character and appearance of the surrounding area by virtue of the subdivision of an
existing plot, which disrupts the established character of the area and does not create
an attractive residential environment due to its size and location in comparison to other
buildings in the area.

Risk, Policy, compliance and governance impact
4.1 Provided planning applications are determined in accordance with statutory
legislation, the level of risk is low.

Equalities impact
5.1 The equalities impact has been assessed as follows:
The application has been assessed and has no impact in terms of equalities or human
rights.

Consultation and engagement
6.1 Pre-Application Process
There is no pre-application process history.
6.2 Publicity summary of representations and Community Council comments
The application attracted four letters of representation, objecting to the planning
application.
A full assessment of these representations can be found in the main report in the
Assessment section.

Background reading / external references


To view details of the application go to



Planning and Building Standards online services

Development Management report of handling –

Page 6 of 9
Page 363

19/04982/PPP

ort of handling

Statutory Development
Plan Provision

Edinburgh Local Development Plan.

Date registered

23 October 2019

Drawing
numbers/Scheme

01-02,
Scheme 1

David R. Leslie
Chief Planning Officer
PLACE
The City of Edinburgh Council
Contact: Christopher Sillick, Planning Officer
E-mail:christopher.sillick@edinburgh.gov.uk Tel:0131 529 3522

Links - Policies
Relevant Policies:
Relevant policies of the Local Development Plan.
LDP Policy Des 1 (Design Quality and Context) sets general criteria for assessing
design quality and requires an overall design concept to be demonstrated.
LDP Policy Des 4 (Development Design - Impact on Setting) sets criteria for assessing
the impact of development design against its setting.
LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design - Amenity) sets criteria for assessing amenity.
LDP Policy Env 12 (Trees) sets out tree protection requirements for new development.
LDP Policy Env 21 (Flood Protection) sets criteria for assessing the impact of
development on flood protection.
LDP Policy Hou 1 (Housing Development) sets criteria for assessing the principle of
housing proposals.
Development Management report of handling –

Page 364Page 7 of 9

19/04982/PPP

LDP Policy Hou 3 (Private Green Space in Housing Development) sets out the
requirements for the provision of private green space in housing development.
LDP Policy Hou 4 (Housing Density) sets out the factors to be taken into account in
assessing density levels in new development.
Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines
Non-Statutory guidelines Edinburgh Design Guidance supports development of the
highest design quality and that integrates well with the existing city. It sets out the
Council's expectations for the design of new development, including buildings, parking,
streets and landscape, in Edinburgh.

Development Management report of handling –

Page 8 of 9
Page 365

19/04982/PPP

Appendix 1
Consultations

TRANSPORTATION
No objections to the application subject to the following being included as conditions or
informatives as appropriate:
1.
Parking provision and the access design are to be a reserved matters where
subsequent applications will be assessed against current standards, policies and
guidance;
2.
Electric vehicle charging outlets should be considered for this development;

END

Development Management report of handling –

Page 366Page 9 of 9

19/04982/PPP

Comments for Planning Application 19/04982/PPP
Application Summary
Application Number: 19/04982/PPP
Address: 30 Greenbank Crescent Edinburgh EH10 5SG
Proposal: Planning Permission in Principle for construction of Dwelling
Case Officer: Christopher Sillick
Customer Details
Name: Mr Eric Dougall
Address: 8 Greenbank Road Edinburgh
Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:
Comment:I object to this on the grounds that the proposed planning application will overlook my
property and affect my privacy.
It will also destroy many mature trees, possibly hedgerows and my mature garden.
I am also extremely worried that the noise will disturb me as I am mainly confined to bed, my
bedroom is located to the rear of my house, which is facing the proposed site.
Road access could be a safety concern as its on a very busy corner where too many cars already
dangerously park.
The site is small and narrow and the proposed building will be crammed in between 2 existing
houses.
I am concerned the design of the proposed eco friendly building will not fit in with the surrounding
houses.

Page 367

Comments for Planning Application 19/04982/PPP
Application Summary
Application Number: 19/04982/PPP
Address: 30 Greenbank Crescent Edinburgh EH10 5SG
Proposal: Planning Permission in Principle for construction of Dwelling
Case Officer: Christopher Sillick
Customer Details
Name: Mrs Jacqueline Constable
Address: 10 Greenbank Road Edinburgh
Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour-Residential
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:
Comment:There isn't enough room on the proposed new site to build a dwelling house. If the new
dwelling was built in line with the neighbouring dwellings, i.e. where the garage currently stands,
the dwelling would only be one room wide. If built further forward adjacent to the pavement it
would still have to be a narrow dwelling and would be an eyesore. A dwelling house in either
position would negatively affect the appearance of the area and would be out of character with the
neighbourhood.

Page 368

Comments for Planning Application 19/04982/PPP
Application Summary
Application Number: 19/04982/PPP
Address: 30 Greenbank Crescent Edinburgh EH10 5SG
Proposal: Planning Permission in Principle for construction of Dwelling
Case Officer: Christopher Sillick
Customer Details
Name: Dr Lesley Trew
Address: 23 Greenbank Crescent Edinburgh
Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour-Residential
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:
Comment:30 Greenbank Crescent is on the corner of Greenbank Road where it joins Greenbank
Crescent. There are already numerous parked cars from residents and many others park here and
then travel into the city by bus for work. This already causes congestion as cars exiting and
entering Greenbank Road have to wait for traffic to move in or out as parked vehicles block two
way traffic flow. Additional cars for a new property would exacerbate this with potential effect on
pedestrian safety and increased air pollution. This crossing is used by lots of school pupils and
nursery children and their families.
A separate building in a garden is out of keeping with the surrounding neighbourhood and would
create a precedent that would not only adversely affect the character of the area but exacerbate
the traffic problems noted above. It would also result in some loss of garden space and plants
which benefit the environment and air quality. Depending on the nature and size of the property it
could result in loss of light to, and overlooking of, neighbouring properties.

Page 369

Comments for Planning Application 19/04982/PPP
Application Summary
Application Number: 19/04982/PPP
Address: 30 Greenbank Crescent Edinburgh EH10 5SG
Proposal: Planning Permission in Principle for construction of Dwelling
Case Officer: Christopher Sillick
Customer Details
Name: Mr Arthur Trew
Address: 23 Greenbank Crescent Edinburgh
Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour-Residential
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:
Comment:30 Greenbank Crescent is situated on a corner site between Greenbank Road and
Greenbank Crescent. This corner already suffers from parked cars that obscure vision, especially
when driving out of Greenbank Road, making it a dangerous turn or pedestrians trying to cross
Greenbank Road. This is a common route for children walking to South Morniningside Primary.
Another proprty located at the intersection would simply increase the problem and should be
rejected on the grounds of traffic safety due to the lack of effective adequate parking.
Moreover, this is the first instance of a proposal to build in existing gardens in this area and to do
so could create a precedent that would not only adversely affect the character of the
neighbourhood but exacerbate the traffic problems noted above.

Page 370

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Arthur Trew
1 Apr 2020 19:44:06 +0100
Local Review Body
Re: Notice of Local Review No 19/04982/PPP

23 Greenbank Crescent,
Edinburgh
1 April 2020
Dear Sir or Madam,
In its original decision to refuse in-principle planning permission
for a new house in the grounds of 30 Greenbank Crescent
(19/04982/PPP), the Council determined that the proposal was contrary
to policies Hou 1, Hou 4, Des 1 and Des 4 of Edinburgh’s Local
Development Plan. I concur with that assessment.
In their response the proposers cite extension proposals granted to
nearby properties as precedents. I would dispute that either of the
examples quoted is, in fact, a precedent. Such extensions extend the
space available to a single family, they do not increase the call on
the local infrastructure by increasing the density of development (Hou
4) as would be required for the current proposal.
Without an outline plan it is difficult to judge whether any new
property would have a design appropriate to the area (Des 1 and Des
4). Houses in the vicinity are either Edwardian or 1930s villas, or
1930s bungalows – all of traditional design. In no case do they have
the long, thin profile that would be required by this extremely narrow
site. I find it difficult to conceive, therefore, how this proposal
would “draw upon positive characteristics of the area” or “”be a
positive and appropriate enhancement” as stated by the proposers.
Moreover, I find it inconceivable that a house could actually be
constructed on the same footprint as the garage unless it were
unacceptably high.
The proposers claim that they will replace a redundant garage with a
new house, but they do not consider the consequent effect on parking.
While the garage may be unused, the drive leading to it is generally
used for parking two cars. These, together with any vehicles owned by
the new owners, would have to be parked on the street. The entrance to
this drive is only some 15m from the junction between Greenbank Road
and Greenbank Crescent, on a curve that makes sight difficult. This is
an already busy area, made worse when the current owners park on the
street, and I believe that there is a strong argument on the grounds
of road safety – not only for drivers but for the large number of
school children who cross there each day.
In summary, I believe that as you noted “The proposal would have an
adverse impact on the character and appearance of the area. The
density is considered excessive for the area and leads to a
development which is crammed into the site.” and the appeal should be
rejected.

Page 371

I trust that you will be able to take the above into consideration at
your review.
Yours faithfully,
Arthur Trew

Quoting localreviewbody@edinburgh.gov.uk on Tue, 24 Mar 2020 12:18:21 +0000:
> Please See Attached This email is to inform you that a local review
> has been received for a planning application that you commented on .
>
> **********************************************************************
> This email and files transmitted with it are confidential and are
> intended for the sole use of the individual or organisation to whom
> they are addressed.
> If you have received this eMail in error please notify the sender
> immediately and delete it without using, copying, storing,
> forwarding or disclosing its contents to any other person.
> The Council has endeavoured to scan this eMail message and
> attachments for computer viruses and will not be liable for any
> losses incurred by the recipient.
> **********************************************************************
>

________________________________________________________________________
Professor Arthur Trew FRSE FRSA
Assistant Principal, Computational Science
University of Edinburgh,
James Clerk Maxwell Building,
Peter Guthrie Tait Road, Edinburgh EH9 3FD
Tel:
-The University of Edinburgh is a charitable body, registered in
Scotland, with registration number SC005336.

Page 372

Business Centre G.2 Waverley Court 4 East Market Street Edinburgh EH8 8BG Tel: 0131 529 3550 Fax: 0131 529 6206 Email:
planning.systems@edinburgh.gov.uk
Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.
Thank you for completing this application form:
ONLINE REFERENCE

100189608-003

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Applicant or Agent Details
Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting

 Applicant Agent

on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application)

Agent Details
Please enter Agent details
Company/Organisation:
Ref. Number:

You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *
Jane

First Name: *

Building Name:

McPhillips

Last Name: *

Building Number:

Telephone Number: *

Address 1
(Street): *

Extension Number:

Address 2:

Mobile Number:

Town/City: *

Fax Number:

Country: *
Postcode: *

7
Fallhills Court

Penicuik
Scotland
EH26 8QE

Email Address: *
Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *



Individual



Organisation/Corporate entity

Page 373

Page 1 of 5

Applicant Details
Please enter Applicant details
Title:

Mr

You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Other Title:
First Name: *
Last Name: *

Building Name:
Gerard

Building Number:
Address 1
(Street): *

Davis

Company/Organisation

Address 2:

Telephone Number: *

Town/City: *

Extension Number:

Country: *

Mobile Number:

Postcode: *

30
Greenbank Crescent

Edinburgh
Scotland
EH10 5SG

Fax Number:
Email Address: *

Site Address Details
Planning Authority:

City of Edinburgh Council

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):
Address 1:

30 GREENBANK CRESCENT

Address 2:
Address 3:
Address 4:
Address 5:
Town/City/Settlement:
Post Code:

EDINBURGH
EH10 5SG

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

Northing

670198

Easting

Page 374

324121

Page 2 of 5

Description of Proposal
Please provide a description of your proposal to which your review relates. The description should be the same as given in the
application form, or as amended with the agreement of the planning authority: *
(Max 500 characters)
Planning in principle application for the construction of 1 residential dwelling on a plot of land within the curtilage of the demise of
30 Greenbank Crescent. The specific details will be described in subsequent detailed planning application.

Type of Application
What type of application did you submit to the planning authority? *






Application for planning permission (including householder application but excluding application to work minerals).
Application for planning permission in principle.
Further application.
Application for approval of matters specified in conditions.

What does your review relate to? *

 Refusal Notice.
 Grant of permission with Conditions imposed.
 No decision reached within the prescribed period (two months after validation date or any agreed extension) – deemed refusal.
Statement of reasons for seeking review
You must state in full, why you are a seeking a review of the planning authority’s decision (or failure to make a decision). Your statement
must set out all matters you consider require to be taken into account in determining your review. If necessary this can be provided as a
separate document in the ‘Supporting Documents’ section: * (Max 500 characters)
Note: you are unlikely to have a further opportunity to add to your statement of appeal at a later date, so it is essential that you produce
all of the information you want the decision-maker to take into account.
You should not however raise any new matter which was not before the planning authority at the time it decided your application (or at
the time expiry of the period of determination), unless you can demonstrate that the new matter could not have been raised before that
time or that it not being raised before that time is a consequence of exceptional circumstances.
The proposal helps with housing needs & is an appropriate use of an existing redundant garage. A new low-rise single dwelling
house that provides a sustainable, accessible & higher quality home would replace the garage. We believe the development will
be in keeping with the local area & doesn't introduce additional built density, according to Policies Hou 1, Hou 4 and Hou 5.
Policies Des 1 and Des 4: design to be of the highest quality & would draw upon positive characteristics of the area.

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer at the time the
Determination on your application was made? *

 Yes  No

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising the new matter, why it was not raised with the appointed officer before
your application was determined and why you consider it should be considered in your review: * (Max 500 characters)
The proposal is looking to remove the existing detached redundant garage to then build a new low-rise dwelling house on the
same footprint. This was not highlighted previously as it was an application for planning in principle. These details would be set
out in a detailed planning application. The proposal does not increase the built density of the area in the way that has been
reviewed by the council, but would instead be a positive and appropriate enhancement to the area.

Page 375

Page 3 of 5

Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit with your notice of review and intend
to rely on in support of your review. You can attach these documents electronically later in the process: * (Max 500 characters)
Supporting Statement Planning drawing reference - 28 Greenbank Crescent Planning drawing reference - 30 Greenbank
Crescent Design and Access Statement P E001 P 001 Application ufm30 ufm40

Application Details
Please provide the application reference no. given to you by your planning
authority for your previous application.

19/04982/PPP

What date was the application submitted to the planning authority? *

28/10/2019

What date was the decision issued by the planning authority? *

18/12/2019

Review Procedure
The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to determine your review and may at any time during the review
process require that further information or representations be made to enable them to determine the review. Further information may be
required by one or a combination of procedures, such as: written submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions and/or
inspecting the land which is the subject of the review case.
Can this review continue to a conclusion, in your opinion, based on a review of the relevant information provided by yourself and other
parties only, without any further procedures? For example, written submission, hearing session, site inspection. *

 Yes  No
In the event that the Local Review Body appointed to consider your application decides to inspect the site, in your opinion:
Can the site be clearly seen from a road or public land? *
Is it possible for the site to be accessed safely and without barriers to entry? *

 Yes  No
 Yes  No

Checklist – Application for Notice of Review
Please complete the following checklist to make sure you have provided all the necessary information in support of your appeal. Failure
to submit all this information may result in your appeal being deemed invalid.
Have you provided the name and address of the applicant?. *
Have you provided the date and reference number of the application which is the subject of this
review? *
If you are the agent, acting on behalf of the applicant, have you provided details of your name
and address and indicated whether any notice or correspondence required in connection with the
review should be sent to you or the applicant? *
Have you provided a statement setting out your reasons for requiring a review and by what
procedure (or combination of procedures) you wish the review to be conducted? *

 Yes  No
 Yes  No
 Yes  No  N/A
 Yes  No

Note: You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review on your application. Your statement must set out all matters you consider
require to be taken into account in determining your review. You may not have a further opportunity to add to your statement of review
at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely
on and wish the Local Review Body to consider as part of your review.
Please attach a copy of all documents, material and evidence which you intend to rely on
(e.g. plans and Drawings) which are now the subject of this review *

 Yes  No

Note: Where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or modification, variation or removal of a
planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions, it is advisable to provide the
application reference number, approved plans and decision notice (if any) from the earlier consent.

Page 376

Page 4 of 5

Declare – Notice of Review
I/We the applicant/agent certify that this is an application for review on the grounds stated.
Declaration Name:

Mrs Jane McPhillips

Declaration Date:

18/03/2020

Page 377

Page 5 of 5

Business Centre G.2 Waverley Court 4 East Market Street Edinburgh EH8 8BG Tel: 0131 529 3550 Fax: 0131 529 6206 Email:
planning.systems@edinburgh.gov.uk
Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.
Thank you for completing this application form:
ONLINE REFERENCE

100189608-001

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Type of Application
What is this application for? Please select one of the following: *






Application for planning permission (including changes of use and surface mineral working).
Application for planning permission in principle.
Further application, (including renewal of planning permission, modification, variation or removal of a planning condition etc)
Application for Approval of Matters specified in conditions.

Description of Proposal
Please describe the proposal including any change of use: * (Max 500 characters)
Planning in principle application for the construction of 1 residential dwelling on a plot of land within the curtilage of the demise of
30 Greenbank Crescent. The specific details will be described in subsequent detailed planning application.

Is this a temporary permission? *

 Yes  No

If a change of use is to be included in the proposal has it already taken place?

 Yes  No

(Answer ‘No’ if there is no change of use.) *
Has the work already been started and/or completed? *

 No  Yes – Started  Yes - Completed
Applicant or Agent Details
Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application)

Page 378

 Applicant Agent

Page 1 of 7

Agent Details
Please enter Agent details
Company/Organisation:
Ref. Number:

You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *
Jane

First Name: *

Building Name:

McPhillips

Last Name: *

Building Number:

Telephone Number: *

Address 1
(Street): *

Extension Number:

Address 2:

Mobile Number:

Town/City: *

Fax Number:

Country: *
Postcode: *

7
Fallhills Court

Penicuik
Scotland
EH26 8QE

Email Address: *
Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *



Individual



Organisation/Corporate entity

Applicant Details
Please enter Applicant details
Title:

Mr

Other Title:
First Name: *
Last Name: *

You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *
Building Name:

Gerard
Davis

Building Number:
Address 1
(Street): *

Company/Organisation

Address 2:

Telephone Number: *

Town/City: *

Extension Number:

Country: *

Mobile Number:

Postcode: *

30
Greenbank Crescent

Edinburgh
Scotland
EH10 5SG

Fax Number:
Email Address: *

Page 379

Page 2 of 7

Site Address Details
City of Edinburgh Council

Planning Authority:

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):
30 GREENBANK CRESCENT

Address 1:
Address 2:
Address 3:
Address 4:
Address 5:

EDINBURGH

Town/City/Settlement:

EH10 5SG

Post Code:

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

Northing

670198

Easting

324121

Pre-Application Discussion
Have you discussed your proposal with the planning authority? *

 Yes  No

Site Area
Please state the site area:
Please state the measurement type used:

372.19

 Hectares (ha)  Square Metres (sq.m)

Existing Use
Please describe the current or most recent use: * (Max 500 characters)
Private garden and existing garage to 30 Greenbank Crescent

Access and Parking
Are you proposing a new altered vehicle access to or from a public road? *

 Yes  No

If Yes please describe and show on your drawings the position of any existing. Altered or new access points, highlighting the changes
you propose to make. You should also show existing footpaths and note if there will be any impact on these.

Page 380

Page 3 of 7

Are you proposing any change to public paths, public rights of way or affecting any public right of access? *

 Yes  No

If Yes please show on your drawings the position of any affected areas highlighting the changes you propose to make, including
arrangements for continuing or alternative public access.

Water Supply and Drainage Arrangements
Will your proposal require new or altered water supply or drainage arrangements? *

 Yes  No

Are you proposing to connect to the public drainage network (eg. to an existing sewer)? *





Yes – connecting to public drainage network
No – proposing to make private drainage arrangements
Not Applicable – only arrangements for water supply required

Do your proposals make provision for sustainable drainage of surface water?? *
(e.g. SUDS arrangements) *

 Yes  No

Note:Please include details of SUDS arrangements on your plans
Selecting ‘No’ to the above question means that you could be in breach of Environmental legislation.

Are you proposing to connect to the public water supply network? *





Yes
No, using a private water supply
No connection required

If No, using a private water supply, please show on plans the supply and all works needed to provide it (on or off site).

Assessment of Flood Risk
 Yes  No  Don’t Know

Is the site within an area of known risk of flooding? *

If the site is within an area of known risk of flooding you may need to submit a Flood Risk Assessment before your application can be
determined. You may wish to contact your Planning Authority or SEPA for advice on what information may be required.
Do you think your proposal may increase the flood risk elsewhere? *

 Yes  No  Don’t Know

Trees
 Yes  No

Are there any trees on or adjacent to the application site? *

If Yes, please mark on your drawings any trees, known protected trees and their canopy spread close to the proposal site and indicate if
any are to be cut back or felled.

All Types of Non Housing Development – Proposed New Floorspace
Does your proposal alter or create non-residential floorspace? *

Page 381

 Yes  No

Page 4 of 7

Schedule 3 Development
Does the proposal involve a form of development listed in Schedule 3 of the Town and Country
Planning (Development Management Procedure (Scotland) Regulations 2013 *

 Yes  No  Don’t Know

If yes, your proposal will additionally have to be advertised in a newspaper circulating in the area of the development. Your planning
authority will do this on your behalf but will charge you a fee. Please check the planning authority’s website for advice on the additional
fee and add this to your planning fee.
If you are unsure whether your proposal involves a form of development listed in Schedule 3, please check the Help Text and Guidance
notes before contacting your planning authority.

Planning Service Employee/Elected Member Interest
Is the applicant, or the applicant’s spouse/partner, either a member of staff within the planning service or an
elected member of the planning authority? *

 Yes  No

Certificates and Notices
CERTIFICATE AND NOTICE UNDER REGULATION 15 – TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND) REGULATION 2013
One Certificate must be completed and submitted along with the application form. This is most usually Certificate A, Form 1,
Certificate B, Certificate C or Certificate E.
Are you/the applicant the sole owner of ALL the land? *

 Yes  No

Is any of the land part of an agricultural holding? *

 Yes  No

Certificate Required
The following Land Ownership Certificate is required to complete this section of the proposal:
Certificate A

Land Ownership Certificate
Certificate and Notice under Regulation 15 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland)
Regulations 2013
Certificate A
I hereby certify that –
(1) - No person other than myself/the applicant was an owner (Any person who, in respect of any part of the land, is the owner or is the
lessee under a lease thereof of which not less than 7 years remain unexpired.) of any part of the land to which the application relates at
the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the date of the accompanying application.
(2) - None of the land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of an agricultural holding

Signed:

Jane McPhillips

On behalf of:

Mr Gerard Davis

Date:

16/10/2019

 Please tick here to certify this Certificate. *

Page 382

Page 5 of 7

Checklist – Application for Planning Permission
Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997
The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013
Please take a few moments to complete the following checklist in order to ensure that you have provided all the necessary information
in support of your application. Failure to submit sufficient information with your application may result in your application being deemed
invalid. The planning authority will not start processing your application until it is valid.
a) If this is a further application where there is a variation of conditions attached to a previous consent, have you provided a statement to
that effect? *

 Yes  No  Not applicable to this application
b) If this is an application for planning permission or planning permission in principal where there is a crown interest in the land, have
you provided a statement to that effect? *

 Yes  No  Not applicable to this application
c) If this is an application for planning permission, planning permission in principle or a further application and the application is for
development belonging to the categories of national or major development (other than one under Section 42 of the planning Act), have
you provided a Pre-Application Consultation Report? *

 Yes  No  Not applicable to this application
Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997
The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013
d) If this is an application for planning permission and the application relates to development belonging to the categories of national or
major developments and you do not benefit from exemption under Regulation 13 of The Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013, have you provided a Design and Access Statement? *

 Yes  No  Not applicable to this application
e) If this is an application for planning permission and relates to development belonging to the category of local developments (subject
to regulation 13. (2) and (3) of the Development Management Procedure (Scotland) Regulations 2013) have you provided a Design
Statement? *

 Yes  No  Not applicable to this application
f) If your application relates to installation of an antenna to be employed in an electronic communication network, have you provided an
ICNIRP Declaration? *

 Yes  No  Not applicable to this application
g) If this is an application for planning permission, planning permission in principle, an application for approval of matters specified in
conditions or an application for mineral development, have you provided any other plans or drawings as necessary:











Site Layout Plan or Block plan.
Elevations.
Floor plans.
Cross sections.
Roof plan.
Master Plan/Framework Plan.
Landscape plan.
Photographs and/or photomontages.
Other.

If Other, please specify: * (Max 500 characters)

Page 383

Page 6 of 7

Provide copies of the following documents if applicable:
A copy of an Environmental Statement. *
A Design Statement or Design and Access Statement. *
A Flood Risk Assessment. *
A Drainage Impact Assessment (including proposals for Sustainable Drainage Systems). *
Drainage/SUDS layout. *
A Transport Assessment or Travel Plan
Contaminated Land Assessment. *
Habitat Survey. *
A Processing Agreement. *

 Yes
 Yes
 Yes
 Yes
 Yes
 Yes
 Yes
 Yes
 Yes

 N/A
 N/A
 N/A
 N/A
 N/A
 N/A
 N/A
 N/A
 N/A

Other Statements (please specify). (Max 500 characters)
The existing garden to the side of 30 Greenbank Crescent is generous in size & contains a disused single storey detached
garage. The rear garden is large & overgrown. To split this garden would make the most of this land & provides an opportunity to
build a small, in proportion, energy efficient home that is sensitive to the street frontage & neighbouring properties. Specific design
details will be discussed with the planners after this application for planning permission in principle.

Declare – For Application to Planning Authority
I, the applicant/agent certify that this is an application to the planning authority as described in this form. The accompanying
Plans/drawings and additional information are provided as a part of this application.
Declaration Name:

Mrs Jane McPhillips

Declaration Date:

16/10/2019

Payment Details
Pay Direct

Page 384

Page 7 of 7

Proposal Details
Proposal Name
100189608
Proposal Description
Planning in principle application for the
construction of 1 residential dwelling on a plot of land within the curtilage of the demise of
30 Greenbank Crescent. The specific details will be described in subsequent detailed
planning application.
Address
30 GREENBANK CRESCENT, EDINBURGH,
EH10
5SG
Local Authority
City of Edinburgh Council
Application Online Reference
100189608-003

Application Status
Form
Main Details
Checklist
Declaration
Supporting Documentation
Email Notification

Attachment Details
Notice of Review
Supporting Statement 30 Greenbank
Crescent
28 Greenbank Crescent
32 Greenbank Crescent
Design and Access Statement
P E001
P 001
Application
ufm30
ufm40
Notice_of_Review-2.pdf
Application_Summary.pdf
Notice of Review-003.xml

complete
complete
complete
complete
complete
complete

System
Attached

A4
A4

Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached

A3
A3
A4
A3
A3
A4
A4
A4
A0
A0
A0

Page 385

30 GREENBANK CRESCENT, EDINBURGH, EH10 5SG
PLANNING APPEAL FOR PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 19/04982/PPP
The proposal helps with the housing needs of Edinburgh and is an appropriate use of an existing
redundant garage. A new low-rise single dwelling house that provides a sustainable, accessible
& higher quality home would replace the garage. We believe that the development will be in
keeping with the local area and does not introduce additional built density, according to Policies
Hou 1, Hou 4 and Hou 5. With regards to Policies Des 1 and Des 4, the design would look to be
of the highest quality and would draw upon positive characteristics of the surrounding area. A
detailed planning permission application would demonstrate how the height, form, scale,
proportion and further materials / detailing of the design would have a positive impact on the
character of the local area.
We have set out below our support of this application in relation to the Edinburgh Local
Development Plan.
• To meet the requirement for additional housing in Edinburgh whilst protecting environmental
quality in established housing areas
• To promote more sustainable, better balanced communities
Policy Hou 1 – Housing Development
•

‘on other suitable sites in the urban area’ – the proposal makes use of an existing
redundant garage.

•

-‘The development will be in keeping with the character of the settlement and the local
area’ – the proposal is an appropriate use of an existing redundant garage. The plot at

Page 386

no. 30 is an unusual corner plot with both an extra large front garden and back garden
with a detached garage to the side facing the road. It straddles both Greenbank
Crescent and Greenbank Road. Greenbank Crescent is predominantly two storey semidetached villas with large gardens and adjoining garages. Greenbank Road comprises
1.5 storey detached homes, with large gardens and adjoining garages. Due to the
special nature of the plot at no. 30 Greenbank Crescent, the new low-rise dwelling
house would comprise a large front garden and rear garden, whilst retaining the same at
no. 30. By building on the same footprint as the existing garage, the proposal does not
increase the density of the area, but would instead add to the character of both
Greenbank Crescent and Greenbank Road.
•

‘The proposal contributes to the principles of sustainable development’ – the new
dwelling house would be designed to be a high quality sustainable design, which is very
desirable given the current climate.

POLICY HOU 4 Housing Density
• The aim of this policy is to promote an appropriate density of development, taking
account of site characteristics and location - by building on the same footprint as the
existing garage, the proposal does not increase the density of the area, but would
instead add to the character of both Greenbank Crescent and Greenbank Road.
Policy Hou 5 – Conversion to Housing
Although the proposal is not technically a conversion, it is looking to remove the existing
detached redundant garage to then build a new dwelling house on the same footprint. We
believe that this should be viewed as a gain to the local neighbourhood, and to the housing
shortage in general. Appropriate sustainable development will add to the special local character.
POLICY DES 1 – Design Quality and Context
The proposal looks to establish a high quality sustainable design that would create a special
dwelling house that would also sit harmoniously with its neighbours and locality. By building on
an existing garage plot, the character of the area would not be adversely impacted or appear
‘crammed’. Instead through high quality design, the new dwelling would enhance the special
character of the neigbourhood and improve the appearance of the street frontage.
POLICY DES 4 – Impact on Setting
The planning application was for planning in principle. A detailed planning application would set
out the necessary details such as height, form, scale, proportions, positioning, materials and
details, all of which would be designed appropriately and to the highest of standards that would

Page 387

have a positive impact on its surroundings and wider townscape and landscape.
The existing plot at no. 30 Greenbank Crescent is a unique and large corner plot with a detached
unsightly and redundant garage. By building on the existing footprint of the garage, the
proposal sets to bridge the gap between the 2 storey villas on Greenbank Cresecent and the
neighbouring 1.5 storey properties on Greenbank Road. The new dwelling house would be
attractive in design and would improve the aesthetics of the street, without adding density or
removing any amenities from its neighbours.

NEIHGBOURING DEVELOPMENTS
Immediately to either side of no. 30 Greenbank Crescent are two developments that we believe
should be considered with this application. Both of these developments add density to the area
and we feel lead to a more ‘crammed’ appearance than this proposal would.
The drawings for these planning applications accompany this application as supporting
documentation.
•

No. 28 Greenbank Crescent – planning permission granted for a large single storey side
extension, to replace the garage.

•

No. 30 Greenbank Crescent – built large 2 storey side extension.

Page 388

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all
Structural and Services Engineers drawings and with
reference to Architects and Engineers specifications.
All dimensions are to be checked on site: notify the
Architect immediately of any discrepancies from
dimensions noted on the drawings.
This drawing is the copyright of the Architect.
DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING.

rear garden

7

6

KEY TO LINE TYPES
downtakings
property boundary

terrace

KEY TO INCOMING SERVICES

9.95

W

incoming water meter

G

incoming gas meter

E

incoming electric meter

neighbouring
property

KEY TO MATERIALS
Refer to drawing P 08
shower
room

10.00

hall

Page 389

kitchen
26

neighbouring
property

10.00

lobby
28
30

CE

AN

GR
EE
N

BA
N

E
GR

KR

K

C

NT

S
RE

B
EN

N

OA
D

SITE BLOCK PLAN

front garden

C

Re-design to suit planning feedback

10.10.18

B

General revisions

22.01.18

A

Windows revised to suit planning
feedback

18.12.17

rev

note

date

beecherarchitect
melford house 3 walker street edinburgh eh3 7jy
www.beecherarchitect.com mail@beecherarchitect.com
tel: 0131 6034844

N

Atkins House
28 Greenbank Crescent Edinburgh
Proposed Ground Floor Plan

job no

5 METRES

172

dwg no

scale

1:100@A3

status

PLANNING

P 06

rev
date

C

August 18

Page 390

De
s
i
g
n&Ac
c
e
s
sSt
a
t
e
me
nt
6Gr
e
e
nb
a
nkRo
a
d

Page 391

Pl
a
nni
ngi
np
r
i
nc
i
p
l
ea
p
p
l
i
c
a
t
i
o
nf
o
rt
hec
o
ns
t
r
uc
t
i
o
no
f1
r
e
s
i
d
e
nt
i
a
ld
we
l
l
i
ngo
nap
l
o
to
fl
a
ndwi
t
hi
nt
hec
ur
t
i
l
a
g
eo
ft
he
d
e
mi
s
eo
f3
0Gr
e
e
nb
a
nkCr
e
s
c
e
nt
.
Thes
p
e
c
i
f
i
cd
e
t
a
i
l
swi
l
lb
e
d
e
s
c
r
i
b
e
di
ns
ub
s
e
q
ue
ntd
e
t
a
i
l
e
dp
l
a
nni
nga
p
p
l
i
c
a
t
i
o
n.
Thee
x
i
s
t
i
ngg
a
r
d
e
nt
ot
hes
i
d
eo
f3
0Gr
e
e
nb
a
nkCr
e
s
c
e
nti
s
g
e
ne
r
o
usi
ns
i
z
e&c
o
nt
a
i
nsad
i
s
us
e
ds
i
ng
l
es
t
o
r
e
yd
e
t
a
c
he
dg
a
r
a
g
e
.
Ther
e
a
rg
a
r
d
e
ni
sl
a
r
g
e&o
v
e
r
g
r
o
wn.
Tos
p
l
i
tt
hi
sg
a
r
d
e
nwo
ul
d
ma
ket
hemo
s
to
ft
hi
sl
a
nd&p
r
o
v
i
d
e
sa
no
p
p
o
r
t
uni
t
yt
ob
ui
l
da
s
ma
l
l
,
i
np
r
o
p
o
r
t
i
o
n,
e
ne
r
g
ye
f
f
i
c
i
e
ntho
met
ha
ti
ss
e
ns
i
t
i
v
et
ot
he
s
t
r
e
e
tf
r
o
nt
a
g
e&ne
i
g
hb
o
ur
i
ngp
r
o
p
e
r
t
i
e
s
.
Sp
e
c
i
f
i
cd
e
s
i
g
nd
e
t
a
i
l
s
wi
l
lb
ed
i
s
c
us
s
e
dwi
t
ht
hep
l
a
nne
r
sa
f
t
e
rt
hi
sa
p
p
l
i
c
a
t
i
o
nf
o
r
p
l
a
nni
ngp
e
r
mi
s
s
i
o
ni
np
r
i
nc
i
p
l
e
.

Legend

Site boundary:
30 Greenbank Crescent
Proposed site boundary:
6 Greenbank Road
Downtakings

26

26

8

Page 392

30

GR

28

8

EEN

BAN
KR

OAD
N
BA
N
E
RE

32

K

C
ES
R
C

Garage
(to be
demolished)

T
EN

30
(lower villa)

28
(upper villa)

G

GR

EEN

BAN

KR

OAD

32
1

0m

LOCATION PLAN
1:1250 @ A3

5

10

20

2

50

100

0m

project
6 Greenbank Road
Edinburgh, EH10 5SG

SITE PLAN
1:500 @ A3

5

10

N

NK
BA T
N
N
EE CE
GR ES
CR

20

50

client
Mr & Mrs Davis
title
Proposed Location & Site Plan
scale
varies

drg no
P 001

date
16.10.19

revision
-

PLANNING

McPHILLIPS & COMPANY
7 Fallhills Steading, EH26 8QE
T: 07903 105502
E: jane.mulvey@gmail.com

Legend

Site boundary:
30 Greenbank Crescent

26

26

8

Page 393

30

GR

28

8

EEN

BAN
KR

OAD
N
BA
N
E
RE

32

K

C
ES
R
C

Garage

T
EN

30
(lower villa)

28
(upper villa)

G

GR

EEN

BAN

KR

OAD

32
1

0m

LOCATION PLAN
1:1250 @ A3

5

10

20

2

50

100

0m

project
6 Greenbank Road
Edinburgh, EH10 5SG

SITE PLAN
1:500 @ A3

5

10

N

NK
BA T
N
N
EE CE
GR ES
CR

20

50

client
Mr & Mrs Davis
title
Existing Location & Site Plan
scale
varies

drg no
PE 001

date
16.10.19

revision
-

PLANNING

McPHILLIPS & COMPANY
7 Fallhills Steading, EH26 8QE
T: 07903 105502
E: jane.mulvey@gmail.com

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7.3

Patience + Highmore Ltd.
Quadrant
17 Bernard Street
Edinburgh
EH6 6PW

Teague Homes (UK) Ltd.
52-54 Dundas Street
Edinburgh
Scotland
EH36QZ
Decision date: 18 December 2019

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACTS
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2013
5no. new parking places in lieu of parking and mews building structure (2no dwellings)
forming part of Planning Consent ref. 16/03356/PPP. (As amended)
At Former 9 - 21 Salamander Place Edinburgh

With reference to your application for Planning Permission registered on 20 September
2019, this has been---eecided-by- Delegated Deetsion. :fhe-Goblncil in exer:Gise of its
powers under the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Acts and regulations , now
determines the application as Refused in accordance with the particulars given in the
application.
Any condition(s) attached to this consent, with reasons for imposing them , or reasons
for refusal, are shown below;
Conditions :-

Reasons:1.
The development is contrary to Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy Des 1
(Design Quality and Context) , as it fails to enhance the existing townscape , or to
contribute to its sense of place, at this edge of conservation area location and is
damaging to the-character and appearance of the surrounding area.
2.
The development is contrary to LOP Policies Del 3 (Edinburgh Waterfront) and
Des 2 (Co-ordinated Development) as the design fails to accord with the proposals for
the comprehensive development and regeneration of the wider area , as supported in
the Edinburgh Waterfront Development Principles for Leith Waterfront (LOP reference
EW1 c) and the scheme approved under the planning permission in principle (reference
16/03356/PPP); The resulting piecemeal development impacts negatively on the

Carla Parkes, Senior Planning Officer, Waterfront Area Team , Place Directorate.
Tel 0131 529 3925, Email carla.parkes@edinburgh.gov.uk ,
Waverley Court, 4 East Market Street, Edinburgh , EH8 8BG

Page 395

otherwise, well defined and cohesive network of streets and spaces being delivered in
this new urban quarter.

3. . The design and location of the refuse store is contrary to the provisions of LOP
Policy Des 5 (Development Design - Amenity) , as it has not been sensitively integrated
into the design for the overall public realm and impacts negatively on the surrounding
townscape .

4.
The development subject to this application is contrary to Edinburgh Local
Development Plan Policy Tra 4 (Design of Off-Street Car and Cycle Parking) , as it
would prevent the continuation of an active frontage on tt\e public street and the
related improvements to the appearance and vitality of the townscape , as proposed in
the approved masterplan.
5.
The development is contrary to the prov'isions of Edinburgh Local Development
Plan Policy Env 6 (Conservation Areas- Development) as its piecemeal form and lack
of defined frontage , fails to contribute positively to the character of the surrounding
townscape and is therefore damaging to the setting of the Leith Conservation Area.

Please see the guidance notes on our decision page for further information , including
how to appeal or review your decision.
Drawings 01 ,02a. , represent the determined scheme. Full details of the application can
be found on the Planning and Building Stand ard s Online Servi ces
The reason why the Council made this decision is as follows:
The development is contrary to LOP Policy Des 1 (Design Quality and Context) , as it
fails to enhance the existing townscape, or contribute to its sense of place, next to the
Leith Conservation Area and is damaging to the area's character and appearance. The
resulting piecemeal development impacts negatively on the well defined and cohesive
network of streets and spaces being delivered elsewhere through the planning
permission in principle.

Page 396

The development is also contrary to LOP PoJ icies Del 3 (Edinburgh Waterfront) and
Des 2 (Co-ordinated Development) as the design fails to accord with the proposals for
the comprehensive development and regeneration of the wider area.
The refuse store is also contrary to LOP Policy Des 5 (Development Design- Amenity) ,
as it has not been sensitively integrated within the design for the overall public realm
and constitutes an unsightly feature in the streetscape.
The development is damaging to the existing townscape character and fails to
safeguard or enhance the setting of the adjoining , Leith Conservation Area , contrary to
the provisions of LOP Policy Env 6 (Conservation Areas- Development) .
In addition , the development is contrary to LOP Policy Tra 4 (Design of Off- Street Car
and Cycle Parking) , as it fails to provide for the continuation of an active frontage on
the publ ic street, and to deliver related improvements to the appearanc~ and vitality of
this townscape .
There are no other material issues which outweigh these conclusions.

This determination does not carry with it any necessary consent or approval for the
proposed development under other statutory enactments.
Should you have a specific enquiry regarding this decision please contact Carla Parkes
directly on 0131 529 3925.

D

------

a._~

.
Chief
Planning Officer
PLACE
The City of Edinburgh Council

Page 397

NOTES

1. If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the planning authority to refuse
permission for or approval requ ired by a cond ition in respect of the proposed
development, or to grant permission or approval subject to conditions , the applicant
may appeal to the Scottish Ministers under section 47 of the Town and Country
Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 within three months beg inning with the date of this
notice . The appeal can be made online at www.eplanning.scot or forms can be
downloaded from that website and sent to the Planning and Environmental Appeals
Division , 4 The-Courtyard , Callendar Business Park, FALKIRK FK1 1XR.
0

2. If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by
the planning authority or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims
that the land has become incapable of reasonably beneficial use in its existing state
and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use by carrying out any
development which has been or would be permitted , the owner of the land may serve
on the planning authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of the owner of the
land's interest in the land in accordance with Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning
(Scotland) Act 1997.

Page 398

Report of Handling
Application for Planning Permission 19/04487/FUL
At Former, 9 - 21 Salamander Place, Edinburgh
5no. new parking places in lieu of parking and mews
building structure (2no dwellings) forming part of Planning
Consent ref. 16/03356/PPP. (As amended)

Item

Delegated Decision

Application number

19/04487/FUL

Wards

B13 - Leith

Summary
The development is contrary to LDP Policy Des 1 (Design Quality and Context), as it
fails to enhance the existing townscape, or contribute to its sense of place, next to the
Leith Conservation Area and is damaging to the area's character and appearance. The
resulting piecemeal development impacts negatively on the well defined and cohesive
network of streets and spaces being delivered elsewhere through the planning
permission in principle.
The development is also contrary to LDP Policies Del 3 (Edinburgh Waterfront) and
Des 2 (Co-ordinated Development) as the design fails to accord with the proposals for
the comprehensive development and regeneration of the wider area.
The refuse store is also contrary to LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design- Amenity),
as it has not been sensitively integrated within the design for the overall public realm
and constitutes an unsightly feature in the streetscape.
The development is damaging to the existing townscape character and fails to
safeguard or enhance the setting of the adjoining, Leith Conservation Area, contrary to
the provisions of LDP Policy Env 6 (Conservation Areas- Development).
In addition, the development is contrary to LDP Policy Tra 4 (Design of Off- Street Car
and Cycle Parking), as it fails to provide for the continuation of an active frontage on

Development Management report of handling –

Page 1 of 16

Page 399

19/04487/FUL

the public street, and to deliver related improvements to the appearance and vitality of
this townscape.
There are no other material issues which outweigh these conclusions.

Links
Policies and guidance for
this application

LPC, LDEL03, LDES01, LDES04, LDES07, LDES02,
LDES05, LDES08, LEN09, LEN21, LEN03, LEN21,
LTRA04, CRPLEI, LEN06, NSG, NSGD02, NSLBCA,
NSGD02, NSLBCA,

Development Management report of handling –

Page 400Page 2 of 16

19/04487/FUL

Report of handling

Recommendations
1.1 It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below.

Background
2.1 Site description
The application site is located on the east side of Salamander Place, immediately south
of the junction with Chandler Crescent. It covers an area of 210 sqm. It forms part of
the former White and Mackay bottling plant which is being redeveloped as part of the
masterplan consented under application reference 16/03356/PPP and subsequent
AMC applications. The existing site has been partially surfaced in grey coloured
paviours and contains five parking spaces and a central manoeuvring area. A brick
built, open top refuse store is located on the Salamander Place street frontage.
A refurbished category B listed office building (LB 27783, 29/04/1977) lies opposite the
site, on the corner of Salamander Place and Links Place. Tenement flats face on to the
southern boundary of the site, on the corner of Salamander Place and Salamander
Street.
The application site lies immediately to the north of the Leith Conservation Area.
2.2 Site History
15 May 2017 - Planning permission granted in principle for residential development
and commercial development (Class 1 (Retail), Class 2 (Financial, Professional and
other services), Class 3 (Food and Drink), Class 4 (Business), open space including
extension to the allotment facility, and all ancillary development (application number
16/03356/PPP). As part of this permission detailed plans were approved for two mews
style units, sited above a commercial bin store at this site, which lies within phase B1B3 of the approved phasing plan (application number 16/03356/PPP).
23/11/2017- Application granted for approval of matters reserved by condition relating
to phases 2 and 3 of the above planning permission in principle (application number
17/02658/AMC).
13/07/2018 - Request for minor variation to application number 16/03356/PPP to allow
for elevational changes at phase 2 agreed (application number 16/03356/VARY).

Main report
3.1 Description Of The Proposal
Development Management report of handling –

Page 3 of 16

Page 401

19/04487/FUL

These mainly retrospective proposals are for the installation of five parking places, an
external commercial bin enclosure and associated landscaping, in place of parking,
ground floor refuse store and two, upper storey, mews style dwelling units, approved
under the planning application in principle for a residential led, redevelopment scheme
for the wider site. Ancillary landscape works are also proposed, including the addition
of two trees, and areas of shrubbery.
The proposed car park is surfaced with grey coloured, porous paviours, to match those
at the adjoining car park.
The refuse store is constructed of grey coloured facing bricks, to match those at the
adjoining block. Its gates open onto the street frontage and are composed of
galvanised steel.
Previous Scheme
The proposals, as originally submitted, included a less detailed landscaping plan, with
no trees shown on the layout and no elevational drawing of the proposed refuse store.
Supporting Documents
A revised drainage report and updated statement from the applicant's drainage
consultants have been submitted in support of the application.
3.2

Determining Issues

Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states - Where, in
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.
Section 59 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act
1997 states that in considering whether to grant planning permission for development
which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning authority shall have special
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses.
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act
1997 states - special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or
enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area.
Do the proposals comply with the development plan?
If the proposals do comply with the development plan, are there any compelling
reasons for not approving them?
If the proposals do not comply with the development plan, are there any compelling
reasons for approving them?
3.3 Assessment
To address these determining issues, it needs to be considered whether:

Development Management report of handling –

Page 402Page 4 of 16

19/04487/FUL

a) The principle of development is acceptable
b) The proposals contribute towards high quality townscape and public realm;
c) The impacts on the setting of the conservation area or the neighbouring listed
building;
d) The proposed parking and access arrangements are acceptable and in compliance
with the Council's standards;
e) Any other material issues - archaeology and flood prevention.
a) Principle of Development
Edinburgh Local Development Plan (LDP) Policy Del 3 (Edinburgh Waterfront) supports
development which contributes towards the creation of new urban quarters at Leith
Waterfront and Granton Waterfront.
The requirements in principle of this policy include:
a) Comprehensively designed proposals which maximise the development potential of
the area;
b) The provision of a series of mixed use, sustainable neighbourhoods that connect to
the waterfront, with each other and with nearby neighbourhoods;
c) Proposals for a mix of house types, sizes and affordability; and
d) The provision of open space in order to meet the needs of the local community,
create local identity and a sense of place.
The loss of the two residential units from the planning permission in principle for the
wider development site, which included 667 units, would not result in any significant
reduction of housing numbers, or change to the balance of uses or mix of house types
within this approved development. The proposals at the overall development site
subject to the planning permission in principle, would continue to comply with the
Edinburgh Waterfront development principles for East of Salamander Place (LDP
Reference EW1c) which support proposals for a housing-led, mixed use development.
It is further confirmed that the target number of affordable housing units within the PPP
site has been met at this stage and the flats concerned are not required to meet this
provision. In this respect the proposals do not conflict with the respective provisions of
LDP policy Del 3, or the Leith Waterfront, development principles.
Edinburgh Waterfront Development Principles further support proposals which include
key streets and frontages identified in the indicative proposals for development within
the eastern part of the area subject to EW1C. The site has a frontage onto Salamander
Place, which was identified in the Salamander Place Development Brief (2007) as an
important frontage in which opportunities to improve the public realm are encouraged.
The mews style building originally approved at this site were designed to continue the
built frontage on Salamander Place in a co-ordinated and comprehensively designed
manner, in accordance with the provisions of LDP Del 3 and the related development
principles for Leith Waterfront.
However, the development carried out at this corner site, fails to accord with the layout
in the overall, comprehensively designed development proposals and are therefore
contrary to the provisions of LDP Policy Del 3.
b) Townscape and Public Realm

Development Management report of handling –

Page 5 of 16
Page 403

19/04487/FUL

LDP Policy Des 1 (Design Quality and Context) requires that planning permission will
be granted for development where it is demonstrated that the proposal will create or
contribute towards a sense of place and that design should be based on an overall
design concept that draws upon positive characteristic of the surrounding area.
The development impacts negatively on the surrounding streetscape by providing an
untidy and fragmented frontage on this otherwise, well defined, cohesive street
frontage. It therefore fails to enhance the townscape or sense of place in this part of the
PPP site and is contrary to the provisions of policy Des 1 (Design Quality and Context).
LDP Policy Des 2 (Co-ordinated Development) requires the effective development of
adjacent land and the comprehensive development and regeneration of a wider area,
as provided for in a masterplan, strategy or development brief, approved by the
Council.
The increased area of car parking is located at a prominent street corner within the
approved PPP layout plans. The design principles of the PPP include the incorporation
of parking at underground locations in order to facilitate the formation of a strong
streetscape with active frontages. The approved mews style building, was specifically
designed to suit this key site which formed part of the wider, comprehensively designed
development scheme. The parking for the approved dwelling units and the refuse store
were to be enclosed beneath the upper storeys of this building. As well as maximising
the development potential of the site, the approved scheme provided an active
frontage, adding interest and animation at this prominent street frontage.
The development is therefore contrary to LDP Policy Des 2 (Co-ordinated
Development) as it fails to accord with the proposals for the comprehensive
development and regeneration of the wider area, as approved under the relevant
planning permission in principle.
Furthermore, the siting and design of the refuse store is contrary to the provisions of
LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design- Amenity) as the open topped design and
location of the bin store, at an exposed location on the street frontage, has not been
sensitively integrated within the surrounding development scheme subject to the PPP
application.
In relation to car park design, the LDP states that poorly located or designed car parks
can detract from the visual appearance and vitality of surrounding area. The provisions
of LDP Policy Tra 4 (Design of Off- Street Car and Cycle Parking) state that:
'car parking should preferably be provided at basement level within a building and not
at ground level where this would be at the expense of an active frontage to a public
street, public place or private open space.'
And:
'the design of surface car parking should include structural planting to minimise visual
impact.'
The proposed soft landscaping scheme would help break up the visual impacts of the
expanse of hard surfacing created, due to the increased number of parking spaces at
this site. However, the enhancing impacts of the additional landscaping would not be
sufficient to offset the detrimental impacts on the appearance of the streetscape, as a

Development Management report of handling –

Page 404Page 6 of 16

19/04487/FUL

result of the lack of provision of a well-defined and active frontage at this prominent
location.
The works subject to this application are contrary to the provisions of LDP Tra 4, as
they fail to provide a well-defined and active frontage on this part of the public street, or
produce the related improvements to the visual appearance and vitality of this
townscape.
The development is therefore contrary to the provisions of LDP Policies Des 1 (Design
Quality and Context, Des 2 (Co-ordinated Development), Des 5 (Development Design Amenity) and Tra 4 (Design of Off-Street Car and Cycle Parking) for the reasons
stated.
c) Impacts on Conservation Area and Setting of Listed Building
The southern boundary of the site borders onto the northern edge of the Leith
Conservation Area.
LDP Policy Env 6 (Conservation Areas- Development) states that development within a
conservation area or affecting its setting, will be permitted if it preserves or enhances
the special character or appearance of the conservation area and is consistent with the
relevant conservation area character appraisal and demonstrates high standards of
design and utilises materials appropriate to the historic environment.
The clearly defined public frontages manifested in the block layout for the approved
PPP layout, is informed by the characteristic townscape in the neighbouring
conservation area. The poorly defined frontage treatment and unsuitable design of this
development fails to contribute to the enhancement of the area's townscape, including
its conservation area setting.
The proposals which neither preserve nor enhance the character and appearance of
the conservation area, are contrary to the provisions of LDP Policy Env 6 (Conservation
Areas- Development).
As the application site lies just outwith the Leith Conservation Area, the proposal is not
subject to the provisions of section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997.
The site of the proposals faces onto the side elevation of the category 'B' listed office
building, on the opposite side of Salamander Place.
Section 59 (1) of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act
1997 states:In considering whether to grant planning permission for development which affects a
listed building or its setting, a planning authority or the Secretary of State, as the case
may be, shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its
setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses.
The proposed works will have no material impact on the setting of this substantial
scale, listed building, the principal facade of which is situated on Leith Links.

Development Management report of handling –

Page 7 of 16
Page 405

19/04487/FUL

With reference to the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland)
Act 1997 the proposals preserve the neighbouring listed building and its settings
including any special architectural or historic interest it possesses.
d) Road Safety and Parking
The total number of car parking spaces across the whole of the site subject to the
planning permission in principle, when taking into account the additional spaces
created under this application, would remain below the maximum level set out in the
Planning Permission in Principle. This level of provision therefore remains acceptable.
However, the width of the vehicular access to this car park, at 6 metres, is in excess of
the maximum width of 3 metres, (or 4.8 metres including transitions if by dropped kerb),
as prescribed in the technical section of the Edinburgh Design Guidance. The current
width does not ensure that sufficient priority is given to pedestrian safety.
Furthermore, the outward opening of the gates of the refuse store have the potential to
obstruct the public footway. However, such potential hazards would be controlled
through the Roads Scotland Act.
d) Other Material Issues
i) Flood Management and Drainage
The applicant has submitted a copy of the original drainage report and flood risk
management plan for the proposals subject to the original application. These drainage
proposals have taken account of all surface water treatment and flooding requirements
for the works subject to the current application. This opinion is accepted by the Council,
in its role as flood prevention authority. The proposed paving is porous and would
therefore help facilitate sustainable urban drainage measures.
The proposals comply with the provisions of LDP Policy Env 21 (Flood Prevention).
ii) Archaeological Issues
LDP Policy Env 9 (Development of Sites of Archaeological Significance) requires the
protection and enhancement of archaeological remains, where possible.
The City Archaeologist has advised that results of the archaeological investigations
carried out on the overall PPP site have indicated that it is unlikely that significant
remains will have survived in situ.
CONCLUSION
The development is contrary to LDP Policy Des 1 (Design Quality and Context), as it
fails to enhance the existing townscape, or contribute to its sense of place, next to the
Leith Conservation Area and is damaging to the area's character and appearance. The
resulting piecemeal development impacts negatively on the well-defined and cohesive
network of streets and spaces being delivered elsewhere through the planning
permission in principle.
The development is also contrary to LDP Policies Del 3 (Edinburgh Waterfront) and
Des 2 (Co-ordinated Development) as the design fails to accord with the proposals for
the comprehensive development and regeneration of the wider area.

Development Management report of handling –

Page 406Page 8 of 16

19/04487/FUL

The refuse store is also contrary to LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design- Amenity),
as it has not been sensitively integrated within the design for the overall public realm
and constitutes an unsightly feature in the streetscape.
The development is damaging to the existing townscape character and fails to
safeguard or enhance the setting of the adjoining, Leith Conservation Area, contrary to
the provisions of LDP Policy Env 6 (Conservation Areas- Development).
In addition, the development is contrary to LDP Policy Tra 4 (Design of Off- Street Car
and Cycle Parking), as it fails to provide for the continuation of an active frontage on
the public street, and to deliver related improvements to the appearance and vitality of
this townscape.
There are no other material issues which outweigh these conclusions.
It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below.
3.4

Conditions/reasons/informatives

Reasons:1.
The development is contrary to Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy Des 1
(Design Quality and Context), as it fails to enhance the existing townscape, or to
contribute to its sense of place, at this edge of conservation area location and is
damaging to the character and appearance of the surrounding area.
2.
The development is contrary to LDP Policies Del 3 (Edinburgh Waterfront) and
Des 2 (Co-ordinated Development) as the design fails to accord with the proposals for
the comprehensive development and regeneration of the wider area, as supported in
the Edinburgh Waterfront Development Principles for Leith Waterfront (LDP reference
EW1c) and the scheme approved under the planning permission in principle (reference
16/03356/PPP); The resulting piecemeal development impacts negatively on the
otherwise, well defined and cohesive network of streets and spaces being delivered in
this new urban quarter.

3.
The design and location of the refuse store is contrary to the provisions of LDP
Policy Des 5 (Development Design - Amenity), as it has not been sensitively integrated
into the design for the overall public realm and impacts negatively on the surrounding
townscape.

4.
The development subject to this application is contrary to Edinburgh Local
Development Plan Policy Tra 4 (Design of Off-Street Car and Cycle Parking), as it
would prevent the continuation of an active frontage on the public street and the related
improvements to the appearance and vitality of the townscape, as proposed in the
approved masterplan.
Development Management report of handling –

Page 9 of 16
Page 407

19/04487/FUL

5.
The development is contrary to the provisions of Edinburgh Local Development
Plan Policy Env 6 (Conservation Areas- Development) as its piecemeal form and lack
of defined frontage, fails to contribute positively to the character of the surrounding
townscape and is therefore damaging to the setting of the Leith Conservation Area.

Risk, Policy, compliance and governance impact
4.1 Provided planning applications are determined in accordance with statutory
legislation, the level of risk is low.

Equalities impact
5.1 The equalities impact has been assessed as follows:
The application has been considered and has no impact in terms of equalities or
human rights.

Consultation and engagement
6.1 Pre-Application Process
Pre-application discussions took place on this application.
6.2 Publicity summary of representations and Community Council comments
Neighbour notification was carried out on 3 October 2019 and no representations were
received.

Background reading / external references


To view details of the application go to



Planning and Building Standards online services

Development Management report of handling –

Page 408Page 10 of 16

19/04487/FUL

ort of handling

Statutory Development
Plan Provision

Local Development Plan
The site is located within area EW 1c (Leith Waterfront,
East of Salamander Place) for a housing-led mixed use
development. Part of the site to the east is allocated a
Greenspace proposal GS 3 (Leith Links Seaward
Extension). The Leith Conservation Area lies to the south
of the site and covers the existing allotments.
Leith Links Seaward Expansion Study 2008
The Study sets out a strategic vision for the extension of
Leith Links. The vision included the provision of allotments.
Salamander Place Development Brief 2007
The Salamander Place Development Brief sets out key
principles for developing the area in which this site is
located. These include proposals providing key streets and
frontages as set out in the Brief, the implementation of the
park extension, provision of a cycle route, extend the
existing mix of uses and provide sites for smaller industrial
units.

Date registered

20 September 2019

Drawing
numbers/Scheme

01,02a.,
Scheme 2

David R. Leslie
Chief Planning Officer
PLACE
The City of Edinburgh Council
Contact: Carla Parkes, Senior Planning Officer
E-mail:carla.parkes@edinburgh.gov.uk Tel:0131 529 3925

Development Management report of handling –

Page 11 of 16
Page 409

19/04487/FUL

Links - Policies
Relevant Policies:
Relevant policies of the Edinburgh City Local Plan.
LDP Policy Del 3 (Edinburgh Waterfront) sets criteria for assessing development in
Granton Waterfront and Leith Waterfront.
LDP Policy Des 1 (Design Quality and Context) sets general criteria for assessing
design quality and requires an overall design concept to be demonstrated.
LDP Policy Des 4 (Development Design - Impact on Setting) sets criteria for assessing
the impact of development design against its setting.
LDP Policy Des 7 (Layout design) sets criteria for assessing layout design.
LDP Policy Des 2 (Co-ordinated Development) establishes a presumption against
proposals which might compromise the effect development of adjacent land or the
wider area.
LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design - Amenity) sets criteria for assessing amenity.
LDP Policy Des 8 (Public Realm and Landscape Design) sets criteria for assessing
public realm and landscape design.
LDP Policy Env 9 (Development of Sites of Archaeological Significance) sets out the
circumstances in which development affecting sites of known or suspected
archaeological significance will be permitted.
LDP Policy Env 21 (Flood Protection) sets criteria for assessing the impact of
development on flood protection.
LDP Policy Env 3 (Listed Buildings - Setting) identifies the circumstances in which
development within the curtilage or affecting the setting of a listed building will be
permitted.
LDP Policy Env 21 (Flood Protection) sets criteria for assessing the impact of
development on flood protection.
LDP Policy Tra 4 (Design of Off-Street Car and Cycle Parking) sets criteria for
assessing design of off-street car and cycle parking.
The Leith Conservation Area Character Appraisal emphasises the area's unique
and complex architectural character, the concentration of buildings of significant historic
and architectural quality, the unifying effect of traditional materials, the multiplicity of
land use activities, and the importance of the Water of Leith and Leith Links for their
natural heritage, open space and recreational value

Development Management report of handling –

Page 410Page 12 of 16

19/04487/FUL

LDP Policy Env 6 (Conservation Areas - Development) sets out criteria for assessing
development in a conservation area.
Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines
Non-Statutory guidelines Edinburgh Design Guidance supports development of the
highest design quality and that integrates well with the existing city. It sets out the
Council's expectations for the design of new development, including buildings, parking,
streets and landscape, in Edinburgh.
Non-statutory guidelines 'LISTED BUILDINGS AND CONSERVATION AREAS'
provides guidance on repairing, altering or extending listed buildings and unlisted
buildings in conservation areas.
Non-Statutory guidelines Edinburgh Design Guidance supports development of the
highest design quality and that integrates well with the existing city. It sets out the
Council's expectations for the design of new development, including buildings, parking,
streets and landscape, in Edinburgh.
Non-statutory guidelines 'LISTED BUILDINGS AND CONSERVATION AREAS'
provides guidance on repairing, altering or extending listed buildings and unlisted
buildings in conservation areas.

Development Management report of handling –

Page 13 of 16
Page 411

19/04487/FUL

Appendix 1
Consultations

CEC Archaeology
Further to your consultation request I would like to make the following comments and
recommendations concerning this application for 5 new parking spaces in lieu of
parking and mews building structure (2 no. dwellings) forming part of planning consent
16/03356/PPP.
The site was identified as being located within an area archaeological potential
particularly relating to 18th-20th century. As part of the mitigation required to be
undertaken in relation to conditions attached to the 2016 PPP application this site was
evaluated in March 2018 by AOC Archaeology Group. The results indicated that the
area had suffered from modern truncation and that it is unlikely that significant remains
will have survived in situ.
Accordingly, it has been concluded that there are no known archaeological implications
regarding this application.
CEC Roads Authority
No objections to the application subject to the following being included as conditions or
informatives as appropriate:
1.
The Applicant should consider electric vehicle charging infrastructure for this
development, including the potential for rapid charge capabilities;
2.
The applicant should note that the proposed development is in an area being
investigated for on-street parking controls (i.e. controlled parking zone);
3.
The parking area should comply with the Council's Street Design Guidance and
associated Fact Sheets, the main points are as follows:
a.
Access to any car parking area to be a maximum width of 3m (4.8m including
transitions if by dropped kerb);
b.
Any gate or doors must open inwards onto the property;
c.
Any hard-standing should be porous;
d.
The works to form an access must be carried out under permit and in
accordance with the specifications. See Road Occupation Permits
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/downloads/file/1263/apply_for_permission_to_create_or_
alter_a_driveway_or_other_access_point
Note:
I.
With regards to the level of car parking provision across the whole site this
application has been considered alongside the phased AMC planning applications and
the proposed level of car parking provision is still within the maximum level set out in
the PPP (16/03356/PPP).
Environmental Protection
Development Management report of handling –

Page 412Page 14 of 16

19/04487/FUL

The applicant proposes developing 5 new carparking spaces to serve an already
consented large development. Although the proposed parking level is low when
considered cumulatively with all the other consented parking as part of the wider
consented development the overall parking numbers are high. The site is located in
close proximity to an Air Quality Management Area that has been declared due to
traffic related pollution. Environmental Protection recommend that air quality mitigation
measures are included as part of this proposal and that all spaces shall be served with
electric vehicle charging points.
The residential parking space highlighted on drawing number L(PL) 002 dated
September 2019 shall be served by 7Kw (32amp) Type 2 electric vehicle charging
sockets and shall be installed and operational in full prior to the development being
occupied.
The bin store area has been partially erected with a low brick wall and steel gate
opening out onto Salamander Place. The bin store may be used by commercial
operators. There are residential properties located near this bin store area and may be
affected by noise and odours unless the area is better contained under a roof and wall.
Therefore, Environmental Protection offer no objection subject to the following condition
being attached;
1.
The residential parking space highlighted on drawing number L(PL) 002 dated
September 2019 shall be served by 7Kw (32amp) Type 2 electric vehicle charging
sockets and shall be installed and operational in full prior to the development being
occupied.

Development Management report of handling –

Page 15 of 16
Page 413

19/04487/FUL

END

Development Management report of handling –

Page 414Page 16 of 16

19/04487/FUL

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division
Appeals cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted.
Thank you for completing this appeal form:
ONLINE REFERENCE

100180806-003

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The Planning and Environmental Appeals Division will allocate an
Appeal Number when your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the Planning and Environmental
Appeals Division about this appeal.

Appellant or Agent Details
Are you an appellant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting

 Appellant Agent

on behalf of the applicant in connection with this appeal)

Agent Details
Please enter Agent details
Company/Organisation:

Patience and Highmore

Ref. Number:

You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *
Keith

First Name: *

Building Name:

Cameron

Last Name: *

Building Number:

Telephone Number: *

Address 1
(Street): *

Extension Number:

Address 2:

Mobile Number:

Town/City: *

Fax Number:

Country: *
Postcode: *

Patience and Highmore, Quadrant
17
Bernard Street

Edinburgh
Scotland
EH6 6PW

Email Address: *
Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *



Individual



Organisation/Corporate entity

Page 415

Page 1 of 5

Appellant Details
Please enter Appellant details
Title:

You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Other Title:

Building Name:

First Name: *

Building Number:

Last Name: *

Address 1
(Street): *

Company/Organisation

Teague Homes (UK) Ltd

52-54
Dundas Street

Address 2:

Telephone Number: *

Town/City: *

Extension Number:

Country: *

Mobile Number:

Postcode: *

Edinburgh
EH3 6QZ

Fax Number:
Email Address: *

Site Address Details
Planning Authority:

City of Edinburgh Council

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):
Address 1:
Address 2:
Address 3:
Address 4:
Address 5:
Town/City/Settlement:
Post Code:
Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

Northing

676113

Easting

Page 416

327569

Page 2 of 5

Description of Proposal
Please provide a description of your proposal. The description should be the same as given in the application form, or as amended
(with the agreement of the planning authority): *
(Max 500 characters)
5no. new parking spaces in lieu of parking and mews building structure (2no. dwellings) forming part of Planning Consent ref.
16/03356/PPP

Type of Application
What type of application did you submit to the planning authority? *











Application for Planning Permission (including householder application – excluding application to work minerals).
Application for Certificate of Lawfulness.
Application for Listed Building Consent.
Application for Conservation Area Consent.
Application for Advertisement Consent.
Application for Prior Approval.
Application for Tree Works Consent.
Application for Certificate of Appropriate Alternative Development.
Application for Planning Permission to work minerals.

What type of planning application was submitted to the planning authority? *






Application for Planning Permission.
Application for Planning Permission in principle.
A Further Application (including renewal of planning permission, modification, variation or removal of a planning condition etc).
Approval of matters specified in conditions.

What type of decision did you receive from the planning authority and are now appealing against? *





Refusal Notice.
Grant of permission with Conditions imposed.
No decision – deemed refusal (NB: This does not apply to Prior Approvals).

Statement of Appeal
You must state in full, why you are appealing against the planning authority’s decision (or failure to make a decision). Your statement
must set out all matters you consider required to be taken into account in determining your appeal: * (Max 500 characters)
Note: you might not have a further opportunity to add to your statement of appeal at a later date, so it is essential that you produce all of
the information you want the decision-maker to take into account.
You will though be entitled to comment on (i) any additional matter which may be raised by the planning authority in its response to your
appeal, or (ii) any representations the Scottish Government might receive from any other person or body.
The construction of the Mews is not commercially viable and the additional parking provides benefit to the adjacent development
The developer is not compelled by the detailed design consent under the Planning Permission in Principle, to complete the Mews
in advance of commencing other phases Recommendations from the Planning Department at time of the current application were
included, as required under Local Development Plan policy Tra 4 (Design of Off Street Car and Cycle Parking Areas)

Page 417

Page 3 of 5

Have you raised any matters which were not before the planning authority at the time the decision
You are appealing against was made? *

 Yes  No

Please provide a list of all documents, materials and evidence which you have provided with your appeal and intend to rely on in support
of your appeal, ensuring that all documents are clearly numbered: * (Max 500 characters)
Drawings 1918 L(--)001 Site Layout Car Park Proposals, 1918 L(--)002_A Car Park Proposal and Supplementary Photographs.

 Yes  No

Are you providing a separate statement of your Grounds of Appeal? *
If Yes then please be prepared to upload this when you reach the end of the form.

Application Details
Please provide details of the application and decision.
19/04487/FUL

What is the application reference number? *

What date was the application submitted to the planning authority? *

19/09/2019

What date was the decision or certificate issued by the planning authority? *

18/12/2019

Appeals Procedure
The person appointed to determine your appeal will decide upon the procedure to be used. However you should indicate what
procedure you think is the most appropriate for the handling of the appeal.
Can this appeal continue to a conclusion in your opinion, based on a review of the relevant information provided by yourself and other
parties without any further procedures? *

 Yes  No
In the event that the Scottish Government Reporter appointed to consider your appeal decides to inspect the appeal site, in your
opinion:
Can the site be clearly seen from a road or public land? *

 Yes  No

Is it possible for the site to be accessed safely and without barriers to entry? *

 Yes  No

If there are reasons why you think the Reporter would be unable to access and view the appeal site alone, please explain here. (Max
500 characters)

Other Appeals Submitted Details
Have you or anyone else made any other related appeals to Scottish Ministers regarding this building and/or
Site?

Page 418

 Yes 

No

Page 4 of 5

Checklist – Appeal Against Planning Authority Decision Or Failure of
Planning Authority To Give Decision
Please complete the following checklist to make sure you have provided all the necessary information in support of your appeal.
Failure to submit all this information may result in your appeal being deemed invalid. The Planning and Environmental Appeals Division
cannot start processing your appeal until it is valid.
Are you submitting a supplementary statement with your grounds of appeal? *
If the appeal concerns approval of matters specified in conditions, or a Further Application to
vary conditions – please attach a copy of the application, approved plans and decision notice
from that earlier consent. *

 Yes  No
 Submitted  Not Applicable

Copy of Plans/Drawing *

 Yes  No

Copy of planning authority decision notice (if no decision then this is deemed as a refusal). *

 Yes  No  No decision

A copy of original application form and if applicable include certificates relating to land ownership. *

 Yes  No

Other documents, materials and evidence which you intend to rely on. *

 Yes  No

The Report of Handling prepared by the planning authority in respect of your application,

 Yes  No

where one exists. *

Declare – Appeals against Refusals and other decisions
I/We the applicant/agent certify that this is an appeal to Scottish Ministers on the grounds stated.
Declaration Name:

Mr Keith Cameron

Declaration Date:

05/03/2020

Page 419

Page 5 of 5

Proposal Details
Proposal Name
Proposal Description
Address
Local Authority
Application Online Reference

Application Status
Form
Main Details
Certificate of Ownership
Checklist
Declaration
Supporting Documentation
Email Notification

Attachment Details
Appeals against Refusals and other
decisions
L PL 001
L PL 002
Supplementary Photographs
Appeals_against_Refusals_and_oth2.pdf
Application_Summary.pdf
Appeals against Refusals and other
decisions-003.xml

100180806
5no. car parking spaces
City of Edinburgh Council
100180806-003

complete
complete
complete
complete
complete
complete
complete

System

A4

Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached

A3
A3
A4
A0

Attached
Attached

A0
A0

Page 420

Robertson J (Jane)
From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Attachments:

Carla Parkes
>
12 March 2020 15:02
Robertson J (Jane)
Gina Bellhouse
FW: PPA-230-2304 Consent Appeal in order, PA response required
PPA-230-2304_20200306_1713_1.docx

Dear Jane,
I would confirm, as discussed, that due to an administrative error on the part of the Council, the incorrect advice
was issued on the means of appealing on this decision and the applicant was advised to contact the DPEA rather
than the City of Edinburgh Council (Local Review Body).
I would apologise for this error and look forward to hearing from you further on how best to resolve this matter.
Regards,

Carla
From: Carla Parkes
Sent: 11 March 2020 14:02
To: jane.robertson@scot.gov.uk
Subject: FW: PPA‐230‐2304 Consent Appeal in order, PA response required
Dear Jane,
As case officer for the planning application subject to the above appeal (Planning Ref. 19/04487/FUL) I have received
notification of the relevant appeal. Could you please advise why this appeal is being handled by the DPEA as it was a
determined under delegated powers.(and would normally be referred to the Council’s Local Review Body).
I look forward to hearing back from you.
Best regards,
Carla Parkes

Subject: FW: PPA‐230‐2304 Consent Appeal in order, PA response required
Hi Carla,
New appeal received
All information on GDrive
Reps Notified : n/a
Due Back : 25 March 2020
Appeal Reference Number : 20/00026/REF

Page
421
1

Application Reference Number : 19/04487/FUL
Thanks
Aidan

From: DPEA
Sent: 06 March 2020 17:31
To: Planning Appeals <Planning.Appeals@edinburgh.gov.uk>
Subject: PPA‐230‐2304 Consent Appeal in order, PA response required

Sir/Madam,
Please find attached a document related to the case: PPA-230-2304 - 5No. New Parking Places In Lieu Of
Parking And Mews Building Structure (2No Dwellings) Forming Part Of Planning Consent Ref.
16/03356/Ppp. (As Amended)
Regards,
Jane Robertson

Case Publication Website
This email (and any files or other attachments transmitted with it) is intended solely for the attention of the
addressee. Unauthorised use, disclosure, storage, copying or distribution of any part of this email is not
permitted. If you are not the intended recipient, please destroy the email and remove any copies from your
system.
**********************************************************************
This email and files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended for the sole use of the individual or
organisation to whom they are addressed.
If you have received this eMail in error please notify the sender immediately and delete it without using,
copying, storing, forwarding or disclosing its contents to any other person.
The Council has endeavoured to scan this eMail message and attachments for computer viruses and will not
be liable for any losses incurred by the recipient.
**********************************************************************
______________________________________________________________________
This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com
______________________________________________________________________

Page 422
2

Page 423

Page 424

1of2. Supplementary photographs provided in support of Planning Application ref. 19/04487/FUL

Page 425
Existing shrubbed area planted in accordance with the PPP approved scheme to be extended to surround newly proposed parking spaces. Planting species, including new tree
planting to be fully coordinated by the landscape designer. Temporary timber fencing to be removed, and existing turfed area to be taken out in lieu of additional shrubs.

2of2. Supplementary photographs provided in support of Planning Application ref. 19/04487/FUL

Page 426
Existing shrubbed area planted in accordance with the PPP approved scheme to be extended to surround newly proposed parking spaces. Planting species, including new tree
planting to be fully coordinated by the landscape designer. Temporary timber fencing to be removed, and existing turfed area to be taken out in lieu of additional shrubs.

